


•	 To operate a sustainable business with reasonable profit objectives 
while promoting social stability and ethical integrity.

•	 To be a leading enterprise of non-life insurance business with a 
network of offices, highly competent personnel, good services 
and the best technology.

•	 To provide quality insurance coverage and quality protection for 
the benefit of policyholders, employees, shareholders and the 
general public.

•	 To provide good and high-quality services to customers with 
fairness and integrity.

•	 To innovate and develop new insurance products for the changing 
needs of society.

•	 To focus on quality of service and reasonable cost control to 
achieve utmost efficiency in the development of management 
system.

•	 To support and develop a good working environment and promote 
unity among employees as well as maintain competitive benefits 
and compensation suitable for social environment.

•	 To invest in human resource development and encourage 
employees to be professional and maintain high ethical standard.

•	 To develop and implement new technology to effectively improve 
our service to the customers.

Vision

Mission
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The growth of Thai economy in 2023 was not as expected 
due to the slowdown in export and the decrease of the 
industrial production. The income from foreign tourists and 
the government consumption dropped from forecasted. 
Moreover, the impact from the geopolitical conflict situation 
was still protracted. However, the overall Thai economy in 
2023 continued to expand from the previous year due to 
a high level of private consumption expansion according 
to the recovery in the labor market and an improvement 
in consumer confidence.

The insurance business got benefit from the economic 
recovery in 2023 and continued to grow as expected. The 
premiums of almost all types of insurance increased from 
the previous year, except for the marine and transportation 
insurance premiums, that were slightly lower than the 
previous year due to the slowdown in export. However, 
rapid technological development and changing consumer 
behavior challenges business operations. Consumers spend 
their money carefully, make smart purchasing, including 
prefer convenient and quick product accessibility via 
modern technology. Business operations shall adapt to 
keep up with the times for customer satisfaction and more 
market share.

The Board of Directors established strategies and business 
plans that befitted the economic conditions and insurance 
market. The Company also followed up on the operating 
performance regularly to ensure the good operating results 
and goal achievement. In the past year, the Company have 

Message from the Chairman

continued to improve and develop the management to 
increase competitive potential. Various new products have 
been developed to cover the needs of the audiences. The 
sales channels both in Bangkok and regional areas have 
been expanded for easy accessibility to products. The 
services to customers and business partners have been 
increasingly transformed into digital format. The Board of 
Directors also supervised the Company’s risk management 
and internal control system to be effective for strengthening 
the business stability.

In addition to place emphasis on good operating 
performance, the Board also drives the Company towards 
sustainability, taking into consideration the environment, 
society, and corporate governance. The Company gets 
ready for the changes in order to create good returns for 
shareholders along with conducting business responsibly 
towards society and environment. In 2023, the Company 
still continuously received "excellent" scoring from the 
Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed Companies 
assessed by Thai Institute of Directors Association. 

The trust and constant support of our benefactors, 
shareholders, and stakeholders as well as all employees, 
who intend to perform their duties to the best of their 
abilities, drive the Company to overcome obstacles and 
succeed throughout the past 90 years. On behalf of the 
Board of Directors, I would like to thank everyone and 
pledge that the Board of Directors will oversee the business 
to grow steadily and sustainably.

Mr. Suchin Wanglee 
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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After the coronavirus disease outbreak has subsided, 
the Thai economy is likely to expand continuously. The 
increase of private consumption and investment, cars sales 
as well as both domestic and international tourism resulted 
in the growth of 2023 insurance business by approximately 
5%. The direct premiums of almost all types of insurance 
increased except for the marine and transportation 
insurance. Meanwhile the miscellaneous insurance claims 
ratio decreased significantly as the insurance companies 
have already settled claims for COVID-19 insurance. 

In 2023, the Company's operating performance met the 
target with the gross insurance premiums of 3,823 million 
Baht and the net profits of 120 million Baht, increased 
from the previous year by 4% and 383% respectively. The 
success arises from the appropriate strategies and business 
plans determined by studying insurance business trends 
and factors affecting business operations. The Company 
prioritizes the customer satisfaction in both products and 
services. A variety of insurance products are developed for 
covering property and emerging threats, such as electric 
vehicle insurance policies and cyber insurance policies, to 
meet the customer needs and expand the target audiences. 
The Company extends distribution channels both centrally 
and regionally in order to reach the prospects thoroughly. 
The networks of claims services such as garages and 
hospitals are widened to provide more convenient services 
to customers. The sophisticated technologies such as 

Message from the Chief Executive  
Officer and the President

Artificial Intelligence (AI), Robotic Process Automation 
(RPA), and Enterprise Content Management are utilized 
to reduce work process and times; increase the efficiency 
of work systems and services as well as secure data and 
documents. The corporate and products awareness are 
constantly created through communication and public 
relations. The Company well prepares in various areas for 
compliance with rules and regulations that will come into 
effect, such as the Financial Reporting Standards No. 17.

In addition, the Company aspires to develop the 
organization towards sustainability, conduct business 
according to the principles of good governance including 
be responsible for the environment and society. The 
operations are in line with the sustainability strategy in 
economic, social and environmental dimensions. The 
Company also provides opportunities for stakeholders to 
participate in the business operations by listening to their 
opinions and responding appropriately. 

The Company appreciates all shareholders, customers, 
partners, and business partners for always trusting and 
supporting the Company very well. We would also like to 
thank all the executives and employees put together to 
drive the Company's business to success and make steady 
progress for another year.

Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra
CEO & President
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Financial Highlights 

Operating Performance and Financial Position as at 31 December

Unit : million Baht

List
Financial statements in which 
the equity method is applied

2023 2022 2021

Financial position

Total assets 6,169.72 6,280.63 6,278.91

Total liabilities 3,964.53 4,095.60 4,030.62

Total equity 2,205.19 2,185.03 2,248.29

Operating performance

Gross premium written 3,823.85 3,666.68 3,372.95

Net premium written 3,052.06 2,795.05 2,552.56

Net earned premium 2,951.68 2,624.85 2,522.93

Profit from underwriting before operating expenses 457.83 320.70 399.76

Operating expenses 384.73 353.44 353.29

Other expenses and financial costs 20.55 11.28 6.37

Total investments income and other income 89.66 83.68 91.09

Share of profit (loss) from investment in associates 0.09 6.51 1.38

Profit before income tax expenses 142.30 46.17 132.57

Income tax expenses 22.27 21.33 23.22

Profit for the year 120.03 24.84 109.35
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List
Financial statements in which 
the equity method is applied

2023 2022 2021

Per share comparison

Basic earnings per share (Baht)* 3.24 0.67 2.96

Dividens per share (Baht)** 1.77 1.28 1.79

Financial ratio

Return on investment (%) 2.11 2.34 2.59

Return on Equity (%) 5.47 1.12 5.04

Debt to equity ratio (Times) 1.80 1.87 1.79

Capital adequacy ratio (%)*** 425.50  395.91 339.17

* The Profits per share calculation adjusted the number of common shares used to calculate. It is considered as if the issuance of stock dividends  
  occurred since the beginning of the first year in which the report is presented.
**  Proposed to 2024 Shareholder’s Meeting of in April 2024 for approval.
*** Information of 2023 that is unaudited.
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Operating Results From Underwriting
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Premium written Net earned premium

Profit from underwriting before operating expensesClaim and loss adjustment expenses
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The Audit Committee’s Report

The Audit Committee (the “Committee”) comprises 3 
independent directors, namely Mr. Kiet Srichomkwan 
as the Chairman of the Committee, Gen. Montree 
Sungkasap and Mrs. Wanida Chansikarin as the Committee 
members. They are highly competent and experienced in 
organization management, finance and accounting. 

During the year 2023, the Committee held 10 meetings. 
Details of the meeting attendance are as follows:
1.	Mr. Kiet Srichomkwan	 Chairman	
			   Meeting Attendance 
			   10 times of 10 times 
2.	Gen. Montree Sungkasap	 Member
			   Meeting Attendance 
			   10 times of 10 times 
3.	Mrs. Wanida  Chansikarin	 Member
			   Meeting Attendance
			   10 times of 10 times

The Committee performed its duties as assigned by 
the Board of Directors and supervised the Company’s 
operation in accordance with the charter and the 
Corporate Governance principles. The performance report 
for the year 2023 is as follows: 

1. The Committee reviewed the quarterly and annual 
financial statements reports. The Committee joined 

meetings with the Company’s executive officers e.g. Vice 
President of Finance Department, Vice President of the 
Office of Internal Audit as well as the Company’s external 
auditor, to discuss whether the preparation of financial 
statements complied with relevant law and financial 
reporting standard. The meeting was held to ensure 
that the audited financial statements were accurate 
according to financial reporting standard and disclosed 
information were adequate, complete and reliable. Notes 
of the external auditor were considered and applied to 
achieve optimum benefit to the Company. In addition, 
the Committee held a meeting with the Company’s 
external auditor specifically to ensure that the financial 
statements were prepared without any intervention and 
that the Company’s external auditor was independent. 
Executive Vice President who holds the position of Chief 
Financial Officer confirmed that the Company’s accounting  
system was effective and the collection and recording 
transactions were complete according to current financial 
reporting standard. Reviewing the statements and 
explanation received from the persons in charge and the 
external auditor, the Committee formed an opinion that 
the financial statements were completely and accurately 
prepared according to the current financial reporting 
standards and also in line with the stipulations of the 
Office of Insurance Commission (OIC).

Mr. Kiet Srichomkwan 
Chairman of the Audit Committe
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2. The Committee reviewed and assessed the internal 
control system together with the external auditor through 
reports of the Office of Internal Audit on regular basis. 
There was not any significant deficiency and the internal 
control system was reasonably adequate and appropriate. 
The Committee reviewed and assessed the annual internal 
audit plan which followed the risk assessment result, 
approved budget of the Office of Internal Audit and laurels 
of Vice President of the Office of Internal Audit. According 
to the internal control system evaluation conducted by 
the Board, the Committee had an opinion that the internal 
control system was adequate and appropriate.

3. The Committee reviewed the related party transaction 
or the transactions that may lead to conflict of interest and 
the compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations. 
During 2023, the Company had related transactions which 
were normal business transactions. The compliance 
checklist has been implemented to ensure the adequate 
and appropriate compliance with the rules and regulations 
of relevant laws.

4. The Committee reviewed the efficiency and effectiveness 
of good governance and the compliance with rules, 
regulations and related laws. It was found that directors, 
executives, and employees conducted their duties in 
compliance with the policies as well as all relevant laws 
and regulations. The Company has been a member of 
Thailand’s Private Sector Collective Action Coalition 
against Corruption and the Anti-Corruption Policy has 
been implemented properly to its business.

5. Risk Management Committee was appointed and 
assigned to be responsible for the risk management. The 
Audit Committee reviewed the management to ensure 
that the Company prepared a risk management plan and 
adequately followed up on risk management results. The 

opinion of the Audit Committee was presented to the 
Board of Directors for consideration in order to improve 
the risk management efficiency in compliance with the 
regulations and guidelines of the Office of Insurance 
Commission.

6. The Committee reviewed the Audit Committee 
charter on a yearly basis to be in line with new laws and 
regulations as well as current situation. The Committee 
also evaluated their performance, of which the result was 
ranked in a good level and regularly improved.

7. The Committee evaluated the external auditors’ 
performance during the past year, of which result was 
satisfactory. It also considered their independence 
and qualifications and was of opinion that they were 
conformed to criteria regulated by Securities and 
Exchange Commission. Therefore, the Committee 
recommended that the Board of Directors appoint  
Ms. Narissara Chaisuwan, C.P.A. Registration No. 4812 or 
Ms. Rachada Yongsawadvanich C.P.A. Registration No. 4951 
or Ms. Wanwilai Phetsang, C.P.A. Registration No. 5315 or 
Ms. Saranya Pludsri, C.P.A. Registration No. 6768, all from 
EY Office Limited, to be the Company’s external auditor 
for the year 2024. The auditors’ remuneration, totaling of 
4,595,000 Baht, was also proposed for the Annual General 
Meeting of Shareholders’ approval.

The Committee was of the opinion that the Company 
adheres the Good Corporate Governance principles in 
conducting business, with adequate internal control 
system, efficient risk management, accurate and credible 
accounting system and financial reports. The operation 
complied with relevant laws and regulations and the 
Company monitored and assessed business situation on 
regular basis.
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The Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable 
Development Committee (“the Committee”) consists of 
3 members. Details of the meeting attendance of the year 
2023 are as follows:

1.	Gen. Montree	 Sungkasap	 Chairman
			   Meeting attendance 
			   3 times of 3 times
2.	Mr. Nipol	 T.Jeerawong	 Member
			   Meeting attendance 
			   3 times of 3 times
3.	Mrs. Phornpun	Phornprapha	 Member
			   Meeting attendance 
			   3 times of 3 times

The Committee is assigned to consider the criteria for 
remuneration of the directors and the Chief Executive 
Officer and President; recruit candidates who have 
appropriate qualifications to serve as a member of the 
Board of Directors, subcommittees and the Chief Executive 
Officer and President; consider and propose guidelines 
for compliance with corporate governance principles 
and sustainable development that comply with laws, 
regulations and principles of good corporate governance. 
In the past year, the Committee considered the following 
matters:

The Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable 
Development Committee’s Report 

Gen. Montree Sungkasap
Chairman of the Remuneration, 
Nomination and Sustainable 
Development Committee

1. Remuneration
The Committee considered the structure, criteria and 
rate of the remuneration of the Board of Directors and 
subcommittees that suited their duties, responsibilities 
according to the Company's strategy and goals. The 
Committee scrutinized the remuneration taking into 
consideration that of other companies in the same 
business, the competition, the economy, the Company’s 
operating performance and the dividend payment.  
The remuneration also motivated directors and 
subcommittees to perform duties efficiently and 
effectively. The remuneration structure remained the same 
as the previous year. Directors received bonus and meeting 
allowance per meeting attendance while members of the 
subcommittees received only meeting allowances.

The remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and 
President was based on performances and compared 
to the predetermined goals which were in line with the 
Company's strategy, objectives and operating performance 
of the Company.

2. Nomination
The Committee proposed qualified candidates to be 
appointed as members of the Board of Directors and 
members of subcommittees in replacement of those who 
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vacated their positions and who retired by rotation. The 
Committee scrutinized nominated persons to ensure that 
they had qualifications as specified and would be able 
to perform their duties in compliance with the principles 
of Fiduciary Duty. The Committee also considered the 
composition of the Board of Directors to comply with the 
laws or the regulations of the regulators. The diversity of 
skills, expertise, experience, and gender were also reviewed. 
In the past year, the Committee nominated new directors 
to replace those who retired by rotation from the director 
pool of Thai Institute of Directors Association. The Company 
gave the opportunity for directors and shareholders to 
nominate persons to be elected as directors between 1 
September 2022 to 31 December 2022, but no nominated 
individual was proposed. The Committee then proposed 
5 retired directors to be appointed as the Company’s 
directors due to their qualifications in all respects and 
strong duty performance during their previous term of 
office.

In addition, the Board of Directors proposed the 
appointment of 2 Board of directors’ members and 1 Risk 
Management Committee’s member to replace those who 

resigned. The extension of the employment contract of the 
Chief Executive Officer and President including guidelines 
of the Chief Executive Officer and President succession 
plans were also considered.

3. Sustainable Development
The Committee reviewed Code of Conduct, Corporate 
Governance Policy, Sustainable Development Policy, 
Anti-Corruption Policy and Measures and Whistleblowing 
Policy as well as proposed Related Party Transactions 
Policy, Disclosure Policy and Safety, Occupational Health 
and Working Environment Policy. All policies were 
stipulated taking into consideration the principles of 
Good Corporate Governance and suggestions from the 
regulators to be suitable for business operations and in 
line with current relevant laws, criteria, and practices. The 
Committee also supervised and advised the management 
on the implementation of such policies to ensure that 
the Company conducted its business in accordance with 
the ethics and Good Corporate Governance principles, 
taking into account environmental, social and governance 
awareness.
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The Risk Management Committee (“the Committee”) 
consists of 5 directors and executives, who are Mr. Nipol 
T.Jeerawong, Chairman of the Risk Management Committee, 
Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra, Mrs. Nalina Bodharamik, Mr. Anak 
Wanglee and Mr. Anin Wanglee. They are qualified and 
experienced in corporate management, risk management, 
investment and claims management.

In 2023, the Risk Management Committee appointed Mr. 
Anin Wanglee, Executive Vice President to serve a member 
of the Risk Management Committee instead of Ms. Anukul 
Thitikulrat who resigned on 30 September 2023.

In 2023, the Risk Management Committee held 5 meetings. 
Details of the meeting attendance are as follows:

1.	Mr. Nipol	 T.Jeerawong	Chairman
			   Meeting Attendance
			   5 times of 5 times
2.	Mr. Pitiphong	 Bisalputra	 Member
			   Meeting Attendance
			   5 times of 5 times
3.	Ms. Anukul	 Thitikulrat 	 Member
			   Meeting Attendance
			   4 times of 4 times
4.	Mrs. Nalina	 Bodharamik	 Member
			   Meeting Attendance
			   5 times of 5 times

The Risk Management Committee’s Report

Mr. Nipol T.Jeerawong
Chairman of the Risk Management 
Committee

5.	Mr. Anak	 Wanglee	 Member
			   Meeting Attendance
			   3 times of 5 times
6.	Mr. Anin	 Wanglee 	 Member
			   Meeting Attendance
			   1 time of 1 time

The Risk Management Committee performed duties 
assigned by the Board of Directors and supervised the risk 
management in accordance with the Committee’s charter 
and the notification of the Office of Insurance Commission. 
The Risk Management Committee’ performance report for 
the year 2023 is summarized as follows:

1. The Committee supervised the risk management to 
be systematic and continuous; efficient and effective 
for maximum benefit as well as in accordance with the 
framework and policies of the Enterprise Risk Management 
(ERM), the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA), 
including business strategies and plans. Such supervision 
was to insure a stable financial status, capital funds, 
adequate and appropriate risk management and the ability 
to achieve the objectives or goals of the Company both 
in short term and long term.
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2. The Committee determined the risk management 
framework and policy, the risk appetite and the risk 
tolerance. The framework and policy, which covered at 
least significant risks as prescribed by the Office of Insurance 
Commission (OIC) were presented to the Board of Directors 
for approval.

3. The Committee supervised the overall activities of the 
Company related to risks. This included the development 
and implementation of risk management framework and 
policy across the organization to ensure that the Company 
conducted business correctly and effectively according 
to the risk management policy provided by the Board of 
Directors.

4. The Committee reviewed the risk management report 
to assess and monitor key risks and to ensure that 
the Company’s risk management was adequate and 
appropriate.

5. The Committee presented and monitored risk status 
including changes in the overall risks of the Company. 
Moreover, the progress of risk management was followed-
up and suggestions were provided in order to improve the 
risk management in compliance with the risk management 
framework and policy. The risk management reports were 
presented to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.

6. The Committee prepared a risk mitigation plan to handle 
emergency cases.

7. The Committee provided advice to the management 
and risk owners. Various information related to the 
development of risk management systems was also revised.

8. The Committee performed other duties as assigned by 
the Board of Directors.
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The Investment Committee (“the Committee”) consists of 3 
members who are qualified and experienced in investment, 
namely Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra as the Chairman of the 
Investment Committee, Mr. Nipol T.Jeerawong and Mr. 
Anak Wanglee as the members of Investment Committee.

In 2023, the Investment Committee held 4 meetings. Details 
of the meeting attendance are as follows:

1.	Mr. Pitiphong	 Bisalputra	 Chairman
			   Meeting Attendance 4 times
2.	Mr. Nipol	 T.Jeerawong	 Member
			   Meeting Attendance 3 times
3.	Mr. Anak	 Wanglee	 Member
			   Meeting Attendance 4 times

The Investment Committee’s Report

Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra
Chairman of the Investment Committee

The Investment Committee is responsible for managing the 
Company's investments according to the investment policy, 
making a reasonable return at risk appetite. In the previous 
year, the Committee considered significant aspects of 
investment to be consistent with the current economic 
situation. Investment risks and returns were focused in 
order to achieve the expected return at risk appetite.
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The Executive Board consists of 5 executives who were 
appointed by the Board of Directors to screen the operating 
matters and support the performance of the Board of 
Directors regarding determining policies, regulations and 
guidelines for management.

In 2023, the Executive Board held 51 meetings. Details of 
meeting attendance are as follows:

1.	Mr. Pitiphong	 Bisalputra	 Chairman
			   Meeting attendance
			   50 times 
2.	Mrs. Nalina	 Bodharamik	 Member
			   Meeting attendance
			   47 times
3.	Mr. Anak 	 Wanglee	 Member
			   Meeting attendance
			   44 times
4.	Mr. Anin	 Wanglee	 Member
			   Meeting attendance
			   43 times
5.	Dr. Saran	 Wanglee	 Member
			   Meeting attendance
			   42 times

The Executive Board performed duties as assigned by the 
Board of Directors. In 2023, the following matters were 
considered:

The Executive Board’s Report

Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra
Chairman of the Executive Board

1. Preparing business strategies and the Company's annual 
budget. The growth target, which was comparable to the 
growth rate of the general insurance business, was set 
and proposed to the Board of Directors for consideration 
and approval.

2. Monitoring and following up on the Company's 
performance in all aspects, such as product development, 
insurance offering, underwriting, providing reinsurance and 
claims management along with giving opinions, suggestions, 
and guidelines for solving problems in order that the 
Company’s operation being in line with directions and 
goals. 

3. Considering and giving opinions on market expansion 
plans, sales channels, and new products in order to 
approach more potential groups.

4. Considering and giving opinions on the Company's 
information technology system to be advanced and 
suitable for the Company's business operations in order 
to process data correctly.

5. Supervising the Company’s operation to comply with 
laws, rules, regulations and accounting standards.
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11..      SSttrruuccttuurree  aanndd  ooppeerraattiioonn    

11..11  BBuussiinneessss  oovveerrvviieeww  

 The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited (the “Company”) was founded by Wang Lee family 
on 23 September 1933, originally named Luang Lee Insurance Company Limited. At the initial period,     
the Company provided only two classes of insurance that were fire and marine insurance. The Company 
changed its name to the Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited on 15 August 1985. The Company       
was listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand with paid-up capital of 40 million Baht on 24 August 1990.   
The Company converted from the Company Limited to the Public Company Limited and changed its 
name to the Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited on 20 August 1993. 

 Throughout 90 years of conducting business, the Company has continuously adhered to the 
principles of Corporate Governance in the operation. The Company is always developing the work 
processes and services to grow steadily and sustainably. At present, the Company had paid-up capital of 
370 million Baht with 24 branches throughout Thailand, both in the metropolitan areas and many 
provinces. 

 The Company insured all types of non-life insurance business that were fire insurance, marine and 
transportation insurance, motor insurance and miscellaneous insurance. 

UUnnddeerrwwrriittiinngg        

Direct insurance is to underwrite through agents, brokers, corporate brokers, and branches of        
the Company. The proportion of underwriting is more than 90% of the total written premium. 

Reinsurance and retrocession are ceded to and accepted from other insurance companies to 
spread risks. 

IInnvveessttmmeenntt  

In addition to underwriting, the Company manages income by investing to be able to allocate 
insurance reserves sufficient for the obligations to insurance creditors. The type and proportion of 
investment must comply with the Notification of the Insurance Commission (OIC) Re: Investments in other 
businesses of Non-Life Insurance Companies B.E. 2556 and amended version. The investment is diversified 
in various types of assets such as deposits with financial institutions, promissory notes, government 
bonds, debentures, stocks, and unit trusts. 

11..11..11 VViissiioonn,,  oobbjjeeccttiivveess,,  ggooaallss  aanndd  bbuussiinneessss  ssttrraatteeggiieess  

The Board approved strategic plans and business directions that were reviewed by                     
the Management to comply with the business operating situation. In 2023, the Company will continue       
to focus on maintaining and expanding customer base continuously; adjust insurance premium 
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appropriately; develop insurance products taking into consideration the environment, such as electric 
vehicle insurance; prepare electronic insurance policies; create an online marketing channel to meet the 
needs of customers in the new era whose behaviors and lifestyles have changed; develop an efficient 
work and service system to reduce the work process and emphasize low cost management along with 
implement a sustainable business according to ESG. 

The Board of Directors provided the vision and mission for staffs to have the same goals as follows: 

VViissiioonn  

• To operate a sustainable business with reasonable profit objectives while promoting social 
stability and ethical integrity 

• To be a leading enterprise of non-life insurance business with a network of offices, highly 
competent personnel, good services, and the best technology 

• To provide quality insurance coverage and quality protection for the benefit of policyholders, 
employees, shareholders, and the public 

MMiissssiioonn  
• To provide good and high-quality services to customers with fairness and integrity. 
• To innovate and develop new insurance products for the changing needs of society. 
• To focus on quality of service and reasonable cost control to achieve utmost efficiency in       

the development of the management system. 
• To support and develop a good working environment and promote unity among employees     

as well as maintain competitive benefits and compensation suitable for social environment. 
• To invest in human resource development and encourage employees to be professional and 

maintain high ethical standards. 
• To develop and implement new technology to effectively improve our service to                  

the customers. 

11..11..22  SSiiggnniiffiiccaanntt  cchhaannggeess  aanndd  ddeevveellooppmmeennttss  iinn  tthhee  ppaasstt  33  yyeeaarrss  

22002211  
• The Company was certificated as a member of CAC (Thai Private Sector Collective Action 

Against Corruption) for the third time 
• The Company was certified for the Information Security Management Systems Standards ( ISO 

27001 : 2013) 
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22002222  
• The Company increased registered capital by 10  million Baht to support stock dividend 

payment to shareholders by issuing 1 million new ordinary shares with a par value of 10 Baht 
per share. As a result, the registered capital of the Company increased to 360 million Baht. 

22002233  
• The Company increased registered capital by 10  million Baht to support stock dividend 

payment to shareholders by issuing 1 million new ordinary shares with a par value of 10 Baht 
per share. As a result, the registered capital of the Company increased to 370 million Baht. 

11..11..33  IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  pprroocceeeeddss  

The Company did not offer any equity or debt securities in 2023. 

11..11..44  OObblliiggaattiioonnss  ccoommmmiitttteedd  aaccccoorrddiinngg  ttoo  sseeccuurriittiieess  ooffffeerriinngg  ((IIff  aannyy))  

None 

11..11..55  TThhee  CCoommppaannyy’’ss  ggeenneerraall  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  
Name of the Company The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 
Stock Code NKI 
Type of Business Non-life Insurance 
Registration No. 0107536000862 
Year of Establishment 23 September 1933 
First Trade Date 24 August 1990 
Registered Capital  370 million Baht, comprised of 37 million shares  
  10 Baht par value 
Paid-up Capital 370 million Baht 
Headquarter Address 100/47-55 Sathorn Nakorn Tower, 25th-27th Floor, 

 90/3-6 Sathorn Thani Building, 1st Floor,  
 North Sathorn Road, Silom, Bangrak,  
 Bangkok 10500 

Telephone  (66) 2664 7777 and 1748 
Fax  (66) 2636 7999 
Website www.navakij.co,.th  
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11..22  BBuussiinneessss  ttyyppee  

11..22..11  IInnccoommee  ssttrruuccttuurree  

DDiirreecctt  pprreemmiiuumm 
    Unit: Million Baht 

Direct Premium 2023 2022 2021 
Amount % Amount % Amount % 

Fire 756.37 19.78 707.37 19.29 640.29 18.98 
Marine 100.05 2.62 102.08 2.78 98.42 2.92 
Motor 2,492.58 65.18 2,243.80 61.20 1,951.01 57.84 
Miscellaneous 474.85 12.42 613.43 16.73 683.23 20.26 
Total 3,823.85 100.00 3,666.68 100.00 3,372.95 100.00 

 
PPrrooffiitt  ((lloossss))  ffrroomm  uunnddeerrwwrriittiinngg 

    Unit: Million Baht 
Profit (Loss) from Underwriting 2023 2022 2021 

Amount % Amount % Amount % 
Fire 125.86 27.49 129.85 40.49 159.29 39.85 
Marine 37.05 8.09 29.72 9.26 31.93 7.99 
Motor 219.82 48.02 178.11 55.54 343.73 85.98 
Miscellaneous 75.10 16.40 (16.98) (5.29) (135.19) (33.82) 
Total of profit (loss) from 
underwriting before operating 

457.83 100.00 320.70 100.00 399.76 100.00 

Operating expense 384.73  353.44   353.29   
Total of profit (loss) from 
underwriting 73.10   (32.74)   46.47   

 
IInnvveessttmmeennttss  IInnccoommee  

    Unit: Million Baht 
Investments Income 2023 2022 2021 

Amount % Amount % Amount % 
Interest income from debt securities 41.69 54.54 20.87 24.32 15.62 17.59 
Dividends received from equity 
securities 

58.08 75.98 59.85 69.77 52.88 59.54 

Profit on investments (14.51) (18.98) 6.97 8.12 7.54 8.49 
Fair value gain (loss) (8.91) (11.66) (8.41) (9.80) 11.39 12.82 
Share of gain from investments in 
associates 

0.09 0.12 6.51 7.59 1.38 1.56 

Total of investments and share of 
gain from investments in 
associates 

76.44 100.00 85.79 100.00 88.81 100.00 
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11..22..22  PPrroodduuccttss  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  

The Company has been licensed to operate all types of non-life insurance business. Products of 
the Company are insurance policies that provide coverage against loss or damage to property and 
accidents. Most policies are valid for 1 year and categorized as follows:  

((11)) PPrroodduuccttss,,  sseerrvviicceess  aanndd  iinnnnoovvaattiioonn  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  

MMoottoorr  iinnssuurraannccee      

Motor insurance provides coverage for damage from the use of car such as a collision or a rollover 
accident, a car loss, injury or death of a driver, a passenger and a third-party. The insurance covered 
damage to a third-party property, driver bail, defending on civil litigation. Types of motor insurance are as 
follows: 

- Compulsory motor Insurance according to Road Accident Victims Protection Act, B.E. 1992 which 
is defined the owner to provide car insurance for a victim.  

- Comprehensive motor insurance provides 3 types of coverage that are car damage, third party 
liability and additional coverage, e.g., driver bail and personal accident. 

- Voluntary motor insurance covers only damage arising from a collision with a road vehicle. 
- Voluntary motor insurance covers only third party liability. 

FFiirree  iinnssuurraannccee        

Fire insurance provides coverage for damage to properties such as buildings, furniture, fixtures, 
machines and products stocks, caused by fire, lightning and other additional risks e.g., explosion, 
windstorm, floods and earthquake. Moreover, the policy also covers loss from business interruption due 
to fire and other disasters. Types of fire insurance are as follows: 

- Home insurance covers damage to residence arising from fire, lightning, explosion and natural 
disasters. 

- Fire Microinsurance for Residential covers damage to properties arising from fire, lightning and 
explosion. 

- Terrorism Insurance covers physical damage to properties arising from act of terrorism. 
- Properties insurance covers physical damage to properties arising from strike, riot, malicious act, 

civil commotion, sabotage or terrorism. 

MMaarriinnee  aanndd  ttrraannssppoorrttaattiioonn  iinnssuurraannccee          

Marine and transportation insurance covers damage caused by accidents during domestic and 
international logistics either by car, train, ship, or plane. The insurance is divided into 2 types which are 
hull insurance and cargo insurance. The cargo insurance is the main product of the Company. 
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MMiisscceellllaanneeoouuss  iinnssuurraannccee      

Apart from the insurances mentioned above, there are other types of insurance as follows: 
- Personal accident insurance covers personal injury, death, dismemberment or disability arising 

from accident. 
- Microinsurance 200 Baht covers injury, death, dismemberment or disability due to accident and 

funeral expenses in case of death by illness. 
- Travel insurance covers bodily injury caused by accident during a trip resulting in death or 

dismemberment including related medical expenses. 
- Oversea travel insurance provides coverage when traveling abroad. The policy covers medical 

expenses due to injury and illness, death, dismemberment and permanent disability arising from accident, 
emergency medical evacuation, repatriation to Thailand, increased cost of travel delay, loss or damage to 
luggage and/or personal belongings inside the luggage, luggage delay and legal liability to a third party. 

- Personal health insurance and group health insurance cover medical expenses such as room, 
meal, medicine, surgery, and doctor's fees. 

- Personal health and accident insurance bundles health and accident insurance including hospital 
income benefit in case of cancer or heart disease. 

- Hospital income benefit insurance provides daily payment during the hospitalization according to 
the period of inpatient hospitalization. The insurance also covers recuperation after discharge from 
hospital and funeral expenses in case of death from injury or illness.  

- Cancer insurance provides coverage against cancer upon diagnosis for the first time with a lump 
sum for treatment, monthly payment for outpatient medical expenses after surgery. 

- Golfer’s insurance covers bodily injuries of the insured while playing or practicing golf, loss or 
damage to golf equipment including third party liability in case of bodily injury and or loss or damage to 
property arising from the insured. 

- Burglary insurance covers the assets inside the insured place that are robbed or burglarized. 
- All risks insurance covers loss or damage to properties from all perils, except the ones specifically 

excluded in the policy. 
- Contract work insurance covers assets in the construction project, machine installation, liability, 

equipment, tools including liability to third parties from the construction. 
- Machinery insurance covers all assets that are machines such as generators, special machineries 

damaged by unexpected accidents such as design defects, lack of expertise, short circuits, explosion in 
physics or being defamed. 

- Boiler insurance covers damage caused by explosion and collapse of boiler and pressure tank, 
that is caused by defects or misuse damaged to the life and property of third parties. 

- Third party liability insurance covers legal liability of the insured to third parties for physical 
injury, death and damage to property. 
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- Money insurance covers loss of money in the insured place, which may be a safe or a vault, and 
outside the insured place on indicated way in the policy.  

- Fidelity insurance covers financial loss of an employer caused by fraud, embezzlement or 
corruption committed by an employee in connection with his duties as specified. 

- Legal liability insurance for controlled business under type 3 according to Fuel Control Act, B.E. 
2000 provides coverage against third party legal liability arising from fire and explosion from fuel business 
operation or fuel storage in business premises.  

- Product liability insurance covers liability arising from unsafe products of entrepreneur which may 
be caused by product defects. 

- Gold shop insurance covers gold in case of robbery or snatching. The insurance also covers 
damages to buildings, safes, glass and furniture in an insured premise. 

- Health Insurance for Non-Immigrant Visa O-A (1  year) and O-X (5 years) covers outpatient and 
inpatient medical expenses for foreigners throughout the period of living in Thailand. 

- COVID-19 vaccine insurance covers medical expenses caused by allergies to the COVID-19 
vaccine. 

- Other miscellaneous insurances 

 The Company reinsures all perils identified above. At present, the Company provided reinsurance 
mostly from local insurance companies, so the effect of exchange rate fluctuations is minimal. 

RReeiinnssuurraannccee  

Reinsurance is a diversification of insurance risks in the proportion prescribed in the Non-Life 
Insurance Act B.E. 1992. The Company shall reinsure high sum insured properties with reinsurers in order 
to mitigate risks. Reinsurance can be divided into 2 types as follows: 

- Facultative reinsurance provides coverage for an individual risk. The ceding company shall inform 
the details of each risk to reinsurers from time to time. 

- Treaty reinsurance is a form of reinsurance which the ceding company makes agreement with the 
reinsurer to cede risks falling within the terms of the treaty during the contract period. Therefore,          
the reinsurer shall not consider risks which come within the scope of the contract. 

The retention ratio will be set taking into consideration the capital, nature of risk and risk level of 
the insured properties. The selection criteria of reinsurers are specified in reinsurance strategy.               
The Company shall consider the credit rating of S&P or AM Best for selecting domestic and foreign 
reinsurance Companies with stable financial status. 
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RReesseeaarrcchh  aanndd  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  

PPrroodduucctt  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  

For the year 2023 after the epidemic situation. Trends of all consumer groups place increasing 
importance on risk management of insurance. This is the difference between the insurance business and 
other businesses. In terms of the direction of insurance product development, accident and health 
insurance products are still discussed and have high growth potential. Especially insurance for specific 
diseases and motor insurance for accident insurance. It is because insurance premiums are diverse 
depending on the coverage in each type and the capital is quite high, able to respond to the purchasing 
power of each group of insureds, and easily accessible. Serious illness and office syndrome are also 
interesting products. The Company prepares to design insurance for specific diseases. In order to continue 
to respond to the demands of consumers. As for property risk management, in order to respond to 
changes in various natural disasters, the Company has launched automobile insurance products that 
further expand protection against natural disasters. 

SSeerrvviiccee  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  

The Company uses Artificial Intelligence (AI) to continuously increase service efficiency and expand 
the use of technology with partners to make services through the Company's various partners convenient, 
fast, and most efficient for insureds. 

IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  tteecchhnnoollooggyy  ssyysstteemmss  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt    

The technologies that the Company applied to develop the organization are as follows: 
- Robotic Process Automation (RPA) is applied to reduce time and work errors.  
- Enterprise Content Management is applied to manage documents to be safe and support work 

from anywhere, able to access information quickly and reduce the amount of paper used. 
- Line application is applied to support accessing information, tracking, and contacting for services 

more quickly. 
- IT Infrastructure was improved to be safe, fast, and able to support business expansion. 
- The Company provides e-policies in the format of PDF file with digital signature to confirm that 

the policies are safe from forgery. The e-policies are sent to the customers via e-mail. The e-policies 
reduce the process of printing documents with faster delivery. It is also convenient for storing documents 
or viewing insurance policy information and protects the environment by reducing the amount of paper 
used. As a result, it can reduce the amount of greenhouse gas emissions. 

- Producer Web Portal system safely and quickly supports the business partner services to be able 
to inquire about premiums and quotations, track claim status, send documents, and check policy 
information via a web browser. This system allows the business partners to access information quickly 
and reduces the amounts of papers used. 
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interesting products. The Company prepares to design insurance for specific diseases. In order to continue 
to respond to the demands of consumers. As for property risk management, in order to respond to 
changes in various natural disasters, the Company has launched automobile insurance products that 
further expand protection against natural disasters. 

SSeerrvviiccee  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  

The Company uses Artificial Intelligence (AI) to continuously increase service efficiency and expand 
the use of technology with partners to make services through the Company's various partners convenient, 
fast, and most efficient for insureds. 

IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  tteecchhnnoollooggyy  ssyysstteemmss  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt    

The technologies that the Company applied to develop the organization are as follows: 
- Robotic Process Automation (RPA) is applied to reduce time and work errors.  
- Enterprise Content Management is applied to manage documents to be safe and support work 

from anywhere, able to access information quickly and reduce the amount of paper used. 
- Line application is applied to support accessing information, tracking, and contacting for services 

more quickly. 
- IT Infrastructure was improved to be safe, fast, and able to support business expansion. 
- The Company provides e-policies in the format of PDF file with digital signature to confirm that 

the policies are safe from forgery. The e-policies are sent to the customers via e-mail. The e-policies 
reduce the process of printing documents with faster delivery. It is also convenient for storing documents 
or viewing insurance policy information and protects the environment by reducing the amount of paper 
used. As a result, it can reduce the amount of greenhouse gas emissions. 

- Producer Web Portal system safely and quickly supports the business partner services to be able 
to inquire about premiums and quotations, track claim status, send documents, and check policy 
information via a web browser. This system allows the business partners to access information quickly 
and reduces the amounts of papers used. 

 

- The Company provides API (Application Program Interfaces) to transmit data with business 
partners efficiently, safely and quickly as well as reduces the papers used. 

((22))  MMaarrkkeettiinngg  aanndd  CCoommppeettiittiioonn  

In the past year 2023, economic growth in the last quarter was likely to be lower than the forecast 
due to the GDP of approximately 3-3.5%. However Thai economy, especially the tourism sector clearly 
recovered when compared to that during the outbreak of coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19). The 
economic growth decreased from the export sector as a result of the Chinese economy which grew less 
than expected. Moreover, the world economy reduced production, which resulted in a decrease in 
imports as well. The economy in 2023 expanded at approximately 2.5%, lower than expected. 

In 2024, the economy of Thailand is expected to expand at a rate of 3.0-3.5%. The inflation is 
around 1.0–2.0%. The interest rates are around 2.0–2.5% and the Thai Baht currency is expected to be 
around 33–35 Baht per US dollar. The future economic forecasts are based on both foreign and domestic 
economic factors. Since Thailand's economic structure relies heavily on foreign countries up to 72%, 
foreign factors play an important role of which firstly is the direction of the world economy, finance, and 
world money markets. The US Federal Reserve or the Fed has raised interest rates continuously to 5.5%, 
resulting in a decrease in inflation from 9.1% to below 3.0%. Even though the Fed normally supervises 
inflation to not exceed 2.0%, but it is believed that the Fed notices good signs of 2024 economy. 
Therefore, it is expected that there will be no further interest rate adjustments. The policy rates are likely 
to decrease at least 3 times this year. The investment is starting to improve, while China has introduced 
several measures to stimulate the economy in various sectors. As a result, the economy begins to grow. 
Even though the economic growth remains lower than the target, it is expected to expand by 4.5%. 
Another interesting country is India, the world’s fourth-largest economy. This year India's economy 
expands at about 6.5%, the highest growth in the world which shall be a pretty good driver of the world 
economy. Meanwhile, various measures are able to control inflation in Europe. The United States' 
economy, the world's largest economy, is improving and likely to contribute significantly to the global 
economy in 2024. The economic recovery may take time therefore world economic growth in 2024 may 
expand approximately 2.7-3.0%, which is starting to improve but not as much as expected. However, it 
positively affects Thai exports this year. Secondly, there are elections in many countries such as the 
United States, Russia, Ukraine, Indonesia, India, England, South Africa and about 40 other countries. These 
political factors are expected to result in the international situation and geopolitical conflicts becoming 
less intense than in past years. The elections usually focus primarily on domestic problems therefore the 
international conflict will subside. At the same time, there will be new policies of each government that 
will drive the economy, which will positively affect the world economy. This will be a positive factor for 
the economy of these countries, especially the United States, England, Russia, India and Indonesia. 
Moreover, it will favorably impact on international trade in 2024.  The exports are expected to expand by 
approximately 3.0%. Thirdly, foreign tourism has improved because of agreement on free visas for 
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Chinese tourists. The number of Chinese tourists this year has increased to 8 million, bringing the total 
number to 35 million. As a result, the tourism income and employment in the tourism sector increases. 
Finally, foreign investment in Thailand has improved due to the new government and new policies. 
Especially the Prime Minister’s visits to foreign countries and inviting investors to invest in Thailand will 
result in a better foreign investment environment. 

((AA))  MMaarrkkeettiinngg  ooff  kkeeyy  pprroodduuccttss  aanndd  sseerrvviicceess  

MMaarrkkeettiinngg  ppoolliiccyy  iinn  tthhee  ppaasstt  yyeeaarr  

The motor market has begun to return to normal situation. In addition, the government has 
measures to stimulate and encourage the private sector and motor entrepreneurs regarding marketing 
electric vehicles (EV). Such measures will be in line with the social contract agreements that every 
country is committed to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and focus on using pure, renewable energy to 
reduce global warming. As a result, the electric vehicle (EV) market in Q4/2023 will experience 
exponential growth because it is the end of the old governmental measures. Automakers launch 
campaigns to stimulate sales and also prepare for after-sales service to build confidence among 
consumers because car manufacturers pushing the electric vehicle (EV) market still have limitations. Fire 
insurance and marine and transportation insurance for 2024 must take into account the Thai economy in 
terms of interest rates and inflation including the impact on the industrial and business sectors of 
Thailand regarding imports and exports from the world economy that is expected to decline, which is 
related to the general insurance business sector as well. Miscellaneous insurance under government 
policy, which has tried to stimulate income from the tourism industry and various service business 
sectors, aims to build confidence for foreign tourists to travel in Thailand under special relief for foreign 
tourist groups. The government policy provides special privileges, free visas for countries that are target 
groups to increase the number of tourists, including measures to set conditions for foreign tourists to get 
insurance. These measures will result in a growth rate of insurance business in the same direction. In 
2024, the government sector continues to implement such measures. Therefore, it is expected that the 
business opportunities of foreign tourism will positively impact on the insurance business for accident 
insurance and health insurance at the same growth rate as in 2023. 

The Company has enhanced competition capability in the insurance market in 2024 by developing 
and adjusting products and new after-sales services in non-motor and motor insurance continuously to 
present to target audiences both centrally and regionally to meet the demands of producers, partners, 
and public. The Company focuses mainly on offering digital products and after-sales services in order to 
respond to the new generation market. However, the Company still maintains traditional services for 
customers or business partners who are still satisfied with it. The Company also expands the market and 
increases the customer base in the motor insurance market for electric vehicles insurance and 
miscellaneous insurance market, which is in line with the government policy that has been taken 
concretely.  
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CChhaarraacctteerriissttiiccss  ooff  bbuussiinneessss  ppaarrttnneerrss,,  ppootteennttiiaall  ttaarrggeett,,  aanndd  ddiissttrriibbuuttiioonn  cchhaannnneellss   

The overall 2023  operating performance of the Company shows the expansion from 2022 . The 
growth rate of each distribution channel increases or decreases due to the policies of the business 
partners and the Company that have been established to manage risks according to announcements or 
orders of the Office of Insurance Commission (OIC) and in line with the factors that impact on the overall 
economy, both positive and negative in 2 0 2 3 . This will have a chain effect on the target producers, 
business partners, and existing customers both centrally and regionally. In 2024, the departments that 
supervise distribution channels and sales plan to work together by analyzing the business direction and 
business partners policies for the year 2024 that plan for business growth from 2023. The Company has 
considered the economic crisis, interest rate and inflation which has had a profound effect since June 
onwards. The Company has adjusted operational guidelines in terms of price, insurance and the after-
sales service policy to focus on the satisfaction of customers and partners. The Company has established 
the policies, gathering information and opinions from various departments. The information technology 
system for the operation has been developed to suit the competitive market of each audience group and 
each type of business partner, so that the Company can compete with new distribution channel and 
partners. In addition, the Company also integrates internal management to increase service efficiency and 
create greater satisfaction of which significant points are summarized as follows: 

AApppprrooaacchh  11  EExxppaannddiinngg  ttaarrggeett  ccuussttoommeerr  ggrroouuppss  ffoorr  nnoonn--mmoottoorr  mmaarrkkeett  

The Company will expand groups of brokerage partners, both individuals and legal entities, by 
focusing on a non-motor insurance market. In 2024, the Company plans to expand non-motor insurance 
through the financial institutions that provide real estate loan services. The insurance packages will be 
developed for big targets and projects, such as motor gap insurance, which provide coverage for the 
value of the car in excess of the sum insured under the comprehensive motor insurance policy in the 
event of lost and total loss, and credit protection insurance. The digital products offerings continue from 
the year 2023 to increase marketing capabilities and quick access to the Company's services for agent and 
broker, both individual and legal entities, to present to potential groups conveniently. 

AApppprrooaacchh  22 DDeeffiinniinngg  ttaarrggeett  ccuussttoommeerrss  ffoorr  mmoottoorr  mmaarrkkeett 

1. The motor business market in 2023 experienced a major change. The entry of the electric 
vehicle (EV) business impacted on motor manufacturers, dealers, financial institutions, and non-life 
insurance business. The electric vehicle (EV) market has exponential growth in sales and acceptance by 
consumers. The government sector encourages the use of electric vehicles to meet the goals. In 2023, 
there was a dramatic increase in the number of electric vehicles registrations. The total number of car 
registrations in 2022 and 2023 were 9,729 and 76,314 respectively, growing approximately 684.4%. The 
new motor manufacturers that joining the market and signing the memorandum of understanding with 
the government sector to produce and sell electric vehicles (EV) in Thailand is an opportunity for the 
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Company to continuously build and increase the customer base in 2024. The increase of competitors in 
the electric vehicle insurance market and the announcement of the electric vehicle insurance policy in 
2024, which affects the sum insured, premium and underwriting, stimulates the Company to create 
business opportunities in the new motor market of new brand and the used car market. In addition, the 
Company still prioritizes after-sales service for customers and builds confidence in trading partners who 
support the Company's business. 

2. The sales of products have been adjusted to support the digital market and corresponds to the 
producers and target groups of each distribution channel because consumers are more interested in 
insurance policy purchasing services online. The technology is implemented in replacement of traditional 
operations to support the quick and convenient service for business partners and various target groups 
and reduce the operating costs during this economic situation. 

3. The communication and public relations of the corporate image have been carried out 
continuously by presenting insurance products and services via the website and various media to 
approach targeted producers, customers and the public. 

AApppprrooaacchh  33::  TTaarrggeett  ggrroouupp,,  rreeggiioonnaall  ccuussttoommeerr  ggrroouupp  
1. In 2023, motor dealers in the regions were affected by motor manufacturers (new cars) as well 

as in the central region. Therefore, the Company still maintained the customer base and the growth in 
the customer base that has been transferred from other insurance companies. The growth rate of electric 
vehicles in the new car market increases, the Company therefore joins a business alliance with a Chinese 
motor manufacture to support motor insurance nationwide. This can be an opportunity to expand 
dealers for new motor brands as well as the target group of agents, brokers, and corporate tele sales 
broker channels. In 2024, it is expected that various plans and projects continually presented to the 
producers will cause the growth and expansion of motor insurance in the region. 

2. For the general customer group, other than promoting the corporate image, In 2024 the 
Company will increase more access to customers in the region to expand the customer base and the 
general public to use the Company's services, including provide advice or consulting on insurance. 

AApppprrooaacchh  44::  mmaaiinnttaaiinniinngg  tthhee  eexxiissttiinngg  ccuussttoommeerrss  iinn  tthhee  rreenneewwaall  yyeeaarr  ffoorr  ccoonnttiinnuuoouuss  ggrroowwtthh  rraattee   

1.  Supervising and managing the customer databases for renewing all types of policy both in the 
central and regional areas by decentralizing authorization, supervising and controlling the operation 

2.   Implementing a work system to support self-services for business partners 
3.  Maintaining and increasing the policy renewal rates across all distribution channels. The digital 

system has been implemented to track policy renewal services. The Company coordinates with business 
partners who are ready to offer policy renewal services and emphasis on cost reduction as well as an 
increase in convenience and speed. 
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((BB))  CCoommppeettiittiioonn  CCoonnddiittiioonnss  

NNoonn--LLiiffee  IInnssuurraannccee  BBuussiinneessss  iinn  22002233  

2023 was a year of government transition and economic recovery. As a result, this year the general 
insurance business continues to grow as expected. From January - September 2023, the growth rate was 
5.2% with total direct insurance premiums of 210,141 million Baht. Each type of insurance showed good 
growth trends, which can be summarized as follows. 

Direct premiums of motor insurance increased by 6.0%, or 118,419 million Baht, increasing from 
higher sales of electric vehicles, resulting in the increase of the number of motor insurance policies, as 
well as the increase in average premiums of motor voluntary insurance policy. Such factors affect the 
increase in the motor insurance premiums in 2024. 

Direct premiums of fire insurance increased by 2.1% or 7,762 million Baht, increasing in line with 
the increased value of housing loans in the first half of the year. 

Direct premiums of marine and transportation insurance decreased by 0.6%, or 5,330 million Baht 
because the export value was growing but the value of imports is negative. 

Direct premiums of miscellaneous insurance increased by 4.6%, or 78,630 million Baht, due to      
an increase from property insurance of which direct insurance premiums increased to 25,884 million Baht, 
or an increase of 16.1%. That was the result of the increase in reinsurance premiums due to hard markets 
resulting from interest rate increases and may still affect the renewal of some reinsurance contracts in the 
next year. 

The loss ratio of all insurances was 54.5%, motor insurance was 59.4%, fire insurance was 23.6%, 
marine and transportation insurance was 32.9%, and miscellaneous insurance was 47.1%. The loss ratio of 
miscellaneous insurance, compared to the same period last year, was found to be dropping significantly 
due to COVID-19 outbreak situation has been resolved. 

Due to the transition of government, the cabinet was unable to approve the rice scheme insurance 
in the crop insurance project for the year 2023, causing the business to lose insurance premium of 
approximately 2 billion Baht. However, the crop insurance project for the year 2024 is likely to be 
approved by the cabinet. The cassava insurance will be implemented for the first year. The total 
insurance premiums for this project are estimated to be approximately 2.2 billion Baht. 

Insurance Premium Rating Bureau (IPRB), Thai General Insurance Association estimated that the 
non-life insurance business in 2023 would grow at 4.5-5.0%, with total direct insurance premium of 
285,080-287,800 million Baht. Almost all types of insurance are likely to grow due to the economic 
recovery, the government transition, the increase in sales of electric vehicles including both domestic and 
international tourism. Such factors positively affect the insurance business. 
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TThhee  ttrreenndd  ffoorr  tthhee  nnoonn--lliiffee  iinnssuurraannccee  bbuussiinneessss  iinn  22002233  

The non-life insurance business in 2023 was forecasted to grow by 5.0-6.0% with direct premium 
written amounting to 301,050-303,900 million Baht mainly from an increase in sales of electric vehicles. 
With the support of the government sector, the sales of electric vehicles may exceed 100,000 cars. The 
people are aware of the importance of health insurance due to the trend of increase in medical 
expenses. The number of tourists increases by two times, resulting in a continuous growth. In addition, 
nowadays business operations and technology are changing and developing rapidly. Consumer behavior 
and expectations are constantly changing. This situation challenges the insurance industry to cope with 
change. Thai General Insurance Association (TGIA) has been working to deal with various factors that affect 
the confidence of the insured and the public, such as integrating cooperation with relevant agencies to 
prevent foreign companies from fraudulently selling insurance in Thailand without authorized licenses. 
The public relations are made to create knowledge and advice to the public on purchasing insurance at 
the same time. TGIA and the insurance business sector recognize the importance of compliance with the 
Personal Data Protection Act (PDPA). Therefore, they establish measures to supervise and encourage the 
insurance companies to comply with the law. The PDPA Guidelines for Non-life Insurance Industry has 
been prepared in order that the insurance companies understand and be able to fully comply with the 
law. 

Source: Thai General Insurance Association as of 18 December 2023 
 Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)  
 Research and Statistics Department, Thai Reinsurance Public Company Limited  

The Company plans to grow in line with the forecasted growth rate of insurance industry in 2024 
taking into consideration the factors and impacts of highly competitive in each distribution channel under 
the economic and political variability, including emerging risks. The operational guidelines will focus on 
the directions that correspond and relate to the premium, cost and performance to meet the goals.            
At the same time, the capability in service is escalated to be in line with the changing business direction 
of the new generation by implementing digital systems to provide convenient and fast services for 
customers and the public including better after-sale services. 

CCoommppeettiittiivvee  SSttrraatteeggyy   

Each distribution channel’s plans in 2024 focus on the relationship with the insurance producers, 
cost management, concise work processes, personnel management and electronic systems for escalating 
efficiency, speed and accuracy in recording data. Moreover, the Company will adjust the digital insurance 
offering to be in line with the competition and the current situation in order to ensure that all operating 
results meet the goals. The Company focuses on the following issues: 

 1. To select low-risk target groups in order to ensure the achievement of all distribution channels.  
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Each distribution channel’s plans in 2024 focus on the relationship with the insurance producers, 
cost management, concise work processes, personnel management and electronic systems for escalating 
efficiency, speed and accuracy in recording data. Moreover, the Company will adjust the digital insurance 
offering to be in line with the competition and the current situation in order to ensure that all operating 
results meet the goals. The Company focuses on the following issues: 

 1. To select low-risk target groups in order to ensure the achievement of all distribution channels.  

 

 2.  To adjust the insurance premium price according to the competitive conditions in the market    
in order to meet the demands and satisfy customers. 
 3.  To adjust the sales promotion of each distribution channel to be related with the goals and the 
cost of expenses for effectiveness. 
 4. To develop products by using digital systems to meet the demands of all consumers, including 
after-sales service that consumers can access more conveniently and quickly. 
 5. To increase capability in after-sales service for various market directions, especially the electric 
vehicle (EV) market, to build confidence among partners and customers. 
 6. To develop personnel’s potential and abilities for the digital business in line with insurance 
producers. 

((33))  PPrroodduuccttss  aanndd  SSeerrvviicceess  PPrrooccuurreemmeenntt 

The Company establishes the operational guidelines for 2024 by increasing the products and 
services to meet the demands and behavior of each target group that are different and changing, both 
central and regional; to be in line with various market directions, the economic situation and government 
measures that facilitate overall economic growth. The Company will adjust the insurance premium price 
to be appropriate. For after-sales service, the Company still focuses on satisfaction of customers and 
partners and will continue to offer products and services that meet the demands of consumers. 

Source: Office of Insurance Commission (OIC), Thai Re Knowledge Center, 
www.thairath.co.th/money/economics/analysis/2753263 

CCoommppaannyy''ss  MMaarrkkeett  SShhaarree  aass  ooff  3300  SSeepptteemmbbeerr  22002233                                                                                                 

Type of 
Insurance 

Direct Insurance Premium 
(Thousand Baht) 

Product 
Share 
(%) 

Growth 
Rate 
(%) 

Market 
Share (%) 

2023 2022 
Fire  267,066 272,501 9.68 -1.99 3.44 

Marine and Transportation 69,439 67,126 2.52 3.45 1.30 
Motor 1,829,189 1,573,329 66.30 16.26 1.54 
Miscellaneous 593,420 727,530 21.51 -18.43 0.75 
Total 2,759,114 2,640,486 100.00 4.49 1.31 

Source: Office of Insurance Commission (OIC) as of 4 December 2023 
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((44))    BBuussiinneessss  aasssseettss    

LLaanndd,,  bbuuiillddiinnggss,,  eeqquuiippmmeenntt  aanndd  bbuuiillddiinngg  lleeaassee  aaggrreeeemmeennttss   

          As at 31 December 2023, fixed assets used in the Company's business operations totaled 353.94 
million Baht, consisting of: 

Land and buildings including building improvements 329.29 million Baht 
Furnishings and office equipment 23.26 million Baht 
Vehicles 1.39  million Baht 

LLaanndd  aanndd  bbuuiillddiinnggss  ooff  tthhee  hheeaadd  ooffffiiccee  aanndd  bbrraanncchheess  oowwnneedd  bbyy  tthhee  CCoommppaannyy     

Asset / Location Size Account Value 
(Unit:Million Baht) 

Obligation 

HHeeaadd  OOffffiiccee   
100/47-55, 90/3-6, Sathorn Nakorn Bldg.,     
26th Flr., North Sathorn Rd., Silom, Bangrak, 
Bangkok 10500 

 
Office space 

4,344.66 sq.m 
Parking space  
788.50 sq.m 

 
Condo          127.58  
 
        

 
None 

OOffffiiccee  
100/20-21, Sathorn Nakorn Bldg., 14th Flr., 
North Sathorn Rd., Silom, Bangrak,              
Bangkok 10500 

Office space 
1,200.70 sq.m 
Parking space 
240.00 sq.m 

 

Condo          145.88 
 

 

None 

OOffffiiccee  ooff  CCllaaiimmss  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  DDeeppaarrttmmeenntt 
90/4-6, 1st Floor, Sathorn Thani Building 1, 
North Sathorn Road, Silom, Bangrak,  
Bangkok 10500 

 

523.39 sq.m       
 

 

Condo            18.37 
  

 

None 

KKhhoonn  KKaaeenn  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee 
and accommodation for staff 
2 booths of 3.5-storey commercial building 
and land 
110-110/1 Srichan Rd., Nai Mueang,         
Mueang  Khon Kaen, Khon Kaen 40000 

 

365 sq.m 

 

Building            2.56 

Land                0.47 

 

None 

CChhiiaanngg  MMaaii  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
and accommodation for staff 
2 booths of 3.5-storey commercial building 
and land 
96 Sam Lan Rd., Phra Sing,  
Mueang Chiang Mai, Chiang Mai 50200 

 

355 sq.m 

 

Building            1.84 

Land                0.53 

 

None 
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((44))    BBuussiinneessss  aasssseettss    

LLaanndd,,  bbuuiillddiinnggss,,  eeqquuiippmmeenntt  aanndd  bbuuiillddiinngg  lleeaassee  aaggrreeeemmeennttss   

          As at 31 December 2023, fixed assets used in the Company's business operations totaled 353.94 
million Baht, consisting of: 

Land and buildings including building improvements 329.29 million Baht 
Furnishings and office equipment 23.26 million Baht 
Vehicles 1.39  million Baht 

LLaanndd  aanndd  bbuuiillddiinnggss  ooff  tthhee  hheeaadd  ooffffiiccee  aanndd  bbrraanncchheess  oowwnneedd  bbyy  tthhee  CCoommppaannyy     

Asset / Location Size Account Value 
(Unit:Million Baht) 

Obligation 

HHeeaadd  OOffffiiccee   
100/47-55, 90/3-6, Sathorn Nakorn Bldg.,     
26th Flr., North Sathorn Rd., Silom, Bangrak, 
Bangkok 10500 

 
Office space 

4,344.66 sq.m 
Parking space  
788.50 sq.m 

 
Condo          127.58  
 
        

 
None 

OOffffiiccee  
100/20-21, Sathorn Nakorn Bldg., 14th Flr., 
North Sathorn Rd., Silom, Bangrak,              
Bangkok 10500 

Office space 
1,200.70 sq.m 
Parking space 
240.00 sq.m 

 

Condo          145.88 
 

 

None 

OOffffiiccee  ooff  CCllaaiimmss  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  DDeeppaarrttmmeenntt 
90/4-6, 1st Floor, Sathorn Thani Building 1, 
North Sathorn Road, Silom, Bangrak,  
Bangkok 10500 

 

523.39 sq.m       
 

 

Condo            18.37 
  

 

None 

KKhhoonn  KKaaeenn  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee 
and accommodation for staff 
2 booths of 3.5-storey commercial building 
and land 
110-110/1 Srichan Rd., Nai Mueang,         
Mueang  Khon Kaen, Khon Kaen 40000 

 

365 sq.m 

 

Building            2.56 

Land                0.47 

 

None 

CChhiiaanngg  MMaaii  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
and accommodation for staff 
2 booths of 3.5-storey commercial building 
and land 
96 Sam Lan Rd., Phra Sing,  
Mueang Chiang Mai, Chiang Mai 50200 

 

355 sq.m 

 

Building            1.84 

Land                0.53 

 

None 

 

Asset / Location Size Account Value 
(Unit:Million Baht) 

Obligation 

HHaatt  YYaaii  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee 
and accommodation for staff 
2 booths of 3-storey commercial building  
and land 
14,16 Siam City Center 1 Rd., Hat Yai, 
Songkhla 90110 

   

307 sq.m 

 

Building            4.08 
Land                    
1.16 

 

None 

MMuukkddaahhaann  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee    
and accommodation for staff 
2 booths of 4-storey commercial building  
and land 
33/19-20 Chayangkul Kor Rd., Mukdahan, 
Mueang Mukdahan, Mukdahan 49000 

 

448 sq.m 

 

Building            7.19 
Land                0.48 

 

None 

PPhheettcchhaabbuunn  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
and accommodation for staff 
2 booths of 3.5-storey commercial building  
and land 
199/16-17 Moo 2, Saraburi-Lomsak Rd., 
Sadiang, Mueang Phetchabun, Phetchabun 
67000 

 

354 sq.m 

 

Building            3.10 
Land                2.75 

 

None 

LLeeaasseedd  ooffffiiccee  bbuuiillddiinnggss    

Asset / Location  Lease Condition 

FFuuttuurree  PPaarrkk  RRaannggssiitt  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee  
Ground Flr., Room G 87/1, 94 Paholyothin Rd., 
Prachathipat, Thanyaburi, Pathum Thani 12130 

 

3-year building lease agreement 
From 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024 
Size: 52.18 sq.m  

NNaakkhhoonn  PPaatthhoomm  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
2 booths of 3.5-storey commercial building 
560 Phetkasem Rd., Phra Prathon, Mueang 
Nakhon Pathom, Nakhon Pathom 73000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024  
Size: 320 sq.m  
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Asset / Location  Lease Condition 

PPrraannbbuurrii  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
2 booths of 3.5-storey commercial building 
498/4 Moo 2, Phetkasem Rd., Wang Phong, 
Pran Buri, Prachuap Khiri Khan 77120  

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025 
Size: 336 sq.m 

CCuussttoommeerr  SSeerrvviiccee  OOffffiiccee  
90/3, 1st Floor, Sathorn Thani Tower 1, North 
Sathorn Road, Silom, Bangrak,  
Bangkok 10500 

 

3-year office space lease agreement  
From 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2025 
Size: 157 sq.m 

KKaanncchhaannaapphhiisseekk  WWaarreehhoouussee  11 
1 booth of 4-storey commercial building  
178 Soi Phraya Monthat Intersection 27, 
Kanchanaphisek Road, Bang Bon,  
Bang Bon, Bangkok 10150 

 

3-year building lease agreement 
From 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2026 
Size: 147 sq.m 

KKaanncchhaannaapphhiisseekk  WWaarreehhoouussee  22 
1 booth of 4-storey commercial building  
102 Soi Phraya Monthat Intersection 35-2/1, 
Kanchanaphisek Road, Bang Bon,               
Bang Bon, Bangkok 10150 

 

3-year building lease agreement 
From 1 June 2023 to 31 May 2026 
Size: 147 sq.m 

PPaattttaayyaa  BBaacckkuupp  SSiittee  
1 booth of 1-storey commercial building  
47/99 Moo 9, Central Pattaya Rd., 
Nong Prue, Bang Lamung Chonburi 20150 

 

1-year building lease agreement 
From 1 November 2023 to 31 October 2024 
Size: 48 sq.m 

PPaattttaayyaa  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
1 booth of 4-storey commercial building  
72/150 Moo 4, Sukhumvit Rd., Bang Lamung, 
Chonburi 20150 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2025  
Size: 288 sq.m 

PPhhiicchhiitt  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
1 booth of 2-storey commercial building  
4/196-197 Saruang Rd., Nai Mueang, Mueang 
Phichit, Phichit 66000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 June 2022 to 31 May 2025 
Size: 320 sq.m 

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
36



 

Asset / Location  Lease Condition 

PPrraannbbuurrii  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
2 booths of 3.5-storey commercial building 
498/4 Moo 2, Phetkasem Rd., Wang Phong, 
Pran Buri, Prachuap Khiri Khan 77120  

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025 
Size: 336 sq.m 

CCuussttoommeerr  SSeerrvviiccee  OOffffiiccee  
90/3, 1st Floor, Sathorn Thani Tower 1, North 
Sathorn Road, Silom, Bangrak,  
Bangkok 10500 

 

3-year office space lease agreement  
From 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2025 
Size: 157 sq.m 

KKaanncchhaannaapphhiisseekk  WWaarreehhoouussee  11 
1 booth of 4-storey commercial building  
178 Soi Phraya Monthat Intersection 27, 
Kanchanaphisek Road, Bang Bon,  
Bang Bon, Bangkok 10150 

 

3-year building lease agreement 
From 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2026 
Size: 147 sq.m 

KKaanncchhaannaapphhiisseekk  WWaarreehhoouussee  22 
1 booth of 4-storey commercial building  
102 Soi Phraya Monthat Intersection 35-2/1, 
Kanchanaphisek Road, Bang Bon,               
Bang Bon, Bangkok 10150 

 

3-year building lease agreement 
From 1 June 2023 to 31 May 2026 
Size: 147 sq.m 

PPaattttaayyaa  BBaacckkuupp  SSiittee  
1 booth of 1-storey commercial building  
47/99 Moo 9, Central Pattaya Rd., 
Nong Prue, Bang Lamung Chonburi 20150 

 

1-year building lease agreement 
From 1 November 2023 to 31 October 2024 
Size: 48 sq.m 

PPaattttaayyaa  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
1 booth of 4-storey commercial building  
72/150 Moo 4, Sukhumvit Rd., Bang Lamung, 
Chonburi 20150 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2025  
Size: 288 sq.m 

PPhhiicchhiitt  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
1 booth of 2-storey commercial building  
4/196-197 Saruang Rd., Nai Mueang, Mueang 
Phichit, Phichit 66000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 June 2022 to 31 May 2025 
Size: 320 sq.m 

 

Asset / Location  Lease Condition 

PPhhiittssaannuullookk  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee 
1 booth of 4-storey commercial building  
444/13 Siharat Dechochai Rd., Nai Mueang, 
Mueang Phitsanulok, Phitsanulok 65000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 May 2022 to 30 April 2025 
Size: 156 sq.m 

NNaakkhhoonn  SSaawwaann  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee       
1 booth of 4-storey commercial building  
1002/2 Moo 10, Nakhon Sawan Tok, Mueang 
Nakhon Sawan, Nakhon Sawan 60000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2024  
Size: 262.64 sq.m 

NNaakkhhoonn  RRaattcchhaassiimmaa  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
2 booths of 3-storey commercial building  
230/11-12 Mittraphap-Nong Khai Rd.,              
Nai Mueang, Mueang Nakhon Ratchasima, 
Nakhon Ratchasima 30000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 March 2023 to 28 February 2026 
Size: 288 sq.m 

UUbboonn  RRaattcchhaatthhaannii  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
2 booths of 2-storey commercial building  
265/4, 265/5 Uppaleesan Rd., Nai Mueang, 
Muang, Ubon Ratchathani 34000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2025  
Size: 160 sq.m 

UUddoonn  TThhaannii  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
2 booths of 3.5-storey commercial building  
419/7-8 Rop Mueang Rd., Mak Khaeng, Mueang 
Udon Thani, Udon Thani 41000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 November 2023 to 31 October 2026 
Size: 532 sq.m 

RRooii  EEtt  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee 
2 booths of 3-storey commercial building  
36/2-3 Tewapibal Rd., Nai Mueang, Mueang  
Roi Et, Roi Et 45000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 November 2023 to 31 October 2026 
Size: 384 sq.m 

NNaakkhhoonn  SSii  TThhaammmmaarraatt  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee 
2 booths of 3.5-storey commercial building  
187 Pattanakarn-Kukwang Rd., Nai Mueang, 
Mueang Nakhon Si Thammarat, Nakhon Si 
Thammarat 80000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 November 2022 to 31 October 2025 
Size: 294 sq.m 
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Asset / Location  Lease Condition 

SSuurraatt  TThhaannii  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
1 booth of 4-storey commercial building  
141/124 Moo 5, Kanchana Vithi Rd., Bang Kung, 
Mueang Surat Thani, Surat Thani 84000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2026 
Size: 256 sq.m 

PPhhuukkeett  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee  
and accommodation for staff 
2 booths of 4-storey commercial building  
58/7-8 Thepkrasattri Rd., Ratsada, Mueang 
Phuket, Phuket 83000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2026 
Size: 640 sq.m 

KKrraabbii  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee 
1 booth of 3-storey commercial building  
434/50 Utarakit Rd., Krabi Yai, Mueang Krabi, 
Krabi 81000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2025 
Size: 212 sq.m 

CChhaanntthhaabbuurrii  SSuubb--BBrraanncchh OOffffiiccee 
1 booth of 3-storey commercial building  
59/14 Phraya Trang Rd., Wat Mai, Mueang 
Chanthaburi, Chanthaburi 22000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 May 2023 to 30 April 2026 
Size: 170 sq.m 

CChhiiaanngg  RRaaii  SSuubb--BBrraanncchh OOffffiiccee 
1 booth of 3-storey commercial building  
418/5 Moo 5, Klang Wiang Rd., Rim Kok, 
Mueang Chiang Rai, Chiang Rai 57100 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2026 
Size: 240 sq.m 

CChhuummpphhoonn  SSuubb--BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee  
and accommodation for staff 
1 booth of 2-storey commercial building  
177 Moo 3, Wang Phai, Mueang Chumphon, 
Chumphon 86000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 May 2021 to 30 April 2024 
Size: 128 sq.m 

RRaayyoonngg  SSuubb--BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee 
1 booth of 3-storey commercial building  
4/20  Moo 4, Thap Ma, Mueang Rayong, Rayong 
21000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2024  
Size: 162 sq.m 
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Asset / Location  Lease Condition 

SSuurraatt  TThhaannii  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee   
1 booth of 4-storey commercial building  
141/124 Moo 5, Kanchana Vithi Rd., Bang Kung, 
Mueang Surat Thani, Surat Thani 84000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2026 
Size: 256 sq.m 

PPhhuukkeett  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee  
and accommodation for staff 
2 booths of 4-storey commercial building  
58/7-8 Thepkrasattri Rd., Ratsada, Mueang 
Phuket, Phuket 83000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2026 
Size: 640 sq.m 

KKrraabbii  BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee 
1 booth of 3-storey commercial building  
434/50 Utarakit Rd., Krabi Yai, Mueang Krabi, 
Krabi 81000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2025 
Size: 212 sq.m 

CChhaanntthhaabbuurrii  SSuubb--BBrraanncchh OOffffiiccee 
1 booth of 3-storey commercial building  
59/14 Phraya Trang Rd., Wat Mai, Mueang 
Chanthaburi, Chanthaburi 22000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 May 2023 to 30 April 2026 
Size: 170 sq.m 

CChhiiaanngg  RRaaii  SSuubb--BBrraanncchh OOffffiiccee 
1 booth of 3-storey commercial building  
418/5 Moo 5, Klang Wiang Rd., Rim Kok, 
Mueang Chiang Rai, Chiang Rai 57100 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2026 
Size: 240 sq.m 

CChhuummpphhoonn  SSuubb--BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee  
and accommodation for staff 
1 booth of 2-storey commercial building  
177 Moo 3, Wang Phai, Mueang Chumphon, 
Chumphon 86000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 May 2021 to 30 April 2024 
Size: 128 sq.m 

RRaayyoonngg  SSuubb--BBrraanncchh  OOffffiiccee 
1 booth of 3-storey commercial building  
4/20  Moo 4, Thap Ma, Mueang Rayong, Rayong 
21000 

 

3-year land and building lease agreement 
From 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2024  
Size: 162 sq.m 

 

 

IInnvveessttmmeenntt  ppoolliiccyy  iinn  aassssoocciiaatteedd  ccoommppaanniieess  

As at 31 December 2023, the Company investments in associated Companies as follows: 
1.  Investment in TKI General Insurance Co. , Ltd. , a non-life insurance company in the Lao 

People's Democratic Republic. TKI General issued 8 million ordinary shares of which the Company holds 
32.50%. 

2.  Investment in TKI Life Insurance Co. , Ltd., a life insurance company in the Lao People's 
Democratic Republic. TKI life issued 8 million ordinary shares of which the Company holds 32.50%. 

11..33  SShhaarreehhoollddiinngg  pprrooppoorrttiioonn  ooff  tthhee  ggrroouupp  ooff  tthhee  CCoommppaannyy    

11..33..11  SShhaarreehhoollddiinngg  pprrooppoorrttiioonn  ooff  tthhee  ggrroouupp  ooff  tthhee  CCoommppaannyy  

 Shareholding proportion of the group of the Company as at 31 December 2023 is as follows:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

TTKKII  IInnssuurraannccee  CCoommppaannyy  LLiimmiitteedd        
Type of Business Non-life Insurance 
Registered Capital 16,000,000,000 LAK  
 Comprising 8 million shares, 2,000 LAK per share 
Paid-up Capital 16,000,000,000 LAK 
Headquarter Address Level 4, Zone A office Unit, The Iconic, Unit 11, Phonxay Road, 

Phonxay Village, Saysettha District, Vientiane Capital, 01000, 
Lao PDR 

Telephone  +856 21 417707  
Fax  +856 21 417705 
Shares held by the Company 2,600,000 shares, 2,000 LAK per value  
 32.50 percent of paid-up Capital  

TTKKII  LLiiffee  IInnssuurraannccee  CCoommppaannyy  LLiimmiitteedd    
Type of Business Life Insurance 
Registered Capital 16,000,000,000 LAK  
 Comprising 8 million shares, 2,000 LAK per share 

The Navakij Insurance Plc. 

TKI General Insurance Co.,Ltd. TKI Life Insurance Co.,Ltd. 

32.5% 32.5% 
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Paid-up Capital 16,000,000,000 LAK 
Headquarter Address Level 4, Zone A office Unit, The Iconic, Unit 11, Phonxay Road, 

Phonxay Village, Saysettha District, Vientiane Capital, 01000, 
Lao PDR 

Telephone  +856 21 417707  
Fax  +856 21 417705 
Shares held by the Company 2,600,000 shares, 2,000 LAK per share  
 32.50 percent of paid-up Capital  

11..33..22  CCoonnfflliiccttss  ooff  iinntteerreesstt  hhoollddiinngg  sshhaarreess  iinn  ssuubbssiiddiiaarriieess  oorr  aassssoocciiaatteess    

 None 

11..33..33  RReellaattiioonnsshhiipp  wwiitthh  bbuussiinneesssseess  ooff  sshhaarreehhoollddeerrss    

 None 

11..33..44    SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss    

MMaajjoorr  SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss  

Top 10 major shareholders as of 28 December 2023 

NNoo..  SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss  NNoo..  ooff  SShhaarreess  PPeerrcceennttaaggee  ooff  TToottaall  
NNuummbbeerr  ooff  SShhaarreess  

1. Mr. Suchin Wanglee Group* 5,223,690 14.12 
2. The United Indemnity Company Limited 2,716,306 7.34 
3. Thanasarn Sombat (Thai) Company Limited 1,911,068 5.17 
4. Mr. Nataphol Srichomkwan 1,800,968 4.87 
5. Siam Motors Company Limited 1,494,800 4.04 
6. Wanglee Company Limited 1,123,302 3.04 
7. Mrs. Saijit Wanglee Group**  1,072,598 2.90 
8. Visudhi Phanich Limited 926,447 2.50 
9. Mr. Chan Chi Keung 824,295 2.23 
10. Miss Poranee Wanglee 813,309 2.20 

 Other Shareholders 19,093,217 51.60 
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Paid-up Capital 16,000,000,000 LAK 
Headquarter Address Level 4, Zone A office Unit, The Iconic, Unit 11, Phonxay Road, 

Phonxay Village, Saysettha District, Vientiane Capital, 01000, 
Lao PDR 

Telephone  +856 21 417707  
Fax  +856 21 417705 
Shares held by the Company 2,600,000 shares, 2,000 LAK per share  
 32.50 percent of paid-up Capital  

11..33..22  CCoonnfflliiccttss  ooff  iinntteerreesstt  hhoollddiinngg  sshhaarreess  iinn  ssuubbssiiddiiaarriieess  oorr  aassssoocciiaatteess    

 None 

11..33..33  RReellaattiioonnsshhiipp  wwiitthh  bbuussiinneesssseess  ooff  sshhaarreehhoollddeerrss    

 None 

11..33..44    SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss    

MMaajjoorr  SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss  

Top 10 major shareholders as of 28 December 2023 

NNoo..  SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss  NNoo..  ooff  SShhaarreess  PPeerrcceennttaaggee  ooff  TToottaall  
NNuummbbeerr  ooff  SShhaarreess  

1. Mr. Suchin Wanglee Group* 5,223,690 14.12 
2. The United Indemnity Company Limited 2,716,306 7.34 
3. Thanasarn Sombat (Thai) Company Limited 1,911,068 5.17 
4. Mr. Nataphol Srichomkwan 1,800,968 4.87 
5. Siam Motors Company Limited 1,494,800 4.04 
6. Wanglee Company Limited 1,123,302 3.04 
7. Mrs. Saijit Wanglee Group**  1,072,598 2.90 
8. Visudhi Phanich Limited 926,447 2.50 
9. Mr. Chan Chi Keung 824,295 2.23 
10. Miss Poranee Wanglee 813,309 2.20 

 Other Shareholders 19,093,217 51.60 

 

 

 Note  *Mr. Suchin Wanglee Group consisted of 1) Mr. Suchin Wanglee holds 3,723,769 shares 2) Mrs. 
Rujiraporn Wanglee holds 1,295,000  shares 3) Dr. Saran Wanglee holds 204,921 shares 
  ** Mrs. Saijit Wanglee Group consisted of 1) Mrs. Saijit Wanglee holds 675,772 shares 2) Miss Jittinan 
Wanglee holds 252,323 shares 3) Mr. Nattachai Wanglee holds 144,503 shares. 

11..44 RReeggiisstteerreedd  ccaappiittaall  aanndd  ppaaiidd--uupp  ccaappiittaall    

The Company has been listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET). The registered capital is 370 
million Baht which is fully paid. The total issued ordinary share is 37 million shares with a par value of 10 
Baht per value. 
 The Company does not have any other securities apart from the ordinary shares. 

11..55 OOtthheerr  sseeccuurriittiieess  

  The Company does not have any other securities. 

11..66 DDiivviiddeenndd  ppaayymmeenntt  ppoolliiccyy  

The Company’s dividend payment policy stipulated that the dividend shall be paid at the rate of 
not less than 40% of the net profit of the financial statements in which the equity method is applied and 
the separate financial statements must not have accumulated loss. The Board of Directors may consider 
dividend payment that is approved by the shareholder’s meeting. The Board of Directors could consider 
interim dividend occasionally and reports to the shareholder’s meeting for acknowledgement. 

  PPrreevviioouuss  ddiivviiddeenndd  ppaayymmeenntt  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  

List 2023 2022 2021 

Earnings per share (Baht) 3.24 0.69 3.04 
Dividend rate per share (Baht) 1.7702702703 1.277778 1.7857 

• Cash dividend payment per share (Baht) 1.50 1.00 1.50 
• Stock dividend payment per share (Baht)  0.2702702703 0.277778 0.2857 

Dividend payment ratio to net profit (percent) 54.57 185.17 57.16 

NNoottee    
• The operating performance according to the separate financial statements in which the equity 

method is applied. 
• The calculation of earnings per share for the year 2022 and 2021 are based on the previous 

reported figures. The Company does not adjust the number of ordinary shares issued during         
the year for stock dividend in calculation. 

• Dividend payment for the year 2023 will be proposed to the 2024 Annual General Meeting of 
Shareholders on 23 April 2024 for approval. 
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22..    RRiisskk  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  

22..11    RRiisskk  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  ppoolliiccyy    

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited realizes the importance of the Company's risk 
management. Therefore, for the effective risk management, the Board of Directors assigns the Risk 
Management Committee to determine the Enterprise Risk Management Policy and control the Own Risk 
and Solvency Assessment (ERM & ORSA), which has been approved by the Board of Directors to 
communicate the importance of the risk management policy to all departments for acknowledgment and 
strictly implementing the policy. 

The Company defines a risk management policy which is in accordance with the Company's 
business strategy and the 3-year business plan by identifying the key risks according to the Company's 
main activities, providing the risk register, doing the risk assessment, monitoring and improving risks, which 
are in the high-level risks (risk tolerance) in order to mitigate risk to an acceptable risk level (risk appetite) 
as the specified risk management policy and does not significantly affect the Company's capital, and 
reporting the risk management results to the Risk Management Committee for acknowledgment. 

22..22    RRiisskk  ffaaccttoorrss  ffoorr  tthhee  CCoommppaannyy''ss  bbuussiinneessss  ooppeerraattiioonnss  

SSttrraatteeggiicc  RRiisskk  

11..  TThhee  ccoommppeettiittiivveenneessss  aanndd  tthhee  lliibbeerraalliizzaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  iinnssuurraannccee  iinndduussttrryy   

Currently there is greater competition in the non-life insurance business which can be seen in the 
concentration of large and medium-sized companies. Entry into the ASEAN economic community plays a 
major role in the increase of competition for insurance companies abroad and domestic of both which 
have strong financial standings, modern technology, and new innovative products for the consumer. 
Therefore, these companies have a potential for a higher market share supported by a strong financial 
backing allowing them to compete in terms of pricing, strategy, and quality of service. To stay 
competitive, insurance companies must adjust accordingly to those given conditions. 

TThhee  ssttrraatteeggiieess  aarree  

1) The Company emphasizes the existing customers group and focuses on the motor insurance 
business which has high potential growth and making the market share of the Company's total insurance 
premium is higher than the non-motor insurance. 

2) The Company expands the market-based to the retail customers group and has micro-insurance 
products to serve the customers’ needs. 

3) Adjusting competitive strategy by looking for new and high potential marketing channels. 
Developing new products to effectively respond to changes in customers’ needs, economy, and social 
conditions. The Company will develop the new products to support this situation. 
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22..  RRiisskkss  ffrroomm  sseelleeccttiinngg  ttaarrggeett  ccuussttoommeerrss  tthhaatt  aarree  ssuuiittaabbllee  ffoorr  tthhee  CCoommppaannyy  ssttrraatteeggyy  aanndd  tthhee  tteecchhnnoollooggyy  
tthhaatt  ssuuppppoorrttss  nneeww  pprroodduuccttss  ttoo  ssuuiitt  ffoorr  tthhee  ssppeecciiffiicc  rriisskk  ooff  ccuussttoommeerr  ggrroouupp  

 The selection of target customers is very important for today's business operations, so determining 
the target customers is important. The Company should give precedence to managing costs including 
target customers to be suitable for the Company strategy as specified in order to build a better customer 
base in the future and create sustainable competitiveness in business. In addition, technology has an 
important role as it can be used to analyze, plan, and make decisions by processing from a Company 
database and being able to modify the application to process according to various situations for the 
Company's goals. 

   TThhee  CCoommppaannyy  mmaannaaggeess  tthhee  rriisskk  bbyy   

1) To set the target of the new product, insurance premiums and loss ratio.  
2) To emphasize the new product that is profitable and has high potential growth. 
3) To make the new marketing channels and analyze customers' demand for new products. 
4) To monitor the insurance premium growth rate and loss ratio in accordance with the Company 

target and make the evaluation. 

IInnssuurraannccee  RRiisskk  

11.. IInnccrreeaassiinngg  ooff  aammoouunntt  aanndd  ffrreeqquueennccyy  ooff  lloossss   

  The impact of external factors whether physical or geographical factors, natural perils, disasters, 
accident, terrorism and burglary may bring disaster to lives and damage to property insured by the 
Company, leading to higher than expected losses. These risks may result in the premiums received from 
customers being lower than the actual losses or the claims reserve being inadequate, which may have an 
impact on the Company’s capital at risk. 

22.. EEtthhiiccss  aanndd  mmoorraall  

  The risk may arise from insurers who intend to take advantage of insurance company. In this 
respect, insurers may have to pay for a higher settlement than the fair amount. This may result in a higher  
loss ratio than expected and effect to the Company’s liquidity risk.  

    TThhee  CCoommppaannyy  aaddooppttss  mmeeaassuurreess  ttoo  ddeeaall  wwiitthh  tthhee  aabboovvee  rriisskkss  bbyy     

1) Analyzing the basis of loss ratio and combined ratio by monitoring and controlling to be in the 
Company criteria.  

2) Implementing strict risk selection criteria, client groups and type of business which conform to 
the risk appetite of loss ratio. The Company analyzes the reinsurance retention appropriately in order to 
increase profitability and absorb risks that may occur. 
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3) The Company purchases the Excess of Loss Insurance which will help to control the risk that 
the Company takes, and to prevent the Company's performance, Company's financial status, including the 
level of the Company's capital fund fluctuation and severely affected by the crisis such as catastrophic 
events, which affect more than the Company can accept as the Company has defined in accordance with 
the risk management policy.  

MMaarrkkeett  rriisskk  

The risk arises from decreasing in value of securities from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest 
rating and security prices as well as from external factors such as economic, social and political situations. 

    TThhee  CCoommppaannyy  mmaannaaggeess  tthhee  mmaarrkkeett  rriisskk  bbyy  

The Company diversifies the portfolio and spreads investment funding to include various lines of 
investment as well as categories of business in order to reduce fluctuations in aggregate value of 
investment. It closely monitors and regularly assesses factors that may cause fluctuations in the value of 
investment instruments in order to make a proper investment transaction according to the situation.         
It has a policy not to invest in speculative securities that price fluctuation is high but concentrates on 
blue-chip securities and ones that have steady yield. The Company has an investment committee who 
considers and sets up the investment policy, in addition to the Office of Insurance Commission’s rule of 
practice promulgated under the Non-Life Insurance Act B.E.2535, in order to reduce exposure from         
the loss of investment funding. The committee considers and reviews the structure of the portfolio mix 
on a regular basis. 

CCrreeddiitt  rriisskk  

The counterparty is unable to meet the agreement which has been stated in the contract and the 
probability that the counterparty’s credit rating is downgraded. 

11.. IInnvveessttmmeenntt  

  More than 50 percent of the Company asset is securities investment, so the Company is taking on 
the risk should the issuer is default.  

  TThhee  CCoommppaannyy  mmaannaaggeess  tthhee  iinnvveessttmmeenntt  rriisskk  bbyy  

The strategy is making selection of investment base on credit rating of issuers of fixed income 
securities, assigned by reliable outside credit rating agencies such as TRIS and FITCH. It is the Company 
policy to invest in fixed income securities at least “Investment Grade” quality on the investment date. All 
invested fixed income securities will be periodically monitored for an adjustment of the debtors’ credit 
rating and relevant information will be gathered to review business potential of the issuers. It also 
regularly monitors and reviews the limit for investment to ensure adequate investment limit of individual 
line is maintained at all time. 
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22.. RReeiinnssuurraannccee  

  The reinsurance companies cannot pay claim recovery the Company as specify in the contract so 
the Company’s liquidity is affected consequently.   

   TThhee  CCoommppaannyy  mmaannaaggeess  tthhiiss  rriisskk  bbyy   

  The Company considers and chooses only the overseas reinsurers for the treaty reinsurance 
contracts with a credit rating of A- or higher. For the facultative reinsurance contracts with credit rating 
that higher than BBB+ and not exceeding 10% of the reinsurance proportion of overall overseas 
reinsurance premium. For the domestic reinsurers, the company uses the minimum capital adequacy ratio 
criteria that specified by OIC and monthly monitors for any adjustments to the credit ratings of foreign 
reinsurance companies and quarterly monitors for any adjustments to the credit ratings of local 
reinsurance companies.  

LLiiqquuiiddiittyy  rriisskk 

The risk arises from a given security or asset that cannot be traded quickly enough, and at the 
required quantity, price and time to enable the Company to have cash to pay loans or meet its 
obligations as they become due. Liquidity is critical to insurance operation as it can create damages in 
terms of monetary as well as non-monetary damages such as reputation, image, and credibility to clients, 
business partners, public and industry. 

    TThhee  CCoommppaannyy  eessttaabblliisshheess  ppoolliiccyy  ttoo  mmaannaaggee  lliiqquuiiddiittyy  rriisskk  oonn  iinnvveessttmmeenntt  ooppeerraattiioonn  bbyy   

1) Making investment on securities that are liquid such as fixed income securities from government 
sector or private sector that has good credit rating. It also spreads out investment funding and balances 
the portfolio taking into account time horizons and fund needs to pay loans and meet obligations, 
managing account receivable, account payable, remaining useful life of assets and changes in value of 
assets, deals with the remaining useful life of assets and liabilities was taken into consideration and 
anticipated quantity and duration properly needed in circumstances whether inside and outside the 
Company.  

2) Maintaining adequate shareholders’ equity to meet its liabilities and have an appropriate ratio 
to handle exposure from business and operation risks and provides other funding sources for its 
contingency plans for handling liquidity crisis.  

3) Responsibilities and line of report to those who manage liquidity risk are clearly defined as well 
as establish reporting system to generate an early warning report to executives for transactions that are 
not conform to the Company’ policy or promptly, timely and accurately report warning signs to key risk 
indicators. 
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OOppeerraattiioonnaall  rriisskk  

11.. PPeerrssoonnnneell   

  There exists a limited skilled and specialized workforce for the insurance industry. The strategies 
are to support continuing growth in career path through training programs both domestic and 
international, to sponsored higher education scholarship, to keep high potential employees to work 
permanently. 

22.. PPrroocceessssiinngg  ssyysstteemm   

  The risk arises from the insufficient or inappropriate internal control system also including the 
classification of responsibility ineffectively as well as there exists no guideline for examining any person 
who commits an offense under Anti-Money Laundering Act and Counterterrorism and Proliferation of 
Weapons of Mass Destruction Financing Act that may cause the Company shall be liable to fine and 
discredit. 

  TThhee  ssttrraatteeggiieess  aarree  

1) To endorse and establish a code of work ethics based on good governance on a continuous 
basis.  

2) Work manual, authority to exercise power and responsibilities are clearly defined in writing and 
periodically revised.  

3) To build up a culture that values corporate risk management and work integrity and ethics. 
4) To emphasize the investigating process those who violate or fail to comply with the Anti-Money 

Laundering Act, and Counterterrorism and Proliferation of Weapons of Mass Destruction Financing Act. 

33.. TTeecchhnnoollooggyy 

  Statistical data and information of clients are lost or leaked to outsiders or competitors, including 
cyber risk. The Company will suffer a negative image, the operation will be interrupted if problems occur 
with the central computer it will lead to system failure or losing all data. 

    TThheerree  aarree  eeffffeeccttiivvee  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  sseeccuurriittyy  ssoolluuttiioonnss  to protect electronic information and contingency 
plans for central computer units. There is a back-up system in preparation for emergency disaster. A 
contingency business continuity plan has been designed and tested on a yearly basis. 

  In addition, procedures and regulations have been clearly defined and practiced in respect of 
security of data and system, are 

1) Software security and data, the Company installs a program to check and detect computer 
viruses, firewall and the patch programs from each program producer to get rid of bugs and errors in the 
computer system. Two sets of backup data are kept. They are updated daily, monthly, and  yearly  a t 
secured outside locations in preparation for emergency disasters.  

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
46



 

OOppeerraattiioonnaall  rriisskk  

11.. PPeerrssoonnnneell   

  There exists a limited skilled and specialized workforce for the insurance industry. The strategies 
are to support continuing growth in career path through training programs both domestic and 
international, to sponsored higher education scholarship, to keep high potential employees to work 
permanently. 

22.. PPrroocceessssiinngg  ssyysstteemm   

  The risk arises from the insufficient or inappropriate internal control system also including the 
classification of responsibility ineffectively as well as there exists no guideline for examining any person 
who commits an offense under Anti-Money Laundering Act and Counterterrorism and Proliferation of 
Weapons of Mass Destruction Financing Act that may cause the Company shall be liable to fine and 
discredit. 

  TThhee  ssttrraatteeggiieess  aarree  

1) To endorse and establish a code of work ethics based on good governance on a continuous 
basis.  

2) Work manual, authority to exercise power and responsibilities are clearly defined in writing and 
periodically revised.  

3) To build up a culture that values corporate risk management and work integrity and ethics. 
4) To emphasize the investigating process those who violate or fail to comply with the Anti-Money 

Laundering Act, and Counterterrorism and Proliferation of Weapons of Mass Destruction Financing Act. 

33.. TTeecchhnnoollooggyy 

  Statistical data and information of clients are lost or leaked to outsiders or competitors, including 
cyber risk. The Company will suffer a negative image, the operation will be interrupted if problems occur 
with the central computer it will lead to system failure or losing all data. 

    TThheerree  aarree  eeffffeeccttiivvee  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  sseeccuurriittyy  ssoolluuttiioonnss  to protect electronic information and contingency 
plans for central computer units. There is a back-up system in preparation for emergency disaster. A 
contingency business continuity plan has been designed and tested on a yearly basis. 

  In addition, procedures and regulations have been clearly defined and practiced in respect of 
security of data and system, are 

1) Software security and data, the Company installs a program to check and detect computer 
viruses, firewall and the patch programs from each program producer to get rid of bugs and errors in the 
computer system. Two sets of backup data are kept. They are updated daily, monthly, and  yearly  a t 
secured outside locations in preparation for emergency disasters.  

 

2) Hardware and network, the Company has a contingency plan to use an outside backup site if 
disaster occurs.  

3) Physical security of the central computer unit, the Company provides a backup power system 
to support short-term power outages. It also has a generator capable of keeping the unit alive should we 
experience longer term power outage. The Company has installed fire alarm systems and fire 
extinguishers specifically for electronic system protection. 

4) Personnel security, the Company establishes clearly defined procedures to identify those who 
can access to send mail out of the office, set size limit to send mail, and report of sent mail.  

5) The Company occasionally provides the information technology external auditor for information 
technology auditing to improve the Company's working process in accordance with international standard 
procedures. 

44.. EExxtteerrnnaall  ffaaccttoorrss    

  Outside effects that can impact the Company’s operation and financial status might include social 
(third party), market conditions, political environment, and natural factors e.g. fire, flood, or earthquake. 

  TThhee  CCoommppaannyy  mmaannaaggeess  tthheessee  eexxtteerrnnaall  ffaaccttoorrss  bbyy carefully selecting partnership management and 
increasing more diligence for the record of claims arising from moral hazard as well as the KYC: know your 
customer should be done before the issue of every new policy following the principles of risk 
management and comply with Anti-Money Laundering Act and Counterterrorism and Proliferation of 
Weapons of Mass Destruction Financing Act. 

55.. FFrraauudd  rriisskk    

  Means the act or omission to act of fraud in order to gain unlawful benefits, regardless of whether 
the beneficiary of the fraud is a fraudulent person or any other involved person. In this regard, it includes 
internal fraud and external fraud, which has been identified as part of the operational risk. 

    TThhee  CCoommppaannyy  mmaannaaggeess  tthhee  ffrraauudd  rriisskk  bbyy  

 The Company has specified the event and source of fraud risks, which affected income, capital 
fund, reputation, or existence of the Company. 

 The Company has prescribed the procedures for fraud risk assessment and implementation. 

 The Company manages fraud risks, by performing at least as follows: 

1) To set a standard and do the evaluation for qualifications and suitability of directors, and 
employees regularly at least once a year. 

2) To set a policy for categorizing customers, Customer Due Diligence (CDD). 
3) To set procedures for managing compensation claims to reduce fraud risk. 
4) To set a guideline for assessing the qualifications of agents and brokers. 
5) To monitor the operations of insurance agents and brokers.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
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6) In the case that the Company uses services from third parties, the Company prepares a 
policy for outsourcing third-party services and monitors risk from third-party services. 
 The Company prepares a policy for reporting fraud (whistleblowing). 

 The Company has appointed an independent person to perform an investigation into any 
suspicious event by reporting the investigation result to the Audit Committee quarterly at least. If the 
Audit Committee receives the report and found the fraud that has a serious impact on the financial status, 
performance or the Company reputation, the Audit Committee reports to the board of directors in order 
to solve the problem in the appropriate period. In case the Board of Directors or the management does 
not make improvements within the time specified by the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee reports 
to the OIC. 

The Company prepares a database for internal and external fraud for monitoring fraud. 

The Company revisits its policy at least once a year. 

The Company prepares a report summarizing its implementation of insurance fraud risk policies and 
procedures, which have been approved by the Risk Management Committee and submitted to the Board 
of Directors at least once a year. 

66.. CCoorrrruuppttiioonn  rriisskk    

  This risk arising from actions to seek unlawful benefits for oneself and others such as 
embezzlement, fraud, reporting fraud, disinformation, disclosure of confidential information of the 
Company, or exploitation etc., including bribery in any form by offering, promising, conferring, promising, 
demanding or accepting any improper money, property or other benefit with government officials, 
government agency, or the person in charge whether directly or indirectly in order for such person to act 
or refrain from performing duties which is to acquire or maintain business or any other benefits that are 
inappropriate for business except in the case of laws, regulations, announcements, regulations, local 
customs or trade customs. 

  TThhee  CCoommppaannyy  hhaass  rriisskk  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  bbyy defining the Anti-Corruption Policy, Terms and Practices of 
Anti-Corruption by communicating to directors, executives, employees, and stakeholders for 
acknowledgment. To cultivate a corporate culture of honesty, recognize the importance of this measure 
and understand the guidelines. It will also communicate to outsiders such as customers, partners, 
stakeholders, and third parties associated with the Company or may affect the Company to be aware of 
the Company's business practices and encourage the Company's partners to adhere to transparent 
business practices and not involve in corruption. 

77.. CCoonndduucctt  ooff  bbuussiinneessss--rreellaatteedd  ffaaiirr  ttrreeaattmmeenntt  ooff  ccuussttoommeerr  rriisskk    

 This risk arises from the operations or activities of providing customer service of the Company, 
causing customers not to be treated fairly. 
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 TThhee  CCoommppaannyy  hhaass  tthhee  FFaaiirr  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  ooff  CCuussttoommeerr  PPoolliiccyy that defines the Company's business 
operations, staff working process, non-life insurance agent and broker including banks, which is in 
accordance with the OIC announcement. 

88.. PPeerrssoonnaall  ddaattaa  rriisskk   

  Personal data risk caused by using, collecting, or disclosing personal data without the consent of 
the data subject for personal gain or trade or for the benefit of personal information using in various 
offenses. 

 TThhee  CCoommppaannyy  hhaass  rriisskk  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  bbyy defying the guidelines for the use or disclosure of personal 
information related to the non-life insurance business, and comply with the Personal Protection Act, as 
well as other laws related. 

RReeppuuttaattiioonnaall  rriisskk  

  The risk arises from expectation from stakeholders that the Company may not response to all 
issues such as the expectation of insurance coverage or customer expectations to response their needs 
that may result in the loss of trust, faith, reputation, and image of the Company. 

 TToo  mmiittiiggaattee  tthhiiss,, the Company concerns on strategic vision and reputation through the cooperation 
between the Board of Directors and top executives. Therefore, the Company has several sources of 
information and experience sharing which are relevant to identify the possible risk of Company’s 
reputation. 

IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  tteecchhnnoollooggyy  rriisskk  

 Information Technology or IT risk is basically any threat to the business data, critical systems, and 
business processes. It is the risk associated with the use, ownership, operation, involvement, influence, 
and adoption of IT within the Company. IT risks have the potential to damage business value and often 
come from poor management of processes and events. This will have a negative impact on the 
Company's business operations. In addition, cyber risk is one of the risks that the Company focuses on 
and included in the information technology risk because it affects the credibility of the Company's 
information (Trust Building) including the Company's business interruption due to a disaster happening 
with The Company's data center that caused the Company could not do business or has lost some or all 
of the data, which causes damage the Company and lack of credibility. 

 TThhee  CCoommppaannyy  hhaass  rriisskk  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  bbyy defining the information technology risk management 
policy and information technology security policy that complies with international standards and the 
Notification of the Office of Insurance Commission (OIC) Re: The Rules for Supervision and Risk 
Management in Information Technology of Non-Life Insurance Companies B.E.2563. Moreover, the 
Company complies with the IT Audit - Risk Based Supervision which is specified by OIC for monitoring and 
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controlling information technology risk management and cybersecurity risk. The Company has the 
Business Continuity Management (BCM) Plan and has the yearly testing for reporting the results to the Risk 
Management Committee and the Board of Director. 

CCaattaassttrroopphhiicc  rriisskk  

 This risk will make the damage suddenly and seriously, they caused a lot of loss such as 
earthquakes, floods, etc. This is one of the important factors that may affect the Company's business 
operations. 

 TThhee  CCoommppaannyy  hhaass  rriisskk  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  bbyy analyzing and considering the preparation of reinsurance 
contracts through reinsurers with a stable financial status. This is the transferring and diversifying risks of 
the insurance business. This will help to limit the amount of damage that the Company can compensate 
the compensation without affecting the Company's financial position. 

EEmmeerrggiinngg  rriisskk  

  The loss of unseen risks but is likely to happen in the future according to the changing of the 
environment. This risk may occur gradually and has low probability but if it happens, this will cause a 
large damage to the Company. This risk is based on statistically and expectation of reliable evidence. 

 TThhee  rriisskk  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  ppllaann is applicable through the product development in order to cover cost 
of loss and restricting the threshold of underwriting process. 

GGrroouupp  rriisskk  

 The risk that the financial status of affiliated company impacts other associated companies. 
Currently, the Company has investments in associated company incorporated in Laos PDR. 

 TThhee  ssttrraatteeggyy is complying with the investment plan and procedure and guideline for investment in 
other business defined in the risk management policy as well as relevant laws and regulations to prevent 
the Company’s operation from causing any damage. 

EEnnvviirroonnmmeennttaall,,  ssoocciiaall  aanndd  ggoovveerrnnaannccee  rriisskk    

Risk arising from business operations and investments of the Company that reflect the concrete 
environmental, social and governance concepts, such as encouragement the Company's investment in 
green financial products, encouragement the sustainability awareness in the Company's business 
operations etc. The sustainability information disclosure of the Company shows the policy, impact, and 
performance of the Company's environmental and social activities under the good corporate governance 
policy, including the data of greenhouse gas emissions and respect for human rights. These data will show 
the efficiency of the business, adjustment to accommodate risks in various areas as well as reflecting the 
efficiency of the energy cost and resource management of the Company in order to achieve business 
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sustainability in a tangible way to build credibility for investors and reduce the risk of stakeholders' 
conflicts in business operations. In addition, data users can see the business operations' overview in a 
broader dimension than financial data. This will create confidence in the organization in terms of their 
abilities to manage their business with efficiency, transparency, competitiveness, and generate the long-
term returns for the Company. 

TThhee  rriisskk  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  ppllaann: There are policies and goals for sustainability management. The 
Company's sustainability management approach is reflected in the Company's vision which is committed 
to conducting business in order to create social stability with ethics. Providing the valuable and quality 
protection to the insured and all stakeholders as well as strengthening its position as a leading company 
in the non-life insurance business by adhering to the NKI's core values: Creative Thinking, Accountability, 
Collaboration, Excellent Service. The Company uses digital technologies such as online meetings and     
e-policy to reduce workflows process and support the transformation of cyber transactions. The Company 
applies the paperless workflows with business and have the hybrid working for the employees in order to 
preserve the environment and reduce global warming from traffic jam. In addition, the Company also 
places importance on business management in accordance with good corporate governance principles 
and define anti-corruption policy and continuously support activities for society and public benefit for the 
operation of the business to grow steadily and sustainably covering all dimensions including economy, 
society and environment. 

AAsssseett  aanndd  lliiaabbiilliittyy  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  rriisskk  

 A mismatch between assets and liabilities either due to liquidity or changes in interest rates, stock 
prices and property prices, especially a loss reserve, unearned premium reserve, premium received in 
advance and duration of asset is longer than the average life of liability which affected the Company’s 
financial standing and liquidity. 

 TThhee  ssttrraatteeggyy is defining asset and liability management as a mechanism to address the investment 
risk in line with investment policy, investment plan and procedure of the Company as well as guideline 
for investment in other business set by the Company’s investment committee and have been approved 
by the Board of Directors in order to ensure that the Company has a suitable asset and liability 
management, investment in equity securities, cash ratio and liquid assets. 

CCoonncceennttrraattiioonn  rriisskk  

 The risk arises from the value of specific asset concentration is too high including investment and 
reinsurer. As the issuer and reinsurer have credit difficulties and are unable to pay the obligation,           
the Company will have liquidity problem subsequently. 

 

 

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
51



 

11.. IInnvveessttmmeenntt:: 

 The Company is investing in both equity and security markets in order to get the high return as 
targeted. Therefore, if the Company invests in one specific equity in order to get a high return might cause 
the big loss when the value of equity is dramatically decreased. 

 TThhee  rriisskk  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  ppllaann is that the concentrations’ restriction is applicable through the 
investment diversification. The Company is investing in various types of securities which is categorized 
according to the level of risk. We are strictly tightening the Concentration policy because it might affect 
the severity to the Company in terms of Liquidity, Reinsurance risk, and Capital Adequacy Ratio and Risk 
Based Capital. 

22.. RReeiinnssuurraannccee    

The Company is facing the risk if choosing one reinsurer for more than 50 percent of total 
reinsurance premiums of the Company. In the case that reinsurer is bankrupt, the Company will possibly 
be defaulted from the reinsurer. 

 TThhee  rriisskk  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  ppllaann: The Company has reinsurance counterparty with both local and 
international reinsurers. The reinsurance policy of the Company is set the maximum limit for any 
reinsurer’s share for all classes not exceeding 50% of reinsurance premium of the Company. The 
Company has set the warning level at 45%. If there is an opportunity to encounter the concentration risk 
exposure, the Company will consider looking for other reinsurers to spread the risk.   

LLeeggaall  aanndd  rreegguullaattoorryy  rriisskk    

 The Company abuses, neglects or does not comply with the law, the rules and regulations 
stipulated by the regulatory specifications.  

  TThhee  ssttrraatteeggiieess  aarree  

1) The Company requires all employees to follow the relevant regulations properly as their 
responsibility.  

2) The Company communicates and gives the understanding to the employee to the effect and 
the loss that will be occurred according to the law discipline.  

3) The Company records and pursues the legal and regulation policy issued. 
4) Each division in the organization set their work instructions to prevent offense against the 

serious law such as Anti-Money Laundering Act and Counter Terrorism Financing Act. 
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33..    DDrriivviinngg  bbuussiinneessss  ffoorr  ssuussttaaiinnaabbiilliittyy  

33..11    PPoolliicciieess  aanndd  ssuussttaaiinnaabbllee  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  ggooaallss  

The Company established Sustainable Development Policy adhering to the Company's vision         
in order to create stability for the society with ethics, strengthened being a leading company in              
the general insurance business and complete with quality personnel, excellent service and technology 
along with providing valuable and quality non-life insurance to the insured and all stakeholders.            
The Company adheres to the four corporate values which are creativity, accountability, collaboration, and 
excellent service as well as considering the relevant society and environment. 

In 2023, the Board of Directors reviewed and approved the same Sustainable Development Policy 
as the previous year. The policy aims to raise awareness and confidence that the Company's business 
operations will bring economic, social, and environmental benefits. It is also consistent with the 
sustainable development goals of the regulators. At the same time, the Board of Directors has established 
a framework for sustainable development operations which covers all aspects. For economic aspects, the 
Company focuses on conducting business with transparency according to the principles of good corporate 
governance and business ethics; respects the rights and treats all stakeholder groups fairly as well as 
creates value added to products and services. In terms of society, the Company is still committed to 
developing knowledge, understanding, expanding access to insurance products, and treating employees 
fairly. In case of environment, the Company is committed to conducting business taking into account the 
environmental responsibility; developing work processes and products by applying innovation or modern 
technology and inculcate awareness of environmental responsibility among the Company's personnel. 

The Company’s sustainability commitment remains the same that is “We build agility protection 
for quality of life.” 

33..22    SSttaakkeehhoollddeerrss  iimmppaacctt  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  iinn  tthhee  bbuussiinneessss  vvaalluuee  cchhaaiinn  
33..22..11    BBuussiinneessss  vvaalluuee  cchhaaiinn  

The Company's main business is to provide all types of non-life insurance services. The main 
activity in the business value chain is the design and development of policies to meet customers’ needs 
with careful consideration of underwriting, providing convenient and fast service including considering 
claims fairly according to the conditions in the policy. The value chain information of the Company's key 
activities is as follows. 
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33..22..22    SSttaakkeehhoollddeerrss  iinn  tthhee  BBuussiinneessss  VVaalluuee  CChhaaiinn  AAnnaallyyssiiss  

The Company clearly sets policies and guidelines for treating each group of stakeholders with awareness 
of the importance and respect for the rights of stakeholders who are involved or affected by the Company's 
operations both directly and indirectly. The Company also provides communication channels and stakeholder 
engagement activities, enabling the Company to get opinions, concerns, expectations, and new perspectives. 
Those issues shall be benefit for improving the efficiency of the Company's business operations. 

The stakeholder engagement is established for each stakeholder group in different forms as follows: 

Stakeholders Communication channels Expectation Response 

Shareholders • Annual General Meeting of 
Shareholders 

• 56-1 One Report 
• Company’s website 
• Disclosure system of the 

Stock Exchange of Thailand 

• Good profit and 
returns 

• Business operations 
according to the 
principles of good 
corporate governance 

• Stable and sustainable 
business growth 

• Complete and timely 
information disclosure  

• Consistently pay 
dividends in line with 
operating results 

• Operate the business 
in accordance with the 
principles of good 
corporate governance 
and sustainable 
development 

• Disclose complete 
information as 
required by law. 

Customers • Website 
• Email and social media 
• Satisfaction survey 
• Complaint channels and 

service recommendations 

• Variety of coverage of 
insurance that meets 
customer needs at 
reasonable price 

• Good service and fast 
response to customer 
needs 

• Security of personal 
information 

• Design products with 
reasonable price and 
a wide range of 
options 

• Organize a Customer 
Service Center to 
serve the customers 
and receive 
complaints 

Business 
partners 

• Visiting, discussion and 
meeting 

• Training 

• Compliance with 
commercial contact 
properly, transparently 
and fairly 
 

• Make an agreement 
regarding mutual 
benefits and strictly 
comply with 
commercial contract 
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33..22..22    SSttaakkeehhoollddeerrss  iinn  tthhee  BBuussiinneessss  VVaalluuee  CChhaaiinn  AAnnaallyyssiiss  

The Company clearly sets policies and guidelines for treating each group of stakeholders with awareness 
of the importance and respect for the rights of stakeholders who are involved or affected by the Company's 
operations both directly and indirectly. The Company also provides communication channels and stakeholder 
engagement activities, enabling the Company to get opinions, concerns, expectations, and new perspectives. 
Those issues shall be benefit for improving the efficiency of the Company's business operations. 

The stakeholder engagement is established for each stakeholder group in different forms as follows: 

Stakeholders Communication channels Expectation Response 

Shareholders • Annual General Meeting of 
Shareholders 

• 56-1 One Report 
• Company’s website 
• Disclosure system of the 

Stock Exchange of Thailand 

• Good profit and 
returns 

• Business operations 
according to the 
principles of good 
corporate governance 

• Stable and sustainable 
business growth 

• Complete and timely 
information disclosure  

• Consistently pay 
dividends in line with 
operating results 

• Operate the business 
in accordance with the 
principles of good 
corporate governance 
and sustainable 
development 

• Disclose complete 
information as 
required by law. 

Customers • Website 
• Email and social media 
• Satisfaction survey 
• Complaint channels and 

service recommendations 

• Variety of coverage of 
insurance that meets 
customer needs at 
reasonable price 

• Good service and fast 
response to customer 
needs 

• Security of personal 
information 

• Design products with 
reasonable price and 
a wide range of 
options 

• Organize a Customer 
Service Center to 
serve the customers 
and receive 
complaints 

Business 
partners 

• Visiting, discussion and 
meeting 

• Training 

• Compliance with 
commercial contact 
properly, transparently 
and fairly 
 

• Make an agreement 
regarding mutual 
benefits and strictly 
comply with 
commercial contract 

Stakeholders Communication channels Expectation Response 

• Convenient and fast 
coordination and 
services  

• Efficient and 
uncomplicated system 
and workflow  

• Competitive premiums 

• Determine clear 
process and 
timeframes for the 
procedure 

• Provide convenient 
and fast coordination 
and services  

• Periodically 
communicate progress 
of proceedings 

Employees • Orientation 
• Training 
• Activities for employees 
• Website 
• Intranet, email, and social 

media 
• Channels for reporting clues 

and complaints 
• Satisfaction assessment form 

• Proper compensation 
and benefits 

• Stability and career 
path 

• Knowledge and ability 
development 

• Work and life balance 
• Response to factors 

affecting work 
motivation 

• Equality and fair 
treatment 

• Good working 
environment 

• Determine appropriate 
and adequate 
compensation and 
benefits comparable 
to businesses in the 
same industry. 

• Provide continuous 
training plan for 
professional 
development and 
growth. 

• Set guidelines for 
reducing pressure and 
increasing work 
efficiency. 

• Treat the Company's 
employees fairly 
according to personnel 
management 
regulations. 

• Establish workplace 
safety practices 
including creating a 
good working 
environment. 
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Stakeholders Communication channels Expectation Response 

Competitors • Various communication 
channels of the Company 

• Fair trade competition • Compete in trade 
according to rules and 
business etiquette 

Creditor • Meeting • Timely repayment of 
debt 

• Strictly follow 
agreement 

Community, 
society, and 
environment 

• Activities to help the society 
and the environment  

• Social and 
environmental 
responsibility 

• Raise awareness 
among employees to 
care about society and 
the environment 

• Organize activities to 
help the society and 
the environment 

Regulators • Meeting 
• Various communication 

channels 

• Comply with the 
requirements correctly 

• Cooperates and 
support various 
projects 

• Communicate to 
employees regarding 
laws, rules, regulations 
and urge to strictly 
comply 

• Promote good 
cooperation between 
departments 

PPrriioorriittiizziinngg  aanndd  iiddeennttiiffyyiinngg  kkeeyy  ssuussttaaiinnaabbiilliittyy  iissssuueess  

  The Company analyzed the expectations of stakeholders in both positive and negative impacts to 
prioritize and identify key sustainability issues as follows: 
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Economic Social Environmental 

• Personal data protection 
• Innovation and technology 

development 
• Sustainability values 
• Risk management and legal 

compliance. 

• Data security 
• Responsibility for products and 

services 
• Access to products and services 
• Human resource development 
 

• Energy consumption 
• Greenhouse gas management 

33..33    SSuussttaaiinnaabbiilliittyy  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  iinn  eennvviirroonnmmeennttaall  aassppeecctt  

33..33..11    EEnnvviirroonnmmeennttaall  ppoolliiccyy  aanndd  pprraaccttiicceess  

The Company's main business is service. Although it does not directly affect the environment, the 
Company recognizes the importance of sustainability in the environmental aspect. The Board of Directors 
therefore established the Environmental Policy that commits to complying with laws and regulations related to 
the environment, focuses on the economical and efficient use of natural resources to prevent and reduce the 
environmental impact caused by the activities, products and services of the Company. The Company raises 
awareness among employees to realize the importance of the environment, energy, resource consumption 
economically and cost-effectively; including improving work processes and changing work equipment to help 
reduce global warming and the consumption of resources. 

The Company encourages employees to use energy and resources in a worthwhile manner, for example, 
reusing single-sided paper, reducing printing, turning off the air conditioner 30 minutes before 12.00 p.m. and 

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
59



17.00 p.m., turning off the electricity every time employees leave the office or meeting room and during lunch 
break, turning off computer screens whenever they are not in use and use stairs between floors 25-27 instead 
of an elevator.  

In 2023, the Company purchased 2 electric vehicles (EV) to reduce the amount of greenhouse gas 
emissions. 

33..33..22    EEnnvviirroonnmmeennttaall  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  

 1.  Electricity and Water Management 

 The Company continuously reduces the use of water and electricity. However, employees returned 
to work in the office including the Company expanded the office space. As a result, the consumption of water 
and electricity increased in the head office was as follows: 

 2023 2022 Percentage Change 

Unit Baht Unit Baht Unit Baht 

Water 6,012 97,018 6,193 99,782 -3 -3 

Electricity  613,097 4,040,280 607,016 3,145,088 1 28.46 

 
2. Paper Management 

A lot of paper is used in the insurance business, especially in letters and policies issuing process.         
In 2023, the number of insurance policies increased as a result the amount of paper used increased as well. 
Therefore, the Company encourages employees to use paper with value by using double-sided paper, sending 
emails instead of printing documents and the submission of electronic meeting documents. 
 2023 2022 Percentage Change 

Page Baht Page Page Page Page 

General Documents 1,803,082 437,648 1,940,963 501,085 -7 -13 

Policies Printing  11,111,508 1,500,255 8,848,629 1,187,525 26 26 

3.  Waste and pollution management 

The Company still encourages employees to separate waste. Bins are arranged to accommodate       
4 types of waste, including 1) aluminum waste, 2) recyclable waste, 3) toxic waste, and 4) general waste.       
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2. Paper Management 

A lot of paper is used in the insurance business, especially in letters and policies issuing process.         
In 2023, the number of insurance policies increased as a result the amount of paper used increased as well. 
Therefore, the Company encourages employees to use paper with value by using double-sided paper, sending 
emails instead of printing documents and the submission of electronic meeting documents. 
 2023 2022 Percentage Change 

Page Baht Page Page Page Page 

General Documents 1,803,082 437,648 1,940,963 501,085 -7 -13 

Policies Printing  11,111,508 1,500,255 8,848,629 1,187,525 26 26 

3.  Waste and pollution management 

The Company still encourages employees to separate waste. Bins are arranged to accommodate       
4 types of waste, including 1) aluminum waste, 2) recyclable waste, 3) toxic waste, and 4) general waste.       

The Company has started collecting data on the amount of waste since 2023 by taking out recyclables and 
general waste, leaving it at the building's garbage collection point to be disposed of properly that will help 
reduce environmental pollution. 

4.  Greenhouse gas management 

Although the Company is a service business, various operational activities still emit direct and indirect 
greenhouse gases from energy consumption, use of cooling systems, vehicles and documents delivery etc.        
In 2023, the Company began to collect corporate carbon footprint data for the first year to analyze sources of 
greenhouse gas emissions and calculate the amount of greenhouse gas emissions arising from the Company’s 
activities. The consultant from the Water and Environment Institute for Sustainability of the Federation of Thai 
Industries provided advice on preparing greenhouse gas emissions and recovery reports which summarized the 
sources of greenhouse gas emissions from the Company’s activities covering scope 1-3 in operations. The 
Company schedules to have the data verified by the auditor certified Carbon Footprint for Organization (CFO) 
from the Greenhouse Gas Management Organization (Public Organization in 2025. 

However, in 2023, the Company continues to support the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions       
by continuously conducting environmental activities and participating in the Care the Bear Project organized by 
the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Each activity is in line with the Sustainable Development Goals according to 
the SDGs as follows: 

Activities Goals 

PPrreeppaarraattiioonn  ooff  aann  eelleeccttrroonniicc  ppoolliiccyy  

The Company issued an electronic policy and delivered to customers 
via electronic channels specified by customers. This type of policy 
reduced the process and time of printing documents. As a result, the 
customers received the policy faster. It also reduced the use of paper, 
other resources, and fuel consumption in policy delivery. 

 

  

 

KKaaoo  TTeeee  SSoommbboooonn  PPrroojjeecctt  ((PPeerrffeecctt  SStteepp  PPrroojjeecctt))  

The Company has been supporting the Prostheses Foundation of H.R.H 
the Princess Mother for six years by recycling aluminum waste to make 
prosthetics legs. This activity supported the ideas and conducted of 
environment conservation with efficient and sustainable use of limited 
resource. 
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Activities Goals 

EEmmppllooyyeeee  uunniiffoorrmmss  

Employees’ uniforms are made from save electricity fabric no.5, which is 
washable, dryable and can be worn without ironing. It also has the 
capacity to efficiently heat transfer, keeping the wearer cool and 
comfortable. In addition, the color that was used to dye the fabric are 
not dangerous to the wearer's health. The uniforms made from less 
chemicals fabric and electrical energy demonstrates environmental 
sustainability. 

  

      

 

 

33..44    SSuussttaaiinnaabbiilliittyy  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  iinn  ssoocciiaall  aassppeecctt    

33..44..11    SSoocciiaall  ppoolliiccyy  aanndd  pprraaccttiicceess  

 The Company adheres to conduct business with social responsibility, focuses to all groups of relevant 
stakeholders by applying the principles of Good Corporate Governance as a guideline for the operation as well 
as formulates policies and practices that are consistent with the laws, rules and regulations of regulator. 

RReessppeecctt  hhuummaann  rriigghhttss  
 The Company commits to building a corporate culture that adheres to respect for human rights and 
complies strictly with laws and international principles on human rights. The Board of Directors establishes 
Human Rights Policy that prohibited involvement in human rights violations and was based on freedom, 
equality and peace and treated each other with respect and equality without discrimination of race, 
nationality, gender, language, religion, age, political opinion, social status, culture, customs, or any other 
matter. The Company does neither violate labor rights, nor hire unfairly and use child labor under the legal age 
limit. The actions to protect human rights are supported and promoted. 

FFaaiirr  ttrreeaattmmeenntt  ooff  eemmppllooyyeeeess  
 The Company places importance on treating employees thoroughly and fairly; evaluates performance 
and pay compensation appropriately; provides good welfare; encourages employees to continuously grow in 
careers path; promote a work life balance; as well as provide work safety. The Company provides employees 
with opportunities to participate in welfare and benefits management by electing the Welfare Committee along 
with specifying the complaint procedure, so that employees can exercise their rights to file complaints. 
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33..44..22    CCoorrppoorraattee  ssoocciiaall  ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee 

 In 2023, the Company implemented social responsibility projects as below: 

Activities Goals 

PPaarrttiicciippaattee  iinn  tthhee  CCrroopp  IInnssuurraannccee  SScchheemmee  

The Company participated in the Corps Insurance and the Maize 
Insurance Scheme to cover damage or loss to the insured crops which 
was caused by the perils specified in the policy such as floods, droughts 
and windstorms, etc. The persons who would insure the crops must be 
those who produced and owned such corps.  

The government designated crop insurance as one of the important 
measures used as a tool to assist farmers in organizing their financial 
system to cover production costs in the event of natural disasters, 
protection against reduced productivity and to protect the volatile price 
of produce, which would help building income stability and job security 
for farmers. 

   

   

 

PPaarrttiicciippaattee  iinn  ““NNeeww  YYeeaarr  IInnssuurraannccee  PPoolliiccyy::  TTrraavveell  iinn  TThhaaiillaanndd  SSaaffeellyy””  

The Company participated with the Office of Insurance Commission 
(OIC) in “New Year Insurance Policy: Travel in Thailand Safely” under 
the concept of “car ready, people ready, insurance ready”. This project 
offered an accident insurance policy in the road safety campaign project 
during 2023 New Year festival of with insurance premiums were low in 
order to approach more people and promote micro-insurance. 

 

     

 

  

OOffffeerr  llooww  pprreemmiiuummss  iinnssuurraannccee  ppoolliicciieess  ((mmiiccrroo  iinnssuurraannccee))  

The Company has developed low premiums insurance policies (micro 
insurances) in order that all groups of people are able to easily access 
insurance and manage their own risks. These micro insurances included 
mosquito insurance, which covers medical expenses for 6 serious 
diseases caused by mosquitoes and cancer insurance which has special 
conditions covering spouses and children. 
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Activities Goals 

SSuuppppoorrtt  pprrootteeccttiioonn  ooff  vvuullnneerraabbllee  iinnssuurreedd  ggrroouuppss  

The Company cooperated with Thai Walking and Running Club 
Confederation for Health and Thai Health Promotion Foundation in 
offering personal accident insurance policies to the elderly who were 
6 6 -8 5  years old, a vulnerable group participating in the marathon, to 
cover medical expenses. The Company also offered accident insurance 
policy for disabilities which was micro insurance and an accident 
insurance policy for vulnerable groups that provided protection against 
death due to accidents including being murdered, secretly assaulted 
and/or accidents while driving or riding a motorcycle, passenger 
motorcycle, compensatory consolation money due to accident and 
compensation for income while being treated as an inpatient in the 
hospital as well. 

 

    

             
 

  

PPrroommoottee  kknnoowwlleeddggee  ffoorr  iinnssuurraannccee  iinntteerrmmeeddiiaarriieess  aanndd  tthhee  ppuubblliicc  
rreeggaarrddiinngg  mmaarrkkeett  ccoonndduucctt  

The Company promoted knowledge for insurance intermediaries and 
the public concerning market conduct. The project aimed to provide 
knowledge and understanding about offering insurance policies, which 
was useful for reducing the compliance risk. Such knowledge was 
disseminated in the form of 12 video clips through both internal and 
external communication channels and outside the Company. 

 

 

 

CCoommmmuunniiccaattee  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  aanndd  kknnoowwlleeddggee  wwiitthh  ssoocciieettyy  

The Company communicated knowledge to the public through the 
Company's communication channels on various matters, including 
prevention of dengue fever, risk of cancer from the HPV virus, a healthy 
vegetarian diet, diseases caused by mosquito, the causes of car 
accidents, using a car in the rainy season and warning about fraud. 

 

   

  

VVaacccciinnaatteedd  aaggaaiinnsstt  44  ssttrraaiinnss  ooff  iinnfflluueennzzaa  

The Company provides 4 strains of influenza vaccination for employees 
every year to build immunity for employees and family members to 
reduce the severity of the disease and death rate. 
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Activities Goals 
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Activities Goals 

HHyybbrriidd  WWoorrkkiinngg  

After the outbreak of coronavirus disease 2019 has been resolved, the 
Company continues to conduct hybrid working project by allowing 
voluntary employees to work from home some days. This project lets 
the employees to reduce travel expenses and balance work and 
personal life, including the Company to continue business operation in 
case of emergency situations. 

 

     
 

BBlloooodd  DDoonnaattiioonn  PPrroojjeecctt  

The Company with the National Blood Center, Thai Red Cross Society, 
Sathorn Thani Complex and Poonpol Group Company Limited organized 
a blood donation event. This project has been ongoing since 2000 to 
deliver blood to help patients in various hospitals. In 2023, 156,000 cc 
of blood was donated from 390 donors. 

 

   

 

BBooddyy,,  OOrrggaann  aanndd  EEyyee  DDoonnaattiioonn  PPrroojjeecctt  

The Company invited employees and the public to donate their bodies, 
organs, and eyes to the Eye Center of The Thai Red Cross Society, 
Chulalongkorn Hospital, and Thai Red Cross Organ Donation Center. The 
objective of this project is for benefit research, medical treatment and 
to pass on to patients who needed new organs for returning to their 
family and having the opportunity to contribute to society.  

 

   

 

DDoonnaattiioonn  

The Company cooperated with the Camillian Home for Children Living 
with Disabilities in Lat Krabang to deliver dolls, clothing, and used items 
donated by employees to the children. The foundation plans to 
convert them to food expenses and healthcare with the goal of 
children’s better lives. 

 

   

CCaarr  ssccrraappss  ddoonnaattiioonn  

The Company donated two car scraps to the Automotive Engineering 
Department at the Aussumption Technical School Nakorn Phanom to be 
used in studying engine repair for the maximum educational benefits.  
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Activities Goals 

MMoonneeyy  ddoonnaattiioonn  

The Company donated money to various organizations for public 
benefit as follows: 

- The Company donated money to The Thai Red Cross in “Doing Good 
Deeds for Dad Project for the year 2024” to supporting the 
underprivileged and disabled. The project provided a mobile medical 
unit to diagnose and treat general illnesses to those who were in 
need.  

- The Company donated money to the Foundation for the Blind in 
Thailand for the purpose to produce braille books which serve as 
study guides for Thai Traditional Massage for the Blind and assist them 
in becoming ready to apply for a medical practitioner license. 

- The Company donated money to “The Dreams for Children Project 
No.19” to Sathorn Thani Management Service Co., Ltd. In order to give 
to Watrumphan School (Suksawatphichanrat). The funds was used to 
pay for school supplies, sports equipment, and scholarships for 
underprivileged children. 

- The Company donated money to the Pol. Gen. Pow Sarasin 
Foundation for the purpose of helping the officers who were injured 
or killed while enforcement of the prohibition of drugs as well as to 
support Ban Tawan Mai's children and youth. 

- The Company donated money to OPPY Company Limited with the 
intention of supporting the elderly community. This organization's 
main objective is to help the elderly resolve social issues and offers 
instruction and training to improve knowledge of social media and 
application. These are useful for the elderly to learn information, 
explore new knowledge and communication as well as improve their 
quality of life. 

- The Company donated money to The College of National Defense 
(NDC) to organize a charitable golf tournament with the intention of 
generating revenue to support and improve society in collaboration 
with the state agencies, state enterprises, and public organization to 
engage in charitable and public benefit activities. 
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Activities Goals 
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(NDC) to organize a charitable golf tournament with the intention of 
generating revenue to support and improve society in collaboration 
with the state agencies, state enterprises, and public organization to 
engage in charitable and public benefit activities. 

 

   

   

 

                                 

 

 
 

 

44..    MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  DDiissccuussssiioonn  aanndd  AAnnaallyyssiiss  
SSuummmmaarryy  ooff  ooppeerraattiinngg  ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee,,  ffiinnaanncciiaall  ppoossiittiioonn  aanndd  ccaasshh  ffllooww  ffoorr  33  yyeeaarrss    

 Unit: million Baht 

Operating performance 2023 2022 2021 

Gross premium written 3,823.85 3,666.68  3,372.95  
Net premium written 3,052.06 2,795.05  2,552.56  
Net earned premium 2,951.68 2,624.85  2,522.93  
Total underwriting income 3,163.90 2,845.61  2,756.72  
Underwriting expenses 2,706.07  2,524.91  2,356.96  
Profit from underwriting before operating expenses 457.83 320.70  399.76  
Operating expenses 384.73 353.44  353.29  
Profit (loss) from underwriting 73.10 (32.74)  46.47  
Total investments income and profit (loss) 76.35 79.28  87.43  

Share of profit (loss) from investment in associates 0.09 6.51  1.38  

Other income 13.31 4.40  3.66  
Other expenses and financial costs 1.60 5.64  2.31  
Expected credit loss 18.95 5.64 4.06 
Profit before income tax expenses 142.30 46.17  132.57  
Income tax expenses 22.27 21.33  23.22  
Profit for the year 120.03 24.84  109.35  
Total assets 6,169.72  6,280.63  6,278.91  
Total liabilities 3,964.53  4,095.60  4,030.62  
Equity 2,205.19 2,185.03  2,248.29  
Cash flows from operating activities (20.63)  209.70  115.18  
Cash flows from investing activities (34.21)  (151.06)  (9.91)  
Cash flows from financing activities (50.67)  (67.14)  (66.89)  
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FFiinnaanncciiaall  rraattiioo  

Financial ratio   2023 2022 2021 
Liquidity ratio         

Liquidity ratio Times 1.15 1.11  1.19  
Collection period for premium due and uncollected Day 54.92 52.50  53.75  

Profitability Ratio     
    Gross profit margin % 2.40 (1.17)  1.82  

Retention Rate % 79.82 76.23  75.68  
Loss ratio % 62.74 65.19  63.50  
Underwriting and operating expenses ratio %       34.79 36.06  34.66  
Return on investment % 2.11 2.34  2.59  
Net premium ratio Times        1.39  1.26  1.18  
Net profit margin %        3.69  0.85  3.84  
Return on equity %        5.47  1.12  5.04  

Efficiency Ratio     
  Return on assets % 1.93 0.40  1.77  
Assets turnovers Times 0.52 0.47  0.46  

Financial Position Ratio     
    Debt to equity ratio Times 1.80 1.87  1.79  

Policy liability to capital fund Times 1.42 1.40  1.26  
Unearned premium reserve to equity ratio Times 0.96 0.93  0.81  
Unearned reserve to assets ratio % 34.29 32.36  28.96  
Dividend payout ratio * % 54.57 185.17  57.16  
Car ratio** %    425.50 395.91 339.17  

*  Proposed to 2024 Shareholder’s Meeting of in April 2024 for approval. 
** 2023 data is unaudited.  
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FFiinnaanncciiaall  rraattiioo  

Financial ratio   2023 2022 2021 
Liquidity ratio         

Liquidity ratio Times 1.15 1.11  1.19  
Collection period for premium due and uncollected Day 54.92 52.50  53.75  

Profitability Ratio     
    Gross profit margin % 2.40 (1.17)  1.82  

Retention Rate % 79.82 76.23  75.68  
Loss ratio % 62.74 65.19  63.50  
Underwriting and operating expenses ratio %       34.79 36.06  34.66  
Return on investment % 2.11 2.34  2.59  
Net premium ratio Times        1.39  1.26  1.18  
Net profit margin %        3.69  0.85  3.84  
Return on equity %        5.47  1.12  5.04  

Efficiency Ratio     
  Return on assets % 1.93 0.40  1.77  
Assets turnovers Times 0.52 0.47  0.46  

Financial Position Ratio     
    Debt to equity ratio Times 1.80 1.87  1.79  

Policy liability to capital fund Times 1.42 1.40  1.26  
Unearned premium reserve to equity ratio Times 0.96 0.93  0.81  
Unearned reserve to assets ratio % 34.29 32.36  28.96  
Dividend payout ratio * % 54.57 185.17  57.16  
Car ratio** %    425.50 395.91 339.17  

*  Proposed to 2024 Shareholder’s Meeting of in April 2024 for approval. 
** 2023 data is unaudited.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

OOppeerraattiinngg  ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee  aannaallyyssiiss  

Summary of operating performance in 2023 compared to 2022, the Company’s profit for the year 
was 120.03 million Baht, increased by 95.19 million Baht or 383.21%. Profit from underwriting was 73.10 
million Baht. Profits from investments and other income were 69.20 million Baht. Income tax expenses 
were 22.27 million Baht. 

Underwriting performance for the year 2023, gross premium written was 3,823.85 million Baht, 
increased by 157.17 million Baht or 4.29%. Net premium written was 3,052.06 million Baht, increased by 
257.01 million Baht or 9.20%. Total underwriting income was 3,163.90 million Baht, increased by 11.19%. 
Total underwriting expenses were 2,706.07 million Baht, increased by 7.17%. Operating expenses were 
384.73 million Baht, increased by 8.85%. As a result, the Company’s profit from underwriting in 2023 was 
73.10 million Baht compared to the year 2022 that the Company’s loss from underwriting was 32.74 
million Baht.  

Operating performance from investments and other income in 2023, the Company’s income and 
profit ( loss) from investments were 76.35 million Baht, decreased by 2.93 million Baht or 3.70%. Other 
income was 13.31 million Baht, increased by 8.91 million Baht or 202.50%. Share of profit from 
investment in associates was 0.09 million Baht. Expected credit loss was 18.95 million Baht, an increase of 
13.31 million Baht or 235.99% from the expected credit loss of the claim receivable. 

Return on equity was 5.47% compared to the previous year, that was 1.12%. Profits per share was 
3.24 Baht compared to 2022 that was 0.67 Baht. 

OOppeerraattiinngg  rreessuullttss  ffrroomm  uunnddeerrwwrriittiinngg  

11..  FFiirree  iinnssuurraannccee  
Unit: million Baht  

Fire insurance 2023 2022 Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease) 

Gross premium written 756.37 707.37  49.00 6.93 
Net premium written 373.31 348.85  24.46 7.01 
Net earned premium 354.87 317.65  37.22 11.72 
Fee and commission income 100.01 104.63  (4.62) (4.42) 
Total underwriting income 454.88 422.28  32.60 7.72 
Net claims 117.11 93.61  23.50 25.10 
Fee and commission 156.92 149.58  7.34 4.91 
Other underwriting expenses 54.99 49.24  5.75 11.68 
Total underwriting expenses 329.02 292.43  36.59 12.51 
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Fire insurance 2023 2022 Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease) 

Profit (loss) from underwriting 125.86  129.85  (3.99) (3.07) 
Loss ratio (%) 33 29.47  3.53 11.98 

 Fire insurance gross premium written in 2023 was 756.37 million Baht, increased by 6.93%. Net 
premium written was 373.31 million Baht, increased by 7.01%. The growth in fire insurance premiums was 
in line with the increase in the value of home loans in the first half of the year. 

 Total underwriting income of fire insurance was 454.88 million Baht, increased by 32.60 million 
Baht or 7.72%.  Total underwriting expenses were 329.02 million Baht, increased by 12.51% from the 
previous year. Loss ratio was 33.00%, increased from 2022 that was 29.47%. Resulting profit ratio in profit 
from underwriting was 125.86 million Baht, decreased by 3.99 million Baht or 3.07% compared to 2022.  

22..  MMaarriinnee  aanndd  ttrraannssppoorrttaattiioonn  iinnssuurraannccee     
Unit: million Baht 

Marine and transportation insurance 2023 2022 Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease)  

Gross premium written 100.05 102.08  (2.03) (1.99) 
Net premium written 44.88 43.35  1.53 3.53 
Net earned premium 44.77 43.02  1.75 4.07 
Fee and commission income 13.95 14.75  (0.80) (5.42) 
Total underwriting income 58.72 57.77  0.95 1.64 
Net claims 7.09 15.32  (8.23) (53.72) 
Fee and commission 8.31 8.26  0.05 0.61 
Other underwriting expenses 6.27 4.47  1.80 40.27 
Total underwriting expenses 21.67 28.05  (6.38) (22.75) 
Profit (loss) from underwriting 37.05  29.72  7.33 24.66 
Loss ratio (%) 15.84  35.62  (19.78) (55.54) 

 Marine and transportation insurance gross premium written in 2023 was 1 0 0 .0 5  million Baht, 
decreased by 2.03%. Net premium written was 44.88 million Baht, increased by 3.53% compared to 2022. 

 Total underwriting income of marine and transportation insurance was 58.72 million Baht, increased 
by 0 .9 5  million Baht or 1.64%. Net claims were 7.09 million Baht, decreased by 8.23 million Baht or 
5 3 .7 2 %. Loss ratio of 2023 was 15.84% compared to 35.62% in 2022 due to a decrease of loss ratio.        
As a result, the profit of marine and transportation insurance increased by 7.33 million Baht or 24.66%.  
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Fire insurance 2023 2022 Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease) 

Profit (loss) from underwriting 125.86  129.85  (3.99) (3.07) 
Loss ratio (%) 33 29.47  3.53 11.98 

 Fire insurance gross premium written in 2023 was 756.37 million Baht, increased by 6.93%. Net 
premium written was 373.31 million Baht, increased by 7.01%. The growth in fire insurance premiums was 
in line with the increase in the value of home loans in the first half of the year. 

 Total underwriting income of fire insurance was 454.88 million Baht, increased by 32.60 million 
Baht or 7.72%.  Total underwriting expenses were 329.02 million Baht, increased by 12.51% from the 
previous year. Loss ratio was 33.00%, increased from 2022 that was 29.47%. Resulting profit ratio in profit 
from underwriting was 125.86 million Baht, decreased by 3.99 million Baht or 3.07% compared to 2022.  

22..  MMaarriinnee  aanndd  ttrraannssppoorrttaattiioonn  iinnssuurraannccee     
Unit: million Baht 

Marine and transportation insurance 2023 2022 Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease)  

Gross premium written 100.05 102.08  (2.03) (1.99) 
Net premium written 44.88 43.35  1.53 3.53 
Net earned premium 44.77 43.02  1.75 4.07 
Fee and commission income 13.95 14.75  (0.80) (5.42) 
Total underwriting income 58.72 57.77  0.95 1.64 
Net claims 7.09 15.32  (8.23) (53.72) 
Fee and commission 8.31 8.26  0.05 0.61 
Other underwriting expenses 6.27 4.47  1.80 40.27 
Total underwriting expenses 21.67 28.05  (6.38) (22.75) 
Profit (loss) from underwriting 37.05  29.72  7.33 24.66 
Loss ratio (%) 15.84  35.62  (19.78) (55.54) 

 Marine and transportation insurance gross premium written in 2023 was 1 0 0 .0 5  million Baht, 
decreased by 2.03%. Net premium written was 44.88 million Baht, increased by 3.53% compared to 2022. 

 Total underwriting income of marine and transportation insurance was 58.72 million Baht, increased 
by 0 .9 5  million Baht or 1.64%. Net claims were 7.09 million Baht, decreased by 8.23 million Baht or 
5 3 .7 2 %. Loss ratio of 2023 was 15.84% compared to 35.62% in 2022 due to a decrease of loss ratio.        
As a result, the profit of marine and transportation insurance increased by 7.33 million Baht or 24.66%.  

 
 

 

33..  MMoottoorr  IInnssuurraannccee     
Unit: million Baht 

Motor insurance 2023 2022 Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease)  

Gross premium written 2,492.58 2,243.80  248.78 11.09 
Net premium written 2,476.98 2,227.75  249.23 11.19 
Net earned premium 2,397.62 2,059.34  338.28 16.43 
Fee and commission income 5.12 3.83  1.29 33.68 
Total underwriting income 2,402.74 2,063.17  339.57 16.46 
Net claims 1,647.16 1,377.57  269.59 19.57 
Fee and commission 371.63 359.72  11.91 3.31 
Other underwriting expenses 164.13 147.77  16.36 11.07 
Total underwriting expenses 2,182.92 1,885.06  297.86 15.80 
Profit (loss) from underwriting 219.82  178.11  41.71 23.42 
Loss ratio (%) 68.70  66.89  1.81 2.71 

 Motor insurance gross premium written in 2023 was 2,492.58 million Baht, increased by 248.78 
million Baht or 11.09%. Net premium written was 2,476.98 million Baht, increased by 249.23 million Baht 
or 11.19% compared to 2022. The increase of premium was in line with the growth in the industrial sector 
where sales of electric vehicles increased. Moreover, the average premium per policy of voluntary motor 
insurance tended to increase. 

Total underwriting income of motor insurance was 2,402.74 million Baht, increased by 3 3 9 .5 7 
million Baht or 1 6 .4 6 %. Net claims were 1,647.16 million Baht, increased by 269.59 million Baht or 
19.57%. Loss ratio of 2023 was 68.70% compared to 2022 which was 66.89%. The increase in motor 
insurance premiums resulted in profit of 219.82 million Baht, an increase of 41.71 million Baht or 23.42% 
compared to 2022. 

44..  MMiisscceellllaanneeoouuss  iinnssuurraannccee  
Unit: million Baht  

Miscellaneous insurance 2023 2022 Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease)  

Gross premium written 474.85 613.43  (138.58) (22.59) 
Net premium written 156.89 175.11  (18.22) (10.40) 
Net earned premium 154.42 204.83  (50.41) (24.61) 
Fee and commission income 93.14 97.56  (4.42) (4.53) 
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Miscellaneous insurance 2023 2022 Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease)  

Total underwriting income 247.56 302.39 (54.83) (18.13) 
Net claims 80.43 224.62  (144.19) (64.19) 
Fee and commission 63.14 58.24  4.90 8.41 
Other underwriting expenses 28.89 36.51  (7.62) (20.87) 
Total underwriting expenses 172.46 319.37  (146.91) (46.00) 
Profit (loss) from underwriting 75.10  (16.98)  92.08 542.29 
Loss ratio (%) 52.09  109.66  (57.57) (52.50) 

 Miscellaneous insurance gross premium written in 2023 was 474.85 million Baht, decreased by 
138.58 million Baht or 22.59%. Net premium written was 156.89 million Baht, decreased by 18.22 million 
Baht or 10.40% compared to 2022. The decrease in miscellaneous insurance premiums came from 2023 
crop insurance project, which has not yet been approved by the Cabinet due to the government 
transition. As a result, the Company lost the rice insurance scheme premium. 

 Total underwriting income of miscellaneous insurance was 247.56 million Baht, decreased by 
18.13%. Net claims were 80.43 million Baht, decreased by 144.19 million Baht or 64.19%. Loss ratio was 
52.09%, decreased from 2022 which was 109.66%. As a result, profit from underwriting in 2023 was 75.10 
million Baht compared to 2022 which loss form underwriting was 16.98 million Baht.  

 Profit (loss) from underwriting of 2023 compared to 2022 had significant reasons as follows: 
 •  Profit from accident insurance was 20.80 million Baht, increased by 7.40 million Baht or 55.22%. 
 •  Profit from health insurance was 7.70 million Baht, increased by 107.82 million Baht compared to 
2022, which had a loss of 98.42 million Baht. It was mainly due to a decrease in claims from insurance 
against coronavirus 2019 that all insurance policies expired in July 2022. 
 •  Profit from agricultural insurance was 16.35 million Baht, decreased by 26.07 million Baht or 
61.46%, due to the lack of crop insurance project for 2023. 

IInnvveessttmmeenntt  ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee  
Unit: million Baht 

Investment performance 2023 2022 Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease)  

Investments income 99.77 80.72 19.05 23.60 
Profits from investments (14.51) 6.97 (21.48) (308.18) 
Profits (loss) from fair value adjustment (8.91) (8.41) (0.50) 5.95 
Total investments income 76.35 79.28 (2.93) (3.70) 
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Miscellaneous insurance 2023 2022 Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease)  

Total underwriting income 247.56 302.39 (54.83) (18.13) 
Net claims 80.43 224.62  (144.19) (64.19) 
Fee and commission 63.14 58.24  4.90 8.41 
Other underwriting expenses 28.89 36.51  (7.62) (20.87) 
Total underwriting expenses 172.46 319.37  (146.91) (46.00) 
Profit (loss) from underwriting 75.10  (16.98)  92.08 542.29 
Loss ratio (%) 52.09  109.66  (57.57) (52.50) 

 Miscellaneous insurance gross premium written in 2023 was 474.85 million Baht, decreased by 
138.58 million Baht or 22.59%. Net premium written was 156.89 million Baht, decreased by 18.22 million 
Baht or 10.40% compared to 2022. The decrease in miscellaneous insurance premiums came from 2023 
crop insurance project, which has not yet been approved by the Cabinet due to the government 
transition. As a result, the Company lost the rice insurance scheme premium. 

 Total underwriting income of miscellaneous insurance was 247.56 million Baht, decreased by 
18.13%. Net claims were 80.43 million Baht, decreased by 144.19 million Baht or 64.19%. Loss ratio was 
52.09%, decreased from 2022 which was 109.66%. As a result, profit from underwriting in 2023 was 75.10 
million Baht compared to 2022 which loss form underwriting was 16.98 million Baht.  

 Profit (loss) from underwriting of 2023 compared to 2022 had significant reasons as follows: 
 •  Profit from accident insurance was 20.80 million Baht, increased by 7.40 million Baht or 55.22%. 
 •  Profit from health insurance was 7.70 million Baht, increased by 107.82 million Baht compared to 
2022, which had a loss of 98.42 million Baht. It was mainly due to a decrease in claims from insurance 
against coronavirus 2019 that all insurance policies expired in July 2022. 
 •  Profit from agricultural insurance was 16.35 million Baht, decreased by 26.07 million Baht or 
61.46%, due to the lack of crop insurance project for 2023. 

IInnvveessttmmeenntt  ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee  
Unit: million Baht 

Investment performance 2023 2022 Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease)  

Investments income 99.77 80.72 19.05 23.60 
Profits from investments (14.51) 6.97 (21.48) (308.18) 
Profits (loss) from fair value adjustment (8.91) (8.41) (0.50) 5.95 
Total investments income 76.35 79.28 (2.93) (3.70) 

 
 

 

Investment performance 2023 2022 Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease)  

Share of profit (loss) from investments in 
associates 

0.09 6.51 (6.42) (98.62) 

Other income 13.31 4.40 8.91 202.50 
Return on investment 2.11 2.34 (0.44) (0.49) 

 In 2023, the Company’s total investments income was 76.35 million Baht, decreased by 2.93 
million Baht or 3.70% compared to the previous year. Return on investment was 2.11% compared to 
2022 that was 2.34%. Investments income consisted of the following factors: 

• Investments income was 99.77 million Baht, increased by 19.05 million Baht consisting of interest 
income from debt instruments amounting to 41.69 million Baht and dividend income from equity 
instruments amounting to 58.08 million Baht. 

• Loss from investments were 14.51 million Baht. 
• Loss from fair value adjustment for trading were 8.91 million Baht. 

 Share of profit ( loss)  from investments in associates was 0.09 million Baht, decreased by 6.42 
million Baht or 98.62%. Other income was 13.31 million Baht, increased by 8.91 million Baht or 202.50%. 

IInnccoommee  TTaaxx    

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were summarized as follow: 

Income tax Financial statements in which the equity method is applied 

2023 2022 
Accounting profit before tax  142.30 46.17 
Applicable tax rate 20% 20% 
Tax expenses at the applicable tax 
rate 

28.45 9.24 

Adjustment in respect of current 
income tax of previous year 

(2.19) 2.65 

Adjustment in deferred tax - 11.04 
Net tax effect on tax-exempted 
revenues and non-tax-deductible 
expenses – net  

(3.99) (1.60) 

Income tax expenses reported in 
statements of income 

22.27 21.33 
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 In 2023, accounting profit before tax of the Company was 142.30 million Baht. Income tax 
expenses reported in statements of income was 22.27 million Baht. The actual tax rate was 15.65%, 
which was lower than the legal applicable tax rate of 20% due to net tax impact adjustments on income 
or expenses that were not considered taxable income or expenses. It is in accordance with the revenue 
code. 

FFiinnaanncciiaall  ssttaatteemmeenntt  aannaallyyssiiss    

AAsssseettss  

 As of 31 December 2023, the Company’s total asset amounting to 6,169.72 million Baht, a 
decrease of 110.91 million Baht or 1.77% compared to the previous year. The significant changes were as 
follows: 

• Investment assets were 3,650.62 million Baht, increased by 229.93 million Baht or 6.72% from the 
previous year.  

• Outstanding premiums were 608.87 million Baht, increased by 51.06 million Baht or 9.15% from 
business value of direct premium written which increased by 4.57%. 

• Reinsurance assets were 580.25 million Baht, decreased by 83.21 million Baht or 12.54% that was 
from insurance reserve refundable from reinsurance. 

• Property, building, and equipment were 353.94 million Baht, increased by 16.38 million Baht or 
4.85%. In 2023, the Company renovated branch office buildings. 

• Deferred income tax assets were 270.68 million Baht, increased by 28.33 million Baht or 11.69% 
• Reinsurance receivable was 234.99 million Baht, decreased by 160.98 million Baht or 40.65% 

consisting of amounts deposit on reinsurance amounting to 0 .0 8  million Baht and amounts due from 
reinsurers amounting to 234.91 million Baht. 

• Cash and cash equivalents were 187.96 million Baht, decreased by 105.51 million Baht or 35.95%. 
The Company invested money in investment assets and renovated office buildings. 

LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  
 As of 31 December 2023, the Company total liabilities were 3,964.53 million Baht, decreased by 
131.07 million Baht or 3.20% from 2022. Major liabilities were as follows: 

• Insurance contract liabilities were 3,138.76 million Baht, increased by 80.20 million Baht or 2.62%  
loss reserve and outstanding claims and premium reserve as shown in the table. 

Unit: million Baht 
Insurance contract liabilities 2023 2022 Increased 

(Decreased)  
% Increased 
(Decreased)  

Loss reserve and outstanding claims         
      Claims incurred and reported 965.28  933.34  31.94  3.42  
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 In 2023, accounting profit before tax of the Company was 142.30 million Baht. Income tax 
expenses reported in statements of income was 22.27 million Baht. The actual tax rate was 15.65%, 
which was lower than the legal applicable tax rate of 20% due to net tax impact adjustments on income 
or expenses that were not considered taxable income or expenses. It is in accordance with the revenue 
code. 

FFiinnaanncciiaall  ssttaatteemmeenntt  aannaallyyssiiss    

AAsssseettss  

 As of 31 December 2023, the Company’s total asset amounting to 6,169.72 million Baht, a 
decrease of 110.91 million Baht or 1.77% compared to the previous year. The significant changes were as 
follows: 

• Investment assets were 3,650.62 million Baht, increased by 229.93 million Baht or 6.72% from the 
previous year.  

• Outstanding premiums were 608.87 million Baht, increased by 51.06 million Baht or 9.15% from 
business value of direct premium written which increased by 4.57%. 

• Reinsurance assets were 580.25 million Baht, decreased by 83.21 million Baht or 12.54% that was 
from insurance reserve refundable from reinsurance. 

• Property, building, and equipment were 353.94 million Baht, increased by 16.38 million Baht or 
4.85%. In 2023, the Company renovated branch office buildings. 

• Deferred income tax assets were 270.68 million Baht, increased by 28.33 million Baht or 11.69% 
• Reinsurance receivable was 234.99 million Baht, decreased by 160.98 million Baht or 40.65% 

consisting of amounts deposit on reinsurance amounting to 0 .0 8  million Baht and amounts due from 
reinsurers amounting to 234.91 million Baht. 

• Cash and cash equivalents were 187.96 million Baht, decreased by 105.51 million Baht or 35.95%. 
The Company invested money in investment assets and renovated office buildings. 

LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  
 As of 31 December 2023, the Company total liabilities were 3,964.53 million Baht, decreased by 
131.07 million Baht or 3.20% from 2022. Major liabilities were as follows: 

• Insurance contract liabilities were 3,138.76 million Baht, increased by 80.20 million Baht or 2.62%  
loss reserve and outstanding claims and premium reserve as shown in the table. 

Unit: million Baht 
Insurance contract liabilities 2023 2022 Increased 

(Decreased)  
% Increased 
(Decreased)  

Loss reserve and outstanding claims         
      Claims incurred and reported 965.28  933.34  31.94  3.42  

 
 

 

Insurance contract liabilities 2023 2022 Increased 
(Decreased)  

% Increased 
(Decreased)  

      Claims incurred but not yet reported 57.78  95.56  (37.78)  (39.54)  
Premium reserve          
      Unearned premium reserves 2,115.70  2,029.67  86.04  4.24  
Total  3,138.76  3,058.57  80.20 2.62  

•   Reinsurance receivables were 488.95 million Baht, decreased by 176.27 million Baht or 26.50%. 
It was due to a decrease of 103.48 million Baht in the amounts withheld on reinsurance and 72.79 million 
Baht of the amounts due to reinsurers.  

•   Other liabilities were 221.63 million Baht, decreased by 27.52 million Baht or 11.05% as shown 
in the table. 

Unit: million Baht 
Other liabilities 2023 2022 Increased 

(Decreased)  
% Increased 
(Decreased) 

  Accrued fee and commission 93.77  101.88  (8.11)  (7.96) 
  Accrued expenses 68.33  64.99  3.34  5.14 
 Other         
       Accrued taxes 29.55 43.74 (14.19) (32.44) 
       Advance received insurance premiums  2.60 7.41 (4.81) (64.91) 
       Deposits and guarantees 1.12 0.51 0.61 119.61 
       Other creditors 26.26 30.62 (4.36) (14.24) 
   Total 221.63 249.15  (27.52) (11.05) 

Accrued fee and commission was 93.77 million Baht, decreased by 8.11 million Baht or 7.96%. It 
was accrued expenses payable to agents and brokers. 

Accrued expenses were 68.33 million Baht, increased by 3.34 million Baht or 5.14%. 

Accrued taxes were 29.55 million Baht, decreased by 14.19 million Baht or 32.44%. 

EEqquuiittyy  
As of 31 December 2023, the Company total equity was 2,205.19 million Baht, increased by 20.16 

million Baht or 0.92% from 2022. Major equity was as follows:  
• Registered, issued and paid up capital was 370 million Baht, increased by 10 million Baht from 

2022 due to share dividends payment and premium on share amounting to 647.29 million Baht. 
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• Appropriated retained earnings were 57.00 million Baht, increased by 1.00 million Baht due to the 
statutory appropriation from an increase in registered and paid-up capital. Appropriated retained earnings 
consisted of a legal reserve of 37.00 million Baht and a general reserve of 20 million Baht. 

• Unappropriated retained earnings were 1,148.36 million Baht, increased by 72.56 million Baht or 
6.74%.  

• Other components of equity was -17.46 million Baht. It consisted of exchange differences on 
translation of financial statements in foreign currency and surplus ( deficit)  on changes in value of 
investments in securities as shown in the table.    

Unit: million Baht 
Other components of equity 2023 2022 Increase 

(Decrease) 
% Increase 
(Decrease) 

Exchange differences on translation of 
financial statements in foreign currency  (18.94) (15.58)  (3.36) 21.55 

Surplus (deficit) on changes in value of 
investments in securities 1.48 61.52  (60.05) (97.59) 

Total (17.46) 45.94  (63.40) (138.00) 

AAsssseettss  qquuaalliittyy  

PPrreemmiiuumm  rreecceeiivvaabblleess  
 As of 31 December 2023, the Company total premium receivables were 608.87 million Baht, 
increased by  51.06 million Baht or 9.15% from 2022 which divided by time as follows:      

Unit: million Baht 
Aging from the maturity 
date 

2023 % 2022 % Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease)  

Not yet due 480.72 78.83  486.07 86.88 (5.35) (1.10) 

Not over 30 days 68.11 11.17  54.30 9.71 13.81 25.43 

Over 31 days to 60 days 33.18 5.44  10.58 1.89 22.60 213.61 

Over 61 days to 90 days 10.74 1.76  2.34 0.42 8.40 358.97 

Over 90 days to 1 year 16.13 2.65  5.71 1.02 10.42 182.49 

Over 1 year 0.91 0.15  0.44 0.08 0.47 106.82 

Total premium receivables 609.79 100.00 559.44 100.00 50.35 9.00 
Less: Allowance for 
doubtful accounts 

(0.92) 
 

(1.63) 
 

0.71 (43.56) 

Total premium receivables-
net 

608.87   557.81   51.06 9.15 
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• Appropriated retained earnings were 57.00 million Baht, increased by 1.00 million Baht due to the 
statutory appropriation from an increase in registered and paid-up capital. Appropriated retained earnings 
consisted of a legal reserve of 37.00 million Baht and a general reserve of 20 million Baht. 

• Unappropriated retained earnings were 1,148.36 million Baht, increased by 72.56 million Baht or 
6.74%.  

• Other components of equity was -17.46 million Baht. It consisted of exchange differences on 
translation of financial statements in foreign currency and surplus ( deficit)  on changes in value of 
investments in securities as shown in the table.    
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financial statements in foreign currency  (18.94) (15.58)  (3.36) 21.55 

Surplus (deficit) on changes in value of 
investments in securities 1.48 61.52  (60.05) (97.59) 
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 As of 31 December 2023, the Company total premium receivables were 608.87 million Baht, 
increased by  51.06 million Baht or 9.15% from 2022 which divided by time as follows:      

Unit: million Baht 
Aging from the maturity 
date 

2023 % 2022 % Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
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Not yet due 480.72 78.83  486.07 86.88 (5.35) (1.10) 

Not over 30 days 68.11 11.17  54.30 9.71 13.81 25.43 

Over 31 days to 60 days 33.18 5.44  10.58 1.89 22.60 213.61 

Over 61 days to 90 days 10.74 1.76  2.34 0.42 8.40 358.97 

Over 90 days to 1 year 16.13 2.65  5.71 1.02 10.42 182.49 

Over 1 year 0.91 0.15  0.44 0.08 0.47 106.82 

Total premium receivables 609.79 100.00 559.44 100.00 50.35 9.00 
Less: Allowance for 
doubtful accounts 

(0.92) 
 

(1.63) 
 

0.71 (43.56) 

Total premium receivables-
net 

608.87   557.81   51.06 9.15 

 
 

 

Premium receivables divided by time were a not yet due premiums of 480.72 million Baht or 
78.83% and not over 3 0  days in the amount of 68.11 million Baht or 11.17%. Comparison of the year 
2022, premium receivables that were not yet due decreased by 5.35 million Baht or 1.10%, and premium 
receivables that were not over 30 days increased by 13.81 million Baht or 25.43%. Allowance for doubtful 
accounts was 0.92 million Baht, decreased by 0.71 million Baht or 43.56%. During the year, the Company 
cut off bad debts of 0.51 million Baht. The consideration of the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful 
accounts was conducted regularly and the amount was sufficient to cover the risk of loss from inability to 
collect.  

PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  bbuuiillddiinngg  aanndd  eeqquuiippmmeenntt  
Unit: million Baht 

Property, building and 
equipment 

2023 % 2022 % Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease) 

Property 5.39 1.52 5.39 1.60 0.00 0.00 
Building 10.79 3.05 11.49 3.40 (0.70) (6.09) 
Condominium units   242.06 68.39 248.41 73.58 (6.35) (2.56) 
Buildings improvement 64.58 18.25 58.82 17.43 5.76 9.79 
Office furniture, fixture 
and equipment   

23.19 6.55 7.89 2.34 15.30 193.92 

Motor vehicles 1.39 0.39 1.68 0.50 (0.29) (17.26) 
Assets under 
installment 

6.54 1.85 3.88 1.15 2.66 68.56 

Total  353.94 100.00 337.56 100.00 16.38 4.85 

 In 2023, the Company had a net book value of property, building and equipment totaling 353.94 
million Baht, an increase of 1 6 .3 8  million Baht or 4 .8 5 % from 2 0 2 2 . During the year, the Company 
invested more in building improvements, information technology systems and equipment to develop the 
work system to be more efficient. 

IInnvveessttmmeenntt  aasssseettss  aanndd  iinnvveessttmmeennttss  iinn  aassssoocciiaatteess   
Unit: million Baht  

Investment assets 
In which the equity method 
is applied 

2023 % 2022 % Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease) 

Trading investments which are 
measured at FVPL  

410.24 11.24  534.89 15.64 (124.65) (23.30) 

Available-for-sale investments 
which are measured at FVOCI   

2,689.03 73.66 2,355.15 68.85 333.88 14.18 
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Investment assets 
In which the equity method 
is applied 

2023 % 2022 % Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease) 

Held-to-maturity investments 
which are measured at 
amortized cost  

550.86 15.09 529.96 15.49 20.90 3.94 

Loans and interest receivables 0.49 0.01 0.69 0.02 (0.20) (28.67) 
Total investment assets   3,650.62 100.00 3,420.69 100.00 229.93 6.72 
Investments in associates  17.04   21.15       

Total investment assets were 3,650.62 million Baht, increased by 229.93 million Baht or 6.72% from 
the previous year. It consisted of investments in securities totaling 3 ,650.13 million Baht and loans and 
interest receivables totaling 0.49 million Baht. 

Investment in securities totaling 3,650.13 million Baht were as follows: 
1.  Trading investments which are measured at FVPL was 410.24 million Baht or 11.24% of total 

investment assets. 
2.  Available-for-sale investments which are measured at FVOCI was 2,689.03 million Baht or 

73.66% of total investment assets.                  
3.  Held-to-maturity investments which are measured at amortized cost was 550.86 million Baht or 

15.09% of total investment assets. 
Investments in securities classified by type as follows: 

Unit: million Baht 
Investments in securities 2023 % 2022 % Increase 

(Decrease) 
% Increase 
(Decrease) 

Government and state 
enterprise securities 

1,168.62  32.02  783.27  22.90  385.35  49.20  

Private sector debt instruments 864.45  23.68  766.91  22.42  97.54  12.72  
Equity instruments 672.36  18.42  759.74  22.21  (87.38)  (11.50)  
Non-listed equity instruments  184.08  5.04  273.41  7.99  (89.33)  (32.67) 
Foreign equities 41.50  1.14  45.79  1.34  (4.29)  (9.37) 
investment unit 188.26  5.16  290.92  8.52  (102.66)  (35.29)  
Deposits and certificates of 
deposit from financial 
institutions with maturities of 
more than 3 months 

530.86 14.54 499.96 14.62 30.90 6.18 

Total 3,650.13  100.00  3,420.00  100.00  230.13  6.73  
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Investment assets 
In which the equity method 
is applied 

2023 % 2022 % Increase 
(Decrease) 

% Increase 
(Decrease) 
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Total investment assets   3,650.62 100.00 3,420.69 100.00 229.93 6.72 
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the previous year. It consisted of investments in securities totaling 3 ,650.13 million Baht and loans and 
interest receivables totaling 0.49 million Baht. 
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1.  Trading investments which are measured at FVPL was 410.24 million Baht or 11.24% of total 

investment assets. 
2.  Available-for-sale investments which are measured at FVOCI was 2,689.03 million Baht or 

73.66% of total investment assets.                  
3.  Held-to-maturity investments which are measured at amortized cost was 550.86 million Baht or 

15.09% of total investment assets. 
Investments in securities classified by type as follows: 

Unit: million Baht 
Investments in securities 2023 % 2022 % Increase 

(Decrease) 
% Increase 
(Decrease) 

Government and state 
enterprise securities 

1,168.62  32.02  783.27  22.90  385.35  49.20  

Private sector debt instruments 864.45  23.68  766.91  22.42  97.54  12.72  
Equity instruments 672.36  18.42  759.74  22.21  (87.38)  (11.50)  
Non-listed equity instruments  184.08  5.04  273.41  7.99  (89.33)  (32.67) 
Foreign equities 41.50  1.14  45.79  1.34  (4.29)  (9.37) 
investment unit 188.26  5.16  290.92  8.52  (102.66)  (35.29)  
Deposits and certificates of 
deposit from financial 
institutions with maturities of 
more than 3 months 

530.86 14.54 499.96 14.62 30.90 6.18 

Total 3,650.13  100.00  3,420.00  100.00  230.13  6.73  

  

 
 

 

IInnvveessttmmeennttss  iinn  aassssoocciiaatteess 
Unit: million Baht 

Associates Nature of 
business 

Shareholding 
percentage 

Book value 

    2023 2022 2023 2022 
TKI General Insurance Company 
Limited 

Non-life insurance 32.50 32.50 8.82 11.03 

TKI Life Insurance Company Limited Life insurance 32.50 32.50 8.22 10.12 
Total       17.04 21.15 

Investments in associates of the Company were invested in TKI General Insurance Company 
Limited and TKI Life Insurance Company Limited that registered and located at the Lao People's 
Democratic Republic on 27 December 2016 to operate non-life and life insurance business. The 
investment was between insurance Companies, life insurance Companies in Thailand and local business 
group. The Company's shareholding percentage was 32.5%, the initial investment amount as of 31 
December 2023 was 43.26 million Baht. The book value of interests in TKI General Insurance Company 
Limited was 8.82 million Baht, TKI Life Insurance Company Limited was 8.22 million Baht. The operating 
performance of 2023 was 0.09 million Baht compared to 6.51 million Baht of the previous year. However, 
there was a loss from exchange rate totaling 4.20 million Baht in 2023 and 9.23 million Baht in 2022 that 
recognized and shown in the comprehensive income statement. 

LLiiqquuiiddiittyy  

CCaasshh  ffllooww  
Unit: million Baht  

Item 2023 2022 
Net cash provided from operating activities   (20.63) 209.70  
Net cash used in investing activities   (34.21) (151.06)  
Net cash used in financing activities   (50.67) (67.14)  
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (105.51) (8.50)  
Liquidity ratio 1.15 1.11  

 During the year 2023, cash and cash equivalents of the Company decreased by 105.51 million Baht. 
Liquidity ratio was increased to 1.15 from 2022 that was 1.11. Cash flows were generated from the 
following activities: 

• Net cash provided from operating activities were  20.63 million Baht. It consisted of cash inflows 
from direct insurance premiums, interest income, dividend income and other income, cash outflows 
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related to reinsurance, claims, fee and commission, other insurance expenses, operating expenses, 
income tax expenses and additional investment in financial assets. 

•  Net cash used in investing activities were 34.21 million Baht. In 2023, the Company invested in 
renovating the condominiums purchased in 2022 and branch office. The Company also invested in 
information technology systems and equipment to develop the work system to be more efficient in 
service. 

•  Net cash used in financing activities were 50.67 million Baht that was an annual dividend 
payment to shareholders of 36.00 million Baht and payment of lease liabilities of 14.67 million Baht.  

SSoouurrccee  ooff  ffuunndd    
As at 31 December 2023, the Company total liabilities were 3,964.53 million Baht, total equity was 

2,205.19 million Baht which was equivalent to 1.80 of debt to equity ratio, close to 2022 that was 1.87. 
Most funds used in business operations came from equity and business operation. The major liabilities of 
the Company came from insurance contract which consisted of loss reserves, outstanding claim and 
unearned premium reserves amounting to 3,138.76 million Baht and due to reinsurers of 488.95 million 
Baht which occurred from the insurance business operation. The Company manages capital in order to 
maintain the ability to operate continuously and maintains risk-based capital in accordance with the 
requirements of the Office of Insurance Commission. In 2023, the total capital required under the law was 
519.99 million Baht while the total capital available was 2,212.58 million Baht, a capital adequacy ratio 
was 425.50%, higher than the rate prescribed by law at least 140%. 

CCoommmmiittmmeennttss  aanndd  lliiaabbiilliittiieess  aanndd  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  ooff  ooffff--bbaallaannccee  sshheeeett  ttrraannssaaccttiioonnss  

As of 31 December 2023, the Company had an outstanding balance of lawsuits in the amount of 
55.4 million Baht. The case has not been finalized yet. However, the Company’s obligations in respect of 
these lawsuits do not exceed the maximum sum insured per the relevant policies, which was 34.90 
million Baht. Nonetheless, the Company has set aside reserve for contingent loss amounting to 34.9 
million Baht, and there were bank guarantees amounting to 2.20 million Baht; with a certificate issued in 
the Company’s name amounting to 9.50 million Baht, as required in the normal course of the Company’s 
business. 

FFaaccttoorrss  oorr  eevveennttss  ssiiggnniiffiiccaannttllyy  aaffffeeccttiinngg  ffuuttuurree  rreessuullttss  ooff  ooppeerraattiioonnss  oorr  ffiinnaanncciiaall  ssttaattuuss  

 The economic slowdown, high household and business debt, high volatility of the global economic 
and financial system, changes in consumer behavior and the risk of drought problems on agricultural 
products, all have an impact on the operations of the insurance business as follows:     
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related to reinsurance, claims, fee and commission, other insurance expenses, operating expenses, 
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business. 

FFaaccttoorrss  oorr  eevveennttss  ssiiggnniiffiiccaannttllyy  aaffffeeccttiinngg  ffuuttuurree  rreessuullttss  ooff  ooppeerraattiioonnss  oorr  ffiinnaanncciiaall  ssttaattuuss  

 The economic slowdown, high household and business debt, high volatility of the global economic 
and financial system, changes in consumer behavior and the risk of drought problems on agricultural 
products, all have an impact on the operations of the insurance business as follows:     

 

 

 
 

 

EEccoonnoommiicc  ffaaccttoorr  

The world economic slowdown from the increase in interest rates policy to reduce pressure from 
inflation and the prolongation of international conflict affects the domestic economy and the purchasing 
power of consumers. People may consider purchasing on necessity rather than insurance. The Company 
therefore has to offer products that are suitable and worthy to attract consumers. 

TTeecchhnnoollooggyy  ffaaccttoorr  

Business operating has changed according to the new environment with increased use of 
technology. As a result, the Company must change to a digital insurer by developing channels, formats, 
methods, and products that are easily accessible, using various applications to analyze and plan coverage 
to suit the insured. In addition, the Company must increase its competitive potential in terms of product 
development, service, and cost management. 

SSoocciiaall  ffaaccttoorr  

Aging society has a positive impact on the Company as consumers are more interested in health 
insurance. However, the higher cost of medical expenses which causes higher claims has a negative 
impact on the Company. 

EEnnvviirroonnmmeennttaall  ffaaccttoorr  

The global warming which has currently resulted in extremely unstable climate conditions is 
predicted to affect continuously in the future. As a result, natural disasters and catastrophes cause more 
severe damage and will affect the Company's claims. The Company must underwrite carefully. 

LLeeggaall  ffaaccttoorr  

Newly effective laws and regulations cause the Company to increase work procedures and 
related costs. In addition, Financial Reporting Standard No. 17 (IFRS 17) that will be effect in 2025 will 
affect assets and liabilities measure, including the recognition of accounting income of non-life insurance 
companies. Therefore, the Company must adjust our recognition and accounting records in order to 
prepare financial reports according to the standards..  
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55..    TThhee  CCoommppaannyy’’ss  ggeenneerraall  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  

55..11    GGeenneerraall  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  

RReeffeerreennccee  

Securities Registrar       Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. 
                                            93 Ratchadsaphisek Road, 
 Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400  
 Telephone (66) 2009 9000  
 Fax (66) 2009 9991 

External Auditor           Miss Narissara Chaisuwan 
 C.P.A. Registration No. 4812   
 EY Office Limited 
                                         33rd Floor, Lake Rajada Office Complex, 
 193/136-137 Rajadapisek Road, Bangkok 10110 
 Telephone (66) 2264 0777   
 Fax (66) 2264 0789-90 

55..22    OOtthheerr  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  
None 

55..33    LLeeggaall  ddiissppuuttee  
The Company did not have any legal dispute or was in the process of any lawsuit that might affect 

its assets or operations significantly; negatively affected the Company’s assets at a value higher than 5% 
of shareholders’ equity as at 31 December 2023. 

55..44    OOtthheerr  ssttoocckk  eexxcchhaannggee  
None 
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55..    TThhee  CCoommppaannyy’’ss  ggeenneerraall  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  

55..11    GGeenneerraall  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  

RReeffeerreennccee  

Securities Registrar       Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. 
                                            93 Ratchadsaphisek Road, 
 Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400  
 Telephone (66) 2009 9000  
 Fax (66) 2009 9991 
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                                         33rd Floor, Lake Rajada Office Complex, 
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55..22    OOtthheerr  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  
None 

55..33    LLeeggaall  ddiissppuuttee  
The Company did not have any legal dispute or was in the process of any lawsuit that might affect 
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55..44    OOtthheerr  ssttoocckk  eexxcchhaannggee  
None 
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66..    TThhee  CCoorrppoorraattee  GGoovveerrnnaannccee  PPoolliiccyy  

66..11    OOvveerrvviieeww  ooff  tthhee  CCoorrppoorraattee  GGoovveerrnnaannccee  PPoolliiccyy  aanndd  pprraaccttiicceess  

With the intention to supervise the business with transparency and fairness, the Board of Directors 
commits to developing corporate governance of the Company by reviewing and improving the Corporate 
Governance Policy ( “ the Policy” )  annually; to be in line with the changing situation and business 
operations. The Policy has been established based on the Organization for Economic Co-Operation and 
Development (OECD) and the Notification of the Office of Insurance Commission, Re: Good Corporate 
Governance of Non-Life Insurance Companies, B.E. 2562 (2019). The Policy was divided into 5 categories: 
1) Rights of Shareholders 2) Equitable Treatment of Shareholders 3) Roles of Stakeholders 4) Disclosure 
and Transparency 5) Responsibilities of the Board of Directors. 

The Company publishes the Corporate Governance Policy on the Company's website.                
The Company also encourages directors, executives and employees to understand and recognize the 
importance of following the policy. All personnels sign to acknowledge the policy. 

In this regard, the overview of the Company's corporate governance could be classified according 
to the principles of Good Corporate Governance for listed companies 2017 (Corporate Governance Code 
for listed companies 2017) of the Securities and Exchange Commission as follows: 

CCooddee  11::  EEssttaabblliisshh  cclleeaarr  lleeaaddeerrsshhiipp  rroollee  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  

The Board of Directors, as representatives of shareholders, plays an important role in supervising 
the business operation by determining the policies and business directions as well as performing duties 
with caution, honesty, and responsibility in order to build confidence for shareholders, investors, 
stakeholders and create sustainable value for the organization. 

The Board of Directors is independent from the management. The Company clearly defines the 
scope of duties, responsibilities and authorities of the Board of Directors separately from the 
management. For the highest benefit of the Company, the Board of Directors has the authority to make 
decisions and supervise the Company's operations in accordance with the laws, objectives, regulations, 
and resolutions of the shareholders' meeting with honesty and caution. The Board examines and 
approves the vision, mission, strategy, direction, business goals, the Company’s policies, sustainable 
development framework, corporate governance framework, code of conduct, business ethics, the 
organizational structure, which separates the duties of supervision and management appropriately. In 
addition, the Board is also responsible for overseeing the Company's risk management system, internal 
control system, compliance, reliable accounting and financial reporting system. The Board of Directors 
also appoints subcommittees and a company secretary to support the work of the Board of Directors as 
well as supervises the management to operate in accordance with the stipulated goal. 
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66..    TThhee  CCoorrppoorraattee  GGoovveerrnnaannccee  PPoolliiccyy  

66..11    OOvveerrvviieeww  ooff  tthhee  CCoorrppoorraattee  GGoovveerrnnaannccee  PPoolliiccyy  aanndd  pprraaccttiicceess  

With the intention to supervise the business with transparency and fairness, the Board of Directors 
commits to developing corporate governance of the Company by reviewing and improving the Corporate 
Governance Policy ( “ the Policy” )  annually; to be in line with the changing situation and business 
operations. The Policy has been established based on the Organization for Economic Co-Operation and 
Development (OECD) and the Notification of the Office of Insurance Commission, Re: Good Corporate 
Governance of Non-Life Insurance Companies, B.E. 2562 (2019). The Policy was divided into 5 categories: 
1) Rights of Shareholders 2) Equitable Treatment of Shareholders 3) Roles of Stakeholders 4) Disclosure 
and Transparency 5) Responsibilities of the Board of Directors. 

The Company publishes the Corporate Governance Policy on the Company's website.                
The Company also encourages directors, executives and employees to understand and recognize the 
importance of following the policy. All personnels sign to acknowledge the policy. 

In this regard, the overview of the Company's corporate governance could be classified according 
to the principles of Good Corporate Governance for listed companies 2017 (Corporate Governance Code 
for listed companies 2017) of the Securities and Exchange Commission as follows: 

CCooddee  11::  EEssttaabblliisshh  cclleeaarr  lleeaaddeerrsshhiipp  rroollee  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  

The Board of Directors, as representatives of shareholders, plays an important role in supervising 
the business operation by determining the policies and business directions as well as performing duties 
with caution, honesty, and responsibility in order to build confidence for shareholders, investors, 
stakeholders and create sustainable value for the organization. 

The Board of Directors is independent from the management. The Company clearly defines the 
scope of duties, responsibilities and authorities of the Board of Directors separately from the 
management. For the highest benefit of the Company, the Board of Directors has the authority to make 
decisions and supervise the Company's operations in accordance with the laws, objectives, regulations, 
and resolutions of the shareholders' meeting with honesty and caution. The Board examines and 
approves the vision, mission, strategy, direction, business goals, the Company’s policies, sustainable 
development framework, corporate governance framework, code of conduct, business ethics, the 
organizational structure, which separates the duties of supervision and management appropriately. In 
addition, the Board is also responsible for overseeing the Company's risk management system, internal 
control system, compliance, reliable accounting and financial reporting system. The Board of Directors 
also appoints subcommittees and a company secretary to support the work of the Board of Directors as 
well as supervises the management to operate in accordance with the stipulated goal. 

The management is responsible for preparing policies, business strategy, goals, plans and annual 
budget, and carries out various actions in accordance with the policies and guidelines approved by the 
Board of Directors. 

BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  mmeeeettiinngg  

The Board of Directors requires at least 7  meetings per year, one of which is a meeting of non-
executive directors. The Office of Company Secretary is responsible for scheduling the meeting in advance 
throughout the year, preparing a meeting notice together with supporting documents that contain 
sufficient information for decision-making, and submit it to the directors for consideration at least 7 days 
before the meeting. The Company has set guidelines for organizing the meeting as follows: 

1. The meeting date is set in advance throughout the year, and there may be additional meetings 
on special agendas as necessary. However, in the month that the meeting is not held, the Company shall 
send a report on the operating results to all directors for acknowledgment. 

2. There is a clear agenda for each meeting; the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an 
independent director shall jointly consider and determine the meeting agendas. Directors and executives 
are able to propose the meeting agenda too. 

3.  Chairman or assigned director shall summon the Board of Directors' meeting 
4. The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing the meeting notice with complete and 

adequate meeting documents and deliver to the directors at least 7 days prior to the meeting date 
except in urgent cases 

5. The Board of Directors can access additional necessary information from the Chief Executive 
Officer, director, Company Secretary or other executives. 

6.  At the meeting of the Board of Directors, the presence of not less than half of the total number 
of directors, whether joining a physical meeting or through electronic media, is required for a quorum. 

7.  In the event that the Chairman is unable to perform his duties, other directors who attend the 
meeting shall elect one of the directors to preside over the meeting. 

8.  Each meeting takes approximately 2 hours and all directors can discuss and express their 
opinions openly. The Chairman shall collect opinions and conclusions from the meeting. 

9.  Voting is concluded by a majority of votes. At least two-thirds of the total number of directors 
must be present at the meeting. In the case that the directors object to the resolution, the Company 
Secretary shall record the objections in the meeting minutes. 

10. Director who has significant interests in any matter is not eligible to vote on that matter. 
11. The Board of Directors encourages executives who will be successors to meet or present a 

report to the Board of Directors in order to get to know and give recommendations for effective 
management. 

12. The Company Secretary prepares the minutes of the meeting and proposes to the Chairman of 
the Board for consideration before proposing to the Board of Directors' meeting for approval in the next 
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meeting. The minutes of the meeting that have been approved by the meeting and signed by the 
Chairman of the Board shall be kept systematically as confidential documents of the Office of the 
Company Secretary and stored in the form of electronic documents for easily searching and auditing. 

In 2 0 2 3 , the non-executive directors conducted a meeting among themselves once on 12 
December 2023 to consider the employment contract of CEO and President, the business direction, the 
management and the direction of the organization. 

CCooddee  22::  DDeeffiinnee  oobbjjeeccttiivveess  tthhaatt  pprroommoottee  ssuussttaaiinnaabbllee  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  

The Board of Directors considers, determines, and reviews the main objectives and goals annually 
to be in line with the changing business factors. The main goal of the Company is to conduct business 
with honesty and fairness, consider the benefits of stakeholders and society, apply technology to improve 
and develop work processes and services as well as invent a wide variety of quality products to respond 
to the customers’ needs and expand the network of standard business partners and strengthen 
personnel to have excellent service skills. 

The Board of Directors considers the annual business strategy and the three-year business plan to 
ensure that the strategy will lead the Company to achieve objectives and goals and to deliver coverage 
that responds to every change for every quality of life. 

CCooddee  33::  SSttrreennggtthheenn  bbooaarrdd  eeffffeeccttiivveenneessss  

CCoommppoossiittiioonn  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

The Board of Directors, appointed by the shareholders, consists of directors who have qualifications 
as required by relevant laws without prohibited characteristics. They must have knowledge, abilities, 
experience and skills in a variety of fields that are beneficial to the business operation. At least one 
director has knowledge or experience in insurance. At least one director has knowledge or experience in 
accounting and finance and at least one director has knowledge or experience in information technology. 
The Board of Directors consists of at least one-third of independent directors but not less than 3 
directors. The number of executive directors shall be not more than one-third of the total number of 
directors in order to balance the non-executive directors and the executive directors. The Board of 
Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's operations in accordance with the law, objectives 
and regulations, appointing subcommittees to consider and scrutinizing various matters, appointing senior 
management and Company Secretary. The Board of Directors decides on various matters independently 
from the management to check and balance the work of the management. 

SSuubbccoommmmiitttteeeess  

The Board of Directors has appointed 5 subcommittees, namely, 1 )  Audit Committee 2 ) 
Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee 3) Risk Management Committee 4) 
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experience and skills in a variety of fields that are beneficial to the business operation. At least one 
director has knowledge or experience in insurance. At least one director has knowledge or experience in 
accounting and finance and at least one director has knowledge or experience in information technology. 
The Board of Directors consists of at least one-third of independent directors but not less than 3 
directors. The number of executive directors shall be not more than one-third of the total number of 
directors in order to balance the non-executive directors and the executive directors. The Board of 
Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's operations in accordance with the law, objectives 
and regulations, appointing subcommittees to consider and scrutinizing various matters, appointing senior 
management and Company Secretary. The Board of Directors decides on various matters independently 
from the management to check and balance the work of the management. 

SSuubbccoommmmiitttteeeess  

The Board of Directors has appointed 5 subcommittees, namely, 1 )  Audit Committee 2 ) 
Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee 3) Risk Management Committee 4) 

Investment Committee and 5) Executive Committee; in order to screen and supervise tasks that require 
specific expertise and regular report pertaining the performance to the Board of Directors. The            
subcommittees perform their duties as assigned by the Board of Directors. They have the authority to 
invite the management to attend the meeting to clarify or prepare a report in order to provide advice on 
the actions that have been assigned as it deems appropriate. The Board of Directors specifies charters for 
each subcommittee which stipulates the composition, qualifications, tenure of office and clearly written 
authorities and responsibilities. 

TTeerrmm  ooff  ddiirreeccttoorrsshhiipp  

Directors shall have a term of 3  years and any director vacating the office on due term may be    
re-elected. An independent director shall serve on the directorship for a maximum of 3 consecutive 
terms, or no longer than 9 years. However, for the benefit of the Company, the Board may consider to 
extend the independent director’s term and proposes the reasons the shareholders’ meeting for 
approval. 

TTeerrmm  ooff  ooffffiiccee  ooff  ssuubbccoommmmiitttteeeess  

1. The Audit Committee holds the office for a term of 3  years for a maximum of 3 consecutive 
terms or 9 years unless the Board of Directors has an opinion otherwise. 

2. The Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee holds the office for a 
term of 3  years for a maximum of 3 consecutive terms or 9 years unless the Board of Directors has an 
opinion otherwise. 

3. The Risk Management Committee holds office for a term of 3 years. 

4. The Investment Committee holds the office for a term of 3  years for a maximum of 3 
consecutive terms or 9 years unless the Board of Directors has an opinion otherwise. 

5. The Executive Committee: the term of office shall be effective until the end of the position of 
the executive. 

NNoommiinnaattiioonn  ooff  ddiirreeccttoorrss    

The Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee ( “ the Committee” )         
is responsible for recruiting candidate from Directors' Pool of Thai Institute of Directors Association and the 
name list proposed by shareholders and the Board of Directors. The Committee shall consider a variety of 
qualifications, in terms of skills, experiences, and specific abilities that are beneficial to the Company by 
preparing a Board Skill Matrix. They shall have a good work history including dedicated time and effort to 
perform their duties, in order to strengthen the Company’s Board. After considering and scrutinizing their 
qualifications, the nominated persons shall be proposed to the Board of Directors and the shareholders' 
meeting for appointment as the Company’s directors. The resolution for appointing directors to replace 
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those who retired by rotation must be passed by shareholder’s meeting and get not less than one-half of 
the total number of votes of the shareholders attending the meeting and cast their votes. The 
shareholders shall cast all their vote to elect each director individually. The director who has interest 
shall abstain from voting and leave the meeting room during the consideration of this agenda. 

In case of proposing retired directors to be re-elected, the Company shall consider the directors’ 
performance evaluation to encourage the responsibility of the directors and to ensure that the 
nominated directors have all the qualifications according to the criteria set by the Company. The Board of 
Directors shall consider the nominated person before proposing to the shareholders' meeting for 
appointment. The Company provides the opportunity to shareholders to nominate a person to be 
elected as director prior to the date of the shareholders' meeting in accordance with the rules 
determined by the Company. 

The Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee is also assigned by the 
Board of Directors to be responsible for nominating a director to be proposed that the Board of Directors 
appoint as Chairman of the Board. 

RReemmuunneerraattiioonn  ffoorr  ddiirreeccttoorrss    

 The Company has a policy to pay remuneration to directors and subcommittees at an appropriate 
rate, and at a similar level to other companies in the same business. The remuneration is determined in 
line with the Company’s goals and operating results. It shall also be appropriate to the experiences and 
responsibilities of the directors in order to maintain directors who have qualifications that meet the needs 
of the Company. Directors who are assigned to perform additional duties in various subcommittees shall 
receive additional remuneration according to the specified rules. The Remuneration, Nomination and 
Sustainable Development Committee considers and proposes the structure and rate of remuneration for 
directors to the Board for consideration before proposing to the shareholders' meeting for approval. 
Currently, the Company's directors receive 2 types of remuneration which are director's bonus and 
meeting allowances for directors attending the meeting. The subcommittees receive only one form of 
remuneration, which is meeting allowance. 

DDiirreeccttoorrsshhiipp  iinn  lliisstteedd  ccoommppaanniieess  

The Board of Directors has established a policy for the Company's directors to be able to hold 
directorships in not more than 5  listed companies, provided that holding positions in other businesses 
must not hinder the performance of the Company's directors. If any director holds the position of director 
more than the above mentioned or to become a director in a business with the same nature and in 
competition with the Company's business, a written report must be submitted to the Chairman and/or 
the Board of Directors for acknowledgment within 1  month from the date of appointment in order that 
the Company informs the shareholders' meeting prior to the resolution of further appointment. 
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Board of Directors to be responsible for nominating a director to be proposed that the Board of Directors 
appoint as Chairman of the Board. 

RReemmuunneerraattiioonn  ffoorr  ddiirreeccttoorrss    

 The Company has a policy to pay remuneration to directors and subcommittees at an appropriate 
rate, and at a similar level to other companies in the same business. The remuneration is determined in 
line with the Company’s goals and operating results. It shall also be appropriate to the experiences and 
responsibilities of the directors in order to maintain directors who have qualifications that meet the needs 
of the Company. Directors who are assigned to perform additional duties in various subcommittees shall 
receive additional remuneration according to the specified rules. The Remuneration, Nomination and 
Sustainable Development Committee considers and proposes the structure and rate of remuneration for 
directors to the Board for consideration before proposing to the shareholders' meeting for approval. 
Currently, the Company's directors receive 2 types of remuneration which are director's bonus and 
meeting allowances for directors attending the meeting. The subcommittees receive only one form of 
remuneration, which is meeting allowance. 

DDiirreeccttoorrsshhiipp  iinn  lliisstteedd  ccoommppaanniieess  

The Board of Directors has established a policy for the Company's directors to be able to hold 
directorships in not more than 5  listed companies, provided that holding positions in other businesses 
must not hinder the performance of the Company's directors. If any director holds the position of director 
more than the above mentioned or to become a director in a business with the same nature and in 
competition with the Company's business, a written report must be submitted to the Chairman and/or 
the Board of Directors for acknowledgment within 1  month from the date of appointment in order that 
the Company informs the shareholders' meeting prior to the resolution of further appointment. 

The Chief Executive Officer and the President shall not hold directorship of more than 2 listed 
companies, subject to the Board of Directors’ approval. He must not hold directorship of the company 
that operates the same business or competes with the Company’s business unless approved by the 
Board of Directors. 

SSuuppeerrvviissiioonn  ooff  ssuubbssiiddiiaarriieess  aanndd//oorr  aassssoocciiaatteedd  ccoommppaanniieess 

The Board of Directors shall appoint a director in subsidiaries and/or associated companies, 
according to the proportion of shareholding and/or agreement between co-investors to control and 
supervise the management in accordance with the objectives. That director shall perform duties 
responsibly, carefully, and according to objectives, regulations, resolution of the Board meeting or 
shareholder meeting as well as related laws as well as control, supervise and report the operating 
performance to the Company. The director shall also notify the Company immediately when conducting 
any transactions that are subject to be disclosed to regulators. 

The Company requires subsidiaries and/or associates to disclose important information to          
the Company, such as operating performances, financial statements, and important operational issues. 
The Company supervises subsidiaries and/or associates to have an internal control system, internal audit, 
compliance and risk management appropriate to the size and complexity of the business. 

PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  eevvaalluuaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

The Board of Directors evaluates their performance as a whole board and individual annually. The 
objectives of the evaluation are to express their opinions on the overall performance of the Board of 
Director and to review the performance and obstacles in the past year. The Company Secretary prepares 
and reviews the assessment form, to be accurate, complete and in accordance with the good practice of 
the regulatory agencies. The assessment results are presented to the Board of Directors' meeting to 
consider the solutions for more efficient operation. 

The whole Board of Directors' self-assessment form is divided into 6  topics: 1 )  Structure and 
qualifications of the Board 2 )  Roles, duties, and responsibilities of the Board 3 )  Board meetings 4 ) 
Performance of directors 5) Relationships with the management and 6) Self-development of directors and 
executive development. The individual self-assessment form consists of 3  topics: 1 )  Directors' 
qualifications 2) Roles, duties, and responsibilities of Directors and 3) Board of Directors' meeting. 

The evaluation criteria are divided into 5 levels: 90-100 percent is classified as excellent, 80-89% is 
classified as very good, 70-79% is classified as good, 60-69% is classified as fair and 50-59% are required 
improvement. The results of the assessment concluded that the Board of Directors has performed its 
duties in accordance with the principles of good corporate governance and the Company's business 
ethics; with an average score of 97.90% for the whole board and an average score of 96.42% for the 
individual self-assessment. 
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The Board of Directors has assessed the performance of the sub committees, namely the Audit 
Committee and the Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee. The self-
assessment is for the whole committee on the yearly basis. The assessment is divided into 3 topics: 1) 
Structure and Qualifications of the Subcommittees 2) Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the 
Subcommittees and 3) Meetings of the Subcommittees. The evaluation criteria are divided into 5 levels, 
i.e., 90-100% is classified as excellent, 80-89% is classified as very good, 70-79% is classified as good, 60-
69% is classified as Fair criteria, 50-59% means requiring improvement. The assessment results of the 
Audit Committee and the Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee is in 
excellent level with average scores of 99.68% and 98.25%, respectively. 

DDeevveellooppmmeenntt  ooff  ddiirreeccttoorrss  aanndd  eexxeeccuuttiivveess  

The Company provides orientation for new directors to understand the roles, duties, and 
responsibilities of directors, as well as introducing the nature and guidelines of business. The Office of the 
Company Secretary shall deliver the Company’s data and useful information to the directors on the next 
day from the date of appointment. Those documents consist of the manual of listed companies’ 
directors; good corporate governance principles for listed companies and non-life insurance companies; 
relevant laws; including general information of the Company. Such information shall create knowledge 
and understanding of the Company's business and operations in order to perform the director's duties. 

The Company encourages the directors and executives to regularly attend various courses of 
training and seminars to enhance knowledge, understanding and develop potential in performing duties. 
They are also supported to participate in activities of the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD), SET, 
SEC, and related agencies, both public and private sectors, in order to have continuous improvement of 
operations. 

CCoommppaannyy  SSeeccrreettaarryy  

The Board of Directors appointed a company secretary to be responsible for arranging meetings of 
shareholders and meetings of the Board of Directors in compliance with the law, Articles of Association 
and various practices. The Company Secretary’s duties are recording and keeping the minutes of the 
shareholders' meeting and the Board of Directors' meeting; supervising the Company and the Board of 
Directors to comply with the SET's regulations regarding information disclosure including the requirements 
of the SEC and other regulators related to the Company's business operations; providing preliminary 
advice to directors on legal matters, rules and regulations of the Company; following up to ensure the 
proper and consistent business operation as well as contacting and communicating with shareholders to 
be inform the rights of shareholders and the Company's information. 
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CCooddee  44::  EEffffeeccttiivvee  CCEEOO  aanndd  ppeeooppllee  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  

NNoommiinnaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  sseenniioorr  eexxeeccuuttiivvee  

The Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee is assigned by the 
Board of Directors to select and screen qualified persons with knowledge and experience suitable for the 
Company's business operations and propose to the Board of Directors for consideration and appointment 
as the senior executive. The senior executive of the Company which is the Chief Executive Officer and the 
President may be considered from inside or outside the organization who are qualified and suitable for 
the situation of the Company in each period. In case the Company selects the senior executive from 
internal people, the Company shall implement the succession plan. In this regard, the preliminary 
qualifications of the senior executive that the Board of Directors has specified are visionary, leadership, 
appropriate to the organizational culture, knowledgeable with insurance business experience, business 
administration and other qualifications that are beneficial to business operations without conflict of 
interest with the Company and prohibited characteristics according to relevant laws. 

SSuucccceessssiioonn  ppllaann  

The Company prepares a succession plan. Executives are encouraged to take both domestic and 
international training courses to be successor of the President or Chief Executive Officer. 

The Executive Committee assigns the Organization Development Department to prepare a training 
plan in terms of knowledge and skills for preparing personnel at each level to become a supervisor. 

RReemmuunneerraattiioonn  ffoorr  tthhee  sseenniioorr  eexxeeccuuttiivvee  

 The Remuneration, Nomination, and Sustainable Development Committee is responsible for 
considering the format, criteria, and remuneration for the Chief Executive Officer and the President 
appropriately according to the remuneration structure, consistent with performance and taking into 
account the performance of the Company, before presenting to the Board of Directors. 

PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  aapppprraaiissaall  ooff  sseenniioorr  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  

 The Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee considers and presents 
opinions to the Board of Directors in determining the criteria used in the annual performance evaluation 
of the Chief Executive Officer and the President. The criteria for consideration will be consistent with the 
Company's goals. The Chief Executive Officer will consider and evaluate the performance of the President, 
and report the results to the Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Committee for consideration 
before reporting to the Board of Directors. In addition, the Chief Executive Officer also assesses              
the performance of the lower-level executives together with the President in order to ensure fairness. 

  

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
91



PPeerrssoonnnneell  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  

 The Company also plans to develop personnel to be the executive and the supervisory by 
organizing training courses throughout the year. The courses are classified as general courses and job-
specific courses. The Company organizes in-house training courses and have employees attend seminars o 
training courses held by external institutions such as Thailand Insurance Institute and International 
insurance institute. The programs to visit insurance companies abroad are organized for executives as 
well. 

CCooddee  55::  NNuurrttuurree  IInnnnoovvaattiioonn  aanndd  RReessppoonnssiibbllee  BBuussiinneessss  

The Board of Directors realizes the importance of respecting rights and providing fairness to 
stakeholders. Cooperation between the Company and its stakeholders is promoted for enhancing the 
Company's performance and upholding mutual benefits based on fairness. The Company treats 
stakeholders according to their rights under relevant laws. The Board of Directors sets policies for treating 
stakeholders as follows: 

1.  Shareholders 
 The Company has a policy to make a stable business, create added value to shareholders    in 

the long term by being a good representative of shareholders in its operations. The interests of 
shareholders are maintained in order to create the highest satisfaction with good returns. The 
shareholders are treated equitably and equally. The accurate, complete, standardized, transparent and 
reliable information is disclosed to investors. 

2.  Employees 
 The Company treats the employees fairly, values them and strives to give all employees 

confidence in the organization. The employees are remunerated appropriately and provided welfare with 
higher standards than those required by law, such as a provident fund, health and accident insurance, 
annual medical checkup, safe and hygienic working environment, various staff activities and work life 
balance. They are encouraged to develop and grow in their career path continuously by providing both 
local and foreign scholarships including training courses for each level of employees throughout the year. 

 The Company is aware of the health and safety of employees. Therefore, Safety, Occupational 
Health and Working Environment Policy have been announced, along with providing knowledge and 
training to employees continuously. In 2023, no employees had any accidents at work. 

3.  Customers 
 The Company gives priority to customers’ satisfaction in order to build and maintain a customer 

base for long-term using the Company's products and services. The Company offers standardized quality 
products with appropriate and enough coverage to meet the needs of customers. Fair price and claims 
settlement are also considerations. The Company realizes the importance of providing accurate 
information and knowledge to customers and does not use customers' confidential information for the 
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products with appropriate and enough coverage to meet the needs of customers. Fair price and claims 
settlement are also considerations. The Company realizes the importance of providing accurate 
information and knowledge to customers and does not use customers' confidential information for the 

benefit of self or third parties. The Company protects information in a systematic and secure manner and 
there is a department that specifically receives complaints and suggestions from customers. 

4.  Business partners 
 The Company sets criteria and selects its business partners with transparency without altruism 

or self-interest. The commercial agreements are made based on mutual benefits and the Company 
strictly adheres to the agreed conditions. All partners can express their opinions and suggestions on 
business operations. The Company also provides equality to business partners with equal information and 
will not disclose the business secrets of business partners to third parties. The Company stipulates criteria 
for selecting vendors and service providers based on legal documents, service eligibility, pricing, 
availability, technical competence, experience, expertise, product and service quality, customer 
references or business reputation and after-sales service policy. 

5.  Business competitors 
 The Company aims to compete in business according to the rules and business etiquette under 

free competition and related law, does not seek confidential information of competitors by dishonest 
means, and does not infringe any intellectual property or copyright. The Company will focus on 
competition in terms of quality and efficiency of service for the best benefit of customers. 

6.  Creditors 
 The Company has a policy to manage the business effectively and the ability to pay off debt to 

maintain the reputation and credibility. Guidelines to fair practices for both parties stipulate that 
infringement of creditors’ rights is prohibited and do not conceal information that may cause damage to 
creditors, consider having business collateral as appropriate, pay debts on time regularly and strictly 
follow the agreed upon conditions.  In case that the agreed conditions cannot be fulfilled, both parties 
shall find a solution together.  

7.  Community, society, and environment 
Because of awareness regarding conducting business with responsibility for the community, 

society and environment, the Company instills employees to become aware of these matters. A policy to 
support public profit activities is stipulated. Stakeholders are encouraged to participate in the 
development of communities, society, and the environment for sustainable growth, such as educational 
support for underprivileged students, and providing funds to renovate educational institutions. The 
Company also provides training courses on the environment and various activities for executives and 
employees in order to build awareness of conducting themselves for the benefit of society. The results of 
continuous and consistent social activities appear concrete. Activities carried out in 2023 are reported in 
the heading. “Moving Business for Sustainability” 
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8.  Respect human rights 
 The Company has a policy not to involve in human rights violations and realize the rights of 

equality. The Company complies with the principles of human rights that are protected by the 
Constitution of the Kingdom of Thailand. The Company neither violates human dignity, rights and 
personal liberties nor discriminates against any individual by separating the person's ethnic, physical 
condition, status socioeconomic status, education, or personal characteristics that are not related to 
working performance. 

9.  Intellectual property or copyrights 
 The Company has established policies and procedures to prevent the violation of copyright 

laws and the Computer Crime Act. The employees’ use of software programs is monitored to prevent the 
use that is not related to their jobs or that violates copyright. Unauthorized disclosure of business secrets 
and other confidential information is prohibited. An efficient compliance control process is implemented. 
In case that the Company violates legal rights due to employees’ negligence or ignorance, the Company 
will be responsible for damages fairly and appropriately and shall punish related persons according to 
internal regulations and procedures. 

 The Information Security Management System and Data Protection Committee and Working 
Team are responsible for information security operations, emergency management, business continuity 
plan, privacy and personal data management, and cyber security in order to comply with the laws, rules, 
and regulations relevant to the business operations. 

SSttaakkeehhoollddeerrss  ppaarrttiicciippaattiioonn  

Stakeholders can participate in the Company’s operations via various channels for suggesting, 
making complaints or whistleblowing if any employees are found or implied misconduct.                     
The whistleblower shall be notified by post, electronic mail or telephone to the Vice Presidents of the 
Organization Development Department, the Office of Compliance, the Chief Executive Officer and the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee. After receiving the matter, the Company will investigate the facts and 
follow the procedures stipulated in the Whistleblowing and Complaint Policy. 

IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  ddiisscclloossuurree  aanndd  ttrraannssppaarreennccyy  

The Company places importance on disclosing information and news related to the Company's 
operations, both financial information and non-financial information as it affects the decisions of investors 
and all groups of stakeholders. The information disclosed shall be transparent, accurate, complete, 
reliable, timely and eventual in accordance with the rules of the SET, SEC, OIC and other relevant 
regulatory agencies strictly. 

In order that shareholders, investors, and the general public easily and thoroughly access the 
Company’s information, various channels are provided such as 56-1 One Report, quarterly performance 
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reports, company website, meeting and interview, press releases for major events and upon new products 
launch. 

The Chairman or Advisor to the Chairman of the Board or the Chief Executive Officer or the 
President are authorized to disclose information, publish announcement to media or clarify the case of 
rumors. The Company also assigns the Chief Financial Officer and the Office of Company Secretary staff to 
coordinate with the Stock Exchange of Thailand in disclosing information as required by law. In addition, 
shareholders and investors contact the Shareholder Relations Department for more information at the 
telephone number +66 2664 7777 ext. 1905, 1906 and 7719, E-mail Shareholders Relations Department. 
office_president@navakij.co.th or on through the Company website www.navakij.co.th.  

In 2023, the Company was not ordered to amend the financial statements or has been taken by 
a regulatory authority regarding non-disclosure of material information within a specified period. 

SSuuppeerrvviissiioonn  aanndd  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  ooff  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  tteecchhnnoollooggyy    

 The information technology and data storage systems are the significant factors for business 
operation. The Board of Directors assigns the Risk Management Committee to supervise the use of 
information technology to be in line with the business strategy. The information technology shall be 
flexible for changes in information technology and the Company's business operations as well as ready 
for handling cyber threats. The Committee also supervises the management of information technology 
risks and cyber threats which is considered a major risk and part of the enterprise risk management. 

 The Board of Directors approved the IT Risk Management Policy, IT Security Policies and Business 
Continuity Management Policy which have been reviewed by the Risk Management Committee. The 
policies were communicated to employees for acknowledgment and practice. 

 Information Technology Risk Management Policy established processes and procedures, risk 
appetite, risk assessment criteria, risk management methods, risk indicators and information technology 
risk reporting. The Information Technology Security Policy defines the management of information 
technology security, human resources and information assets management, information systems access 
control, physical and environmental security, threat monitoring, and contingency plans as well as  cyber 
security risks supervision and management. For the Business Continuity Management Policy, a business 
continuity management framework was established in accordance with ISO 22301:2012 standards.        
The structure of duties and responsibilities of personnel, business impact analysis, operational recovery 
strategy and operational plans of various departments were also established. 

 The Company appointed Information Security Management System and Data Protection Committee 
that consisted of Chief Executive Officer and President, Chief Information Officer, Chief Risk Officer and 
Data Protection Officer. The Company also appointed Information Security Management Representative 
Committee that consisted of the Information Officer, Vice Presidents of various departments and Data 
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Protection Officer to be responsible for information security, corporate governance in emergencies, 
business continuity, privacy and personal information management and cyber security according to 
relevant laws, rules and regulations. 

 The Company organizes Penetration Test annually by simulating an information system threat 
scenario to assess the Company's cyber risk and find vulnerabilities in access to critical systems provided 
to external partners to be safe from using the Company's system services. The Company builds 
confidence that the system is safe according to international standards. In addition, the objective of the 
test is to improve and solve problems when threats to information systems occur, as well as maintain the 
information system to be stable and ready to use continuously. 

 In 2023, the Company tested Cyber Drill plan and responded to Cyber Incident Response Plan 
(CIRP) by creating conditions and cyber-attacks situations. The scenario was that the ransomware attacked 
the system, and the data were stolen from the internal system in dealing with Phishing Mail. The test 
results found that employees understand, be aware of cyber threats, and respond to abnormal events. 
They also concern about suspicious emails by immediately notifying the responsible department to 
investigate and take corrective action. 

 The Company was certified with the Information Systems Security Standard ISO 27001: 2013 since 
the year 2021 and still process to be granted the ISO 27001:2022 version by 2024, which represents       
the Company's commitment to develop and enhance the information security systems and confidential 
information management, credibility, and the availability of information to be in international standards. 
The Company was also audited according to the standards of Office of Insurance Commission (OIC          
8 Domains) at the gold level for the year 2021 and 2022, which confirmed intention and determination to 
continuously create information technology standards of the Company. 

TTaaxx  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  

 The Company is committed to complying with tax laws and recognizes the importance of being       
a good taxpayer, proper, transparent, and verifiable tax payment to drive the business to grow sustainably 
and contribute to the development of the country. The Board of Directors therefore established Tax 
Policy by adhering to and complying with the requirements of tax laws. The Tax Policy of the Company is 
defined to manage tax planning to pay taxes accurately and on time, study the tax implications when 
implementing a new project or when a new law is issued to operate properly use of tax benefits             
in accordance with the legal framework for maximum benefit, use the right tax structure, do not seek 
opportunities from unusual tax structures to evade taxes as well as cooperate with government             
tax authorities to ensure transparency of tax operations. 
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CCooddee  66::  SSttrreennggtthheenn  eeffffeeccttiivvee  rriisskk  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  aanndd  iinntteerrnnaall  ccoonnttrrooll  

RRiisskk  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  aanndd  iinntteerrnnaall  ccoonnttrrooll  

The Board of Directors established a holistic risk management framework and policy that 
corresponds to the purpose and business goals for effective risk management and strategic plan            
with Corporate Governance. The Board of Directors supervised the Company's risk management to         
risk appetite and did not exceed risk tolerance by appointing the Risk Management Committee to       
follow up on risk management for maximum benefits and in accordance with the holistic risk 
management framework and policy. The Risk Management Committee was also appointed to ensure that 
the Company would have a stable financial and capital position with adequate and appropriate risk 
management that the Company was able to achieve the objectives or goals. 

TThhee  AAuuddiitt  CCoommmmiitttteeee  

The Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee (“ the Committee”) whose composition 
and qualifications were in accordance with relevant laws. The Committee is assigned to review             
the Company's internal control system and internal audit system, financial reporting, compliance with 
laws, rules, and regulations of the regulators, connected transactions or transactions that may have 
conflicts of interest, proposals to appoint or remove auditors and the risk management system. In case 
the Committee find or suspect that there are transactions that may significantly affect the financial 
position and performance of the Company, the Committee will report to the Board of Directors for 
consideration and correction. The Audit Committee holds the meeting at least 6 times a year and reports 
to the Board of Directors. 

PPrreevveennttiioonn  ooff  ccoonnfflliicctt  ooff  iinntteerreesstt  

 The Company requires directors, executives, and all employees to avoid engaging in rival business 
and making related transactions with a related person or juristic person that may cause a conflict of 
interest with the Company. However, the Board of Directors approves the related person transaction if it 
is a normal business transaction or a normal business support that operates in accordance with general 
commercial principles and considering the best interests of the Company. Such transactions must strictly 
comply with the regulations of the regulatory agencies. Directors or interest person must not attend the 
meeting or participate in the consideration or vote for such transaction. The Company shall prepare          
a report and disclose information about related transactions or transactions that may have conflicts of 
interest to shareholders in order to be used as information for examining transactions that may cause 
conflicts of interest. Directors and executives and vice presidents shall prepare a report on their interests 
when they are first appointed as directors or executives and every time there is any change in information 
as well as to review the information annually. The Company Secretary shall send a copy of such report to 
the Chairman and the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
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IInntteerrnnaall  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  ccoonnttrrooll  

 The Inside Information Policy and the matter of maintaining the Company's confidential 
information are specified in the Company's announcement on Code of Conduct. The agreements to 
comply with the data security policy were signed by all employees to prevent them from using the 
Company information for their own benefit or without permission from the Company. The violation of 
such regulations is a serious offense and subject to disciplinary action of which the maximum penalty is 
dismissal without compensation. 

 In addition, directors, executives, and staff responsible for the Company's information are 
prohibited to use inside information in trading the Company’s stock for their own or third party’s benefit. 
The Company Secretary shall send a notice to the Board of Directors and executives to refrain from 
trading the Company's securities 2 weeks before disclosing information or financial reports to the public.           
The directors and first 4 executives shall submit a report on the change of securities holding (Form 59) via 
the SEC's online system upon making transactions such as buying, selling, transferring, or accepting 
transfers of the Company's securities and notify the Company Secretary in order to report to the Board of 
Directors' meeting. The Company prescribes an agenda for acknowledgment of securities holdings of 
directors and executives as a regular agenda in every meeting of the Board of Directors. 

AAnnttii--CCoorrrruuppttiioonn  PPoolliiccyy  

 The Company is committed to resisting corruption. The Board of Directors therefore established        
the Anti-Corruption Policy and Measures ( “ the Policy” )  which was reviewed annually. The Policy 
prohibited directors, executives, employees, and people who have a business relationship with the 
Company to resist or be involved in all forms of corruption both directly and indirectly. The Company 
also established guidelines for activities with high risk or is a channel of corruption and rules on giving and 
receiving gifts, to strengthen understanding and build a standard of work. 

 The Board of Directors assigned the Risk Management Committee to be responsible for ensuring 
that the Company has adequate and appropriate corruption risk management by reviewing the risk 
management report to assess and monitor significant risks and report to the Board of Directors.              
All departments must assess corruption risk annually as well as formulate a risk management and 
mitigation plan. The Office of Risk Management will analyze the operational risk management process, 
corruption, and fraud by evaluating, analyzing, monitoring, controlling, and compiling the overall risk 
status to be under risk appetite and report to the Risk Management Committee to consider risk 
management policy, risk appetite and risk tolerance, including reporting risks to the Board of Directors.      
In addition, the Company has established guidelines for high-risk activities or channels for corruption. 

 The Company assigned the Office of Internal Audit to audit and review the internal control system 
and operations in compliance with policies, guidelines, operational authority, regulations, laws, and 
regulatory requirements to ensure that the control system was appropriate and adequate to corruption 
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risk and report the audit results to the Audit Committee. The President assigned the Anti-Corruption 
working team to carry out activities and coordinate with various departments in implementing              
the Anti-Corruption Policy and Measures and report to the President. 

 The Company communicated the Anti-Corruption Policy and Measures to employees through 
various communication channels such as the intranet and other electronic communication channels, 
organized online learning courses with test, explained to new employees during orientation.                 
The Company also communicated the policies to external parties such as customers, business partners, 
associates and stakeholders via the Company's website, annual report, electronic mail, commercial 
contract. In 2023, the Company invited business partners to join as members of Private Sector Collective 
Action against Corruption (CAC) to support the drive against corruption and expand the network of 
transparent business operations to partner companies. 

 The guidelines for supervising and monitoring corruption risks are as follows: 
 1. The Board of Directors has assigned the Audit Committee to supervise the implementation of 
anti-corruption measures, to review the financial reporting system, accounting system, internal control 
system, internal audit system, and risk management system. Such systems shall comply with relevant 
laws and international standards. They shall also be efficient, up-to-date, appropriate, and rigorous for 
preventing and reducing the corruption risk. 
 2 . Stipulate guidelines for high-risk activities or channels for corruption to enhance understanding 
and be the standard of work process. 
 3. Provide channels for receiving complaints, measures to protect whistleblowers and complainants 
and a fair trial process. The Company imposes disciplinary penalties for an employee who committed the 
corruption and reviews or terminates the business transaction in the case of a third party. 

 Anti-Corruption monitoring and assessment 
 1.  Assign the Office of Internal Audit to audit and review the internal control system and the 
operation to be in accordance with the policy, guidelines, authority, regulations, laws, and regulatory 
requirements; to ensure that there is an appropriate and enough control system against corruption risks. 
The audit report shall be presented to the Audit Committee. 
 2.  Assign the Risk Management Committee to oversee the corruption risk management to ensure 
that it is adequate and appropriate. The Committee shall review the risk management reports in order to 
assess and monitor major risks and report them to the Board of Directors. 

 The Company regularly reviews the anti-corruption measures to be in accordance with changes in 
laws, rules, regulations and the Company's business. 

The Company established Anti-Corruption Policy and Measures via   

https://www.navakij.co.th/public/core/uploaded/documents/5cf56a6df560ea85af853e5cd1e0c6c3.pdf 
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WWhhiissttlleebblloowwiinngg  aanndd  ccoommppllaaiinnttss  

 The Board of Directors established the Whistleblowing Policy for stakeholders to participate              
in expressing opinions or notify clues of suspected fraud, violations of regulations, irregular financial 
reporting and any other actions that might affect the reputation and cause damage to the Company. 
Stakeholders shall notify any matter via a post mail to the Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited,     
No. 100/47-55, 93/3-6, 26th Floor, Sathorn Nakhon Building, North Sathorn Road, Silom, Bangrak, Bangkok 
10500 and telephone or send electronic mail to the persons with the following details:  

- Vice president of the Organization Development Department 
   Tel: 0 2664 7712  Email: phatarawipha_w@navakij.co.th  

- Vice president of the Office of Compliance 
   Tel: 0 2664 7719  Email: charuwan_c@navakij.co.th 

- Chief Executive Officer 
   Tel: 0 2664 7738  Email: pitiphong@navakij.co.th 

- Chairman of the Audit Committee via Secretary of the Committee 
Tel: 0 2664 7778  Email: phisit_p@navakij.co.th 

 Details are published on the Company's website in order that the complainants select the 
appropriate channels. The Company also establishes the measures to protect the whistleblowers and 
complainants. The complaint information shall be kept confidential. The Company shall not act unfairly 
towards whistleblowers, complainants or those who cooperate in the investigation. 

 Processes for complaints and protecting whistleblowers are as follows: 

1.   The details of clues and complaints must be clear or enough to investigate. 
2. Information and investigation processes shall be kept confidential and disclosed with only 

necessary precautions. The information on whistleblowing regarding third parties and employees shall 
only be shared to those involved in the investigation only. While information of whistleblowing regarding 
senior executives shall be kept by the secretary of the Audit Committee to report directly to the Audit 
Committee. 

3. President shall appoint 3 vice presidents who are independent from concerns and complaints 
as the Investigation Committee.  

4. The Investigation Committee shall provide the management approach including remedies for 
damage and propose to the President for approval. 

5. The investigation must be conducted with fair treatment of the accused.  
6. The duration of the investigation depends on the complexity of the issues, the sufficiency of 

the evidence. 
7. The Investigation Committee shall report the result of investigation and remedies for damage to 

the Audit Committee quarterly. 
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WWhhiissttlleebblloowwiinngg  aanndd  ccoommppllaaiinnttss  

 The Board of Directors established the Whistleblowing Policy for stakeholders to participate              
in expressing opinions or notify clues of suspected fraud, violations of regulations, irregular financial 
reporting and any other actions that might affect the reputation and cause damage to the Company. 
Stakeholders shall notify any matter via a post mail to the Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited,     
No. 100/47-55, 93/3-6, 26th Floor, Sathorn Nakhon Building, North Sathorn Road, Silom, Bangrak, Bangkok 
10500 and telephone or send electronic mail to the persons with the following details:  

- Vice president of the Organization Development Department 
   Tel: 0 2664 7712  Email: phatarawipha_w@navakij.co.th  

- Vice president of the Office of Compliance 
   Tel: 0 2664 7719  Email: charuwan_c@navakij.co.th 

- Chief Executive Officer 
   Tel: 0 2664 7738  Email: pitiphong@navakij.co.th 

- Chairman of the Audit Committee via Secretary of the Committee 
Tel: 0 2664 7778  Email: phisit_p@navakij.co.th 

 Details are published on the Company's website in order that the complainants select the 
appropriate channels. The Company also establishes the measures to protect the whistleblowers and 
complainants. The complaint information shall be kept confidential. The Company shall not act unfairly 
towards whistleblowers, complainants or those who cooperate in the investigation. 

 Processes for complaints and protecting whistleblowers are as follows: 

1.   The details of clues and complaints must be clear or enough to investigate. 
2. Information and investigation processes shall be kept confidential and disclosed with only 

necessary precautions. The information on whistleblowing regarding third parties and employees shall 
only be shared to those involved in the investigation only. While information of whistleblowing regarding 
senior executives shall be kept by the secretary of the Audit Committee to report directly to the Audit 
Committee. 

3. President shall appoint 3 vice presidents who are independent from concerns and complaints 
as the Investigation Committee.  

4. The Investigation Committee shall provide the management approach including remedies for 
damage and propose to the President for approval. 

5. The investigation must be conducted with fair treatment of the accused.  
6. The duration of the investigation depends on the complexity of the issues, the sufficiency of 

the evidence. 
7. The Investigation Committee shall report the result of investigation and remedies for damage to 

the Audit Committee quarterly. 

CCooddee  77::  EEnnssuurree  ddiisscclloossuurree  aanndd  ffiinnaanncciiaall  iinntteeggrriittyy  

BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  rreeppoorrtt  

 The Board of Directors provides the Company's separate financial statements and financial 
statements in which the equity method is applied at the end of the fiscal year and published on the 
Company's website as well as via an information disclosure system of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. 
Financial reports of the fiscal year shall also be published in the annual report and be presented to the 
shareholders' meeting as required by law. The financial reports are prepared in accordance with the 
current financial reporting standards and in the form prescribed by the OIC. In addition, the Board of 
Directors' responsibility for financial reports is also prepared along with the report of the auditor in the 
annual form 56-1 One Report. 

 The Board of Directors assigns the Audit Committee to oversee the quality of financial reports 
and provide opinions to the Board of Directors to ensure that the report preparation is in accordance with 
the requirements of the SEC, SET, OIC and related laws. 

CCooddee  88::  EEnnssuurree  eennggaaggeemmeenntt  aanndd  ccoommmmuunniiccaattiioonn  wwiitthh  sshhaarreehhoollddeerrss 

RRiigghhttss  ooff  sshhaarreehhoollddeerrss  

The Board of Directors realizes the duty to protect the interests and respect the fundamental rights 
of all shareholders. Shareholders’ rights include the right to receive share certificates and to transfer 
shares; the right to receive sufficient and timely information which is appropriate for decision-making as 
well as the right to receive a profit in the form of dividends. Shareholders also have the right to attend 
the shareholders' meeting to vote at the meeting in order to decide on changes in policies or important 
matters of the Company, such as election and removal of directors, determination of directors' 
remuneration, selling or transfer the Company's business, buying or acquisition of other business, dividend 
allocation, capital increase or reduction and approval of special transactions that are not normal 
transactions. The Company encourages shareholders and institutional investors to exercise their rights 
through shareholders' meetings. The Company gives shareholders the opportunity to propose an agenda 
of the meeting or send questions that they would like to be answered at the shareholder meeting in 
advance so that all groups of shareholders are able to express their opinions and participate in decision-
making on matters related to their interests. The Company will not violate the rights of shareholders. 

EEqquuiittaabbllee  ttrreeaattmmeenntt  ffoorr  sshhaarreehhoollddeerrss  

The Board of Directors has a policy to protect the rights of all shareholders to be treated equally 
and fairly. Shareholders can take part in supervision of the business and operation. They can nominate a 
person to be elected as the Company's director, propose a meeting agenda, and submit questions related 
to the Company before the date of the shareholders' meeting between September and December every 
year. As of which, between 1 September 2022 and 31 December 2022, the Company has published 
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details of the rules and procedures on the matters on the Company's website and notified via the system 
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET). Nonetheless, no shareholder proposed any matter to be 
included in the meeting agenda or nominated a person to be elected as a director during such period. 

The Company sends the meeting invitation letter and details of related information for decision 
making on each agenda to all shareholders at least 21 days in advance so that shareholders have enough 
time to study the information. The said information is published on the Company's website in both Thai 
and English more than 3 0  days in advance of the meeting date. The Company also informs the 
shareholders of the meeting information via the SET website. The shareholders who are unable to attend 
the meeting in person can vote by using Proxy Form B which is sent along with the meeting invitation 
letter. The Company shall nominate at least three independent directors and executive directors as proxy 
of the shareholders accordingly. 

SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss  mmeeeettiinngg 

The Company holds an annual general meeting of shareholders within 4 months from the end of 
the fiscal year. All shareholders are reported the Company's operating results and participate in 
consideration and decision-making on important matters. The Board of Directors clearly sets the meeting 
agenda, and does not add any agenda for consideration other than those specified in the notice or 
change any important information without notifying the shareholders in advance. The Company may 
organize an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders if it is necessary to propose the matter to the 
shareholders' meeting for consideration as a special case. 

In 2023, the Company held the physical Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (“the Meeting”) 
on 20 April 2023 at the Grand Hall, The Bangkok Club, Sathorn City Tower, 28th Floor, 175 South Sathorn 
Road, Tungmahamek, Sathorn, Bangkok, which is a suitable place and convenient for shareholder to 
attend the Meeting by public transport. The Meeting was also lived broadcast via Facebook. After the 
Meeting, the Company posted the recorded Meeting in video clip on the Company’s website. The 
Chairman, chairmen of all subcommittees, and the senior executive of the Company attended the 
meeting. The Company managed the shareholders' meeting in full compliance with the law, regulations, 
and guidelines of the shareholder meeting assessment project of the Thai Investors Association. 

The Company prepared an invitation notice for the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 
which contained information and opinions of the Board of Directors in each agenda, meeting minutes and 
annual report in both Thai and English versions. Shareholders were informed to submit questions about 
the meeting agenda via the Company's website on 23 March 2023, 28 days before the meeting. The AGM 
notice was published in a newspaper between 3-5 April 2023, 3 consecutive days before the meeting. The 
Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd., the Company's registrar, send the notice of meeting to 
shareholders on 5 April 2023, 15 days prior to the meeting in order to allow shareholders to acknowledge 
and have sufficient time to consider the information prior the meeting. The Company encourages 
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details of the rules and procedures on the matters on the Company's website and notified via the system 
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET). Nonetheless, no shareholder proposed any matter to be 
included in the meeting agenda or nominated a person to be elected as a director during such period. 

The Company sends the meeting invitation letter and details of related information for decision 
making on each agenda to all shareholders at least 21 days in advance so that shareholders have enough 
time to study the information. The said information is published on the Company's website in both Thai 
and English more than 3 0  days in advance of the meeting date. The Company also informs the 
shareholders of the meeting information via the SET website. The shareholders who are unable to attend 
the meeting in person can vote by using Proxy Form B which is sent along with the meeting invitation 
letter. The Company shall nominate at least three independent directors and executive directors as proxy 
of the shareholders accordingly. 

SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss  mmeeeettiinngg 

The Company holds an annual general meeting of shareholders within 4 months from the end of 
the fiscal year. All shareholders are reported the Company's operating results and participate in 
consideration and decision-making on important matters. The Board of Directors clearly sets the meeting 
agenda, and does not add any agenda for consideration other than those specified in the notice or 
change any important information without notifying the shareholders in advance. The Company may 
organize an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders if it is necessary to propose the matter to the 
shareholders' meeting for consideration as a special case. 

In 2023, the Company held the physical Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (“the Meeting”) 
on 20 April 2023 at the Grand Hall, The Bangkok Club, Sathorn City Tower, 28th Floor, 175 South Sathorn 
Road, Tungmahamek, Sathorn, Bangkok, which is a suitable place and convenient for shareholder to 
attend the Meeting by public transport. The Meeting was also lived broadcast via Facebook. After the 
Meeting, the Company posted the recorded Meeting in video clip on the Company’s website. The 
Chairman, chairmen of all subcommittees, and the senior executive of the Company attended the 
meeting. The Company managed the shareholders' meeting in full compliance with the law, regulations, 
and guidelines of the shareholder meeting assessment project of the Thai Investors Association. 

The Company prepared an invitation notice for the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 
which contained information and opinions of the Board of Directors in each agenda, meeting minutes and 
annual report in both Thai and English versions. Shareholders were informed to submit questions about 
the meeting agenda via the Company's website on 23 March 2023, 28 days before the meeting. The AGM 
notice was published in a newspaper between 3-5 April 2023, 3 consecutive days before the meeting. The 
Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd., the Company's registrar, send the notice of meeting to 
shareholders on 5 April 2023, 15 days prior to the meeting in order to allow shareholders to acknowledge 
and have sufficient time to consider the information prior the meeting. The Company encourages 

shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting to use Proxy Form B in which shareholders can 
determine the voting. Proxy Form B is delivered to the shareholders together with the invitation letter for 
the shareholders' meeting and can be downloaded from the Company's website as well. In this regard, 
the Company prepares a duty stamp for attaching the proxy form for the convenience of the 
shareholders. 

The Company uses a barcode system to register the meeting attendees in order to ensure that the 
registration process is fast and correct. Shareholders shall receive ballots to vote for the agenda that must 
be considered for approval and verification. In addition, shareholders can register to attend the meeting 
after the meeting started and they can vote on the agenda that has not yet been resolved. 

The Board of Directors shall inform shareholders of significant information prior to the meeting, 
such as the number of shareholders and proxies attending the meeting, voting practices, vote counting 
and collection of ballots. The Chairman then proceeds to the meeting according to the meeting agenda 
without adding any agenda or changing any important information other than those specified in the 
invitation letter sent to the shareholders in advance. 

The Company allocates time for the meeting appropriately and gives shareholders an opportunity 
to express their opinions and ask questions in each agenda before voting. Directors, executive and the 
Company’s auditors attending the Meeting shall answer the questions. The Company Secretary shall 
record questions and answers in the minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.  

Shareholders have the right to vote according to the number of shares held, where one share 
equals one vote. In the agenda for the election of directors to replace those retiring by rotation, 
shareholders can vote to elect directors individually. The directors who have interests in any agenda shall 
not attend the meeting and vote on that agenda. The Company provides a legal advisor to provide legal 
opinions and act as a mediator to verify voting and vote counting in order to ensure transparency in the 
shareholders' meeting. 

RReessoolluuttiioonnss  ddiisscclloossuurree 

The Company disclosed the resolutions of the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders with 
voting results within the meeting date. The minutes of the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 
was submitted to the relevant regulatory agencies within the specified date according to the regulations 
and published on the Company's website. The Company also notified via the information disclosure 
system of the Stock Exchange of Thailand for the shareholders to acknowledge, comment, and review 
within 14 days after the meeting. 
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DDiisscciipplliinnaarryy  mmeeaassuurreess  ffoorr  nnoonn--ccoommpplliiaannccee  wwiitthh  ppoolliicciieess  aanndd  gguuiiddeelliinneess 

 The Company provides fairness and protection to directors, executives and employees at all levels 
who oppose corruption. They shall not be demoted, punished or get any impact even if the corruption 
refusal may cause the Company to lose business or miss the opportunity to gain new business.  

 However, the Company's personnel should not neglect or ignore and act of corruption. They shall 
notify the supervisor or responsible person as soon as possible, upon witnessing any actions relevant to 
the Company that are considered corruption. Moreover, they shall cooperate in investigations according 
to the Whistleblowing and Complaints Policy. 

 Directors, executives and employees who commit corruption, violate Company's policies, codes of 
conduct and rules including supervisors or responsible persons who ignore employee's misconduct or do 
not resolve the offense, shall be subjected to disciplinary punishment. The Company shall set up a 
committee to investigate and consider the punishment fairly. The Company shall also review and possibly 
terminate the business with partners who violate the policy. 

66..22    CCooddee  ooff  CCoonndduucctt  
 The Company has established a written Code of Conduct as a framework for ethical business 
conduct, goals, and methods of business operations for shareholders’ benefit and success according to 
the Vision, Mission and Corporate Governance Policy. In addition, the Code of Conduct also stipulates 
best practices for directors, executives, and employees for performing their duties with integrity               
in order to drive the organization to grow continuously and stably. All personnel are required to 
acknowledge, understand, and strictly comply with the policies set forth in the Code of Conduct. 
Violators shall be investigated and punished appropriately. The Board of Directors requires that the Code 
of Conduct shall be reviewed annually. 

The essences of the Code of Conduct are as follows: 
1.  Perform duties with responsibility, caution, and integrity 
2.  Fair and equal treatment of customers 
3.  Comply with the conditions agreed with business partners and pay off debts on time 
4.  Free and fair business competition within the framework of the law 
5.  Community, society, and environment responsibility 
6.  Respect for human rights 
7.  Anti-corruption 
8.   The Anti-Money Laundering, Combating the Financing of Terrorism, and the Proliferation of 

Weapons of Mass Destruction (AML/CFT/WMD)   
9.  Respect for intellectual property 
10.  Protect personal data under the responsibility of the Company 
11. Information systems and personal data security 
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DDiisscciipplliinnaarryy  mmeeaassuurreess  ffoorr  nnoonn--ccoommpplliiaannccee  wwiitthh  ppoolliicciieess  aanndd  gguuiiddeelliinneess 

 The Company provides fairness and protection to directors, executives and employees at all levels 
who oppose corruption. They shall not be demoted, punished or get any impact even if the corruption 
refusal may cause the Company to lose business or miss the opportunity to gain new business.  

 However, the Company's personnel should not neglect or ignore and act of corruption. They shall 
notify the supervisor or responsible person as soon as possible, upon witnessing any actions relevant to 
the Company that are considered corruption. Moreover, they shall cooperate in investigations according 
to the Whistleblowing and Complaints Policy. 

 Directors, executives and employees who commit corruption, violate Company's policies, codes of 
conduct and rules including supervisors or responsible persons who ignore employee's misconduct or do 
not resolve the offense, shall be subjected to disciplinary punishment. The Company shall set up a 
committee to investigate and consider the punishment fairly. The Company shall also review and possibly 
terminate the business with partners who violate the policy. 

66..22    CCooddee  ooff  CCoonndduucctt  
 The Company has established a written Code of Conduct as a framework for ethical business 
conduct, goals, and methods of business operations for shareholders’ benefit and success according to 
the Vision, Mission and Corporate Governance Policy. In addition, the Code of Conduct also stipulates 
best practices for directors, executives, and employees for performing their duties with integrity               
in order to drive the organization to grow continuously and stably. All personnel are required to 
acknowledge, understand, and strictly comply with the policies set forth in the Code of Conduct. 
Violators shall be investigated and punished appropriately. The Board of Directors requires that the Code 
of Conduct shall be reviewed annually. 

The essences of the Code of Conduct are as follows: 
1.  Perform duties with responsibility, caution, and integrity 
2.  Fair and equal treatment of customers 
3.  Comply with the conditions agreed with business partners and pay off debts on time 
4.  Free and fair business competition within the framework of the law 
5.  Community, society, and environment responsibility 
6.  Respect for human rights 
7.  Anti-corruption 
8.   The Anti-Money Laundering, Combating the Financing of Terrorism, and the Proliferation of 

Weapons of Mass Destruction (AML/CFT/WMD)   
9.  Respect for intellectual property 
10.  Protect personal data under the responsibility of the Company 
11. Information systems and personal data security 

12. Maintaining confidentiality and do not use internal information for personal benefit 
13.  Conflicts of interest awareness 
14.  Effective internal control system and risk management system. 
15. Efficient and fair process for complaints management 

The Company has published the Corporate Governance Policy, Code of Conduct, Anti-Corruption 
Policy and Measures, and Whistleblowing and Complaints Policy through the Company's website at 
https://www.navakij.co.th/en/sustainability/significant-policies-of-nki 

66..33    SSiiggnniiffiiccaanntt  cchhaannggeess  aanndd  ddeevveellooppmmeennttss  ooff  ppoolliicciieess,,  pprraaccttiicceess,,  aanndd  ccoorrppoorraattee  
ggoovveerrnnaannccee  ssyysstteemmss  iinn  tthhee  ppaasstt  yyeeaarr  

66..33..11    SSiiggnniiffiiccaanntt  cchhaannggeess  aanndd  ddeevveellooppmmeennttss  rreellaatteedd  ttoo  tthhee  ppoolliicciieess  aanndd  pprraaccttiicceess  rreevviieeww,,  tthhee  ccoorrppoorraattee  
ggoovveerrnnaannccee  ssyysstteemm  oorr  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  CChhaarrtteerr  iinn  tthhee  ppaasstt  yyeeaarr  

 In 2023, the Board of Directors approved the reviewed and revised Corporate Governance Policy 
and related policies that are Code of Conduct, Stakeholders Policy, and Conflicts of Interest Policy, 
Sustainable Development Policy, Environmental Policy, Human Rights Policy, Tax Policy. The Board also 
established Related Party Transactions Policy, Disclosure Policy, Green Procurement Policy and Safety, 
Occupational Health and Working Environment Policy to be in accordance with the requirements of the 
relevant regulatory agencies and current business operations in order to increase the efficiency of 
business governance. The Company has regularly reviewed and updated the said policy at least once a 
year. 

66..33..22    OOtthheerr  PPrraaccttiicceess  iinn  AAccccoorrddaannccee  wwiitthh  GGoooodd  CCoorrppoorraattee  GGoovveerrnnaannccee  PPrriinncciipplleess   

 The Company adheres to the principles of good corporate governance of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC), the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) and the Office of Insurance 
Commission (OIC) as well as implements the Corporate Governance Code 2017 (CG Code). The Company 
does not comply with some CG principles however, the Company will adopt the principles of good 
corporate governance as much as possible by applying it to suit the company's situation as follows: 

1.  The Board should consist of 5-12 directors. 
 Currently, the Company has 13 directors which is appropriate for the size and complexity of the 

Company's business operations. The non-life insurance business requires directors with diverse knowledge 
and experiences to examine and supervise business operations. However, the Board of Directors consists 
of 9 non-executive directors, 5 of which are qualified as independent directors, resulting in a balance of 
authority, ability to independently express opinions of the management, and transparent management. 

2.  The Chairman of the Board should be an independent director 
 The Chairman of the Board is not an independent director because the insurance business 

requires a person with knowledge, understanding and experience in the business for the benefit of the 
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Company and shareholders. However, the Chairman is not an executive director. The authorities, duties 
and responsibilities of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and President are clearly separated. In 
addition, the Board of Directors has also appointed Mr. Chan Soo Lee, an independent director, to 
consider the Board of Directors' meeting agenda. 

3.  Independent directors should have a term of office not exceeding 9 years. 
 The Board of Directors stipulates that independent directors may hold office for not more than 

3 consecutive terms or not more than 9 years unless for the benefit of the Company, the Board of 
Directors may consider extending the term of office of independent directors. However, such independent 
directors shall be able to give opinions independently, and in accordance with the relevant rules.            
2 independent directors have a term of office of more than 9 years because they have appropriate 
qualifications and skills that are beneficial to the Company. Moreover, recruiting new independent 
directors with experience in the Company’s business is quite difficult. The Board of Directors has 
presented the reasons of such necessity to the shareholders' meeting for consideration accordingly. 

4.  Press releases to the media 
 The Company did not hold any press conference to present the Company's financial status. 

However, the Company published operating performance, summary of listed company information and 
important events via the website of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Company also published 
marketing news and new products via the various communication channels such as websites, Facebook 
and Line Official. 
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Company and shareholders. However, the Chairman is not an executive director. The authorities, duties 
and responsibilities of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and President are clearly separated. In 
addition, the Board of Directors has also appointed Mr. Chan Soo Lee, an independent director, to 
consider the Board of Directors' meeting agenda. 

3.  Independent directors should have a term of office not exceeding 9 years. 
 The Board of Directors stipulates that independent directors may hold office for not more than 

3 consecutive terms or not more than 9 years unless for the benefit of the Company, the Board of 
Directors may consider extending the term of office of independent directors. However, such independent 
directors shall be able to give opinions independently, and in accordance with the relevant rules.            
2 independent directors have a term of office of more than 9 years because they have appropriate 
qualifications and skills that are beneficial to the Company. Moreover, recruiting new independent 
directors with experience in the Company’s business is quite difficult. The Board of Directors has 
presented the reasons of such necessity to the shareholders' meeting for consideration accordingly. 

4.  Press releases to the media 
 The Company did not hold any press conference to present the Company's financial status. 

However, the Company published operating performance, summary of listed company information and 
important events via the website of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Company also published 
marketing news and new products via the various communication channels such as websites, Facebook 
and Line Official. 

 

 

77..    CCoorrppoorraattee  GGoovveerrnnaannccee  SSttrruuccttuurree  aanndd  IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  ooff  CCoommmmiitttteeeess,,  
SSuubbccoommmmiitttteeeess,,  EExxeeccuuttiivveess,,  SSttaaffffss  aanndd  OOtthheerrss  

77..11    TThhee  SSttrruuccttuurree  ooff  ccoorrppoorraattee  ggoovveerrnnaannccee 

The Company’s structure consists of the Board of Directors and 5 subcommittees that are Audit 
Committee, Remuneration Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee, Risk Management 
Committee, Investment Committee and Executive Board. 
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77..22  IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

77..22..11    CCoommppoossiittiioonn  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss    

Under the Company’s Articles of Association and the Board of Directors Charter, the Board 
comprises of no fewer than 9 members who are competent with skills and extensive experience to the 
benefit of the Company’s operation with diversity in skills, experience, and gender. The Chairman of the 
Board, the Chief Executive Officer and the President, shall not be the same person in order to maintain a 
balance of authority between supervisory and management functions. The Company defines independent 
directors as specified by the standard of the Capital Market Supervisory Board. 

At present, the Company’s Board consists of 13 directors as follows:  

1. 9 non-executive directors, 69.23% of the entire Board 
2. 5  independent directors, which exceeds one-third of the entire Board, 38.46% of the entire 

Board 
3. 4 executive directors, 30.77% of the entire Board 
4. 3 female directors, 23.08% of the entire Board  

QQuuaalliiffiiccaattiioonn  ooff  ddiirreeccttoorr  

1. Directors should be competent with skills and extensive experience to benefit the Company’s 
operation, with various skills and integrity. At least one director shall be an expert in non-life insurance 
business, at least one in accounting and at least one in the area of information technology. 

2. Directors must possess relevant qualifications and shall not possess prohibited characteristics, 
according to the Public Limited Company Act, Non-life Insurance Act, and other relevant laws. 

3. Directors should have the ability to exercise sound and independent judgments, free from any 
conflict of interest from the management and other stakeholders. 

4. Directors could dedicate appropriate time to performing their duties.  
5. Independent Directors must possess the qualifications as specified by the Notification of the 

Capital Market Supervisory Board and relevant Notifications.  
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77..22  IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

77..22..11    CCoommppoossiittiioonn  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss    

Under the Company’s Articles of Association and the Board of Directors Charter, the Board 
comprises of no fewer than 9 members who are competent with skills and extensive experience to the 
benefit of the Company’s operation with diversity in skills, experience, and gender. The Chairman of the 
Board, the Chief Executive Officer and the President, shall not be the same person in order to maintain a 
balance of authority between supervisory and management functions. The Company defines independent 
directors as specified by the standard of the Capital Market Supervisory Board. 

At present, the Company’s Board consists of 13 directors as follows:  

1. 9 non-executive directors, 69.23% of the entire Board 
2. 5  independent directors, which exceeds one-third of the entire Board, 38.46% of the entire 

Board 
3. 4 executive directors, 30.77% of the entire Board 
4. 3 female directors, 23.08% of the entire Board  

QQuuaalliiffiiccaattiioonn  ooff  ddiirreeccttoorr  

1. Directors should be competent with skills and extensive experience to benefit the Company’s 
operation, with various skills and integrity. At least one director shall be an expert in non-life insurance 
business, at least one in accounting and at least one in the area of information technology. 

2. Directors must possess relevant qualifications and shall not possess prohibited characteristics, 
according to the Public Limited Company Act, Non-life Insurance Act, and other relevant laws. 

3. Directors should have the ability to exercise sound and independent judgments, free from any 
conflict of interest from the management and other stakeholders. 

4. Directors could dedicate appropriate time to performing their duties.  
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77..22..22  TThhee  ddiirreeccttoorr’’ss  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  

The list of Company’s directors as of 31 December 2023 

No. Name                                                       Position 
1. Mr. Suchin Wanglee Chairman of the Board  

Non-Executive Director 
2. Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra Executive Director 

Chairman of the Executive Board 
Chairman of the Investment Committee 

3. Mr. Keit Srichomkwan Independent Director 
Chairman of the Audit Committee 

4. Gen. Montree Sungkasap Independent Director 
Chairman of the Remuneration, Nomination 
and Sustainable Development Committee 
Member of the Audit Committee 

5. Mr. Nipol T. Jeerawong Non-executive Director  
Chairman of the Risk Management Committee 
Member of the Remuneration, Nomination and 
Sustainable Development Committee 

6. Mrs. Wanida Chansikarin Independent Director 
Member of the Audit Committee 

7. Mrs. Phornpun Phornprapha Independent Director 
Member of the Remuneration, Nomination and 
Sustainable Development Committee 

8. Mr. Chan Soo Lee Independent Director 
9. Mr. Vuttichai Wanglee Non-Executive Director 
10. Miss Jittinan Wanglee Non-Executive Director 
11. Dr. Saran Wanglee Executive Director 
12. Mr. Anak Wanglee Executive Director 

Member of the Risk Management Committee 
Member of the Investment Committee 

13. Mr. Anin Wanglee Executive Director 
Member of the Risk Management Committee 

Note: 

No.12 was appointed as a member of the Board of directors on 10 May 2023 in replacement of             
Mr. Thamnu Wanglee, a non-executive director, who resigned from the Board.  

No.13 was appointed as a director on 10 May 2023 in replacement of Ms. Charuwan Chabchamrun,         
an executive director, who resigned from the Board.  

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
110



 

77..22..22  TThhee  ddiirreeccttoorr’’ss  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  

The list of Company’s directors as of 31 December 2023 

No. Name                                                       Position 
1. Mr. Suchin Wanglee Chairman of the Board  

Non-Executive Director 
2. Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra Executive Director 

Chairman of the Executive Board 
Chairman of the Investment Committee 

3. Mr. Keit Srichomkwan Independent Director 
Chairman of the Audit Committee 

4. Gen. Montree Sungkasap Independent Director 
Chairman of the Remuneration, Nomination 
and Sustainable Development Committee 
Member of the Audit Committee 

5. Mr. Nipol T. Jeerawong Non-executive Director  
Chairman of the Risk Management Committee 
Member of the Remuneration, Nomination and 
Sustainable Development Committee 

6. Mrs. Wanida Chansikarin Independent Director 
Member of the Audit Committee 

7. Mrs. Phornpun Phornprapha Independent Director 
Member of the Remuneration, Nomination and 
Sustainable Development Committee 

8. Mr. Chan Soo Lee Independent Director 
9. Mr. Vuttichai Wanglee Non-Executive Director 
10. Miss Jittinan Wanglee Non-Executive Director 
11. Dr. Saran Wanglee Executive Director 
12. Mr. Anak Wanglee Executive Director 

Member of the Risk Management Committee 
Member of the Investment Committee 

13. Mr. Anin Wanglee Executive Director 
Member of the Risk Management Committee 

Note: 

No.12 was appointed as a member of the Board of directors on 10 May 2023 in replacement of             
Mr. Thamnu Wanglee, a non-executive director, who resigned from the Board.  

No.13 was appointed as a director on 10 May 2023 in replacement of Ms. Charuwan Chabchamrun,         
an executive director, who resigned from the Board.  

 

The Chairman of the Board is not an independent director, but he is not an executive director.      
The Chairman’s authorities and duties separate distinctly from the management. The Board of Directors 
appointed Mr. Chan Soo Lee, an independent director, to participate in setting the Board of Director’s 
meeting agendas to counterbalance authority between the Board of Director and the management. 

77..22..33    RRoolleess  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss    

DDuuttiieess  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss    

1. To oversee that the Company’s operations are operated in accordance with the objects, the 
articles of association of the Company, and the resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting, as well as the 
regulations specified by relevant laws in good faith and with due care to preserve the greatest interests of 
the Company. 

2. To consider and approve vision, mission, strategies, business direction and goals including 
important business policies, as well as overseeing the management operate in accordance with the vision 
or framework with effectiveness and efficiency. 

3. To regularly monitor, evaluate and approve the implementation of the sustainable 
development framework, code of ethics and the code of conduct of the Company at least once a year. 

4. To approve the organizational structure that maintains a balance of power between supervisory 
and management functions. 

5. To supervise the Company to have processes for controlling, monitoring, and auditing a risk 
management, an internal control system and compliance, including independent unit or personnel to 
audit the said operations to ensure adequate efficiency and transparency. 

6. To supervise an accounting system, financial reporting and reliable auditing. 
7. To appoint appropriate and sufficient subcommittees to support the Board of directors’ 

performance as well as to consider the composition of the subcommittees and any significant changes 
that may affect their performance. 

8. To oversee the disclosure of information regarding good governance, sustainable development, 
financial reports, and important matters in accordance with the relevant rules and regulations to public 
and regulators accurately, completely and timely.  

9. To oversee a selection of directors and an efficient succession plan of the top executives. 
10. To appoint or delegate any other person( s)  to conduct the Company’s business subject to 

control of and within the time frame as may be specified by the Board. 
11. To oversee the performance evaluation of the Board and subcommittees annually. 
12. To approve connected transactions and any transactions in compliance with the laws and 

regulations specified by all regulatory agencies such as OIC, SEC Etc., to prevent transactions that may 
have a conflict of interest. 
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13. To approve the acquisition and disposition of assets and any transactions in compliance with 
the laws and regulations specified by all regulatory agencies such as OIC, SEC Etc., to prevent transactions 
that may have a conflict of interest. 

14. To approve a significant matter submitted by the management such as business plan, budget or 
any project of which the transaction value is greater than the authority of the management. 

15. To approve the criteria for annual incentive bonus payment for the employees. 
16. To appoint the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board and the Company perform their 

duties in accordance with relevant laws, rules, and regulations. 

AAuutthhoorriittyy  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss    

1. Appoint and remove the subcommittees, Chief Executive Officer and President including 
delegate authorities to them. 

2. Appoint and remove the company secretary 
3. Approve directions and strategic goals of the Company 
4. Approve significant policies of the Company 
5. Approve the receipt or cancellation of credit limit in the amount that exceeds the authority of  

the Executive Board 
6. Approve the sale of equity instruments and/or debt instruments in the amount that exceeds 

the authority of the Investment Committee 
7. Approve the acquisition and investment in fixed assets in the amount that exceeds the 

authority of the Executive Board 
8. Approve the reconditioning, destruction and write-off fixed assets and intangible assets in the 

amount that exceeds the authority of the Executive Board 
9. Approve the conciliation, the arbitration, the complaint, the prosecution and/or the litigation on 

behalf of the Company of which the capital exceeds the authority of the Executive Board 
10. Approve the remuneration of the advisor to the Executive Board, the Chief Executive Office and 

the President 
11. Delegate authority of the Board to the management, executives or other persons to act on 

behalf of the Board of Directors 
12. Invite the management and related staffs give explanations and opinions, attend the meeting or 

submit documents as deemed necessary    

AAuutthhoorriizzeedd  ddiirreeccttoorrss  

The Company’s authorized signatures are divided in 2 categories as follows: 

1. Insurance policy of the Company shall be signed by any one of 4 directors, namely            
Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra or Dr. Saran Wanglee or Mr. Anak Wanglee or Mr. Anin Wanglee and affixed with 
the Company’s seal. 
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2.  Other juristic act other than those specified in No.1 shall be signed by 2 of 7 directors, 
namely Mr. Suchin Wanglee, Mr. Vuttichai Wanglee, Mr. Nipol T. Jeerawong, Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra,        
Dr. Saran Wanglee, Mr. Anak Wanglee, Mr. Anin Wanglee and affixed with the Company’s seal, 

77..33  IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  ooff  ssuubbccoommmmiitttteeeess  

 The Board of Directors appointed 5 subcommittees which are 1)  the Audit Committee 2)  the 
Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee 3) the Risk Management Committee 
4)  the Investment Committee and 5)  the Executive Board to perform and consider the specific issues 
before presenting to the Board of Directors. The charters of all subcommittees are determined in writing. 

((11)) TThhee  AAuuddiitt  CCoommmmiitttteeee  

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors to review financial statements and 
internal audit of the Company. The Audit Committee includes not less than 3 members who are 
independent directors. At least 1 member must have sufficient knowledge and experience in accounting 
or finance to review financial statements. The term of office is 3 years and not more than 3 terms except 
the Board of Directors has another opinion. 

As at 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee consists of 3 independent directors. The second 
director has expertise in accounting and finance with significant experience in reviewing financial reports. 
However, all the 3 directors listed below will be vacated from the office on due term in November 2024.  

No. Name Position 

1. Mr. Kiet Srichomkwan Chairman of the Audit Committee 

2. Mrs. Wanida Chansikarin Member of the Audit Committee 

3. Gen. Montree Sungkasap Member of the Audit Committee 

Mr. Phisit Photisatian, Vice President of the Office of Internal Audit is the secretary of the Audit 
Committee. 

DDuuttiieess  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  AAuuddiitt  CCoommmmiitttteeee 
1. To review the Company’s financial reports to ensure the quality that are completely and 

accurately prepared according to accounting standards. 
2. To review the Company’s internal control system and internal audit systems to ensure the 

efficient and to approve the appointment, transfer, removal and considering compensation and merit 
increases of internal audit chief as well as to define duties and responsibilities of internal audit unit. 

3. To review that the Company’s operations are operated in accordance with the laws and 
regulations specified by SEC, SET, OIC as well as other related laws. 
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4. To consider, select, nominate and dispose of an independent person to be the Company’s 
external auditor, and to propose such person’s remuneration, as well as to attend a non-management 
meeting with the auditor at least once a year. 

5. To review connected transactions or any transactions in compliance with the laws and 
regulations specified by SET, to prevent transactions that may have a conflict of interest, to ensure that 
the transactions are reasonable and to preserve the greatest interest of the Company. 

6. To review the efficiency of the Company’s risk management system. 
7. To report the Committee’s performance to the board of directors at least 4 times a year. 
8. To prepare report of the Committee that would be signed by the Committee’s Chairman to be 

disclosed in the Company’s annual report. The report must be consisted of at least as follows: 
8.1 An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company’s financial 

reports 
8.2 An opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system 
8.3 An opinion on complying with the laws and regulations specified by all regulatory agencies 

and others relating to the Company’s operations 
8.4 An opinion on the suitability of the auditor 
8.5 An opinion on the transactions that may have a conflict of interest 
8.6 Number of the Committee’s meetings and the attendance of each member 
8.7 An opinion or overview comment received by the Committee from its performance of 

duties in accordance with the charter 
8.8 Other transactions which should be known to the shareholders and general investors, 

subject to the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Company’s board of 
directors 

9. To perform any other tasks as assigned by the board of directors thereof with the approval of 
the Committee. 

10.  In performing of their duties, if it is found or suspected that there is a transaction or any of the 
following acts which may materially affect the Company’s financial condition and operating results, the 
Committee shall report to the Board of Directors for rectification within the period of time that              
the Committee thinks fit. 

10.1 The transactions that may have a conflict of interest 
10.2 Any fraud, irregularity, or material defect in the internal control system 
10.3 An infringement of the laws and regulations specified by all regulatory agencies and other 

relating to the Company’s operations 
If the Company’s Board of Directors or management fails to make a rectification within            

the period of time under the first paragraph, any member of the Committee may report on the 
transaction or act under the first paragraph to SEC or SET and the Committee must be reported to OIC 
immediately. 
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11. If the external auditor discovers any suspicious circumstance that the director, manager, or any 
other person responsible for the operation of the Company commits an offense as defined by laws and 
the auditor informed the fact relating to such circumstance to the Committee in order to continue the 
inspection without delay. The Committee shall inspect the circumstance and report the result of 
preliminary inspection to SEC and the external auditor within 30 days from the date received the external 
auditor notified. The suspicious circumstance to be reported and the process to uncover facts of such 
circumstance shall be as specified by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.  

TThhee  AAuuddiitt  CCoommmmiitttteeee  mmeeeettiinngg  

The Committee holds at least six meetings a year. 

((22)) TThhee  RReemmuunneerraattiioonn,,  NNoommiinnaattiioonn  aanndd  SSuussttaaiinnaabbllee  DDeevveellooppmmeenntt  CCoommmmiitttteeee    

 The Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee is appointed by            
the Board of Directors to support the Board of Directors’ duties in remuneration and nomination of 
directors and senior executive including sustainable development function. The Remuneration, 
Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee consists of at least 3 members. The Chairman and 
at least 2 of 3 members must be independent director, the other must be a non-executive director.       
The committee’s term of office is 3 years. 

As at 31 December 2023, the Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee 
consists of 3 directors. The Chairman and the second director are independent directors. All members as 
below name list who will be vacated the office on due term in February 2025.  

No. Name Position 

1. Gen. Montree Sungkasap The Chairman of Remuneration, Nomination and 
Sustainable Development Committee 

2. Mr. Phornpun Phornprapha Member of Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable 
Development 

3. Mr. Nipol T. Jeerawong Member of Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable 
Development 

DDuuttiieess  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  rreemmuunneerraattiioonn  

1. To propose that the Board of Directors’ meeting or shareholder’s meeting (as it may be) 
consider and approve the structure and procedures of remunerations for the Board of Directors,             
the subcommittees, and the Chief Executive Officer and the President. 

2. To consider and fix a bonus for the Board of Directors and the committees and propose to the 
Board of Directors and shareholders’ meeting for approval.  
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3. To consider criteria and performance evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer and the 
President. 

4. To consider and fix bonus for the Chief Executive Officer and the President and propose to the 
board of directors for approval. 

5. To consider the rules and conditions for new securities offering or warrants to purchase shares 
for directors and employees. Good rules and conditions would motivate the performance of directors and 
employees that can create long-term value added for shareholders and retain quality personnel under 
the criteria that are fair to shareholders. However, the opinion will be presented to the Board of Directors 
for consideration. 

6. To consider and review authority and duties regarding remuneration annually to be 
appropriated and complied with legal and regulations of regulators such as OIC, SET and SEC etc. before 
proposing to the Board of Directors. 

DDuuttiieess  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  nnoommiinnaattiioonn    

1. To consider the structure and composition of the Board of Directors to be appropriate to the 
Company including the duties and responsibilities towards the shareholders, as well as in accordance with 
the requirements and best practices of regulatory agencies. 

2. To consider the criteria and methods of nominating for the Company's directors and senior 
executives (the Chief Executive Officer and the President) and propose to the Board of Directors for 
approval. 

3. To consider and screen qualified persons for serving as the Company's directors and the Chief 
Executive Officer and the President, when the term expires, or the position becomes vacant. After that, 
the Committee will present a candidate to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval before 
proposing to the shareholders' meeting; or to consider appointing case by case. 

4. To Consider and propose training guidelines for performing the duties of directors and 
knowledge related to the Company's business for the Board of Directors and senior executives to increase 
the potential. 

5. To supervise a succession plan for the Chief Executive Officer and the President, so that           
the Company's management can operate continually. 

6. To consider and review the authority and duties related to nomination to comply with laws, 
regulations, or notifications of regulatory and propose to the Board of Directors for approval. 

7. To evaluate the performance of the Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development 
Committee annually and report the evaluation results to the Board of Directors. 
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DDuuttiieess  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  ssuussttaaiinnaabbllee  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  

1. To consider policies and guidelines for sustainable development to be in accordance with       
the laws, rules, regulations of government agencies and regulators; as well as being suitable for business 
operations and propose to the Board of Directors for approval. 

2. To monitor and evaluate the implementation of the Sustainable Development Policy, 
Corporate Governance Policy, Code of Conduct, and other related policies 

3. To provide advice and encourage personnel in the Company at all levels to follow the 
Company's sustainable development guidelines. 

4. To Consider and approve the disclosure of sustainable information before disclosing to 
stakeholders. 

5. Review the authority and duties related to sustainable development to comply with laws, 
regulations, or notifications of regulatory and propose to the Board of Directors for approval. 

TThhee  RReemmuunneerraattiioonn,,  NNoommiinnaattiioonn  aanndd  SSuussttaaiinnaabbllee  DDeevveellooppmmeenntt  CCoommmmiitttteeee  mmeeeettiinngg  

The Committee holds at least 2 meetings a year. 

((33)) TThhee  RRiisskk  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  CCoommmmiitttteeee    

 The Risk Management Committee is appointed by the Board of Director to supervise the 
Company’s risk management to be effective in accordance with the overall framework of risk 
management including strategic plan and business plan. The Risk Management Committee consists of not 
less than 5 members who are a director and an executive or an expert who are proficient in risk 
management, not less than 5 members, with the term 3 years.  

As at 31 December 2023, the Risk Management Committee consists of 5 directors and executives as 
below name list. All members will be vacated the office on due term in February 2025. 

No. Name Position 

1. Mr. Nipol T. Jeerawong The Chairman of the Risk Management Committee 

2. Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra Member of the Risk Management Committee 

3. Mrs. Nalina Bodharamik Member of the Risk Management Committee 

4. Mr. Anak Wanglee Member of the Risk Management Committee 

5. Mr. Ain Wanglee Member of the Risk Management Committee 

Note: 
No.5 was appointed as a member of the Risk Management Committee on 7 November 2023 in 

replacement of Mrs. Anukul Thitikulrat who resigned from the Committee.  
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DDuuttiieess  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  RRiisskk  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  CCoommmmiitttteeee  

  1. To review and propose risk management policy and risk appetite to the Board of Directors for 
approval, at least as specified by the Office of Insurance Commission (OIC). 
  2 . To supervise the overall risk related activities of the Company including the development and 
implementation of the enterprise risk management frameworks and policies to ensure that                    
the business is operated under the risk management policy assigned by the Board of Directors correctly 
and efficiently. 
  3. To review the risk management reports and periodically follow up on major risks and make sure 
that the Company has managed risks appropriately and efficiently. 
 4. To submit to the Board of Directors, a report of overall risk exposure to the Company including 
review whether the internal audit system is appropriate to manage exposure from major risks and report 
to the Board of Directors at least once a quarter. 
  5.  To prepare the risk mitigation plan for emergency 
 6. To provide advice to various departments that are risk management departments and to 
consider revising various information about the development of the risk management system 

TThhee  RRiisskk  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  MMeeeettiinngg    

The Committee holds at least 4 meetings a year. 

((44)) TThhee  IInnvveessttmmeenntt  CCoommmmiitttteeee    

 The Investment Committee is appointed by the Board of Director to be responsible for investment 
plan of the Company in accordance with the framework of investment policy, risk management policy 
and regulations of investment which is defined by the Investment Committee. The Investment Committee 
consists of directors, executives, or executive officers of the Company, at least 3 members with a term of          
3 years. 

As at 31 December 2023, the Investment Committee consists of 3 members as follows:  

No. Name Position 

1. Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra Chairman of the Investment Committee 

2. Mr. Nipol T. Jeerawong Member of the Investment Committee 

3. Mr. Anak Wanglee Member of the Investment Committee 

Mr. Suchin Wanglee is the advisor to the Investment Committee 

DDuuttiieess  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  IInnvveessttmmeenntt  CCoommmmiitttteeee   

1. To set the Investment Policy and the Other Business Operation Guideline before submitting to 
the Board of Directors for approval. 
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DDuuttiieess  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  RRiisskk  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  CCoommmmiitttteeee  

  1. To review and propose risk management policy and risk appetite to the Board of Directors for 
approval, at least as specified by the Office of Insurance Commission (OIC). 
  2 . To supervise the overall risk related activities of the Company including the development and 
implementation of the enterprise risk management frameworks and policies to ensure that                    
the business is operated under the risk management policy assigned by the Board of Directors correctly 
and efficiently. 
  3. To review the risk management reports and periodically follow up on major risks and make sure 
that the Company has managed risks appropriately and efficiently. 
 4. To submit to the Board of Directors, a report of overall risk exposure to the Company including 
review whether the internal audit system is appropriate to manage exposure from major risks and report 
to the Board of Directors at least once a quarter. 
  5.  To prepare the risk mitigation plan for emergency 
 6. To provide advice to various departments that are risk management departments and to 
consider revising various information about the development of the risk management system 

TThhee  RRiisskk  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  MMeeeettiinngg    

The Committee holds at least 4 meetings a year. 

((44)) TThhee  IInnvveessttmmeenntt  CCoommmmiitttteeee    

 The Investment Committee is appointed by the Board of Director to be responsible for investment 
plan of the Company in accordance with the framework of investment policy, risk management policy 
and regulations of investment which is defined by the Investment Committee. The Investment Committee 
consists of directors, executives, or executive officers of the Company, at least 3 members with a term of          
3 years. 

As at 31 December 2023, the Investment Committee consists of 3 members as follows:  

No. Name Position 

1. Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra Chairman of the Investment Committee 

2. Mr. Nipol T. Jeerawong Member of the Investment Committee 

3. Mr. Anak Wanglee Member of the Investment Committee 

Mr. Suchin Wanglee is the advisor to the Investment Committee 

DDuuttiieess  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  IInnvveessttmmeenntt  CCoommmmiitttteeee   

1. To set the Investment Policy and the Other Business Operation Guideline before submitting to 
the Board of Directors for approval. 

 

2. To review investment plans and complying with the policies designed by the Board of Directors, 
the Company’s risk management strategy and to ensure its consistency and compliance with regulations 
of OIC and related laws. 

3. To consider and define guidelines for investment risk management strategy.  
4. To consider and set investment procedures for the Company. 
5. To oversee the investment management in accordance with the policies, plans, procedures and 

risk management strategy approved by the Board of Directors. 
6. To review and adjust investment policy and investment plans so as to fit in with a change in 

investment climate and propose a revised investment policy to the board of directors for approval. 
7. To consider approval of investment in securities. 
8. To consider approval of general loan. 

TThhee  IInnvveessttmmeenntt  CCoommmmiitttteeee  mmeeeettiinngg  

The Committee holds at least 4 meetings a year. 

((55)) TThhee  EExxeeccuuttiivvee  BBooaarrdd    

 The Executive Board is appointed by the Board of Directors to support the performance of the 
Board of Directors in issuing the policy, regulations, and management guidelines of the Company.           
The Executive Board includes not less than 3 members who are executives or executive directors 
appointed by the Board of Directors. The term of office shall be effective consistent with the status of the 
Company’s executive officers.  

As at 31 December 2023, the Executive Board consists of 5 executives as follows: 

No. Name Position 

1. Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra Chairman of the Executive Board  

2. Mrs. Nalina Bodharamik Member of the Executive Board 

3. Mr. Anak Wanglee  Member of the Executive Board 

4. Mr. Anin Wanglee Member of the Executive Board 

5. Dr. Saran Wanglee Member of the Executive Board 

Mr. Suchin Wanglee is the advisor to the Executive Board. 

DDuuttiieess  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  EExxeeccuuttiivvee  BBooaarrdd    

1. To control and supervise the Company’s operation and its subsidiaries that are carried out 
according to the policies and major operating plans, with utmost efficiency and effectiveness, as assigned 
by the Board. 
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2. To make corporate policy, budget, guidelines and other operating plans of the Company and its 
subsidiaries and report on such to the Board.  

3. To control and supervise the Company and its subsidiaries conducts in compliance with the 
Securities and Exchange Act, the Non-Life Insurance Act, the Public Company Act and other related 
applicable regulations thereof. 

4. To control and supervise the Company to follow generally accepted accounting standards and 
prepare financial statements to show accurately and reasonably the financial and operational results of 
the Company and its subsidiaries. 

5. To evaluate and assess risks in the operating business of the Company and its subsidiaries and 
make appropriate measures to manage such risk and inform the Board thereof.  

6.   To perform any other tasks as assigned by the Board thereof. 

AAuutthhoorriittyy  

1. To manage the Company’s operation and its subsidiaries according to the policy, budget and 
operating plans.  

2. To delegate the management authority to the respective responsible executives of the 
Company and its subsidiaries according to level of command.  

3. To manage and handle all matters related to underwriting, claims management, investment 
and general management.  

4. To purchase, hire, sell and transfer assets, and to authorize expenditure within the limit of 50 
million Baht. 

5. To authorize expenditure that exceeds the budget but not over 20 percent of the budget. 
6. In the event that the Board has given authority to the Executive Board or in the event that the 

Executive Board has given authority to the President and/or any executives to act on behalf of the 
Company or its subsidiaries, the authority given so does not include the power to approve transactions 
that the assignee or the involved person may have interest, or conflict of interest with the Company or its 
subsidiaries. 

TThhee  EExxeeccuuttiivvee  BBooaarrdd  MMeeeettiinngg  

The Committee holds at least 2 meetings a month. 
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2. To make corporate policy, budget, guidelines and other operating plans of the Company and its 
subsidiaries and report on such to the Board.  

3. To control and supervise the Company and its subsidiaries conducts in compliance with the 
Securities and Exchange Act, the Non-Life Insurance Act, the Public Company Act and other related 
applicable regulations thereof. 

4. To control and supervise the Company to follow generally accepted accounting standards and 
prepare financial statements to show accurately and reasonably the financial and operational results of 
the Company and its subsidiaries. 

5. To evaluate and assess risks in the operating business of the Company and its subsidiaries and 
make appropriate measures to manage such risk and inform the Board thereof.  

6.   To perform any other tasks as assigned by the Board thereof. 

AAuutthhoorriittyy  

1. To manage the Company’s operation and its subsidiaries according to the policy, budget and 
operating plans.  

2. To delegate the management authority to the respective responsible executives of the 
Company and its subsidiaries according to level of command.  

3. To manage and handle all matters related to underwriting, claims management, investment 
and general management.  

4. To purchase, hire, sell and transfer assets, and to authorize expenditure within the limit of 50 
million Baht. 

5. To authorize expenditure that exceeds the budget but not over 20 percent of the budget. 
6. In the event that the Board has given authority to the Executive Board or in the event that the 

Executive Board has given authority to the President and/or any executives to act on behalf of the 
Company or its subsidiaries, the authority given so does not include the power to approve transactions 
that the assignee or the involved person may have interest, or conflict of interest with the Company or its 
subsidiaries. 

TThhee  EExxeeccuuttiivvee  BBooaarrdd  MMeeeettiinngg  

The Committee holds at least 2 meetings a month. 

  

  

  

  

 

77..44    EExxeeccuuttiivveess    

77..44..11    NNaammee  aanndd  ppoossiittiioonn  ooff  eexxeeccuuttiivveess    
As at 31 December 2023, the executives of the Company consists of the following:  

No. Name Position 

1. Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra Chief Executive Officer and President 

2. Mrs. Nalina Bodharamik Executive Vice President – Underwriting/ Risk Management 

3. Mr. Anak Wanglee Executive Vice President – Finance / Assets Management/ 
Information System / Administrative / Organization 
Development 

4. Mr. Anin  Wanglee Executive Vice President - Claims Management 

5. Dr. Saran Wanglee Executive Vice President – Channel Management/ Marketing 
Salesforce/ Marketing Support/ Business Development and 
Corporate Identity Communications 

Note:  the structure of Corporate Governance shows on 7.1 the Corporate Governance Structure 

DDuuttiieess  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  CChhiieeff  EExxeeccuuttiivvee  OOffffiicceerr   

 1. To monitor and provide advises to the president and the management in managing the 
Company to achieve its vision and overall objectives set by the board of directors, cooperated in 
management by all units in the organization to achieve their responsible objectives.  
 2. To motivate and/or oversee participation from all members of the organization towards 
common directions and objectives. 
 3. To establish sound working understandings of roles and duties of the management with the 
Board of Directors to work towards a common direction. 
 4. To provide recommendations to the management including review and oversee management 
direction and business strategies including normal business operation plans before presenting them to the 
board of directors. 
 5. To oversee the adequacy of strategies, annual budget and operation plans in accordance with 
the Board’s policy.  
 6. To oversee the development of a good culture and sound environment in workplace for the 
Company’s personnel with taking in consideration of their pride and respect for human dignity including 
having code of moral and equal treatment for them. 
 7. To consider and evaluate the president’s performance and report it directly to the Board of 
Directors and/or assigned subcommittees. 
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 8. Cooperating with the president to consider and evaluate performance of executives to ensure 
fairness. 

DDuuttiieess  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  PPrreessiiddeenntt   
1. To perform policy, strategic direction, business plan and annual budget of the Company and 

propose to the Board of Directors for approval as well as to proceed as the resolutions approved by the 
Board of Directors. 

2. To report on the Company’s operating performance monthly and quarterly compared to 
business plan and budget with suggestion to the Board of Directors. 

3. To approve the Company’s expenditure with a limit of not over 1 million Baht. In case that the 
expense approved exceeding 1 million Baht but not exceeding 10 million Baht, the President shall report 
such transaction to the Chief Executive Officer. 

4. Other matters assigned by the Board of Directors. 

77..44..22    TThhee  EExxeeccuuttiivvee  BBoorraadd  aanndd  EExxeeccuuttiivveess  RReemmuunneerraattiioonn    

  The Company does not remunerate the Executive Board. For the remuneration of the Chief 
Executive Officer and the President, the Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development 
Committee will consider initially and propose to the Board of Directors for approval. Such remuneration 
shall be appropriately fixed based on the remuneration structure of the Company, including his/her 
performance and consistency with the duties and responsibilities assigned. 

  The CEO and the President shall determine the appropriate amount of the remuneration for 
the Company’s executive officers at a level of vice president and higher, with consideration of his/her 
performance and the Company’s operation result. 

1. Cash Remuneration 
In 2023, the total remuneration for 5 executives in the form of salaries and bonuses amounted 

to 24,875,050 Baht. 
The remuneration paid for 5 executives for the year 2021 - 2023 are as follows:  

(Unit : Baht)  
Remuneration 2023 2022 2021 

 Person Amount Person Amount Person Amount 

Salaries and 
bonuses 

5 24,875,050   6 28,256,475   6 24,975,575 
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 8. Cooperating with the president to consider and evaluate performance of executives to ensure 
fairness. 

DDuuttiieess  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  PPrreessiiddeenntt   
1. To perform policy, strategic direction, business plan and annual budget of the Company and 

propose to the Board of Directors for approval as well as to proceed as the resolutions approved by the 
Board of Directors. 

2. To report on the Company’s operating performance monthly and quarterly compared to 
business plan and budget with suggestion to the Board of Directors. 

3. To approve the Company’s expenditure with a limit of not over 1 million Baht. In case that the 
expense approved exceeding 1 million Baht but not exceeding 10 million Baht, the President shall report 
such transaction to the Chief Executive Officer. 

4. Other matters assigned by the Board of Directors. 

77..44..22    TThhee  EExxeeccuuttiivvee  BBoorraadd  aanndd  EExxeeccuuttiivveess  RReemmuunneerraattiioonn    

  The Company does not remunerate the Executive Board. For the remuneration of the Chief 
Executive Officer and the President, the Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development 
Committee will consider initially and propose to the Board of Directors for approval. Such remuneration 
shall be appropriately fixed based on the remuneration structure of the Company, including his/her 
performance and consistency with the duties and responsibilities assigned. 

  The CEO and the President shall determine the appropriate amount of the remuneration for 
the Company’s executive officers at a level of vice president and higher, with consideration of his/her 
performance and the Company’s operation result. 

1. Cash Remuneration 
In 2023, the total remuneration for 5 executives in the form of salaries and bonuses amounted 

to 24,875,050 Baht. 
The remuneration paid for 5 executives for the year 2021 - 2023 are as follows:  

(Unit : Baht)  
Remuneration 2023 2022 2021 

 Person Amount Person Amount Person Amount 

Salaries and 
bonuses 

5 24,875,050   6 28,256,475   6 24,975,575 

 

 

 

2. Other Remuneration 

The Company has established a provident fund at the rate of 5% of the salary. In 2023, the 
Company made contributions of 1,022,700 Baht to provident fund for the 5 executives. 
A paid provident fund of 5 executives for the year 2021 - 2023 are as follows: 

 (Unit : Baht)  
Remuneration 2023 2022 2021 

 Person Amount Person Amount Person Amount 

Provident fund 5 1,022,700 6 932,423 6 855,895 

77..55    IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  ooff  eemmppllooyyeeeess  

As at 31 December 2023 the Company has 559 employees in any departments as follows: 

Department 
  

Number (Person) 
Female Male Total 

  Office of Executive 2 6 8 
  Underwriting 60 18 78 
  Channel Management 30 14 44 
  Marketing Salesforce 25 34 59 
  Marketing Support 68 8 76 
  Business Development 6 2 8 
  Claims Management 39 86 125 
  Information System 7 16 23 
  Assets Management 4 3 7 
  Office of President 5 - 5 
  Organization Development 5 2 7 
  Administrative 28 10 38 
  Finance 63 3 66 
Office of Risk Management 2 - 2 
Office of Internal Audit 3 3 6 
Office of Compliance 2 1 3 
Office of Corporate Identity and 
Communications 

3 1 4 

Total 352 207 559 
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IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  ooff  eemmppllooyyeeeess  wwiitthh  ddiissaabbiilliittyy    

The Company has followed guidelines for promoting people with disabilities employment and the 
underprivileged by contributing money to the Fund for Promotion or Development of Life Quality of 
Disabled Persons under Section 34, The Empowerment of Persons with Disabilities Act, B.E. 2007 within 
March of every year. For the number of people with disabilities that the Company must employ in the 
ratio of 100: 1, the Company paid into the Fund for Promotion or Development of Life Quality of Disabled 
Persons amounted to 718,320 Baht in 2023. 

PPoolliicciieess  aanndd  rreegguullaattiioonnss  ttoo  eemmppllooyyeeeess   

 The Company treats employees fairly based on human rights principles and respecting the rights 
and freedoms of employees. Recruiting and selecting candidates will consider potential and ethics 
without discrimination. Evaluating work performance and remuneration are considered appropriately. The 
company provides opportunities for employees to participate in welfare and benefits management. The 
employees are supported to develop themselves and grow continuously in their careers path. The work-
life balance is promoted. Guidelines regarding safety, occupational health, and the environment are 
established. There is also a channel for making complaints or reporting complaints, along with measures 
to protect those who make complaints or provide clues.  

TToottaall  rreemmuunneerraattiioonn  aanndd  tthhee  ttyyppee  ooff  rreemmuunneerraattiioonn  ggiivveenn  ttoo  eemmppllooyyeeeess  

In 2023, the Company’s total remuneration for employees amounted to 303.73 million Baht.   

The Company reviews the Pay for Performance criteria to be complied with the remuneration and 
according to the Company’s operation continuously such as adjusting the weight of performance 
management annually, setting the higher goal to challenge compared to the previous year. The Company 
provides a concrete remuneration system to encourage employees to have more potential. In addition, 
the Company takes into consideration the sufficiency of living in the current economic situation. An 
incentive bonus shall be paid to employees according to the employees’ performance and the Company 
operating performance in order to encourage employees to achieve the Company’s goal.  

The Company provides a systematic performance evaluation that the employees and supervisor 
jointly determine key performance indicator (KPI) in order to create empirical evidence, measurable, and 
evaluable, along with setting core competency to keep employees who are smart and good. 

The Company considers remuneration to be fair and that employees, who have equal 
performance, shall receive equal remuneration. Employees who perform better or more performance 
shall receive higher remuneration. The Company gives importance to all types of work because every job 
has an impact on success. Therefore, the work performance is analyzed and evaluated transparently.  
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IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  ooff  eemmppllooyyeeeess  wwiitthh  ddiissaabbiilliittyy    

The Company has followed guidelines for promoting people with disabilities employment and the 
underprivileged by contributing money to the Fund for Promotion or Development of Life Quality of 
Disabled Persons under Section 34, The Empowerment of Persons with Disabilities Act, B.E. 2007 within 
March of every year. For the number of people with disabilities that the Company must employ in the 
ratio of 100: 1, the Company paid into the Fund for Promotion or Development of Life Quality of Disabled 
Persons amounted to 718,320 Baht in 2023. 

PPoolliicciieess  aanndd  rreegguullaattiioonnss  ttoo  eemmppllooyyeeeess   

 The Company treats employees fairly based on human rights principles and respecting the rights 
and freedoms of employees. Recruiting and selecting candidates will consider potential and ethics 
without discrimination. Evaluating work performance and remuneration are considered appropriately. The 
company provides opportunities for employees to participate in welfare and benefits management. The 
employees are supported to develop themselves and grow continuously in their careers path. The work-
life balance is promoted. Guidelines regarding safety, occupational health, and the environment are 
established. There is also a channel for making complaints or reporting complaints, along with measures 
to protect those who make complaints or provide clues.  

TToottaall  rreemmuunneerraattiioonn  aanndd  tthhee  ttyyppee  ooff  rreemmuunneerraattiioonn  ggiivveenn  ttoo  eemmppllooyyeeeess  

In 2023, the Company’s total remuneration for employees amounted to 303.73 million Baht.   

The Company reviews the Pay for Performance criteria to be complied with the remuneration and 
according to the Company’s operation continuously such as adjusting the weight of performance 
management annually, setting the higher goal to challenge compared to the previous year. The Company 
provides a concrete remuneration system to encourage employees to have more potential. In addition, 
the Company takes into consideration the sufficiency of living in the current economic situation. An 
incentive bonus shall be paid to employees according to the employees’ performance and the Company 
operating performance in order to encourage employees to achieve the Company’s goal.  

The Company provides a systematic performance evaluation that the employees and supervisor 
jointly determine key performance indicator (KPI) in order to create empirical evidence, measurable, and 
evaluable, along with setting core competency to keep employees who are smart and good. 

The Company considers remuneration to be fair and that employees, who have equal 
performance, shall receive equal remuneration. Employees who perform better or more performance 
shall receive higher remuneration. The Company gives importance to all types of work because every job 
has an impact on success. Therefore, the work performance is analyzed and evaluated transparently.  

 

The Company has welfare benefit to reduce expense of the employees, e.g. medical expenses, 
dental expenses, eyeglasses or contact lenses, uniform, grant, emergency loan, vehicle loan, house loan. 

PPrroovviiddeenntt  ffuunndd  

The Company registered a provident fund on 1 June 1990 which was under the supervision of the 
Provident Fund Committee. In 2023, the Company contributed to the provident fund at the rate of           
5% of the salary, total amount 9.58 million Baht.  

Age (Year) Provident Fund Payment 
Member (Person) Amount (million Baht) 

per year 
Ratio 

< 30 years 61 0.68 10.9% 
30-50 year 297 6.27 53.1% 
> 50 years 48 2.63 8.6% 
None 153 - 27.4% 

HHuummaann  rreessoouurrccee  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  ppoolliiccyy  

The Company manages human resources to suit workloads and always improves the recruitment 
system to be more efficient and faster. The Company provides more channels to recruit applicants, 
creates a recruitment system that can select candidates who met the criteria with a good attitude and 
behaviour in accordance with the culture of the Company.  

Human resource development plan is set by considering business development plan under unified 
culture. The Company establishes the core competency as the main qualification to determine the main 
qualities that the Company expects from employees in terms of behavior and abilities that are consistent 
in the same direction and contribute for achieving the Company’s goal. 

The Company has a priority to develop and increase employees’ knowledge. In 2 0 2 3 , the 
employees took 52 training courses and seminars, which cost 1,776,800 Baht. 

Type of Training 
  

Number 
Courses Attended Training Hour 

Outsource Training 
For example, management, insurance, law, 
computer, claims, marketing, accounting, 
personnel management   

45 67 2,133 
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Type of Training 
  

Number 
Courses Attended Training Hour 

Internal Training 22 1,484 504 
For example, orientation, computer, profession, 
anti-corruption, and environment. 

   

 Total 67 1,551 2,637 
Average training hours per year    4.45 

Note:   
1. In 2023, the average number of employees was 592 
2. 1 employee might attend more than 1 training course 
3. The Company organized 1 internal e-Learning training course nationwide for the anti-corruption and 

cyber threats awareness. 

OOccccuuppaattiioonnaall  HHeeaalltthh  aanndd  SSaaffeettyy  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPllaann  

The Company is aware of the importance of safety, occupational health and working 
environment that affect the quality of life of employees by promoting safety, occupational health and 
the working environment that complies with international laws and standards. The workplace is designed 
to be suitable for the nature of work and safe, including improved to always be in good condition. The 
employees are reminded to keep the environment clean by following the 5 principles: manage, 
convenience, clean, hygienic, and habit. The Company provides tools and safety equipment that are 
appropriate to the employees’ job descriptions. Fire evacuation drills to prepare for emergencies is 
organized. The Company also promotes good health among employees by providing annual health 
examinations and provides vaccination against disease and exercise  

EEmmppllooyyeeee  EEnnggaaggeemmeenntt  PPllaann  aanndd  RReessuulltt  

The Company prioritizes human resources, which are valuable. Therefore, the Company are 
committed to building bonds between employees and the Company to retain talented employees. The 
development of knowledge and various skills are regularly promoted. The employees are encouraged to 
participate in expressing their opinions for the development through various projects and activities. 
Discussions to transfer knowledge are organized. The Company also gives employees opportunities to 
change their job duties to learn new jobs. In 2023, 505 employees responded to the satisfactory survey  
which was divided into 5 topics with 4 levels of satisfaction. An overview of the results is at a good level. 
Pride and loyalty to the Company were the topics that employees were most satisfied with, followed by 
the topic of atmosphere and working environment and performance evaluation respectively. The 
Company has an employee turnover rate of 8.07%, which is at a low level. The tendency of the turnover 
rate continuously decreases, compared to the average of the past 3 years. As a result, most of the 
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Type of Training 
  

Number 
Courses Attended Training Hour 

Internal Training 22 1,484 504 
For example, orientation, computer, profession, 
anti-corruption, and environment. 

   

 Total 67 1,551 2,637 
Average training hours per year    4.45 

Note:   
1. In 2023, the average number of employees was 592 
2. 1 employee might attend more than 1 training course 
3. The Company organized 1 internal e-Learning training course nationwide for the anti-corruption and 

cyber threats awareness. 

OOccccuuppaattiioonnaall  HHeeaalltthh  aanndd  SSaaffeettyy  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPllaann  

The Company is aware of the importance of safety, occupational health and working 
environment that affect the quality of life of employees by promoting safety, occupational health and 
the working environment that complies with international laws and standards. The workplace is designed 
to be suitable for the nature of work and safe, including improved to always be in good condition. The 
employees are reminded to keep the environment clean by following the 5 principles: manage, 
convenience, clean, hygienic, and habit. The Company provides tools and safety equipment that are 
appropriate to the employees’ job descriptions. Fire evacuation drills to prepare for emergencies is 
organized. The Company also promotes good health among employees by providing annual health 
examinations and provides vaccination against disease and exercise  

EEmmppllooyyeeee  EEnnggaaggeemmeenntt  PPllaann  aanndd  RReessuulltt  

The Company prioritizes human resources, which are valuable. Therefore, the Company are 
committed to building bonds between employees and the Company to retain talented employees. The 
development of knowledge and various skills are regularly promoted. The employees are encouraged to 
participate in expressing their opinions for the development through various projects and activities. 
Discussions to transfer knowledge are organized. The Company also gives employees opportunities to 
change their job duties to learn new jobs. In 2023, 505 employees responded to the satisfactory survey  
which was divided into 5 topics with 4 levels of satisfaction. An overview of the results is at a good level. 
Pride and loyalty to the Company were the topics that employees were most satisfied with, followed by 
the topic of atmosphere and working environment and performance evaluation respectively. The 
Company has an employee turnover rate of 8.07%, which is at a low level. The tendency of the turnover 
rate continuously decreases, compared to the average of the past 3 years. As a result, most of the 

 

employees have long working experience. Their knowledge and experience can be passed on 
continuously from generation to generation.   

77..66    OOtthheerr  IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  

77..66..11  IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  ooff  rreessppoonnssiibbllee  ppoossiittiioonn  

CCoommppaannyy  SSeeccrreettaarryy    

Ms. Charuwan Chabchamrun, the Company’s vice president level, was appointed by the Board of 
Directors since 15 May 2014, to serve as the company secretary. The Office of Company Secretary 
supports the company secretarial work to be efficiency and effective as well as compliance with the 
principles of good corporate governance as shown in attachment no. 1. 

DDuuttiieess  aanndd  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  CCoommppaannyy  SSeeccrreettaarryy   
1. Organize the meetings of shareholders and the Board as stipulated by law, the Company's 

Articles of Association, and other guidelines. 
2. Prepare the minutes of shareholders’ meetings and the minutes of the Board’s meetings         

as well as filing documents. 
3. Prepare and keep director registration. 
4. Keep report on the interest of directors and executives and submit the copies to the Chairman 

of the Board and the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
5. Ensure that the disclosure of the Company’s operations and the Board activities comply with 

rules and regulations of SET, SEC., OIC and other relevant regulators. 
6. Provide appropriate advice to the Board regarding related laws, the Company’s rules and 

regulations, as well as monitor compliance with accuracy on a regular basis. 
7. Communicate with internal departments of the Company to comply with the resolutions of     

the Board of Directors Meeting and the Shareholder’s Meeting.  
8. Prepare the annual report.  
9. Communicate with the Company’s shareholders to acknowledge the Company’s news and 

general information. 
10.  Proceed along with the notifications of Thai Capital Market Supervisory Board. 
11.  Perform other duties that are assigned by the Company.  

AAccccoouunnttiinngg  ssuuppeerrvviissoorr  

The Company assigned Mrs. Maysa Suntranusorn, Senior Manager of the Finance Department, to 
be an accounting supervisor. Her qualifications comply with the notification of Department of Business 
Development. More details are in attachment no. 1.  
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HHeeaadd  ooff  tthhee  IInntteerrnnaall  AAuuddiitt  

The Company assigned Mr. Phisit Photisatian, Vice President of the Office of Internal Audit, to be 
the head of internal audit. More detail is in attachment no.3  

DDuuttiieess  aanndd  RReessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  HHeeaadd  ooff  IInntteerrnnaall  AAuuddiitt    

1. Define, implement, and maintain an audit plan based on the risk level to examine and assess 
the consistency of the Company's work processes with the Company's risk management culture. 

2. Review and report on the accuracy, reliability, completeness of financial information and 
performance, as well as methods of performance evaluation and measurement. 

3. Verify that the Company has an adequate and efficient internal control system to manage      
the risks up to a controllable level and in line with Corporate Governance process. 

4. Follow and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of policy, work process and documentation, 
including operating control of both the Company and the business groups. 

5. Review operations or plans to ensure consistency with objectives and goals, as well as the 
implementation of those prescribed plans with efficiency and cost-effectiveness according to a good and 
proper governance process.   

6. Examine the operations of all departments in the Company to comply with the non-life 
insurance and other relevant  

7. Revise the efficiency and effectiveness of risk management in accordance with the framework 
and policy of overall risk management approved by the Board of Directors. 

8. Monitor and assess the effectiveness of the departments in charge of controlling the Company's 
operations, particularly, the Office of Risk Management and the Office of Compliance and disclose         
key issues found for further improvements. 

9. Review the work system with significant impact on operating performance and report to be         
in accordance with the Company’s policies, work plans and regulations including relevant laws. 

10. Assess procedures for protecting the Company and insured’s assets, as well as review            
the suitability of property preservation and examine the existence of the property.  

11. Appraise the efficiency and cost-effectiveness of the Company's resource utilization.  
12. Audit and evaluate risk and fraud management guidelines, the occurrence of errors, omission, 

and other unusual entries.  
13. Examine the suitability of information technology to be in accordance with the Company’s plan 

and IT risks 
14. Evaluate information system to ensure that there is adequate and efficient internal control    

that could protect the computer activities including backup system to support continuity management. 
15. Assess the reliability, completeness and effectiveness of information management procedure 

including methods used to identify, evaluate, classify and report on the use of information in               
the Company. 
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16. Assess the reliability of hierarchy reporting system including confidentiality in case that 
employees report rules violation as well as protection against retaliation and following up 

17. Prepare the audit plan by learning the work system, action, initial survey, resources, and 
procedures of the department to be audited 

18. Prepare the audit report by collecting information and fact from the audit and consider        
with Vice President of the audited department for the comment and suggestion 

19. Prepare the internal control evaluation report and present the summary of facts, suggestions, 
solution and opinion of the audited department to the Audit Committee and President for supervisory 

20. Follow up the revision according to the suggestion in the audit report. 
21. In case that the audit report does not specify the clarification or corrective action of              

the audited department, the vice president of the related department is responsible for providing     
written explanation and solution within 30 days of receipt of the report  

22. Control and keep the audit report and working paper and related documents used for auditing  
23. Coordinate with external auditor to enhance audit efficiency and reduce duplicated             

audit activities. 
24. Evaluate the working quality of external auditor. (if related) 

HHeeaadd  ooff  tthhee  CCoommpplliiaannccee    

The Company assigned Ms. Charuwan Chabchamrun, Senior Vice President supervising the Office of 
Compliance to be the head of compliance. More detail is on attachment no.3  

DDuuttiieess  aanndd  RReessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ooff  tthhee  HHeeaadd  ooff  CCoommpplliiaannccee    

1. Compile laws, rules, regulations, orders and notifications which are announced by regulators   
2. Summarize new and changed laws, rules, regulations, orders and notifications which are issued 

by regulators and communicate to all staff for acknowledgement and compliance  
3. Give a suggestion and advice related to laws, rules, regulations and notification for          

business operating 
4. Coordinate with all departments to prepare compliance risk management plan as well as 

proposed solutions to non-compliance transactions  
5. Prepare annual legal compliance report to the President and the Audit Committee 
6. Educate employees about the laws, rules and regulations related to the Company's operations 
7. Coordinate with the Office of Insurance Commission and other regulatory agencies under the 

law on behalf of the Company 
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77..66..22  SShhaarreehhoollddeerr  RReellaattiioonnss  

The Shareholder Relations division is responsible for investor relations. Ms. Charuwan Chabchamrun 
is assigned to be the head of the division. Investors shall contact the Shareholder Relations Division at: 

Shareholder Relations Division 
100/47 -55 , 90/3 -6 , floor 27, Sathorn Nakorn Tower, North Sathorn Road, Silom, Bangrak, 
Bangkok 10500. 
Telephone: 0 2664 7777 ext. 1905, 1906 and 7719  
E-mail: office_president@navakij.co.th 

77..66..33    RReemmuunneerraattiioonn  ooff  AAuuddiittoorr  

AAuuddiitt  FFeeee  

The Company pays audit fee to EY Office Limited for the year 2023, details as follows: 
1. Annual audit and quarterly review fee for the financial statements 1,980,000 Baht  
2. Review fee for RBC (Risk Based Capital) for the year 2023  585,000 Baht 
 and second quarter of the year 2023 
 Total 2,565,000 Baht 

NNoonn--AAuuddiitt  FFeeee  
In the previous year, the Company paid a fee for auditing the analysis report of accounting 

practices against the requirements of Financial Reporting Standards No. 17 to the auditor, totaling 550,000 
Baht. 
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88..    CCoorrppoorraattee  ggoovveerrnnaannccee  ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee  rreeppoorrtt  

88..11  SSuummmmaarryy  ooff  tthhee  ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  iinn  tthhee  ppaasstt  yyeeaarr  
In 2023, the Board of Directors reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and Code of Conduct, to 

be in line with the Corporate Governance Code of Listed Companies 2017, taking into consideration the 
recommendations from the Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed Companies.  

88..11..11  NNoommiinnaattiioonn,,  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt,,  aanndd  ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee  eevvaalluuaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss    

((11))  IInnddeeppeennddeenntt  ddiirreeccttoorr    

 The Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee is responsible for 
nominating directors. The Board of Directors consists of 5 independent directors. The Company defines 
definitions of independent directors as same as the criteria of Thai Capital Market Supervisory Board as 
follows: 

1. Shall not hold more than 1 %  of total voting shares of the Company, its parent company, 
subsidiary, associate, major shareholder, or the controlling person of the Company including the 
shareholding of related persons. 

2. Shall neither be nor have ever been a director with management authority, an employee, a 
staff or an advisor who receives a regular salary, or a controlling person of the Company, its parent 
company, subsidiary, associate, same-tier subsidiary company, major shareholder or controlling person of 
the Company, unless the term has been terminated for not less than 2 years. 

3.  Shall not be a person who relating by blood or legal parents, spouses, siblings and child, 
including the spouses of child, an executive, a major shareholder, a controlling person of the Company 
and a person who will be nominated to be an executive or authorized person of the Company or 
subsidiary. 

4. Shall neither have nor have ever had a business relationship with the Company, its parent 
company, subsidiary, associated Company, a major shareholder, or an authorized person of the Company. 
Shall not be a person who is significant shareholder or an authorized person able to have business 
relationship with the Company, its parent company, the subsidiary, an associated Company, a major 
shareholder or an authorized person; by considering transactions with 2 0  million Baht or 3 %  of the 
Company's net tangible assets, unless the term has been terminated for not less than 2 years. 

5. Shall neither be nor have ever been an auditor of the Company, its parent company,                
a subsidiary, an associated Company, a major shareholder, or an authorized person of the Company. Shall 
not be a significant shareholder, an authorized person or a partner of the audit firm which employs the 
auditor of the Company, its parent company, a subsidiary, an associated Company, a major shareholder or 
an authorized person of the Company, unless the term has been terminated for not less than 2 years. 

6. Shall not be nor have ever been a provider of any professional services, including a legal 
advisor or a financial advisor who receives 2 million Baht service fee per year from the Company, its 
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parent company, the subsidiary, an associated Company, a major shareholder, or an authorized person of 
the Company. Shall not be a significant shareholder, an authorized person or a partner of that 
professional service provider unless the term has been terminated for not less than 2 years. 

7. Shall not be a director appointed to represent the Company's directors, a major shareholder or 
a shareholder who is related to a major shareholder. 

8.  Shall not operate the same business and have significant competition with the Company's 
business or subsidiaries. Shall not be a significant partner in the partnership or be a director                
who participates in the management, an employee, a staff, a consultant who receives a regular salary or 
hold shares more than 1% of the total number of shares of voting rights of another company which 
operate the same business and in competition with the Company or its subsidiary. 

9.  Shall not have any other characteristics that prevent the ability to express independent 
opinions on the Company's operations. 

BBuussiinneessss  rreellaattiioonnsshhiipp  ooff  iinnddeeppeennddeenntt  ddiirreeccttoorrss  

The Board of Directors approved the extenuated prohibition criteria on business relationship of 
independent directors. The value size is not more than 3% of the net tangible assets (NTA) of the 
Company. The business relationships must be an ordinary business and must support the Company’s 
operations in a general condition the Company should treat contractual parties in the same situation 
without any benefits that might affect independent opinions. The supervision procedures are as follows: 

1. The Executive Board examines and reports the business relationship of independent directors 
whose transaction exceeds 3% of NTA to the Board of Directors' Meeting. 

2. Information on independent directors’ business relations shall be presented to the Board of 
Directors' Meeting and the shareholders' Meeting for nominating independent directors. 

3. Business relationships of independent directors shall be disclosed in the form of 56-1 One 
Report, or in accordance with the notification of Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

In 2023, the motor dealer and the motor repair service center that Mr. Kiet Srichomkwan, the 
Company's independent director, is a major shareholder; had a business relationship with the Company. 
The business value was 11.18 million Baht, which was not more than 20 million Baht and not more than 
3 % of the Company’s NTA. The Board of Directors was of the opinion that it did not affect the 
independent opinion because it was normal business and supported normal business transactions. The 
mentioned business was divided into 2 parts; 1) Insurance premiums under marketing campaign of Toyota 
Motor Thailand Co., Ltd., that provided free policies for customers who select the insurance company by 
themselves, amounted to 767,021 Baht 2) motor repair cost under the Toyota Care for customers whose 
policies specified the repair service center, amounted to 10.41 million Baht. 
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IInnddeeppeennddeennccee  ooff  tthhee  CChhaaiirrmmaann  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

The Chairman of the Board is not an independent director, but duties and responsibilities            
are clearly separated from the Chief Executive Officer and the President; so that the Chairman              
can independently supervise the operations of the management. The Chairman has duties and 
responsibilities as follows: 

1. To preside over the Board of Directors Meeting 
2. To make decisive vote, in case of equal voting result  
3. To summon the Board of Directors' Meeting  
4. To preside over the Shareholders' Meeting. 

 In this regard, the Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Chan Soo Lee, an independent director, to 
participate in determining the agenda for the Board of Directors' Meeting. 

((22))    NNoommiinnaattiioonn  ooff  ddiirreeccttoorrss  aanndd  sseenniioorr  eexxeeccuuttiivveess  

NNoommiinnaattiioonn  ooff  ddiirreeccttoorrss    

The Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee is responsible for 
selecting and nominating person who has qualifications, knowledge, and experience in accordance with 
the criteria specified by the Company for the Board of Directors to approve before proposing to the 
Shareholders' Meeting for appointment. During 1 September 2022 to 31 December 2022, the Company 
gave shareholders an opportunity to propose candidates to be nominated as directors via the Company’s 
website. However, none of the shareholders proposed a qualified candidate. 

2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholder resolved the appointment of 5 former directors, 
namely Mr. Suchin Wanglee, Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra, Dr. Saran Wanglee, Mr. Kiet Srichomkwan and Mrs. 
Phronpun Phornprapha, whose terms of office had expired for another term. 

Details of the nomination of directors are reported in section 6.1 Overview of Corporate 
Governance Policies and Practices, Principle 3: an effective board development. 

NNoommiinnaattiioonn  ooff  sseenniioorr  eexxeeccuuttiivveess    

The Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee is responsible for 
recruiting and screening persons with appropriate qualifications, abilities, and experiences to propose to 
the Board of Directors in order to appoint to be a senior executive in the position of the Chief Executive 
Officer and the President including considering the remuneration to propose to the Board of Directors. 

In 2023, the Company considered renewing the work contract of Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra, Chief 
Executive Officer and President, as well as determine the appropriate remuneration. 
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The nomination of senior executives is reported in section 6.1 Overview of Corporate Governance 
Policies and Practices, Principle 4: Nomination and development of senior executives and personnel 
management. 

DDiirreeccttoorrss  aanndd  EExxeeccuuttiivveess  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt 

The Company encourages directors and executives to attend training courses, seminars or various 
meetings to enhance knowledge and ability. In 2023, directors and executives attended training, seminars 
and meetings as follows: 

Directors Course/Seminar/Meeting 

Gen. Montree Sungkasap - Seminar on the Strong Securities Issuer Project, topic "Role and 
Duties of Directors and Executives of Listed Companies" 
Organized by the Securities and Exchange Commission 

- Seminar on “Importance of the Audit Committee and 
Confidence in the Thai Capital Market”  
Organized by the Stock Exchange of Thailand 

Mrs. Wanida Chansikarin - Seminar on “Importance of the Audit Committee and 
Confidence in the Thai Capital Market”  
Organized by the Stock Exchange of Thailand 

Dr. Saran Wanglee - - Board Nomination and Remuneration Program (BNCP On-Site) 
training course, class 18 
Organized by the Thai Institute of Directors Association 

Mr. Anak Wanglee - Director Accreditation Program (DAP Online) training course, 
class 209 
Organized by the Thai Institute of Directors Association. 

- Training on the e-Learning CFO Refresher course on the topic 
"Sustainable Business Operations (ESG) Issues Related to 
Operational Strategy Disclosure of information and financial 
reports of listed companies" 
Organized by the Stock Exchange of Thailand 
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Note: 
No.12  was appointed as a director on 10 May 2023 in replacement of Mr. Thamnu Wanglee 
No.13 was appointed as a director on 10 May 2023 in replacement of Ms. Charuwan Chabchamrun and 

was appointed as a member of the Risk Management Committee on 7 November 2023                 
in replacement of Miss Anukul Thitikulrat 

No.14 was vacated from the position of a director on 21 April 2023 due to resignation 
No.15 was vacated from the position of a director on 21 April 2023 due to resignation  
No.17 was vacated from the position of a member of the Risk Management Committee on 30 September 

2023 due to resignation 

RReemmuunneerraattiioonn  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

The Board of Directors determines the directors' remuneration taking into consideration the duty, 
responsibility and the performance comparing with other similar business companies including              
the dividends paid to shareholders. The 2 0 2 1  Annual General Meeting of Shareholders resolved to 
approve the remuneration of directors and subcommittees as follows: 

1. Cash remuneration 
 It is divided into 2 types as follows: 

1.1 Meeting Allowance: Paid to directors and subcommittees who attend the meeting.  
         The rates of payment per meeting attendance are as follows. 

Board/Committee Chairman 
(Baht/Times) 

Director 
(Baht/Times) 

Board of Directors 30,000 20,000 

Audit Committee 30,000 20,000 
Remuneration, Nomination and   
Sustainable Development Committee 

20,000 10,000 

Risk Management Committee 20,000 10,000 

Investment Committee 20,000 10,000 

1.2 Bonus:  Paid to the Board of Directors in the amount of 2,300,000 Baht. The Chairman of 
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer are paid 2 times. 

2. Other remuneration 
              The Company does not provide any other remuneration or benefits to the directors. 
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Note: 
No.12  was appointed as a director on 10 May 2023 in replacement of Mr. Thamnu Wanglee 
No.13 was appointed as a director on 10 May 2023 in replacement of Ms. Charuwan Chabchamrun and 

was appointed as a member of the Risk Management Committee on 7 November 2023                 
in replacement of Miss Anukul Thitikulrat 

No.14 was vacated from the position of a director on 21 April 2023 due to resignation 
No.15 was vacated from the position of a director on 21 April 2023 due to resignation  
No.17 was vacated from the position of a member of the Risk Management Committee on 30 September 

2023 due to resignation 

RReemmuunneerraattiioonn  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

The Board of Directors determines the directors' remuneration taking into consideration the duty, 
responsibility and the performance comparing with other similar business companies including              
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approve the remuneration of directors and subcommittees as follows: 

1. Cash remuneration 
 It is divided into 2 types as follows: 

1.1 Meeting Allowance: Paid to directors and subcommittees who attend the meeting.  
         The rates of payment per meeting attendance are as follows. 

Board/Committee Chairman 
(Baht/Times) 

Director 
(Baht/Times) 

Board of Directors 30,000 20,000 

Audit Committee 30,000 20,000 
Remuneration, Nomination and   
Sustainable Development Committee 

20,000 10,000 

Risk Management Committee 20,000 10,000 

Investment Committee 20,000 10,000 

1.2 Bonus:  Paid to the Board of Directors in the amount of 2,300,000 Baht. The Chairman of 
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer are paid 2 times. 

2. Other remuneration 
              The Company does not provide any other remuneration or benefits to the directors. 
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Note: 
No.1  Chairman of the Board of Directors’ total remuneration does not include that of the position of an 

advisor to the Executive Board, which are salary, bonus, and provident fund contributions. Total 
remuneration for the whole year is 9,219,160 Baht. 

No.2  Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Investment Committee 
No.3  Chairman of the Audit Committee 
No.4  Chairman of the Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee 
No.5  Chairman of the Risk Management Committee’s total remuneration does not include that of the 

position of an advisor to the Chairman, which are salary, bonus and provident fund contributions. 
Total remuneration for the whole year is 5,679,500 Baht. 

No.12 was appointed as a director on 10 May 2023 in replacement of Mr. Thamnu Wanglee 
No.13 was appointed as a director on 10 May 2023 in replacement of Ms. Charuwan Chabchamrun and 

was appointed as a member of the Risk Management Committee on 7 November 2023                 
in replacement of Miss Anukul Thitikulrat 

No.14 was vacated from the position of a director on 21 April 2023 due to resignation 
No.15 was vacated from the position of a director on 21 April 2023 due to resignation  
No.16 was vacated from the position of director due to the expiration of term of office in 2022. Received 

a director's bonus based on the performance in 2022. 
No.18 was vacated from the position of a member of the Risk Management Committee on 30 September 

2023 due to resignation. 

88..11..33  SSuuppeerrvviissiioonn  ooff  ssuubbssiiddiiaarriieess  aanndd  aassssoocciiaatteedd  ccoommppaanniieess  

The Company has established guidelines for supervising subsidiaries and associated companies    
by appointing a representative to be director in the associated companies in proportion to the 
shareholding to supervise the management of the associated companies. The representative directors 
must perform in accordance with the objectives, regulations, resolutions of the Board and shareholders 
meeting as well as related laws of associated companies; set directions, strategies, policies, and business 
plans to be in line with the Company's direction; report to the Company on the operations; also consider 
and vote at associated companies Board meetings. 

The Company requires the associated company to disclose important information to the Company, 
such as operating performance, financial statements, and important operational issues. The associated 
company is also supervised to have appropriate internal control systems, internal audit, compliance, and 
risk management to the size and complexity of the business. 
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Note: 
No.1  Chairman of the Board of Directors’ total remuneration does not include that of the position of an 

advisor to the Executive Board, which are salary, bonus, and provident fund contributions. Total 
remuneration for the whole year is 9,219,160 Baht. 

No.2  Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Investment Committee 
No.3  Chairman of the Audit Committee 
No.4  Chairman of the Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee 
No.5  Chairman of the Risk Management Committee’s total remuneration does not include that of the 

position of an advisor to the Chairman, which are salary, bonus and provident fund contributions. 
Total remuneration for the whole year is 5,679,500 Baht. 

No.12 was appointed as a director on 10 May 2023 in replacement of Mr. Thamnu Wanglee 
No.13 was appointed as a director on 10 May 2023 in replacement of Ms. Charuwan Chabchamrun and 

was appointed as a member of the Risk Management Committee on 7 November 2023                 
in replacement of Miss Anukul Thitikulrat 

No.14 was vacated from the position of a director on 21 April 2023 due to resignation 
No.15 was vacated from the position of a director on 21 April 2023 due to resignation  
No.16 was vacated from the position of director due to the expiration of term of office in 2022. Received 

a director's bonus based on the performance in 2022. 
No.18 was vacated from the position of a member of the Risk Management Committee on 30 September 

2023 due to resignation. 

88..11..33  SSuuppeerrvviissiioonn  ooff  ssuubbssiiddiiaarriieess  aanndd  aassssoocciiaatteedd  ccoommppaanniieess  

The Company has established guidelines for supervising subsidiaries and associated companies    
by appointing a representative to be director in the associated companies in proportion to the 
shareholding to supervise the management of the associated companies. The representative directors 
must perform in accordance with the objectives, regulations, resolutions of the Board and shareholders 
meeting as well as related laws of associated companies; set directions, strategies, policies, and business 
plans to be in line with the Company's direction; report to the Company on the operations; also consider 
and vote at associated companies Board meetings. 

The Company requires the associated company to disclose important information to the Company, 
such as operating performance, financial statements, and important operational issues. The associated 
company is also supervised to have appropriate internal control systems, internal audit, compliance, and 
risk management to the size and complexity of the business. 

 

 

 

88..11..44 MMoonniittoorriinngg  ttoo  eennssuurree  ccoommpplliiaannccee  wwiitthh  ccoorrppoorraattee  ggoovveerrnnaannccee  ppoolliicciieess  aanndd  gguuiiddeelliinneess  

The Company has paid attention to compliance with the Corporate Governance Policy and      
Code of Conduct. In 2023, the Company received an Excellent CG Scoring from the Corporate Governance 
Report of Thai Listed Company and received 93 score for the assessment of the Shareholders' Meeting.  

The Company has monitored on compliance with the corporate governance principles in 4 other 
issues as follows: 

((11)) PPrreevveennttiioonn  ooff  ccoonnfflliicctt  ooff  iinntteerreesstt  

 The Company determines that the personnel should avoid any action that competes with the 
Company or making transactions related to oneself that might cause conflicts of interest. The Company 
required directors, executives, and vice presidents to prepare a report on interest and review such report 
annually. 

 The details of the prevention of conflicts of interest were reported in section 6 .1  Overview of 
Corporate Governance Policies and Practices, Principle 6: Risk management supervision and internal 
control systems. 

 In 2023, neither director nor executive of the Company took any position of director in other rival 
company. There were no related party transactions that might cause conflicts of interest with the 
Company. 

((22)) EExxppllooiittaattiioonn  ooff  iinntteerrnnaall  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn    

The Board of Directors establishes a policy to prevent the exploited use of internal information by 
the Board of Directors, executives and employees including related persons such as spouses and 
underage children. Any violator would be punished. 

Details on the supervision of the use of internal information were provided in a report in section 
6 .1  Overview of Corporate Governance Policies and Practices, Principle 6: Risk management supervision 
and internal control systems. 

In the previous year, Directors who traded in the Company's securities prepared a securities trading 
report (Form 59) within the specified period. There were no securities trading transactions during the silent 
period. 
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NNKKII’’ss  sshhaarreehhoollddiinngg  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  aanndd  EExxeeccuuttiivveess  

  
((33))  AAnnttii--CCoorrrruuppttiioonn  

 In 2023, Anti-Corruption Working Team (“the Working Team”) reviewed the Anti-Corruption Policy 
and Measures to be in accordance with the guidelines of Thai Private Sector Collective Action against 
Corruption and other relevant laws including changed rules, regulations, legal requirements, and business 
of the Company. The Working Team proposed a reviewed version of the Anti-Corruption Policy and 
Measures to the Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee to consider and 
approve before proposing to the Board of Directors for approval in the meeting No. 6/2023 held on           
7 November 2023. 

The Working Team communicated the Policies and Measures via the Company's intranet system for 
employees to be acknowledged and learn through Navakij Training Campus system between 6-28 
December 2023. The Company also communicated the mentioned Policies and Measures to third parties, 

Name Share Capital (Shares) 
As of  

28 December 2023 
As of 

30 December 2022 
Increase (Decrease) 

During Financial Year 
Held 

Personally 
Held by 
Spouse/ 

Minor 
Child 

Held 
Personally 

Held by 
Spouse/ 

Minor 
Child 

Held 
Personally 

Held by 
Spouse/ 

Minor 
Child 

1. Mr. Suchin Wanglee 3,723,769 1,295,000 3,623,127 1,260,000 100,642 35,000 
2. Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra 174,470 - 169,756 - 4,714 - 
3. Mr. Kiet Srichomkwan 44,181 - 42,987 - 1,194 - 
4. Gen. Montree Sungkasap - - - - - - 
5. Mr. Nipol T. Jeerawong 61,181 37,530 59,528 36,516 1,653 1,014 
6. Mrs. Wanida Chansikarin 3,912 - 3,807 - 105 - 
7. Mr. Chan Soo Lee 365,206 - 355,336 - 9,870 - 
8. Mrs. Phornpun Phornprapha - - - - - - 
9. Mr. Vuttichai Wanglee 645,034 14,921 627,601 14,518 17,433 403 
10. Miss Jittinan Wanglee 252,323 - 245,504 - 6,819 - 
11. Dr. Saran Wanglee 204,921 - 199,383 - 5,538 - 
12. Mr. Anak Wanglee 75,046 - 73,018 - 2,028 - 
13. Mr. Anin Wanglee 111,043 - 108,043 - 3,000 - 
14. Mr. Thamnu Wanglee 473,200 17,860 460,411 17,378 12,789 482 
15. Ms. Charuwan Chabchamrun - - - - - - 
16. Mrs. Nalina Bodharamik - - - - - - 
17. Miss Anukul Thitikulrat - - - - - - 
 Total 6,134,286 1,365,311 5,968,501 1,328,412 165,785 36,899 
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NNKKII’’ss  sshhaarreehhoollddiinngg  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  aanndd  EExxeeccuuttiivveess  

  
((33))  AAnnttii--CCoorrrruuppttiioonn  

 In 2023, Anti-Corruption Working Team (“the Working Team”) reviewed the Anti-Corruption Policy 
and Measures to be in accordance with the guidelines of Thai Private Sector Collective Action against 
Corruption and other relevant laws including changed rules, regulations, legal requirements, and business 
of the Company. The Working Team proposed a reviewed version of the Anti-Corruption Policy and 
Measures to the Remuneration, Nomination and Sustainable Development Committee to consider and 
approve before proposing to the Board of Directors for approval in the meeting No. 6/2023 held on           
7 November 2023. 

The Working Team communicated the Policies and Measures via the Company's intranet system for 
employees to be acknowledged and learn through Navakij Training Campus system between 6-28 
December 2023. The Company also communicated the mentioned Policies and Measures to third parties, 

Name Share Capital (Shares) 
As of  

28 December 2023 
As of 

30 December 2022 
Increase (Decrease) 

During Financial Year 
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Personally 
Held by 
Spouse/ 

Minor 
Child 

Held 
Personally 

Held by 
Spouse/ 

Minor 
Child 

Held 
Personally 

Held by 
Spouse/ 

Minor 
Child 

1. Mr. Suchin Wanglee 3,723,769 1,295,000 3,623,127 1,260,000 100,642 35,000 
2. Mr. Pitiphong Bisalputra 174,470 - 169,756 - 4,714 - 
3. Mr. Kiet Srichomkwan 44,181 - 42,987 - 1,194 - 
4. Gen. Montree Sungkasap - - - - - - 
5. Mr. Nipol T. Jeerawong 61,181 37,530 59,528 36,516 1,653 1,014 
6. Mrs. Wanida Chansikarin 3,912 - 3,807 - 105 - 
7. Mr. Chan Soo Lee 365,206 - 355,336 - 9,870 - 
8. Mrs. Phornpun Phornprapha - - - - - - 
9. Mr. Vuttichai Wanglee 645,034 14,921 627,601 14,518 17,433 403 
10. Miss Jittinan Wanglee 252,323 - 245,504 - 6,819 - 
11. Dr. Saran Wanglee 204,921 - 199,383 - 5,538 - 
12. Mr. Anak Wanglee 75,046 - 73,018 - 2,028 - 
13. Mr. Anin Wanglee 111,043 - 108,043 - 3,000 - 
14. Mr. Thamnu Wanglee 473,200 17,860 460,411 17,378 12,789 482 
15. Ms. Charuwan Chabchamrun - - - - - - 
16. Mrs. Nalina Bodharamik - - - - - - 
17. Miss Anukul Thitikulrat - - - - - - 
 Total 6,134,286 1,365,311 5,968,501 1,328,412 165,785 36,899 

 

such as partners, business partners and associated companies via the Company's website and electronic 
mail and also specified conditions on Anti-Corruption in the commercial contract. In addition, the 
Company also invited business partners to join as members of Thailand Private Sector Collective Action 
Coalition Against Corruption. 

The Company categorizes corruption risk in operational risks and requires all departments to assess 
operational risks as well as prepare a risk mitigation plan annually. The Office of Risk Management would 
monitor and summarize the risks, give advice on the preparation of a risk management plan and report to 
the Risk Management Committee. 

The Company was recertified as a member of the Thai Private Sector Collective Action against 
Corruption. The Company was certified for the first time in 2015 and recertified in 2018 and 2021. 

  ((44))  WWhhiissttlleebblloowwiinngg  

The Company establishes the Whistleblowing Policy to enable stakeholders to make suggestions, 
complaints, or whistleblowing actions that might imply misconduct by the Company’s employees.        
The Company did not receive any corruption complaints in the year 2023. 

((55))  CCoommpplliiaannccee  wwiitthh  CCooddee  ooff  CCoonndduucctt  

 In 2023, the Company did not find any significant violation of the policies and guidelines against 
Code of Conduct. 

((66))  IInnffoorrmmaattiioonn  aanndd  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  ssyysstteemm  sseeccuurriittyy  iinncciiddeenntt  mmoonniittoorriinngg  

 Employees acknowledge and comply with the Personal Data Protection Policy for stakeholders, 
Information Security Policy and Information Technology Risk Management. In 2023, the Company did not 
find any significant violation of aforementioned policies. Incidents of information leakage or misuse were 
also not found. 

((77))  TTaaxx  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  

 The Company committed to tax operations in accordance with the laws and regulations of           
the government taxation and Tax Policy of the Company by managing tax correctly, punctually, with 
complete accounting records. The Company regularly reviewed tax calculations and kept reports in 
proper format without any tax evasion. The Company will study the tax implications when implementing 
new projects or transactions, including when there are new tax laws or policies to proceed correctly as 
required by law. The Company considers using tax reduction measures as supported by the government 
to achieve maximum benefit to the Company and stakeholders and not seek opportunities from irregular 
tax structures or taking any actions that are tax evasion. The Company also cooperates with government 
sectors in preparing tax information to ensure that the Company conducts tax operations transparently 
and in accordance with the law. 
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99  IInntteerrnnaall  ccoonnttrrooll  aanndd  rreellaatteedd  ppaarrttiieess  ttrraannssaaccttiioonn    

99..11  IInntteerrnnaall  ccoonnttrrooll  

99..11..11    TThhee  ooppiinniioonn  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  oonn  iinntteerrnnaall  ccoonnttrrooll  ssyysstteemm    

 The Board of Directors Meeting No.1/2024 on 19 February 2024 in which the Audit Committee 
attended, considered the Company's internal control systems sufficiency evaluation form in 5 areas which 
were the control environment, the risk assessment, the control activities, the information, and 
communication as well as the monitoring activities. The internal control system, which was assessed 
according to the evaluation form of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), was reviewed by the 
Audit Committee, taking into consideration the management interrogation, the Audit Committee’s 
opinion, and the Office of Internal Audit’s internal control report.  

 The Board of Directors was of the opinion that the Company has an adequate and appropriate 
internal control system. The Company provided sufficient personnel to operate according to the system 
effectively. The Office of Internal Audit staff did not have knowledge of auditing information systems, so 
the Company provided an outsource expert to audit the information systems. In 2023, the outsource 
experts audited the IT governance and risk management, cyber crimes as well as ISO 27001 standard. 

 The Company prepared the Risk Management Policy in accordance with various determined criteria 
which was considered appropriate for the Company together with the risk assessment reports. The Risk 
Management Committee was assigned to monitor the Company's risk management results quarterly. 

 The Company abided by the Good Corporate Governance Policy for the benefits of the insureds, 
employees, shareholders and society. The Company joined Thai Private Sector Collective Action against 
Corruption for transparent and ethic operation, complied with business-related laws, and provided 
valuable and quality insurance coverage.  

 The Audit Committee Meeting No. 1/2015 on 8 January 2015 agreed to appoint Mr. Phisit 
Photisatian to be the head of the Office of Internal Audit from 1 January 2015 because of his appropriate 
educational background, training, and experience. The Office of Internal Audit reported directly to            
the Audit Committee. 

 The appointment, removal, transfer, and performance evaluation of the head of the Office of 
Internal Audit shall be approved by the Audit Committee. The qualifications and responsibilities of the 
head of the Office of Internal Audit are presented in attachment 3.  
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99..22  RReellaatteedd  ttrraannssaaccttiioonnss  

DDeeffiinniittiioonn  ooff  rreellaatteedd  ttrraannssaaccttiioonnss  

 The Company and related businesses are bound to conduct transactions with one another in such 
ways as through shareholding, common directors or business transaction arose in the ordinary course of 
business based on market terms and conditions. They are disclosed in notes to the financial statements, 
under item 33 as shown in “Section 3 Financial Report”.  

PPrroocceedduurreess  ffoorr  aapppprroovviinngg  rreellaatteedd  ttrraannssaaccttiioonnss  

 The Board of Directors has approved guidelines and procedures for related transactions to ensure 
the Company’s best interest. The management and/or the person authorized by the management are 
authorized to make related transactions that are normal business or normal business support under 
traditional business practices e.g. insurance or investment transactions. The directors and management 
who hold positions of executive and vice president shall prepare the interest reports annually of which 
the information is used for checking related transactions. The management shall propose the transactions 
that require approval in compliance with rules and procedures prescribed by laws to the Audit 
Committee, the Board of Directors and the shareholders’ meeting for approval respectively. The 
complete information of such transactions shall be disclosed. The directors, executives or stakeholders 
who have an interest shall neither participate in consideration nor vote on those transactions.  

PPoolliiccyy  oorr  tteennddeennccyy  ooff  rreellaatteedd  ttrraannssaaccttiioonnss  pprroocceessss  iinn  tthhee  ffuuttuurree  

 Future related transactions shall be conducted by implementing fairly and transparently as well as 
complying with rules and regulations of the Notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
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RReeppoorrtt  ooff  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss’’  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  ffoorr  tthhee  ffiinnaanncciiaall  ssttaatteemmeennttss 

The Board of directors puts strong emphasis on the principles of Good Corporate Governance and 
supervised the financial reports presented in the annual report. Such financial reports were prepared            
in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, applying the appropriate accounting policies and 
consistently adhered with careful discretion and best estimation in the preparation. Moreover, significant 
information which was disclosed sufficiently in the notes to financial statements benefited shareholders 
and investors in a transparent manner. 

The Board of Directors has provided and maintained the appropriate and efficient internal control 
system to reasonably ensure that the accounting data are accurate, complete, and sufficient to maintain 
its assets and to prevent fraud and materially irregular operation. 

The Audit Committee that comprises independent directors has been assigned by the Board of 
Directors to take charge of the Company’s financial reports and internal control quality matters. The Audit 
Committee’s opinion regarding this issue is disclosed in this annual report under the section of the Audit 
Committee’s report. 

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the overall internal control system of the Company is 
sufficient, appropriate, able to build the confidence that the financial statement of the Company for       
the year ended 31 December 2 0 2 3  is reliable, complies with relevant laws and regulations as well as        
in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards. 

  

                         

Suchin Wanglee                       Pitiphong Bisalputra 
          Chairman of the Board of Directors                        CEO & President 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Shareholders of The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements, in which the equity method is applied, of 

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited, which comprise the statement of financial 

position as at 31 December 2023, and the related statements of income, comprehensive income, 

changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies, and have also audited the separate 

financial statements of The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited for the same period. 

In my opinion, the financial statements, in which the equity method is applied, referred to above 

present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The Navakij Insurance Public 

Company Limited as at 31 December 2023, its financial performance and cash flows for the year 

then ended and the separate financial statements of The Navakij Insurance Public Company 

Limited in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.  

Basis for Opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under 

those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Company in accordance with 

the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants including Independence Standards issued by the 

Federation of Accounting Professions (Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants) that are 

relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and I have fulfilled my other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. I believe that 

the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 
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2 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most 

significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 

addressed in the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my 

opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

I have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of my report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, my 

audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the risks 

of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures, 

including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for my audit 

opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a whole. 

Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond to each matter are described below. 

Insurance premium recognition 

In 2023, the Company had revenue from insurance premiums amounting to Baht 3,823.8 million, 

which were derived from retail insured and had a large number of policies. The insurance 

premiums are collected from variety customers and insurance premiums amount rely on the 

processing of information technology system. I therefore focused on examining that insurance 

premium was correctly recognised as actually incurred. 

I have assessed and tested the internal controls of information technology system and its internal 

controls with respect to underwriting, insurance premiums calculation and revenue recognition of 

insurance premiums by making enquiry of responsible executives, gaining an understanding and 

selecting representative samples to test the operation of the designed controls. In addition,                     

I selected representative samples of insurance policies to assess whether revenue recognition 

was consistent with conditions specified in the insurance policies. I reviewed the insurance 

policies and endorsement transactions occurring during the accounting period, before and after 

period-end, which were recognised as revenues of the Company. In addition, I performed 

analytical procedures to compare insurance premiums recognised throughout the period and 

tested on sampling basis for accounting entries related to insurance premiums made through 

journal vouchers. 
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 3

Insurance contract liabilities - claim reserves and outstanding claims 

Insurance contract liabilities - claim reserves and outstanding claims account is significant to the 

financial statements. As at 31 December 2023, the Company had claim reserves and outstanding 

claims amounted to Baht 1,023.1 million (representing 26 percent of total liabilities). Claim 

reserves and outstanding claims normally includes both claims incurred and reported and claims 

incurred but not reported, which were calculated by the Company’s management using actuarial 

techniques. The key assumptions applied were based on historical data and required the 

management to exercise substantial judgement in estimating such reserves, so I addressed the 

adequacy of claim reserves and outstanding claims as a key audit matter. In addition, such claim 

reserves and outstanding claims are directly relevant to claim reserves refundable from 

reinsurers which were also calculated by the Company’s management using actuarial techniques. 

As at                            31 December 2023, the Company had claim reserves refundable from 

reinsurers amounting to Baht 166.8 million.   

I have assessed and tested the internal controls relevant to claims, loss adjustments, estimation 

of claim reserves and outstanding claims, and reinsurance by making enquiry of responsible 

executives regarding the criteria and assumptions used in the estimates made by the actuary. 

Performed random test reported claims and major claims file, and performed analytical 

procedures on the frequency of claims and average loss per claim. In addition, I reviewed the 

actuarial report to assess whether it was consistent with the reserve recognised, assessed the 

assumptions and methods used in the calculation of the reserves, test the data used by the 

actuary in calculating the reserves. Moreover, I also reviewed the estimates of insurance reserves 

refundable from reinsurers.   

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the 

information included in annual report of the Company, but does not include the financial 

statements and my auditor’s report thereon. The annual report of the Company is expected to be 

made available to me after the date of this auditor’s report. 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express 

any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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 4

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 

the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated.  

When I read the annual report of the Company, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement 

therein, I am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance for correction 

of the misstatement. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 

Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as 

management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 

process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 

and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, I exercise professional 

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to 

draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, 

if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the 

audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 

in internal control that I identify during my audit. 
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I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 

in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 6

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where 

applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters 

that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and 

are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 

I determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 

of such communication. 

I am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.  

 

 

 

Narissara Chaisuwan  

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4812 

EY Office Limited 

Bangkok: 19 February 2024 
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(Unit: Baht)

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Note 2023 2022 2023 2022

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 187,964,771    293,466,693    187,964,771    293,466,693    

Premium receivables 7 608,865,352    557,809,721    608,865,352    557,809,721    

Accrued investment income 8,006,135        6,187,364        8,006,135        6,187,364        

Reinsurance assets 8 580,254,609    663,462,167    580,254,609    663,462,167    

Reinsurance receivables 9 234,986,796    395,973,799    234,986,796    395,973,799    

Investment assets

   Investments in securities 10.1 3,650,126,203 3,419,999,695 3,650,126,203 3,419,999,695 

   Loans and interest receivables 11 491,492           686,989           491,492           686,989           

Investments in associates 12.1 17,037,797      21,149,002      22,574,882      33,337,976      

Property, building and equipment 13 353,940,595    337,559,369    353,940,595    337,559,369    

Right-of-use assets 14.1 26,572,816      28,215,001      26,572,816      28,215,001      

Intangible assets 15 13,836,200      16,543,913      13,836,200      16,543,913      

Deferred tax assets 16.1 270,678,136    242,352,174    269,570,720    239,914,380    

Other assets

   Claims receivable from litigants 17 127,183,251    107,569,537    127,183,251    107,569,537    

   Deposits on rice field insurance scheme 11,801,423      80,210,983      11,801,423      80,210,983      

   Others 77,972,520      109,448,535    77,972,520      109,448,535    

Total assets 6,169,718,096 6,280,634,942 6,174,147,765 6,290,386,122 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited

Statements of financial position

Separate financial statements

As at 31 December 2023

the equity method is applied

Financial statements in which
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(Unit: Baht)

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Note 2023 2022 2023 2022

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 187,964,771    293,466,693    187,964,771    293,466,693    

Premium receivables 7 608,865,352    557,809,721    608,865,352    557,809,721    

Accrued investment income 8,006,135        6,187,364        8,006,135        6,187,364        

Reinsurance assets 8 580,254,609    663,462,167    580,254,609    663,462,167    

Reinsurance receivables 9 234,986,796    395,973,799    234,986,796    395,973,799    

Investment assets

   Investments in securities 10.1 3,650,126,203 3,419,999,695 3,650,126,203 3,419,999,695 

   Loans and interest receivables 11 491,492           686,989           491,492           686,989           

Investments in associates 12.1 17,037,797      21,149,002      22,574,882      33,337,976      

Property, building and equipment 13 353,940,595    337,559,369    353,940,595    337,559,369    

Right-of-use assets 14.1 26,572,816      28,215,001      26,572,816      28,215,001      

Intangible assets 15 13,836,200      16,543,913      13,836,200      16,543,913      

Deferred tax assets 16.1 270,678,136    242,352,174    269,570,720    239,914,380    

Other assets

   Claims receivable from litigants 17 127,183,251    107,569,537    127,183,251    107,569,537    

   Deposits on rice field insurance scheme 11,801,423      80,210,983      11,801,423      80,210,983      

   Others 77,972,520      109,448,535    77,972,520      109,448,535    

Total assets 6,169,718,096 6,280,634,942 6,174,147,765 6,290,386,122 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited

Statements of financial position

Separate financial statements

As at 31 December 2023

the equity method is applied

Financial statements in which

(Unit: Baht)

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Note 2023 2022 2023 2022

Liabilities and equity

Liabilities 

Insurance contract liabilities 18 3,138,757,064 3,058,558,266 3,138,757,064 3,058,558,266 

Due to reinsurers 19 488,953,718    665,223,974    488,953,718    665,223,974    

Income tax payable 3,936,194        18,442,399      3,936,194        18,442,399      

Lease liabilities 14.2 37,086,020      36,804,175      37,086,020      36,804,175      

Employee benefit obligations 20 74,159,806      67,423,858      74,159,806      67,423,858      

Other liabilities

   Fee and commission payables 93,773,398      101,880,333    93,773,398      101,880,333    

   Accrued expenses 68,330,577      64,994,559      68,330,577      64,994,559      

   Others 59,529,512      82,276,441      59,529,512      82,276,441      

Total liabilities 3,964,526,289 4,095,604,005 3,964,526,289 4,095,604,005 

Equity

Share capital 21

   Registered, Issued and paid up

      37,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each

      (2022: 36,000,000 ordinary 

      shares of Baht 10 each) 370,000,000    360,000,000    370,000,000    360,000,000    

Share premium 647,294,382    647,285,572    647,294,382    647,285,572    

Retained earnings

   Appropriated

      Statutory reserve 22 37,000,000      36,000,000      37,000,000      36,000,000      

      General reserve 20,000,000      20,000,000      20,000,000      20,000,000      

   Unappropriated 1,148,359,358 1,075,801,410 1,133,844,516 1,025,791,482 

Other components of equity (17,461,933)     45,943,955      1,482,578        105,705,063    

Total equity 2,205,191,807 2,185,030,937 2,209,621,476 2,194,782,117 

Total liabilities and equity 6,169,718,096 6,280,634,942 6,174,147,765 6,290,386,122 

-                       -                       -                       -                       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Directors

Separate financial statements

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited

Statements of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2023

the equity method is applied

Financial statements in which
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Statements of income

Note 2023 2022 2023 2022

Income

Gross premium written 3,823,848,543   3,666,681,691   3,823,848,543   3,666,681,691   

Less: Premiums ceded to reinsurers (771,788,211)     (871,628,711)     (771,788,211)     (871,628,711)     

Net premium written 3,052,060,332   2,795,052,980   3,052,060,332   2,795,052,980   

Less: Unearned premium reserves increase

   from prior year (100,384,078)     (170,199,062)     (100,384,078)     (170,199,062)     

Net earned premium 2,951,676,254   2,624,853,918   2,951,676,254   2,624,853,918   

Fee and commission income 212,231,675      220,761,549      212,231,675      220,761,549      

Investments income 24 99,772,053        80,723,639        99,772,053        80,723,639        

Profit (loss) on investments (14,509,889)       6,969,094          40,714,708        6,969,094          

Fair value loss (8,912,997)         (8,417,948)         (8,912,997)         (8,417,948)         

Loss on impairment of investments in associates 12.1 -                         -                         (10,763,094)       -                         

Share of gain from investments in associates 12.3 92,646               6,510,357          -                         -                         

Other income 13,307,038        4,396,171          13,307,038        4,396,171          

Total income 3,253,656,780   2,935,796,780   3,298,025,637   2,929,286,423   

Expenses

Gross claim and loss adjustment expenses 2,141,032,749   2,071,275,195   2,141,032,749   2,071,275,195   

Less: Claim recovery from reinsurers (289,249,563)     (360,155,576)     (289,249,563)     (360,155,576)     

Commission and brokerage expenses 600,008,510      575,795,415      600,008,510      575,795,415      

Other underwriting expenses 254,278,047      237,997,091      254,278,047      237,997,091      

Operating expenses 25 384,733,505      353,441,557      384,733,505      353,441,557      

Financial costs 1,602,330          1,907,055          1,602,330          1,907,055          

Expected credit loss 26 18,951,904        5,638,385          18,951,904        5,638,385          

Other expenses -                         3,728,656          -                         3,728,656          

Total expenses 27 3,111,357,482   2,889,627,778   3,111,357,482   2,889,627,778   

Profit before income tax expenses 142,299,298      46,169,002        186,668,155      39,658,645        

Income tax expenses 16.2 (22,273,925)       (21,326,681)       (31,147,696)       (8,979,690)         

Profit for the year 120,025,373      24,842,321        155,520,459      30,678,955        

Earnings per share 30

Basic earnings per share 3.24                   0.67                   4.20                   0.83                   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

in which the equity method is applied Separate financial statements

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2023

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements
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Statements of comprehensive income 

Note 2023 2022 2023 2022

Profit for the year 120,025,373      24,842,321        155,520,459      30,678,955        

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to 

   profit and loss in subsequent periods

   Loss of exchange on translation of

      financial statements in foreign currency 12.3 (4,203,850)         (9,230,737)         -                         -                         

   Loss on changes in value of available-for-sale 

      investments measured at fair value

      through other comprehensive income (75,053,510)       (38,163,650)       (130,278,106)     (38,163,650)       

   Add: Income tax effect 15,851,472        9,478,878          26,055,621        7,632,730          

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to 

   profit and loss in subsequent periods - net of tax (63,405,888)       (37,915,509)       (104,222,485)     (30,530,920)       

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to 

   profit and loss in subsequent periods

   Actuarial gain (loss) 20 (584,281)            2,885,370          (584,281)            2,885,370          

   Add (less): Income tax effect 116,856             (577,074)            116,856             (577,074)            

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to 

   profit and loss in subsequent periods - net of tax (467,425)            2,308,296          (467,425)            2,308,296          

Other comprehensive loss for the year (63,873,313)       (35,607,213)       (104,689,910)     (28,222,624)       

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 56,152,060        (10,764,892)       50,830,549        2,456,331          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2023

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied Separate financial statements
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Statements of cash flows

2023 2022 2023 2022

Direct premium written 3,735,807,723   3,584,276,191   3,735,807,723   3,584,276,191   

Cash paid for reinsurance (211,527,870)     (242,905,642)     (211,527,870)     (242,905,642)     

Interest income 33,086,806        27,668,646        33,086,806        27,668,646        

Dividend income 58,080,359        59,854,272        58,080,359        59,854,272        

Other income 13,734,877        5,981,221          13,734,877        5,981,221          

Loss incurred and loss adjustment expenses on 

   direct insurance (2,097,565,197)  (2,035,446,467)  (2,097,565,197)  (2,035,446,467)  

Commission and brokerage on direct insurance (598,408,776)     (556,183,529)     (598,408,776)     (556,183,529)     

Other underwriting expenses (243,104,108)     (237,324,700)     (243,104,108)     (237,324,700)     

Operating expenses (333,931,177)     (327,401,801)     (333,931,177)     (327,401,801)     

Income tax expenses (49,137,763)       (18,346,101)       (49,137,763)       (18,346,101)       

Cash received - financial assets 3,803,221,863   3,350,176,511   3,803,221,863   3,350,176,511   

Cash paid - financial assets (4,130,888,209)  (3,400,645,892)  (4,130,888,209)  (3,400,645,892)  

Net cash provided (used in) from operating activities (20,631,472)       209,702,709      (20,631,472)       209,702,709      

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of property, building and equipment (32,921,838)       (149,924,487)     (32,921,838)       (149,924,487)     

Purchases of intangible assets (1,463,817)         (2,114,371)         (1,463,817)         (2,114,371)         

Disposals of property, building and equipment 178,831             974,064             178,831             974,064             

Disposals of intangible assets -                         2,059                 -                         2,059                 

Net cash used in investing activities (34,206,824)       (151,062,735)     (34,206,824)       (151,062,735)     

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash received from share capital issuance 8,810                 10,500               8,810                 10,500               

Repayment of lease liabilities (14,676,786)       (14,653,885)       (14,676,786)       (14,653,885)       

Dividend paid (36,000,000)       (52,499,500)       (36,000,000)       (52,499,500)       

Net cash used in financing activities (50,667,976)       (67,142,885)       (50,667,976)       (67,142,885)       

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (105,506,272)     (8,502,911)         (105,506,272)     (8,502,911)         

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 293,466,693      301,851,326      293,466,693      301,851,326      

Add: Allowance for expected credit loss decrease 4,350                 118,278             4,350                 118,278             

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 187,964,771      293,466,693      187,964,771      293,466,693      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Cash flows from operating activities

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2023

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied Separate financial statements
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The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 

Notes to financial statements 

For the year ended 31 December 2023 

1. General information 

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated 

and domiciled in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in the non-life insurance and has 24 

branches located in provinces. The registered office of the Company, which is the head office, is at 

100/47-55, and 90/3-6, North Sathorn Road, Silom, Bangrak, Bangkok. 

2. Basis for preparation of the financial statements 

  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards 

enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547, and in accordance with Thai accounting 

practices related to insurance and the guidelines prescribed by the Office of Insurance Commission 

(“OIC”), and in accordance with the format of financial statements specified in the Notification of the 

OIC regarding criteria, procedures, conditions and terms for preparation and submission of financial 

statements of non-life insurance companies B.E. 2566 dated 8 February 2023. 

 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise 

disclosed in accounting policies.  

 The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the 

Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from Thai language 

financial statements. 

2.1 Financial statements in which the equity method is applied 

The Company prepares the financial statements, in which equity method is applied, by presented 

investment in associates under the equity method. 

2.2 Separate financial statements 

The separate financial statements have been prepared, which presented investments in associates 

under the cost method. 
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3.  New financial reporting standards 

3.1 Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year 

During the year, the Company has adopted the revised financial reporting standards and 

interpretations which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These 

financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial 

Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and 

providing accounting guidance for users of the standards.  

However, the Company applied the temporary exemption for the adoption of Thai Financial Reporting 

Standard 9 (TFRS 9): Financial Instruments and Thai Financial Reporting Standard 7 (TFRS 7): 

Disclosure of Information relating to Financial Instruments, which were revised in Thai Financial 

Reporting Standard 4: Insurance Contracts allowing the extension of the exemption period for the 

adoption of such TFRS 9 and TFRS 7 whereby the exemption period will end for the financial 

statements having the fiscal period starts on or after 1 January 2025 or when Thai Financial 

Reporting Standard 17: Insurances Contracts becomes effective. 

The adoption of these financial reporting standards and temporary exemption does not have any 

significant impact on the Company’s financial statements. 

3.2 Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 

1 January 2024 

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting standards, 

which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2024. These financial reporting 

standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting 

Standards with most of the changes directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing 

accounting guidance for users of the standards except TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, which will 

supersede TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, TFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Revised 2023) and TFRS 7 

Financial Instruments: Disclosures, which will supersede Thai Accounting Guidance related to 

financial instruments and disclosures applicable to insurance business. Those standards will be 

effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2025 and involved changes to key principles, 

summarised below. 
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3 

TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 

This financial reporting standard establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, 

presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts. An entity shall recognise a group of insurance 

contracts it issues from the earliest of the beginning of the coverage period of the group of contracts, 

the date when the first payment from a policyholder in the group becomes due and for a group of 

onerous contracts, when the group becomes onerous. Upon initial recognition, this standard 

establishes the general model for the measurement whereby an entity shall measure a group of 

insurance contracts at the total of the fulfilment cash flows and the contractual service margin. The 

fulfilment cash flows represent the estimates of future cash flows, which arise from substantive rights 

and obligations that exist during the reporting period, and a risk adjustment for non-financial risk. The 

contractual service margin represents the unearned profit that the entity will recognise as it provides 

insurance contract services in the future and the release from risk.  

However, the Company may adopt either the Variable Fee Approach or Premium Allocation 

Approach if contracts meet certain requirements under this standard. In addition, this standard 

requires the entity to present and disclose more information related both qualitative and quantitative 

information. 

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Revised 2023) and TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 

These standards will require an entity to reclassify and measure financial instruments to at fair value 

or amortised cost based on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 

contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets, on the basis of the facts and 

circumstances in existence that exist at the initial date of application whereby an entity will classify as  

financial assets measured at amortised cost, financial assets measured at fair value through profit or 

loss and financial assets measured  at fair value through other comprehensive income and there will 

be a change in the method of recognition profit and loss after initial recognition depends on the type 

of instrument and its classification. 

However, the Company’s management is in the process of assessment of the impact to financial 

statement for the year that such standards will be effective.  
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies 

4.1  Product classification 

The Company classified insurance and reinsurance contracts based on the nature of the insurance 

contract. Insurance contracts are those contracts where the insurer has accepted significant 

insurance risk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a 

specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder. To determine 

whether a significant insurance risk has been accepted, the insurer compares the benefits payable 

after an insured event with the benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. If the criteria are 

not met, the Company classifies the insurance contract as an investment contract. Investment 

contracts have the legal form of insurance contracts and transfer financial risk to the insurer, but not 

significant insurance risk. Financial risks are specified as interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, or 

price risk.   

The Company classifies contracts based on assessment of the significance of the insurance risk at 

inception of contract, on a contract by - contract basis. Once a contract has been classified as an 

insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its lifetime. A contract 

classified as an investment contract at inception can be reclassified as an insurance contract after 

inception if the insurance risk becomes significant. 

The Company classifies all insurance contracts as short-term insurance contracts, which means 

insurance contracts that have coverage periods of up to 1 year and no automatic renewal clause, as 

well as insurance contracts that have coverage periods of more than                         1 year and the 

Company can terminate, increase or decrease insurance premiums or change any benefits of the 

insurance contracts throughout the coverage period. 

4.2 Revenue recognition 

 (a) Gross premium written 

Gross premium written consists of direct premium and reinsurance premium less premium of 

canceled policies and premiums refunded to policyholders.  

Direct premium is recognised as income on the date the insurance policy comes into effect at 

the amount specify in the policies. 

Reinsurance premium is recognised as income on the date the insurance policy comes into 

effect, or when the reinsurer places the statement of accounts with the Company. 

(b) Fee and commission income 

Fee and commission income from ceded premium are recognised as income when incurred.  
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(c) Interest income and dividends received from investments 

 Interest income 

Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised on an accrual 

basis. The effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, 

unless the financial assets subsequently become credit-impaired when it is applied to the net 

carrying amount of the financial asset (net of the expected credit loss allowance). 

Dividends received 

Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive the dividends is established. 

(d) Profit (loss) on investments 

Profit (loss) on investments consist of profit (loss) on disposal of investments and impairments of 

investments and present net of related expenses. Profit (loss) on investments are recognised as 

revenues or expenses on the transaction date. 

(e) Fair value gain (loss) 

Fair value gain (loss) consist of gain (loss) from the change in fair value of financial instrument. 

The Company recognises in profit or loss on the fair value measurement date. 

4.3  Expenses recognition 

 (a) Premiums ceded to reinsurer  

Premiums ceded to reinsurer is recognised as expenses when the insurance risk is transferred 

to another reinsurer at amount per policy. 

 (b)  Claim and loss adjustment expense  

Claim and loss adjustment expense consist of claim and loss adjustment expenses of direct 

insurance and reinsurance of both reported and not reported, and include the amounts of 

claim, related expenses, and claim adjustments of current and prior period incurred during the 

year, less residual value and other recoveries (if any), and claim recovery from reinsurers. 

Claims recovery from reinsurer is recognised when claim and loss adjustment expenses are 

recorded as the condition in the relevant reinsurance contract. 
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Claim and loss adjustment expenses of direct insurance are recognised upon the receipt of the 

claim advice from the insured, based on the claim notified by the insured and estimates made 

by the Company’s management. The maximum value of claim estimated is not however, to 

exceed the sum-insured under the relevant policy. 

Claim and loss adjustment expenses of reinsurance are recognised when the reinsurer places 

the loss advice with the Company. 

 (c) Commission and brokerage expenses 

Commission and brokerage expenses are expended when incurred. 

 (d) Other underwriting expenses 

 Other underwriting expenses are other insurance expenses for both direct and indirect 

expenses, including contributions, which are recognised as expenses on accrual basis. 

 (e) Operating expenses 

Operating expenses are operating expenses, not related to underwriting and claim, which are 

recognised as expenses on accrual basis. 

 (f) Finance cost  

Interest expense from financial liabilities presented at amortised cost is calculated using the 

effective interest method and recognised on an accrual basis. 

4.4  Cash and cash equivalents 

  Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments 

with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions. 

4.5 Premium receivables and allowance for doubtful accounts  

Premium receivables from direct insurance are stated at net realisable value. The Company set up 

an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the estimated loss that may incur in collection of the 

premium receivables, on the basis of collection experiences, analysis of debtor aging and a review of 

current status of the premium due as at the end of reporting period. 

Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded as expenses during the year. 

4.6 Reinsurance assets  

Reinsurance assets consist of insurance reserve refundable from reinsurers which is estimated 

based on the related reinsurance contract of loss reserves and outstanding claim in accordance with 

the law regarding insurance reserve calculation, and unearned premium reserves.  
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The Company set up an allowance for doubtful accounts of reinsurance assets when had indicator 

for impairment, based on loss that may be incurred due to uncollectible, taking into account collection 

experience, aged of balance, and the status of receivables from reinsurers as at the end of the 

reporting periods.  

Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded as expenses during the year. 

4.7 Reinsurance receivables and due to reinsurers 

(a)  Reinsurance receivables are stated at the outstanding balance of amount due from reinsurers 

and amounts deposit on reinsurance. 

 Amounts due from reinsurers consist of inward premium receivable, accrued fee and 

commission income, claim and various other items receivable from reinsurers, less allowance 

for doubtful accounts. The Company set up an allowance for doubtful accounts for loss that 

may be incurred due to inability to make collection, taking into account collection experience 

and the status of receivables from reinsurers as at the end of the reporting period. 

(b) Due to reinsurers are stated at the outstanding balance of amount due to reinsurers and 

amounts withheld on reinsurance. 

Amounts due to reinsurers consist of reinsurance premiums, and other items payable to 

reinsurers, excluding loss reserve from reinsurance. 

The Company presents net of reinsurance to the same entity (reinsurance receivables or amounts 

due to reinsurers) when the following criteria for offsetting are met. 

(1) The Company has a legal right to offset amounts presented in the statements of financial 

position, and 

(2) The Company intends to receive or pay the net amount recognised in the statements of 

financial position, or to realise the asset at the same time as it pays the liability.  

4.8  Financial instruments 

(a)  Investments in securities 

Trading investments are stated at fair value. Change in the fair value of these investments are 

recorded in profit or loss. Investments are classified as trading investments if the Company 

intends to sell them in the near future. 

Available-for-sale investments are stated at fair value. Change in the fair value of these 

investments are recorded in other comprehensive income. 
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Investments in debt instruments, both due within one year and expected to be held to maturity, 

are recorded at amortised cost. The premium/discount on debt instruments is amortised by the 

effective rate method with the amortised/accreted amount presented as an adjustment to the 

interest income.  

Investments in non-marketable equity instruments (non-listed company) are stated at fair value 

and classified as available-for-sale investments. Change in the fair value of these investments 

are recorded in other comprehensive income.  

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last working day of 

the period. The fair value of debt instruments is determined based on yield rate quoted by the 

Thai Bond Market Association. The fair value of unit trust is determined from its net asset 

value. The fair value of non-marketable equity instruments is determined using generally 

accepted pricing model or approximated to their net book value if the fair value cannot be 

reliably estimated. 

The weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of investments. 

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the investment is recognised in the statements of income.  

In the event the Company reclassifies investments from one type to another, such investments 

will be readjusted to their fair value as at the reclassification date. The difference between the 

carrying amount of the investments and the fair value on the date of reclassification are 

recorded in statements of income or recorded as revaluation surplus or deficit in other 

components of equity, depending on the type of investment that is reclassified. 

At end of reporting period, available-for-sale investments and investments in held-to-maturity of 

debt instruments are stated net of an allowance for impairment or an allowance for expected 

credit loss (if any). 

(b)  Loans and interest receivables 

 Loans and interest receivables are stated at amortised cost and net of allowance for expected 

credit loss (if any). 

(c) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities 

At initial recognition the Company’s financial liabilities are recognised at fair value net of 

transaction costs and classified as liabilities to be subsequently measured at amortised cost 

using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of income  when the 

liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.  
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          (d)    Derecognition of financial instruments 

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset 

have expired or have been transferred and either the Company has transferred substantially all 

the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Company has transferred control of the asset. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. 

(e) Impairment of financial assets  

The Company recognises expected credit loss on its financial assets measured at amortised 

cost and financial assets that are debt instruments which are classified as available-for-sale 

investments using general approach in accordance with Accounting Guidance related to 

financial instruments. The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit loss at the 

amount equal to the lifetime expected credit loss when there has been a significant increase in 

credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit-impaired or that are impaired. 

However, if there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the 

Company recognised allowance for expected credit loss at the amount equal to the expected 

credit loss in the next 12 months.  

At every reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase 

in the credit risk of financial assets since initial recognition by considering internal and external 

credit ratings of the counterparties and overdue status such as over 30 days past due, and if 

the debtor is more than 90 days past due it is assessed to be credit-impaired. 

Expected credit loss is calculated using probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) 

and exposure at default (EAD). The Company assessed PD and LGD by considering the 

historical loss experience adjusted with current observable data and reasonable and 

supportable forward-looking information. The Company determines EAD using gross carrying 

value at the reporting date. 

Loss on impairment of financial assets that are equity instruments and unit trusts which are 

classified as available-for-sale investments is recognised immediately in profit or loss when 

there is objective evidence of impairment, determined on the basis of evidence that indicates 

the cost of investments may not be recovered and there is a significant or prolonged decline in 

fair value of investments to below its costs. 
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For other financial assets or contract assets that do not contain a significant financing 

component, the Company applies a simplified approach to determine the lifetime expected 

credit loss. It is based on its historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking 

factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. 

Increase (decrease) in allowance for expected credit loss and allowance for impairment is 

recognised as expenses during the year in statement of income. The Company has a policy to 

write off any financial assets when it is believed that they will not be collected from the debtor. 

4.9 Investments in associates 

Investments in associates, as presented in the financial statements in which the equity method is 

applied, are initially recorded at cost and are subsequently adjusted to reflect the proportionate share 

of the associates’s net income or loss and deducted by dividend income. 

  Investments in associates, as presented in the separate financial statements, are stated at cost net 

of allowance for impairment (if any). Loss on impairment is recorded as expenses   in the statement 

of income. 

4.10 Property, buildings and equipment /Depreciation 

  Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

allowance for impairment of assets (if any). 

  Depreciation of buildings and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on a straight-line 

basis over the following estimated useful lives. 

Buildings - 20, 40 years 

Condominium units - 20, 40     years 

Buildings improvement - 5, 10, 20   years 

Office furniture, fixture and equipment - 5    years 

Motor vehicles - 5    years 

 Depreciation is included in determining income. 

 No depreciation is provided on land and assets under installation. 

 An item of land, buildings and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset (the 

difference between the net compensation from disposal of an assets and the carrying amounts) is 

included in statement of income when the asset is derecognised. 
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Motor vehicles - 5    years 

 Depreciation is included in determining income. 

 No depreciation is provided on land and assets under installation. 

 An item of land, buildings and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset (the 

difference between the net compensation from disposal of an assets and the carrying amounts) is 
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4.11 Intangible assets and amortisation  

  Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 

impairment loss (if any).  

Intangible assets with finite life is amortised on the straight-line basis over the economic useful life 

and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such intangible asset are reviewed at least 

at each financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged to statement of income. 

The useful life of intangible assets with finite useful life which is computer software is                       2, 
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No amortisation is provided on computer software under development. 

4.12 Leases 

At inception of contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.                            

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 

asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

The Company applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for 

short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. At the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the 

date the underlying asset is available for use), the Company recognises right-of-use assets 

representing the right to use underlying assets and lease liabilities based on lease payments. 

Right-of-use assets 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation, any accumulated 

impairment loss, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use 

assets includes the amount of lease liabilities initially recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and 

lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease less any lease incentives 

received. 

Depreciation of right-of-use assets are calculated by reference to their costs, on the straight-line 

basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease term. 

Lease buildings - 3 - 6 years 

Office equipment - 4     years 

Motor vehicles - 3 - 5    years 

Computer - 5    years 

Computer software - 10    years 
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Lease liabilities 

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease 

term. The lease payments include fixed payments and amounts expected to be payable under 

residual value guarantees. 

The Company discounted the present value of the lease payments by the Company’s incremental 

borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect 

the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount 

of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a change in the lease term, a change in the lease 

payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

A lease that has a lease term less than or equal to 12 months from commencement date or a lease 

of low-value assets is recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

4.13 Impairment of non-financial assets  

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of the 

investments in associates, property, building and equipment, right-of-use asset or other intangible 

assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An 

impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the 

asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount. In 

determining value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using 

a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 

risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model 

is used. These calculations are corroborated by a valuation model that, based on information 

available, reflects the amount that the Company could obtain from the disposal of the asset in an 

arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting the costs of 

disposal. 

An impairment loss is recognised in statement of income. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
172



12 

 
Lease liabilities 

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease 

term. The lease payments include fixed payments and amounts expected to be payable under 

residual value guarantees. 

The Company discounted the present value of the lease payments by the Company’s incremental 

borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect 

the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount 

of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a change in the lease term, a change in the lease 

payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

A lease that has a lease term less than or equal to 12 months from commencement date or a lease 

of low-value assets is recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

4.13 Impairment of non-financial assets  

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of the 

investments in associates, property, building and equipment, right-of-use asset or other intangible 

assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An 

impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the 

asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount. In 

determining value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using 

a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 

risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model 

is used. These calculations are corroborated by a valuation model that, based on information 

available, reflects the amount that the Company could obtain from the disposal of the asset in an 

arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting the costs of 

disposal. 

An impairment loss is recognised in statement of income. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13 

4.14 Insurance contract liabilities 

Insurance contract liabilities consist of claim reserve and outstanding claims and premium reserves. 

 (a) Claim reserve and outstanding claims 

Outstanding claims are recorded at the amount to be actually paid. Loss reserves are provided 

upon receipt of claim advices from the insured based on the claims notified by the insured and 

estimates made by the Company’s management. The maximum value of claims estimate is 

however, not to exceed the sum-insured under the relevant policy.  

Outstanding claim provision are calculated using an actuarial method based on a best estimate 

of claims which are expected to be paid in respect of loss occurring before or as at the end of 

the reporting periods for both reported and not reported loss including loss adjustment 

expense, after deducting salvage values and other recoverable values. The different of the 

calculated outstanding claim provision which are higher than the loss reserve that recognised 

into financial statement, are recognised as reserves for claims incurred but not yet reported 

(IBNR).  

 (b) Premium reserves 

Premium reserves consist of unearned premium reserve and unexpired risk reserve. 

(a) Unearned premium reserve 

Unearned premium reserve is calculated based on direct premium before deducting 

premium ceded as follows: 

Transportation (cargo), travelling 

accident with coverage periods of not 

over six-months 

- 100% of premium as from the date policy is 

effective, throughout the period of insurance 

coverage 

Others - Daily average basis by the period of 

coverage under policy 

Outward unearned premium reserve is calculated based on reinsurance premium ceded, 

as the same method as direct insurance, and recognised for the policy that transfer 

insurance risk to reinsurer.  

The increase or decrease in unearned premium reserves from prior year is to be 

recognised in statement of income 
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(b) Unexpired risk reserve 

Unexpired risk reserve is the reserve for the claims and related expenses that may be 

incurred in respect of in-force policies. Unexpired risk reserve is set aside using an 

actuarial method, at the best estimate of the claims that are expected be incurred during 

the remaining period of coverage, based on historical claims data. 

As at the end of reporting period, the Company compares the amounts of unexpired risk 

reserve with unearned premium reserve, and if unexpired risk reserve is higher than unearned 

premium reserve, the difference is recognised and the unexpired risk reserve is therefore 

presented in the financial statements. 

4.15 Employee benefits 

(a) Short-term employee benefits 

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as 

expenses when incurred. 

(b) Post-employment benefits 

Defined contribution plans 

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is monthly 

contributed by employees and by the Company. The fund’s assets are held in a separate trust 

fund and the Company’s contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred. 

Defined benefit plans  

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to 

employees upon retirement under labor law. The Company treats these severance payment 

obligations as a defined benefit plan.  

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by an independent actuary based 

on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method. 

Actuarial gain and loss arising from post-employment benefits are recognised immediately in 

other comprehensive income. 

4.16 Provisions 

 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it 

is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
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4.17 Foreign currencies 

 The financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also the Company’s functional currency. 

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling at the date of 

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht 

at the exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting period.  

Gain and loss on exchange are included in determining income. 

4.18 Income tax 

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

Current tax 

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation 

authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.  

Deferred tax 

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 

liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted 

at the end of the reporting period. 

The Company recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while it 

recognises deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is 

probable that future taxable profit will be available against which such deductible temporary 

differences can be utilised. 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews and reduces the carrying amount of 

deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 

The Company records deferred tax directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are recorded 

directly to equity. 

4.19 Related party transactions  

 Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by, the Company, 

whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company. 

They also include associated companies, individuals or enterprises which directly or indirectly own a 

voting interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key 

management personnel, directors and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the 

Company’s operations. 
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4.20    Fair value measurement 

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement date. The 

Company applies a quoted market price in an active market to measure their assets and liabilities 

except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a quoted market price is 

not available, the Company measures fair value using valuation technique that are appropriate in the 

circumstances and maximises the use of relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities 

that are required to be measured at fair value. 

 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 

categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on categorise of input to be used in 

fair value measurement as follows: 

Level 1 -  Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or liabilities  

Level 2 -  Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or indirectly 

Level 3 -  Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows  

 At the end of each reporting period, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred 

between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting 

period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. 

5. Significant accounting judgements and estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Thai Financial Reporting Standards at 

times requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters that are 

inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures and 

actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant judgements and estimates are as follows: 

5.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts on premium receivables and amounts due from reinsurers 

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts on premium receivables and amounts due from 

reinsurers, the management needs to make judgement and estimates based upon, among other 

things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic 

condition.  
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5.2  Allowance for impairment on equity instruments and unit trusts classified as available-for-sale 

investments and measured at FVOCI 

The Company treats equity instruments and unit trusts classified as available-for-sale investments 

and measured at FVOCI as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the 

fair value or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is 

“significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment of the management. 

5.3 Allowances for expected credit loss of financial assets 

The management is required to use judgement in estimating allowance for expected credit loss of 

financial assets. The Company’s calculation of allowance for expected credit loss depends on the 

criteria used for assessment of a significant increase in credit risk, the debtors status analysis and 

the probability of debt collection. This estimation has various relevant factors; therefore, the actual 

results may differ from estimates. 

5.4  Land, buildings and equipment/ Depreciation 

In determining depreciation of buildings and equipment, the management is required to make 

estimates of the useful lives and residual values of the Company’s buildings and equipment and to 

review estimate useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.  

In addition, the management is required to review land, buildings and equipment for impairment on a 

periodical basis and record impairment loss when it is determined that their recoverable amount is 

lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgement regarding forecast of future revenues and 

expenses relating to the assets subject to the review. 

5.5 Deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is 

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that 

can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable profit.  

5.6  Loss reserves and outstanding claims 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company has to estimate loss reserves and outstanding claims 

taking into account two factors. These are claims incurred and reported, and the claims incurred but not 

yet reported (IBNR). The ultimate loss of outstanding claims is established using a range of standard 

actuarial claims projection techniques. The main assumptions underlying these techniques relate to 

various factors. To perform the calculation, it is necessary to perform analysis based on the type of 

insurance and to use the services of an actuary expertise, experience, and an understanding of the 

insurance business and the Company’s products. Nevertheless, such estimates are forecasts of future 

outcomes, and actual results could differ. 
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5.7 Unexpired risk reserve 

Unexpired risk reserve is calculated using an actuarial method, based on a best estimate of the 

claims and related expenses expected to incur over the remaining term of the insurance. Estimating 

the reserve requires the management to exercise judgement, with reference to historical data and the 

best estimates available at the time. 

5.8  Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans  

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial techniques. Such 

determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase 

rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate. 

5.9 Determining the lease term and estimating the incremental borrowing rate of leases 

In determining the lease term, the management is required to exercise judgement in assessing 

whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend or terminate the lease 

considering all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company 

to exercise either the extension or termination option. 

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, the 

management is required to exercise judgement in estimating its incremental borrowing rate to 

discount lease liabilities. The incremental borrowing rate is the rate of interest that the Company 

would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to 

obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.  

5.10 Allowance for impairment of non-financial assets  

In determining allowance for impairment of a non-financial assets, the management is required to 

exercise judgements regarding determination of the recoverable amount of the asset, both fair value 

less costs of disposal calculation and value in use calculation. The calculation is based on a discounted 

cash flow model which requires various assumptions such as the discount rate used for the model, the 

expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. Change in 

assumptions could affect the value in use calculation. 

5.11  Litigation  

The Company has contingent liabilities as a result of litigation. The Company’s management has 

used judgement to assess of the results of the litigation and believes that loss incurred will not 

exceed the recorded amounts as at the end of reporting period. 

5.12 Recognition and derecognition of assets and liabilities 

In considering whether to recognise or to derecognise assets or liabilities, the management is 

required to make judgement on whether significant risk and rewards of those assets or liabilities have 

been transferred, based on their best knowledge of the current events and arrangements. 
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5.13 Fair value of financial instruments 

In determining the fair value of financial instruments that are not actively traded and for which quoted 

market prices are not readily available, the management exercise judgement, using a variety of 

valuation techniques and models. The input to these models is taken from observable markets, and 

includes consideration of credit risk, liquidity, correlation and longer-term volatility of financial 

instruments. Change in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value and disclosures of 

fair value hierarchy. 

6. Cash and cash equivalents 

(Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

Cash on hand 255,000 257,000 

Deposits at banks with no fixed maturity date 187,735,263 263,239,535 

Deposits at bank with fixed maturity date - 30,000,000 

Total cash and cash equivalents 187,990,263 293,496,535 

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (25,492) (29,842) 

Total cash and cash equivalents, net 187,964,771 293,466,693 

As at 31 December 2023, current deposits, saving deposits and fixed deposits carried interest 

between 0.15 and 0.55 percent per annum (2022: between 0.10 and 1.80 percent per annum). 

7. Premium receivables 

 As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the balances of premium receivables from direct insurance are 

classified by aging from the maturity date under the stipulated law of the premium collection as 

follows:  

(Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

Not yet due 480,713,294 486,073,041 

Not over 30 days 68,106,938 54,291,619 

Over 31 days to 60 days 33,183,987 10,584,184 

Over 61 days to 90 days 10,738,638 2,337,161 

Over 91 days to 1 year 16,131,614 5,711,585 

Over 1 year 914,835 444,360 

Total premium receivables 609,789,306 559,441,950 

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (923,954) (1,632,229) 

Total premium receivables, net 608,865,352 557,809,721 

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
179



20 

For premium receivables due from agents and brokers, the Company has stipulated the collection 

guideline in accordance with the law of the premium collection. For overdue premium receivables, 

the Company has the legal process with such agents and brokers. 

8. Reinsurance assets 

(Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

Insurance reserve refundable from reinsurers   

Claims reserve 166,831,762 235,682,956 

Unearned premium reserve 413,422,847 427,779,211 

Reinsurance assets 580,254,609 663,462,167 

9. Reinsurance receivables 

 (Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

Amounts deposit on reinsurance 78,124 96,677 

Amounts due from reinsurers 234,908,672 395,877,122 

Total 234,986,796 395,973,799 

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the balances of amounts due from reinsurers are classified by 

aging as follows:  

(Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

Not yet due 163,466,161 377,928,645 

Not over 1 year 70,800,081 14,753,507 

Over 1 year to 2 years 453,615 1,988,697 

Over 2 years 188,815 1,206,273 

Total amounts due from reinsurers 234,908,672 395,877,122 
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10.     Investments in securities 

10.1 Classified by type of investments 

 (Unit: Baht) 

 Financial statements in which the equity method is applied 

 2023 2022 

 Cost/  Cost/ 

 Amortised cost Fair value Amortised cost Fair value 

Trading investments which are 

measured at FVPL     

Equity instruments 323,222,808 337,440,697 436,997,809 442,008,200 

Unit trusts 154,305,355 72,799,280 156,267,420 92,881,840 

Total 477,528,163 410,239,977 593,265,229 534,890,040 

Less: Unrealised loss (67,288,186)  (58,375,189)  

Total  410,239,977  534,890,040  

Available-for-sale investments which are 

measured at FVOCI     

Government and state enterprise securities 1,149,670,627 1,148,622,357                                                                                                  753,522,060 753,275,350 

Private debt securities 867,453,400 864,454,975 771,034,524 766,911,294 

Equity instruments 416,750,485 334,914,986 352,880,242 317,735,563 

Non-listed equity instruments 30,834,240 184,077,846 104,905,795 273,407,232 

Foreign equity instruments 37,200,000 41,500,328 37,200,000 45,784,596 

Unit trusts 189,840,900 115,458,103 278,586,317 198,037,460 

Total 2,691,749,652 2,689,028,595 2,298,128,938 2,355,151,495 

Add: Unrealised gain 1,853,223  76,906,733  

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (669,780)  (626,452)  

Less: Allowance for impairment (3,904,500)  (19,257,724)  

Total  2,689,028,595  2,355,151,495  

Held-to-maturity investments which are 

measured at amortised cost     

Government and state enterprise securities 20,000,000  30,000,000  

Deposits and certificate of deposits at 

financial institutions which are matured 

over 3 months 530,936,557  500,001,007  

Total 550,936,557  530,001,007  

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (78,926)  (42,847)  

Total  550,857,631  529,958,160  

Total investments in securities 3,650,126,203  3,419,999,695  
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 (Unit: Baht) 

 Separate financial statements 

 2023 2022 

 Cost/  Cost/  

 Amortised cost Fair value Amortised cost Fair value 

Trading investments which are 

measured at FVPL     

Equity instruments 323,222,808 337,440,697 436,997,809 442,008,200 

Unit trusts 154,305,355 72,799,280 156,267,420 92,881,840 

Total 477,528,163 410,239,977 593,265,229 534,890,040 

Less: Unrealised loss (67,288,186)  (58,375,189)  

Total  410,239,977  534,890,040  

Available-for-sale investments measured 

at FVOCI     

Government and state enterprise securities 1,149,670,627 1,148,622,357 753,522,060 753,275,350 

Private debt securities 867,453,400 864,454,975 771,034,524 766,911,294 

Equity instruments 416,750,485 334,914,986 352,880,242 317,735,563 

Non-listed equity instruments 30,834,240 184,077,846 49,681,200 273,407,232 

Foreign equity instruments 37,200,000 41,500,328 37,200,000 45,784,596 

Unit trusts 189,840,900 115,458,103 278,586,317 198,037,460 

Total 2,691,749,652 2,689,028,595 2,242,904,343 2,355,151,495 

Add: Unrealised gain 1,853,223  132,131,328  

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (669,780)  (626,452)  

Less: Allowance for impairment (3,904,500)  (19,257,724)  

Total  2,689,028,595  2,355,151,495  

 

Held-to-maturity investments measured 

at amortised cost     

Government and state enterprise securities 20,000,000  30,000,000  

Deposits and certificate of deposits at 

financial institutions which are matured                   

over 3 months 530,936,557  500,001,007  

Total 550,936,557  530,001,007  

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (78,926)  (42,847)  

Total  550,857,631  529,958,160  

Total investments in securities 3,650,126,203  3,419,999,695  
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 (Unit: Baht) 

 Separate financial statements 

 2023 2022 

 Cost/  Cost/  

 Amortised cost Fair value Amortised cost Fair value 

Trading investments which are 

measured at FVPL     

Equity instruments 323,222,808 337,440,697 436,997,809 442,008,200 

Unit trusts 154,305,355 72,799,280 156,267,420 92,881,840 

Total 477,528,163 410,239,977 593,265,229 534,890,040 

Less: Unrealised loss (67,288,186)  (58,375,189)  

Total  410,239,977  534,890,040  

Available-for-sale investments measured 

at FVOCI     

Government and state enterprise securities 1,149,670,627 1,148,622,357 753,522,060 753,275,350 

Private debt securities 867,453,400 864,454,975 771,034,524 766,911,294 

Equity instruments 416,750,485 334,914,986 352,880,242 317,735,563 

Non-listed equity instruments 30,834,240 184,077,846 49,681,200 273,407,232 

Foreign equity instruments 37,200,000 41,500,328 37,200,000 45,784,596 

Unit trusts 189,840,900 115,458,103 278,586,317 198,037,460 

Total 2,691,749,652 2,689,028,595 2,242,904,343 2,355,151,495 

Add: Unrealised gain 1,853,223  132,131,328  

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (669,780)  (626,452)  

Less: Allowance for impairment (3,904,500)  (19,257,724)  

Total  2,689,028,595  2,355,151,495  

 

Held-to-maturity investments measured 

at amortised cost     

Government and state enterprise securities 20,000,000  30,000,000  

Deposits and certificate of deposits at 

financial institutions which are matured                   

over 3 months 530,936,557  500,001,007  

Total 550,936,557  530,001,007  

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (78,926)  (42,847)  

Total  550,857,631  529,958,160  

Total investments in securities 3,650,126,203  3,419,999,695  
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10.2     Classified by stage of credit risk 

(Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

 

Fair value 

Allowance for 

expected credit 

losses  Fair value 

Allowance for 

expected credit 

losses  

Available-for-sale 

investments measured 

at FVOCI     

Debt instruments without 

a significant increase 

in credit risk (Stage 1)     

Government and state 

enterprise securities 1,148,622,357 (2,930) 753,275,350 - 

Private debt securities 864,454,975 (666,850) 766,911,294 (626,452) 

 2,013,077,332 (669,780) 1,520,186,644 (626,452) 

 

(Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

 

Gross 

carrying 

value 

Allowance for 

expected 

credit losses  

Net carrying 

value 

Gross 

carrying 

value 

Allowance for 

expected 

credit losses  

Net carrying 

value 

Held-to-maturity investments 

measured at amortised 

cost      

Debt instruments without a 

significant increase of 

credit risk (Stage 1)      

Government and state 

enterprise securities 20,000,000 (1,485) 19,998,515 30,000,000 (2,300) 29,997,700 

Deposits and certificate of 

deposits at financial 

institutions which are 

matured over 3 months 530,936,557 (77,441) 530,859,116 500,001,007 (40,547) 499,960,460 

 550,936,557 (78,926) 550,857,631 530,001,007 (42,847) 529,958,160 
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10.3 Classified by remaining period of debt instruments 

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI and 

amortised cost has period to maturity counting from the year end date as follows: 

 (Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

 Period to maturity    Period to maturity    

 1 year 1 - 5 years 5 years Unspecified Total 1 year 1 - 5 years 5 years Unspecified Total 

Available-for-sale 

investments 

measured at 

FVOCI           

Government and 

state enterprise 

securities 1,093,169,628 56,500,999 - - 1,149,670,627 703,684,214 49,837,846 - - 753,522,060 

Private enterprise 

securities 377,056,147 460,397,253 30,000,000 - 867,453,400 239,195,595 501,838,929 30,000,000 - 771,034,524 

Unit trusts - - - - - - - - 70,421,087 70,421,087 

Total 1,470,225,775 516,898,252 30,000,000 - 2,017,124,027 942,879,809 551,676,775 30,000,000 70,421,087 1,594,977,671 

Add (less): Unrealised 

gain (loss) (1,667,446) (1,646,716) (62,753) - (3,376,915) (116,223) (3,915,428) 288,163 (8,776,774) (12,520,262) 

Less: Allowance for 

expected credit 

loss (334,585) (245,935) (89,260) - (669,780) (140,928) (400,003) (85,521) - (626,452) 

Less: Allowance for 

impairment - - - - - - - - (15,353,224) (15,353,224) 

Total 1,468,223,744 515,005,601 29,847,987 - 2,013,077,332 942,622,658 547,361,344 30,202,642 46,291,089 1,566,477,733 

Held-to-maturity 

investments 

measured at 

amortised cost           

Government and 

state enterprise 

securities 10,000,000 10,000,000 - - 20,000,000 - 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000 

Deposits and certificate 

of deposits at 

financial institutions 

which are matured 

over 3 months 530,936,557 - - - 530,936,557 500,001,007 - - - 500,001,007 

Total 540,936,557 10,000,000 - - 550,936,557 500,001,007 30,000,000 - - 530,001,007 

Less: Allowance for 

expected credit 

loss (78,181) (745) - - (78,926) (40,547) (2,300) - - (42,847) 

Total 540,858,376 9,999,255 - - 550,857,631 499,960,460 29,997,700 - - 529,958,160 

  

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
184



24 

10.3 Classified by remaining period of debt instruments 

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI and 

amortised cost has period to maturity counting from the year end date as follows: 

 (Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

 Period to maturity    Period to maturity    

 1 year 1 - 5 years 5 years Unspecified Total 1 year 1 - 5 years 5 years Unspecified Total 

Available-for-sale 

investments 

measured at 

FVOCI           

Government and 

state enterprise 

securities 1,093,169,628 56,500,999 - - 1,149,670,627 703,684,214 49,837,846 - - 753,522,060 

Private enterprise 

securities 377,056,147 460,397,253 30,000,000 - 867,453,400 239,195,595 501,838,929 30,000,000 - 771,034,524 

Unit trusts - - - - - - - - 70,421,087 70,421,087 

Total 1,470,225,775 516,898,252 30,000,000 - 2,017,124,027 942,879,809 551,676,775 30,000,000 70,421,087 1,594,977,671 

Add (less): Unrealised 

gain (loss) (1,667,446) (1,646,716) (62,753) - (3,376,915) (116,223) (3,915,428) 288,163 (8,776,774) (12,520,262) 

Less: Allowance for 

expected credit 

loss (334,585) (245,935) (89,260) - (669,780) (140,928) (400,003) (85,521) - (626,452) 

Less: Allowance for 

impairment - - - - - - - - (15,353,224) (15,353,224) 

Total 1,468,223,744 515,005,601 29,847,987 - 2,013,077,332 942,622,658 547,361,344 30,202,642 46,291,089 1,566,477,733 

Held-to-maturity 

investments 

measured at 

amortised cost           

Government and 

state enterprise 

securities 10,000,000 10,000,000 - - 20,000,000 - 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000 

Deposits and certificate 

of deposits at 

financial institutions 

which are matured 

over 3 months 530,936,557 - - - 530,936,557 500,001,007 - - - 500,001,007 

Total 540,936,557 10,000,000 - - 550,936,557 500,001,007 30,000,000 - - 530,001,007 

Less: Allowance for 

expected credit 

loss (78,181) (745) - - (78,926) (40,547) (2,300) - - (42,847) 

Total 540,858,376 9,999,255 - - 550,857,631 499,960,460 29,997,700 - - 529,958,160 
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10.4 Fair value of investments in debt instruments 

 In classification and measurement of financial assets under the Thai Accounting Guidance related to 

financial instruments and disclosures applicable to insurance business, the Company are not 

required to take into consideration its business model and the characteristics of the contractual cash 

flows, however, if the financial assets has been classified and measured in accordance with TFRS 9, 

the effects would have been as follows: 

 (Unit: Baht) 

 2023 

 The contractual terms                         

of financial assets give rise                

on specified dates to cash flows 

that are solely payments of       

principal and interest on the                          

outstanding principal  

The contractual terms                         

of financial assets give rise                

on specified dates to cash flows 

that are not solely payments of       

principal and interest on the                 

outstanding principal  

 

Fair value 

Changes in fair 

value during 

year Fair value 

Changes in fair 

value during 

year 

Available-for-sale investments 

measured at FVOCI     

Government and state enterprise 

securities 1,148,622,357 (801,560) - - 

Private enterprise securities 864,454,975 1,124,805 - - 

Held-to-maturity investments 

measured at amortised cost     

Government and state enterprise 

securities 19,979,085 (337,308) - - 

Deposits and certificate of deposits 

at financial institutions which are 

matured over 3 months 530,859,116 - - - 

Total 2,563,915,533 (14,063) - - 
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(Unit: Baht) 

 2022 

 The contractual terms                         

of financial assets give rise                

on specified dates to cash flows 

that are solely payments of       

principal and interest on the                          

outstanding principal  

The contractual terms                         

of financial assets give rise                

on specified dates to cash flows 

that are not solely payments of       

principal and interest on the                 

outstanding principal  

 

Fair value 

Changes in fair 

value during 

year Fair value 

Changes in fair 

value during 

year 

Available-for-sale investments 

measured at FVOCI     

Government and state enterprise 

securities 753,275,350 (373,546) - - 

Private enterprise securities 766,911,294 (3,194,133) - - 

Unit trusts - - 46,291,089 (2,382,606) 

Held-to-maturity investments 

measured at amortised cost     

Government and state enterprise 

securities 30,316,393 (119,220) - - 

Deposits and certificate of deposits 

at financial institutions which are 

matured over 3 months 499,960,460 - - - 

Total 2,050,463,497 (3,686,899) 46,291,089 (2,382,606) 
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(Unit: Baht) 

 2022 

 The contractual terms                         

of financial assets give rise                

on specified dates to cash flows 

that are solely payments of       

principal and interest on the                          

outstanding principal  

The contractual terms                         

of financial assets give rise                

on specified dates to cash flows 

that are not solely payments of       

principal and interest on the                 

outstanding principal  

 

Fair value 

Changes in fair 

value during 

year Fair value 

Changes in fair 

value during 

year 

Available-for-sale investments 

measured at FVOCI     

Government and state enterprise 

securities 753,275,350 (373,546) - - 

Private enterprise securities 766,911,294 (3,194,133) - - 

Unit trusts - - 46,291,089 (2,382,606) 

Held-to-maturity investments 

measured at amortised cost     

Government and state enterprise 

securities 30,316,393 (119,220) - - 

Deposits and certificate of deposits 

at financial institutions which are 

matured over 3 months 499,960,460 - - - 

Total 2,050,463,497 (3,686,899) 46,291,089 (2,382,606) 

  

27 

10.5 Investments subject to restriction 

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company had pledged certain assets as securities and 

insurance reserves with the Registrar of the Office of Insurance Commission in accordance with the 

Non-life Insurance Act and pledged for non-life insurance project as required in the normal course of 

business of the Company as described below. 

(Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

 Cost Fair value Cost Fair value 

Assets pledged     

Government bonds 15,000,000 15,302,416 15,000,000 15,165,854 

Assets reserve as non-life insurance 

reserve     

Government and state enterprise 

securities 365,000,000 361,984,278 315,000,000 314,181,360 

Non-life insurance project     

Government and state enterprise 

securities 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 

11. Loans and interest receivables 

 As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the balances of loans and interest receivables, classified by 

stage of credit risk, were as follows: 

(Unit: Baht) 

 2023 

Classification Mortgaged loans Others Total 

Stage 1 - Loans with no a significant 

increase in credit risk 33,927 457,565 491,492 

Loans and interest receivables - net 33,927 457,565 491,492 

(Unit: Baht) 

 2022 

Classification Mortgaged loans Others Total 

Stage 1 - Loans with no a significant 

increase in credit risk 82,329 604,660 686,989 

Loans and interest receivables - net 82,329 604,660 686,989 
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These are loans provided to employees in accordance with the employee welfare scheme, with a 

credit facility not to exceed 5 times employee’s base salary with a limit of Baht 50,000 for loans 

secured by personal guarantees, and a credit facility not to exceed 80% of the appraised value of 

collateral for secured loans. Interest on these loans is charged at rates of 7.0% and 6.5% per annum, 

respectively. 

12. Investments in associates 

12.1 Details of associates  

 As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company has investments in associates, which are 

incorporated in Laos, as detailed below: 

(Unit: Baht) 

  

 

 

Financial statements in 

which the equity method        

is applied 

Separate financial 

statements 

Company’s name 

Nature of 

business 

Country of 

incorporation 

Shareholding 

percentage Book value Cost/Book value 

   2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 

   (%) (%)     

TKI General Insurance 

Company Limited 

Non-life 

insurance Lao 32.50 32.50 8,814,719 11,029,511 21,628,040 21,628,040 

TKI Life Insurance 

Company Limited 

Life 

insurance Lao 32.50 32.50 8,223,078 10,119,491 21,628,039 21,628,039 

Total     17,037,797 21,149,002 43,256,079 43,256,079 

Less: Allowance for impairment    - - (20,681,197) (9,918,103) 

Investments in associates - net    17,037,797 21,149,002 22,574,882 33,337,976 

12.2 Financial information of associates 

 Summarised information about financial position 

 (Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

 

TKI General 

Insurance 

Company Limited 

TKI Life                

Insurance 

Company Limited 

TKI General 

Insurance 

Company Limited 

TKI Life                

Insurance 

Company Limited 

Total assets 39,096,916 32,039,257 49,405,146 37,160,172 

Total liabilities (11,974,701) (6,737,476) (15,468,188) (6,023,276) 

Net assets 27,122,215 25,301,781 33,936,958 31,136,896 

Shareholding percentage (%) 32.50 32.50 32.50 32.50 

Book value of the associates based   

   on equity method 8,814,719 8,223,078 11,029,511 10,119,491 
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Summarised information of comprehensive income 

(Unit: Baht)  

 For the years ended 31 December  

 2023 2022 

 TKI General 

Insurance 

Company Limited 

TKI Life                

Insurance 

Company Limited 

TKI General 

Insurance 

Company Limited 

TKI Life                

Insurance 

Company Limited 

Revenues 13,529,976 9,661,605 24,799,704 18,118,983 

     

Profit for the year (436,938) 722,003 12,043,730 7,988,139 

Other comprehensive loss                   

   - exchange differences on translation 

of financial statements in foreign 

currency (6,377,804) (6,557,118) (14,964,583) (13,437,683) 

Total comprehensive loss (6,814,742) (5,835,115) (2,920,853) (5,449,544) 

 The financial information of associated companies as the above tables were prepared by the 

management of such company. 

12.3 Shares of gain and other comprehensive loss from investments in associated companies and 

dividend received 

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company recognised its share of gain and 

other comprehensive loss from investments in associated companies in the financial statements, in 

which the equity method is applied, and recognised dividend income in the separate financial 

statements as follows: 

(Unit: Baht) 

 

Financial statements                                                               

in which the equity method is applied 

Separate financial 

statements 

Associates 

Share of gain (loss)                    

in statement of income 

Loss from exchange 

differences on translation 

from statement of other 

comprehensive income Dividend received 

 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 

TKI General Insurance 

Company Limited (142,005) 3,914,212 (2,072,786) (4,863,490) - - 

TKI Life Insurance                             

Company Limited 234,651 2,596,145 (2,131,064) (4,367,247) - - 

 92,646 6,510,357 (4,203,850) (9,230,737) - - 
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13. Property, building and equipment 

        (Unit: Baht) 

     Furniture,  Assets  

    Building fixtures and Motor under  

 Land Buildings Condominium improvements equipment vehicles installment Total 

Cost         

1 January 2022 5,385,371 24,521,452 270,282,501 121,170,363 106,623,489 47,006,231 158,850 575,148,257 

Additions - - 142,828,280 119,267 1,145,160 - 5,831,776 149,924,483 

Disposals - - - (6,449,279) (2,582,720) (12,399,713) - (21,431,712) 

Transfer in (out) - - - 1,439,718 673,034 - (2,112,752) - 

31 December 2022 5,385,371 24,521,452 413,110,781 116,280,069 105,858,963 34,606,518 3,877,874 703,641,028 

Additions - - - - 13,868,092 190,920 18,862,826 32,921,838 

Disposals - (2,000,350) - (13,036,802) (32,696,696) (732,636) - (48,466,484) 

Transfer in (out) - - - 10,822,632 5,379,048 - (16,201,680) - 

31 December 2023 5,385,371 22,521,102 413,110,781 114,065,899 92,409,407 34,064,802 6,539,020 688,096,382 

Accumulated 

depreciation         

1 January 2022 - 12,334,598 161,455,490 58,293,406 96,939,112 41,272,870 - 370,295,476 

Depreciation for the year - 698,098 3,245,472 4,548,877 3,563,741 456,932 - 12,513,120 

Depreciation on disposals - - - (5,390,043) (2,536,846) (8,800,048) - (16,726,937) 

31 December 2022 - 13,032,696 164,700,962 57,452,240 97,966,007 32,929,754 - 366,081,659 

Depreciation for the year - 698,098 6,347,784 4,675,202 3,748,840 473,525 - 15,943,449 

Depreciation on disposals - (2,000,344) - (12,642,065) (32,499,682) (727,230) - (47,869,321) 

31 December 2023 - 11,730,450 171,048,746 49,485,377 69,215,165 32,676,049 - 334,155,787 

Net book value         

31 December 2022 5,385,371 11,488,756 248,409,819 58,827,829 7,892,956 1,676,764 3,877,874 337,559,369 

31 December 2023 5,385,371 10,790,652 242,062,035 64,580,522 23,194,242 1,388,753 6,539,020 353,940,595 

Depreciation for the year         

2022        12,513,120   

2023        15,943,449 

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had certain items of buildings and equipment which have 

been fully depreciated but are still in use. The gross carrying amount before deducting accumulated 

depreciation of those assets amounted to Baht 314.4 million (2022: Baht 349.9 million). 
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14. Leases 

The Company has lease contracts for various items used in its operations. Leases generally have 

lease terms between 3 - 10 years. 

14.1 Right-of-use assets 

(Unit: Baht) 

 

Lease 

buildings 

Office 

equipment Motor vehicles Computer 

Computer 

software Total 

1 January 2022 28,402,016 3,788,274 5,290,998 - 1,002,823 38,484,111 

Increase during year 1,412,093 - 5,011,300 3,750,000 - 10,173,393 

Adjustments (1,331,734) (742,488) - - - (2,074,222) 

Depreciation for the year (11,192,173) (2,637,827) (3,755,934) (614,047) (168,300) (18,368,281) 

31 December 2022 17,290,202 407,959 6,546,364 3,135,953 834,523 28,215,001 

Addition during period 8,542,940 - 4,813,360 - - 13,356,300 

Cancelled during period - - - (1,786) - (1,786) 

Depreciation for the 

period 

(10,374,609) (407,959) (3,396,123) (649,708) (168,300) (14,996,699) 

31 December 2023 15,458,533 - 7,963,601 2,484,459 666,223 26,572,816 

14.2 Lease liabilities 

(Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

Lease liabilities 38,876,434 39,103,908 

Less: Deferred interest expenses (1,790,414) (2,299,733) 

Total 37,086,020 36,804,175 

Less: Portion due within one year (13,416,705) (13,242,599) 

Lease liabilities - net of current portion 23,669,315 23,561,576 
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Movements of the lease liability account during the year ended 31 December 2023 is summarised 

below: 

(Unit: Baht) 

 
Lease buildings 

Office 

equipment Motor vehicles Computer Total 

1 January 2023 26,039,058 278,986 7,319,564 3,166,567 36,804,175

Add: Addition during period 8,542,940 - 4,813,360 - 13,356,300

Add: Financial cost for the period 1,171,762 7,013 306,477 117,079 1,602,331

Less: Lease payments during period (9,667,480) (264,000) (3,917,186) (828,120) (14,676,786)

31 December 2023 26,086,280 21,999 8,522,215 2,455,526 37,086,020 

14.3 Expenses relating to leases that are recognised in statement of income 

  (Unit: Baht) 

 For the years ended 31 December  

 2023 2022 

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 14,996,699 18,368,281 

Finance costs on lease liabilities 1,602,331 1,907,055 

Expense relating to short-term leases 404,171 143,880 

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets 3,701,887 2,844,446 

Total expenses 20,705,088 23,263,662 

The Company had total cash outflows for leases for the year ended 31 December 2023 of Baht 18.7 

million, including the cash outflow related to short-term lease and leases of                  low-value 

assets (2022: Baht 17.6 Million). 
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Movements of the lease liability account during the year ended 31 December 2023 is summarised 

below: 

(Unit: Baht) 

 
Lease buildings 

Office 

equipment Motor vehicles Computer Total 

1 January 2023 26,039,058 278,986 7,319,564 3,166,567 36,804,175

Add: Addition during period 8,542,940 - 4,813,360 - 13,356,300

Add: Financial cost for the period 1,171,762 7,013 306,477 117,079 1,602,331

Less: Lease payments during period (9,667,480) (264,000) (3,917,186) (828,120) (14,676,786)

31 December 2023 26,086,280 21,999 8,522,215 2,455,526 37,086,020 

14.3 Expenses relating to leases that are recognised in statement of income 

  (Unit: Baht) 

 For the years ended 31 December  

 2023 2022 

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 14,996,699 18,368,281 

Finance costs on lease liabilities 1,602,331 1,907,055 

Expense relating to short-term leases 404,171 143,880 

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets 3,701,887 2,844,446 

Total expenses 20,705,088 23,263,662 

The Company had total cash outflows for leases for the year ended 31 December 2023 of Baht 18.7 

million, including the cash outflow related to short-term lease and leases of                  low-value 

assets (2022: Baht 17.6 Million). 
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15. Intangible assets  

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the net book value of intangible assets are presented below. 

   (Unit: Baht) 

 

Computer Software 

Computer software 

under improvement Total 

Cost    

1 January 2022 99,250,687 - 99,250,687 

Additions 176,496 1,937,875 2,114,371 

Disposals during the year (64,571) - (64,571) 

31 December 2022  99,362,612   1,937,875   101,300,487  

Additions 548,500 915,317 1,463,817 

Transfer in (out) - - - 

Write-off (772,000) - (772,000) 

31 December 2023 99,139,112 2,853,192 101,992,304 

Accumulated amortisation    

1 January 2022 80,584,834 - 80,584,834 

Amortisation for the year 4,236,311 - 4,236,311 

Accumulated amortisation on disposals (64,571) - (64,571) 

31 December 2022 84,756,574 - 84,756,574 

Amortisation for the year 4,163,810 - 4,163,810 

Accumulated amortisation on                    

wrire-off (764,280) - (764,280) 

31 December 2023 88,156,104 - 88,156,104 

Net book value    

31 December 2022 14,606,038 1,937,875 16,543,913 

31 December 2023 10,983,008 2,853,192 13,836,200 

Amortisation for the year    

2022   4,236,311 

2023   4,163,810 

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had certain items of computer software which have been 

fully amortised but are still in use. The gross carrying amount before deducting accumulated 

amortisation of those assets amounted to Baht 59.3 million (2022: Baht 59.2 million) 
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16. Deferred tax assets and income tax expenses 

16.1 Deferred tax assets 

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as 

follows: 

  (Unit: Baht) 

 Financial statements in which the equity method is applied 

 Balance as at 31 December 

Changes in deferred tax assets 

and liabilities recognised in 

statements of income for the 

years ended 31 December 

 2023 2022 2023 2022 

Deferred tax assets      

Unearned premium reserve 96,289,417 96,773,188 (483,771) 14,640,017 

Allowance for loss on impairment of 

investments in securities  780,900 3,851,545 (3,070,645) 780,900 

Allowance for expected credit loss 45,592,721 41,802,340 3,790,381 1,127,677 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 11,675 168,155 (156,480) 50,885 

Loss reserves 84,077,261 81,344,180 2,733,081 23,786,551 

Provision for loss incurred but not reported  7,755,857 8,984,734 (1,228,877) (5,680,652) 

Employee benefit obligations 18,591,021 18,661,815 (70,794) (4,023,151) 

Share of loss from investments in 

associates 5,243,655 4,421,415 822,240 544,075 

Fair value loss of trading investments  13,457,637 11,675,038 1,782,599 1,683,590 

Others 12,682,540 11,638,864 1,043,676 (432,315) 

Total 284,482,684 279,321,274   

Deferred tax liabilities      

Unrealised gain on changes in value of      

available-for-sale investments 370,645 15,381,347 15,010,702 7,632,730 

Difference of investment cost arising from 

reclassification 11,733,903 8,802,834 (2,931,069) (1,358,704) 

Others 1,700,000 12,784,919 11,084,919 (12,045,805) 

Total 13,804,548 36,969,100   

Deferred tax assets - net 270,678,136 242,352,174   

Total changes   28,325,962 26,705,798 

Changes were recognised in:     

- Statement of income   12,357,634 17,803,995  

- Statement of comprehensive income   15,968,328 8,901,803  

   28,325,962 26,705,798 
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16. Deferred tax assets and income tax expenses 

16.1 Deferred tax assets 

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as 

follows: 

  (Unit: Baht) 

 Financial statements in which the equity method is applied 

 Balance as at 31 December 

Changes in deferred tax assets 

and liabilities recognised in 

statements of income for the 

years ended 31 December 

 2023 2022 2023 2022 

Deferred tax assets      

Unearned premium reserve 96,289,417 96,773,188 (483,771) 14,640,017 

Allowance for loss on impairment of 

investments in securities  780,900 3,851,545 (3,070,645) 780,900 

Allowance for expected credit loss 45,592,721 41,802,340 3,790,381 1,127,677 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 11,675 168,155 (156,480) 50,885 

Loss reserves 84,077,261 81,344,180 2,733,081 23,786,551 

Provision for loss incurred but not reported  7,755,857 8,984,734 (1,228,877) (5,680,652) 

Employee benefit obligations 18,591,021 18,661,815 (70,794) (4,023,151) 

Share of loss from investments in 

associates 5,243,655 4,421,415 822,240 544,075 

Fair value loss of trading investments  13,457,637 11,675,038 1,782,599 1,683,590 

Others 12,682,540 11,638,864 1,043,676 (432,315) 

Total 284,482,684 279,321,274   

Deferred tax liabilities      

Unrealised gain on changes in value of      

available-for-sale investments 370,645 15,381,347 15,010,702 7,632,730 

Difference of investment cost arising from 

reclassification 11,733,903 8,802,834 (2,931,069) (1,358,704) 

Others 1,700,000 12,784,919 11,084,919 (12,045,805) 

Total 13,804,548 36,969,100   

Deferred tax assets - net 270,678,136 242,352,174   

Total changes   28,325,962 26,705,798 

Changes were recognised in:     

- Statement of income   12,357,634 17,803,995  

- Statement of comprehensive income   15,968,328 8,901,803  

   28,325,962 26,705,798 
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  (Unit: Baht) 

 Separate financial statements 

 Balance as at 31 December 

Changes in deferred tax assets 

and liabilities recognised in 

statements of income for the 

years ended 31 December 

 2023 2022 2023 2022 

Deferred tax assets      

Unearned premium reserve 96,289,417 96,773,188 (483,771) 14,640,017 

Allowance for loss on impairment of 

investments in securities 780,900 3,851,545 (3,070,645) 780,900 

Allowance for loss on impairment of 

investments in associates 4,136,239 1,983,621 2,152,618 - 

Allowance for expected credit loss 45,592,721 41,802,340 3,790,381 1,127,677 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 11,675 168,155 (156,480) 50,885 

Loss reserves 84,077,261 81,344,180 2,733,081 23,786,551 

Provision for loss incurred but not reported  7,755,857 8,984,734 (1,228,877) (5,680,652) 

Employee benefit obligations 18,591,021 18,661,815 (70,794) (4,023,151) 

Fair value loss of trading investments 13,457,637 11,675,038 1,782,599 1,683,590 

Others 12,682,540 11,638,864 1,043,676 (432,315) 

Total 283,375,268 276,883,480   

Deferred tax liabilities      

Unrealised gain on changes in value of      

available-for-sale investments 370,645 26,426,266 26,055,621 7,632,730 

Difference of investment cost arising from 

reclassification 11,733,903 8,802,834 (2,931,069) (1,358,704) 

Others 1,700,000 1,740,000 40,000 (1,000,886) 

Total 13,804,548 36,969,100   

Deferred tax assets - net 269,570,720 239,914,380   

Total changes   29,656,340 37,206,642 

Changes were recognised in:     

- Statement of income   3,483,863 30,150,986  

- Statement of comprehensive income   26,172,477 7,055,656  

   29,656,340 37,206,642 
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16.2 Income tax expenses  

 Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are made up as follows: 

 (Unit: Baht) 

 Financial statements in which 

the equity method is applied Separate financial statements 

 2023 2022 2023 2022 

Current income tax: 

Current income tax charge for the year (36,824,733) (36,487,627) (36,824,733) (36,487,627) 

Adjustment in respect of current income 

tax of previous year 2,193,174 (2,643,049) 2,193,174 (2,643,049) 

Deferred tax:     

Adjustment in deferred tax - (11,044,919) - - 

Relating to origination and reversal of 

temporary differences 12,357,634 28,848,914 3,483,863 30,150,986 

Income tax expenses reported in 

statements of income (22,273,925) (21,326,681) (31,147,696) (8,979,690) 

Reconciliation between income tax expenses and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the 

applicable tax rate for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: 

  (Unit: Baht) 

 

Financial statements in which the 

equity method is applied Separate financial statements                            

 2023 2022 2023 2022 

Accounting profit before tax 142,299,298 46,169,002 186,668,155 39,658,645 

Applicable tax rate 20% 20% 20% 20% 

Tax expenses at the applicable tax rate (28,459,860) (9,233,801) (37,333,631) (7,931,729) 

Adjustment in respect of current income 

tax of previous year 2,193,174 (2,643,049) 2,193,174 (2,643,049) 

Adjustment in deferred tax - (11,044,919) - - 

Net tax effect on tax-exempted revenues 

and non tax-deductible expenses - net 3,992,761 1,595,088 3,992,761 1,595,088 

Income tax expenses reported in 

statements of income  (22,273,925) (21,326,681) (31,147,696) (8,979,690) 
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16.2 Income tax expenses  

 Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are made up as follows: 

 (Unit: Baht) 

 Financial statements in which 

the equity method is applied Separate financial statements 

 2023 2022 2023 2022 

Current income tax: 

Current income tax charge for the year (36,824,733) (36,487,627) (36,824,733) (36,487,627) 

Adjustment in respect of current income 

tax of previous year 2,193,174 (2,643,049) 2,193,174 (2,643,049) 

Deferred tax:     

Adjustment in deferred tax - (11,044,919) - - 

Relating to origination and reversal of 

temporary differences 12,357,634 28,848,914 3,483,863 30,150,986 

Income tax expenses reported in 

statements of income (22,273,925) (21,326,681) (31,147,696) (8,979,690) 

Reconciliation between income tax expenses and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the 

applicable tax rate for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: 

  (Unit: Baht) 

 

Financial statements in which the 

equity method is applied Separate financial statements                            

 2023 2022 2023 2022 

Accounting profit before tax 142,299,298 46,169,002 186,668,155 39,658,645 

Applicable tax rate 20% 20% 20% 20% 

Tax expenses at the applicable tax rate (28,459,860) (9,233,801) (37,333,631) (7,931,729) 

Adjustment in respect of current income 

tax of previous year 2,193,174 (2,643,049) 2,193,174 (2,643,049) 

Adjustment in deferred tax - (11,044,919) - - 

Net tax effect on tax-exempted revenues 

and non tax-deductible expenses - net 3,992,761 1,595,088 3,992,761 1,595,088 

Income tax expenses reported in 

statements of income  (22,273,925) (21,326,681) (31,147,696) (8,979,690) 
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17. Claims receivable from litigants  

 Claims receivable from litigants classified by the year of the claims incurred are as follows: 

(Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

Claim years   

Year 2023 113,812,278 - 

Year 2022 54,385,278 89,867,583 

Year 2021 37,362,866 48,397,615 

Year 2020 39,538,358 44,394,893 

Year 2019 24,272,622 29,860,470 

Prior to 2019 84,993,992 103,356,031 

Total claims receivable from litigants 354,365,394 315,876,592 

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss                (227,182,143) (208,307,055) 

Claims receivable from litigants, net 127,183,251 107,569,537 

18. Insurance contract liabilities  

(Unit: Baht) 

 2023 

 

Insurance contract 

liabilities 

Reinsurance 

assets Net 

Claim reserves and outstanding claims    

Claim incurred and reported 965,280,158 (147,828,197) 817,451,961 

Claim incurred but not reported 57,782,848 (19,003,565) 38,779,283 

Premium reserves    

Unearned premium reserves 2,115,694,058 (413,422,847) 1,702,271,211 

Total 3,138,757,064 (580,254,609) 2,558,502,455 

 

(Unit: Baht) 

 2022 

 

Insurance contract 

liabilities 

Reinsurance 

assets Net 

Claim reserves and outstanding claims    

Claim incurred and reported 933,335,377 (185,050,079) 748,285,298 

Claim incurred but not reported 95,556,545 (50,632,877) 44,923,668 

Premium reserves    

Unearned premium reserves 2,029,666,344 (427,779,211) 1,601,887,133 

Total 3,058,558,266 (663,462,167) 2,395,096,099 
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 During the years 2023 and 2022, the management of the Company entered into reinsurance 

agreements in order to mitigate insurance risk. Although positions are managed on a net basis by 

management, insurance contract liabilities disclosures have been made on both a gross and net 

basis in order to provide a comprehensive set of disclosures. 

18.1 Claim reserves and outstanding claims 

(Unit: Baht) 

 For the years ended 31 December 

 2023 2022 

Beginning balance 1,028,891,922 1,019,959,239 

Claim expenses for the year 2,407,989,723 2,372,136,274 

Change in claim reserves and outstanding claims                       

from the prior year                  (122,747,680) (100,333,440) 

Change in assumption for calculating claim reserves (37,773,696) (119,380,848) 

Claim paid during the year (2,253,297,263) (2,143,489,303) 

Ending balance 1,023,063,006 1,028,891,922 

 As at 31 December 2023, the Company has claim reserves and outstanding claims under 

reinsurance contracts at Baht 14.4 million (2022: Baht 10.5 million). 
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 During the years 2023 and 2022, the management of the Company entered into reinsurance 

agreements in order to mitigate insurance risk. Although positions are managed on a net basis by 

management, insurance contract liabilities disclosures have been made on both a gross and net 

basis in order to provide a comprehensive set of disclosures. 

18.1 Claim reserves and outstanding claims 

(Unit: Baht) 

 For the years ended 31 December 

 2023 2022 

Beginning balance 1,028,891,922 1,019,959,239 

Claim expenses for the year 2,407,989,723 2,372,136,274 

Change in claim reserves and outstanding claims                       

from the prior year                  (122,747,680) (100,333,440) 

Change in assumption for calculating claim reserves (37,773,696) (119,380,848) 

Claim paid during the year (2,253,297,263) (2,143,489,303) 

Ending balance 1,023,063,006 1,028,891,922 

 As at 31 December 2023, the Company has claim reserves and outstanding claims under 

reinsurance contracts at Baht 14.4 million (2022: Baht 10.5 million). 
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18.3  Methodology and assumption 

 The methodology and assumptions adopted for the gross and net valuations of insurance contract 

liabilities (claim reserves and outstanding claims) as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are presented as 

follows: 

(a)  Outstanding claims provision 

1.  Direct and inward facultative business  

 The Company used 3 actuarial methods as follows:   

1.1 Chain Ladder method based on both claims paid and claims incurred 

1.2 Bornhuetter-Ferguson method (“BF”) based on both claims paid and claims incurred 

1.3 Expected Loss Ratio method (“ELR”) 

The Company mostly relies on the Chain Ladder method on claims incurred to derive the 

best estimate of claims liability. The BF and ELR methods are also used where appropriate. 

Loss Development Factors (“LDF”) are selected based on a range of criteria, which include 

the pattern of historical claims payments and claims incurred. In most instances, the loss 

development factors selected are based on various average loss development factors for 

each development year. The Company also takes into consideration whether averages may 

not be appropriate, for reasons such as the average not reflecting the Company’s operational 

changes, the average being inappropriate due to distortion by large claims, or the average 

being contrary to a trend of the historical ratios.   

Both qualitative and quantitative factors are taken by the Company into consideration in the 

selection of LDF to produce claim reserves that appropriately reflect the Company’s future 

claims liability as at the valuation date. 

2.   Inward treaty business  

The Company uses a basic approach in estimating claims reserves provision for inward 

treaty business. This approach assumes that the claims reserves requirements for the 

inward treaty business would be proportionally similar to those of the direct and inward 

facultative business. The Company therefore use the percentage of gross outstanding case 

reserves to apply with inward treaty contracts. 
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(b)   Estimation of Unallocated Loss Adjustment Expenses reserve (ULAE) 

In determining the ULAE, the Company used total expenses to estimate the claim expenses. 

ULAE is calculated from the ratio of ULAE to the average of paid loss and reported loss which is 

based on the assumption that half of a claim’s ULAE is expended when a loss is reported, and 

half when it is paid. 

The ULAE ratios are computed for motor and non-motor classes separately and are applied onto 

the best estimate of gross claim liability (excluding flood claims in 2011) to obtain the ULAE 

reserves for claims liability. 

ULAE reserve is computed as the sum of the ULAE ratio multiplied by half of the case reserve 

and outstanding claims, plus the ULAE ratio multiplied by the incurred but not reported (IBNR) 

reserve. 

(c)  Economic assumptions  

The Company has not discounted for future investment earnings, and has not explicitly inflation 

adjusted claim amounts payable in the future. However, the Company has implicitly allowed for 

future claims inflation to the extent that this is evident in past claims development.  

(d)  Other assumptions  

 The Company has assumed that claims development patterns are generally consistent and 

stable over the years and also assumed that the past inflation pattern will continue into future 

projected years. For claims prior to accident year 2004, the Company has reached their ultimate 

claim so there would be no IBNR from these claims. 

18.4  Unearned premium reserves 

(Unit: Baht) 

 For the years ended 31 December 

 2023 2022 

Beginning balance 2,029,666,344 1,818,326,935 

Premium written for the year 3,823,848,543 3,666,681,691 

Premium earned for the current year (3,737,820,829) (3,455,342,282) 

Ending balance 2,115,694,058 2,029,666,344 

19. Due to reinsurers 

  (Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

Amounts withheld on reinsurance  154,114,955 257,593,579 

Amounts due to reinsurers 334,838,763 407,630,395 

Total due to reinsurers 488,953,718 665,223,974 
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20. Employee benefit obligations 

The movement of provision for employee benefit obligations for the years ended                              31 

December 2023 and 2022 was as follows: 

(Unit: Baht) 

 For the years ended 31 December 

 2023 2022 

Employee benefit obligations at beginning of year 67,423,858 67,415,580 

Included in statement of income:   

Current service cost 9,684,778 9,477,156 

Interest cost 1,852,023 1,356,092 

Total items included in statement of income 11,536,801 10,833,248 

Included in statement of comprehensive income:   

Actuarial loss (gain) arising from   

Demographic assumption change 383,664 (667,835) 

Financial assumption change 1,275,169 (1,752,276) 

Experience adjustment (1,074,552) (465,259) 

Total items included in statement of comprehensive income 584,281 (2,885,370) 

Benefit paid during the year (5,385,134) (7,939,600) 

Employee benefit obligations at end of year 74,159,806 67,423,858 

As at 31 December 2023, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for long-term employee 

benefit is 11 years, and the Company expected to pay Baht 10.4 million of long-term employee 

benefits during the next year (2022: 11 years and Baht 5.9 million, respectively).  

Significant actuarial assumptions are summarised below: 

 (Unit: % per annum) 

 2023 2022 

Discount rate 2.7 2.8 

Salary increase rate  3.4 - 6.0 3.3 - 5.8 

Staff turnover rate  0.0 - 16.0 0.0 - 16.0 
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The result of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of the long-

term employee benefit obligation as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are summarised below: 

 2023 

 

Increase in 

assumption 

Employee benefit 

obligations increase 

(decrease) 

Decrease in 

assumption 

Employee benefit 

obligations increase 

(decrease) 

 (%) (Baht) (%) (Baht) 

Discount rate 1.0 (4,838,622) 1.0 5,521,080 

Salary increase rate 1.0 5,762,108  1.0 (5,150,927) 

Staff turnover rates 10.0
(1)

 (2,559,166) 10.0
(1)

 2,749,305 

(1)
 10% of the turnover rate used as assumption. 

 2022 

 

Increase in 

assumption 

Employee benefit 

obligations increase 

(decrease) 

Decrease in 

assumption 

Employee benefit 

obligations increase 

(decrease) 

 (%) (Baht) (%) (Baht) 

Discount rate 1.0 (4,495,141) 1.0 5,128,437 

Salary increase rate 1.0 5,356,285 1.0 (4,786,474) 

Staff turnover rates 10.0
(1)

 (2,403,444) 10.0
(1)

 2,586,210 

(1)
 10% of the turnover rate used as assumption. 

21. Share capital 

On 20 April 2023, the 2023 Annual General Meeting of shareholders approved an increase of the 

Company’s registered share capital from Baht 360 million to be Baht 370 million (37 million shares of 

Baht 10 each) by newly issues the ordinary shares in amount of 1 million shares with the par value at 

Baht 10 per share to support the stock dividend payment, and approved to allocate indivisible share 

remaining after such allocated the stock dividend to the Navakij Insurance Provident Fund. The 

Company registered the increase of share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 2 June 2023. 

On 26 April 2022, the 2022 Annual General Meeting of shareholders approved an increase of the 

Company’s registered share capital from Baht 350 million to be Baht 360 million (36 million shares of 

Baht 10 each) by newly issues the ordinary shares in amount of 1 million shares with the par value at 

Baht 10 per share to support the stock dividend payment, and approved to allocate indivisible share 

remaining after such allocated the stock dividend to the Navakij Insurance Provident Fund. The 

Company registered the increase of share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 7 June 2022. 
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22. Statutory reserve 

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to 

set aside a statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net profit, until the reserve reaches 10 percent of 

the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution. 

During the year 2023 and 2022, the Company set aside a statutory reserve of its net profit amounting 

to Baht 1 million each. As at 31 December 2023, the Company has statutory reserve totalling Baht 37 

million and Baht 36 million, respectively. 

23.  Segment information 

 Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports that are 

regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker in order to make decisions about the 

allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance. The Chief Operating Decision 

Maker has been identified as Chairman of the Executive Board. 

 For management purposes, the Company is organised into business units based on its products, 

which consisted of Fire, Marine and transportation, Motor, and Miscellaneous insurance. 

 The Chief Operating Decision Maker monitors the operating results of the business units separately 

for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and assessing performance. Segment 

performance is measured based on operating profit or loss, total assets and total liabilities, and on a 

basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss, total assets and total liabilities in 

the financial statements.  

The basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments is consistent with that for 

third party transactions. 

 Segment assets and liabilities of the Company’s operating segments as at 31 December 2023 and 

2022 are as follows: 

 (Unit: Baht) 

 Financial statements in which the equity method is applied 

 Fire 

Marine and 

transportation Motor Miscellaneous 

Total 

segments Unallocated Total 

Assets        

As at 31 December 2023 478,307,446 32,984,773 276,697,983 401,129,759 1,189,119,961 4,980,598,135 6,169,718,096 

As at 31 December 2022 482,714,337 36,834,372 285,098,400 416,624,779 1,221,271,888 5,059,363,054 6,280,634,942 

Liabilities        

As at 31 December 2023 688,790,785 36,446,849 2,028,218,964 385,300,466 3,138,757,064 825,769,225 3,964,526,289 

As at 31 December 2022 693,616,685 41,324,782 1,859,924,123 463,692,676 3,058,558,266 1,037,045,739 4,095,604,005 
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      (Unit: Baht) 

 Financial statement in which the equity method is applied 

 For the year ended 31 December 2023 

 Fire 

Marine and 

transportation Motor Miscellaneous Total 

Underwriting income      

Gross premium written 756,363,917  100,053,149  2,492,577,453  474,854,024  3,823,848,543  

Less: Premiums ceded to reinsurers (383,041,253) (55,176,437) (15,601,646) (317,968,875) (771,788,211) 

Net premium written 373,322,664  44,876,712  2,476,975,807  156,885,149  3,052,060,332  

Less: Unearned premium reserves 

increase from prior year (18,452,129) (111,397) (79,352,674) (2,467,878) (100,384,078) 

Net earned premium 354,870,535  44,765,315  2,397,623,133  154,417,271  2,951,676,254  

Fee and commission income 100,018,638  13,952,635  5,118,714  93,141,688  212,231,675  

Total underwriting income 454,889,173  58,717,950  2,402,741,847  247,558,959  3,163,907,929  

Underwriting expenses      

Claim and loss adjustment                                

expenses - net 117,109,988  7,081,537  1,647,164,942  80,426,719  1,851,783,186  

Commission and brokerage expenses 156,921,806  8,313,614  371,631,625  63,141,465  600,008,510  

Other underwriting expenses 54,994,190  6,269,917  164,128,638  28,885,302  254,278,047  

Total underwriting expenses  

 before operating expenses 329,025,984  21,665,068  2,182,925,205  172,453,486  2,706,069,743  

Profit from underwriting before 

operating expenses 125,863,189  37,052,882  219,816,642  75,105,473  457,838,186  

Operating expenses     (384,733,505) 

Profit from underwriting     73,104,681  

Investments income     99,772,053  

Loss on investments     (14,509,889) 

Fair value loss     (8,912,997) 

Share of profit from investments in 

associates     92,646  

Other income     13,307,038  

Finance costs     (1,602,330) 

Expected credit loss     (18,951,904) 

Profit before income tax expenses     142,299,298  

Income tax expenses     (22,273,925) 

Profit for the year     120,025,373  
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      (Unit: Baht) 

 Financial statement in which the equity method is applied 

 For the year ended 31 December 2022 

 Fire 

Marine and 

transportation Motor Miscellaneous Total 

Underwriting income      

Gross premium written 707,368,084 102,082,808 2,243,799,222 613,431,577 3,666,681,691 

Less: Premiums ceded to reinsurers (358,523,068) (58,737,757) (16,044,992) (438,322,894) (871,628,711) 

Net premium written 348,845,016 43,345,051 2,227,754,230 175,108,683 2,795,052,980 

Add (less): Unearned premium 

reserves (increase) decrease from 

prior year (31,193,407) (324,026) (168,406,810) 29,725,181 (170,199,062) 

Net earned premium 317,651,609 43,021,025 2,059,347,420 204,833,864 2,624,853,918 

Fee and commission income 104,623,460 14,752,028 3,826,574 97,559,487 220,761,549 

Total underwriting income 422,275,069 57,773,053 2,063,173,994 302,393,351 2,845,615,467 

Underwriting expenses      

Claim and loss adjustment expenses 

- net 93,608,795 15,323,042 1,377,564,715 224,623,067 1,711,119,619 

Commission and brokerage expenses 149,578,278 8,260,933 359,721,571 58,234,633 575,795,415 

Other underwriting expenses 49,241,144 4,473,773 147,770,752 36,511,422 237,997,091 

Total underwriting expenses  

 before operating expenses 292,428,217 28,057,748 1,885,057,038 319,369,122 2,524,912,125 

Profit (loss) from underwriting 

before operating expenses 129,846,852 29,715,305 178,116,956 (16,975,771) 320,703,342 

Operating expenses     (353,441,557) 

Loss from underwriting     (32,738,215) 

Investments income     80,723,639 

Profit on investments     6,969,094 

Fair value loss     (8,417,948) 

Share of profit from investments in 

associates     6,510,357 

Other income     4,396,171 

Finance costs     (1,907,055) 

Expected credit loss     (5,638,385) 

Other expenses     (3,728,656) 

Profit before income tax expenses     46,169,002 

Income tax expenses     (21,326,681) 

Profit for the year     24,842,321 
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 Geographic information 

The Company is operated its business in Thailand only, as a result, all of the revenues and assets as 

reflected in these financial statements pertain to the aforementioned geographical reportable. 

 Major customers’ information 

 During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company had gross premium written from                               

310 major customer amounting to Baht 310 million (2022: 1 major customers amounting to Baht 367 

million). 

24. Investments income 

 During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company has investment income as 

follows: 

(Unit: Baht)  

 For the years ended 31 December 

 2023 2022 

Interest income from debt securities 41,691,695 20,869,367 

Dividends received from equity securities  58,080,358 59,854,272 

Investments income 99,772,053 80,723,639 

25. Operating expenses 

(Unit: Baht) 

 For the years ended 31 December 

 2023 2022 

Personnel expenses  250,451,034 229,817,161 

Premises and equipment expenses  76,455,261 68,933,147 

Taxes and duties 3,359,241 2,712,312 

Bad debts and doubtful accounts (reversal) (758,622) 1,152,678 

Other operating expenses 55,226,591 50,826,259 

Total operating expenses 384,733,505 353,441,557 
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 For the years ended 31 December 

 2023 2022 

Personnel expenses  250,451,034 229,817,161 

Premises and equipment expenses  76,455,261 68,933,147 

Taxes and duties 3,359,241 2,712,312 

Bad debts and doubtful accounts (reversal) (758,622) 1,152,678 

Other operating expenses 55,226,591 50,826,259 

Total operating expenses 384,733,505 353,441,557 
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26. Expected credit loss 

(Unit: Baht) 

 For the years ended 31 December 

 2023 2022 

Cash and cash equivalents (4,350) (118,278) 

Accrued investments income 1,758 (8,772) 

Investments in securities 79,408 (287,172) 

Claims receivable from litigants 18,875,088 6,052,607 

Total 18,951,904 5,638,385 

27. Expenses by nature 

(Unit: Baht) 

 For the years ended 31 December 

 2023 2022 

Net claim and loss adjustment expenses 1,801,295,884 1,663,701,475 

Commissions and brokerage expenses 600,008,511 575,795,415 

Other underwriting expenses 213,208,036 197,982,740 

Personnel expenses 342,008,348 317,249,655 

Premises and equipment expenses 76,455,261 68,933,147 

Taxes and duties 3,359,240 2,712,312 

Bad debts and doubtful accounts (reversal) (758,622) 1,152,678 

Finance costs 1,602,330 1,907,055 

Expected credit loss 18,951,904 5,638,385 

Other operating expenses 55,226,590 54,554,916 

Total  3,111,357,482 2,889,627,778 

28. Provident fund 

 The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the 

Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the Company contribute to the fund monthly at 

the rate of 5 percent of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by Tisco Asset Management Public 

Company Limited, will be paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules. 

During the year 2023, the Company contributed Baht 9.6 million (2022: Baht 9.5 million) to the fund. 
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29. Contribution to the General Insurance Fund 

(Unit: Baht) 

 For the years ended 31 December 

 2023 2022 

Accumulated contribution at the beginning of the year 92,489,226 83,426,200 

Contribution during the year 12,055,891 9,063,026 

Accumulated contribution at the end of the year 104,545,117 92,489,226 

30. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year (excluding other comprehensive 

income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, after adjusting 

the number of ordinary shares as a result of the increase in share capital arising from the issue of 

stock dividend. 

On 20 April 2023, the 2023 Annual General Meeting of shareholders approved to pay a cash dividend 

of Baht 1.0 per share, and stock dividend of 1 million shares to the existing shareholders. For the 

purpose of calculating earnings per share, the Company adjusted the number of ordinary shares 

used to calculate the earnings per share, as though it had issued the stock dividend at the beginning 

of the reporting year. 

 

Financial statements in which the 

equity method is applied Separate financial statements 

2023 2022 2023 2022 

  (Restated)  (Restated) 

Number of ordinary shares issued 

during the year (shares) 37,000,000 36,000,000 37,000,000 36,000,000 

Number of stock dividend 

additional issue (shares) in 2023 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 

Total (shares) 37,000,000 37,000,000 37,000,000 37,000,000 

Profit for the period (Baht) 120,025,373 24,842,321 155,520,459 30,678,955 

Earnings per share (Baht per share) 3.24 0.67 4.20 0.83 
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31. Dividends 

Dividends declared during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 consisted of the following: 

 Approved by Total dividends 

Dividends per 

share 

 (Million Baht) (Baht) 

Annual dividends for 2022                                   

(Cash dividends with the par value 

at 1.00 Baht per share and stock 

dividend at the rate of Baht 0.28 per 

share) 

2023 Annual General Meeting 

No.91 on 20 April 2023 

46.0 1.28 

Annual dividends for 2021                                   

(Cash dividends with the par value 

at 1.50 Baht per share and stock 

dividend at the rate of Baht 0.29 per 

share) 

2022 Annual General Meeting 

No.90 on 26 April 2022 

62.5 1.79 

32. Commitments and contingent liabilities 

32.1 Leases and service agreements commitments 

 As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, future minimum payments required under short-term leases, 

leases of low-value assets and service agreements were as follows. 

  (Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

Payable within:   

Within 1 year 106,448 212,894 

Over 1 to 3 years - 106,448 
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32.2 Capital commitments 

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had capital commitments of approximately Baht 1.8 million 

relating to building improvement, furniture, fixtures and equipment and amounting to Baht 14.3 million 

relating to computer software (2022: Baht 2.6 million and Baht 10.1 million, respectively). 

32.3 Letter of Guarantees 

 As at 31 December 2023, there were bank guarantees amounting to Baht 2.2 million, and a 

certificate issued in the Company’s name amounting to Baht 9.5 million, as required in the normal 

course of the Company’s business (2022: Baht 2.1 million and Baht 7.1 million, respectively). 

32.4 Litigation 

As at 31 December 2023, the Company has been sued for damages totaling approximately Baht 55.4 

million as insurer. The cases have not yet been finalised. However, the Company’s obligations in 

respect of these lawsuits do not exceed the maximum sum insured per the relevant policies, which is 

Baht 34.9 million, and the Company has set aside reserves for contingent losses amounting to Baht 

34.9 million in the financial statements (2022: Baht 69.1 million, Baht 38.9 million and Baht 38.9 

million, respectively). 
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33. Related party transactions 

33.1 Nature of relationship 

 In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the 

relationship, and not merely the legal form.  

 The relationships between the Company and its related parties are summarised below. 

Name of related parties Nature of relationship 

TKI General Insurance Company Limited Associated company 

TKI Life Insurance Company Limited Associated company 

The United Indemnity Co., Ltd. 7.18% of shares held in the Company 

Thanasarn Sombat (Thai) Company Limited 5.17% of shares held in the Company and 

common directors 

The Falcon Insurance Plc.
(2)

 12.00% of shares held by the Company 

Thai Metal Drum Manufacturing Plc. Common directors and through shareholding 

Rangsit Plaza Co., Ltd. Common directors and through shareholding 

Sathorn Thani Co., Ltd. Common directors and through shareholding 

Siam Motors Co., Ltd. Common directors and through shareholding 

Wanglee Co., Ltd. Common directors and through shareholding 

Thaire Life Assurance Plc. Common directors and through shareholding 

Rangsit Ruam Patana Co., Ltd. Common directors and through shareholding 

Poon Phol Co., Ltd.  Common directors and through shareholding 

Pipatanasin Co., Ltd. Common directors and through shareholding 

Varopakorn Plc.  Common directors  

Serm Suk Plc. Common directors 

Chaitip Co., Ltd. Common directors 

Alinkij Siam Co., Ltd Common directors 

Siam Calsonic Co., Ltd.
 (1)

 Common directors 

Siam Riken Industrial Co., Ltd.
 (1)

 Common directors 

Siam International Corp., Ltd. Common directors 

The Pet Co., Ltd. Common directors 

Toyota Petchaboon Toyota’s Dealer Co., Ltd. Common directors 

Thai Petchaboon Co., Ltd. Common directors 

BTS Group Holdings Plc. Common directors 

C.E.S. Co., Ltd.  Common directors 

Bangkok Motor Works Co., Ltd.                                  Common directors 

Thong Thaworn Pattana Co., Ltd.                            Common directors 

Siam Auto Parts Co., Ltd.                                            Common directors 

Thaworn Estate Co., Ltd.                                            Common directors 

Siam Country Club Co., Ltd.                                        Common directors 

S T M S Co., Ltd.                                                             Common directors 

Poonpipat Co., Ltd.                                                      Common directors 

Aqua flow Co., Ltd. Common directors 

Starflex Plc. Common directors 

Jitpipat Co., Ltd. Common directors 

Sittinan Co., Ltd.  A related person of the Company’s director is 

a major shareholder 

PIA Interior Co., Ltd.  A related person of the Company’s director is 

a major shareholder 
(1)

 Since January 2022, it is not a related party. 
(2)

 Since July 2023, it is not a related party. 
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33.2 Significant related party transactions 

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company had significant business 

transactions with related parties. Such transactions, which are summarised below, arose in the 

ordinary course of business and were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon 

between the Company and those related parties. 

(Unit: Baht) 

 For the years ended                      

31 December  

 2023 2022 Pricing policy 

Transactions with associated 

companies 

   

Reinsurance premium written 1,584,763 2,510,179 Ceded rates as specified based on the 

type of insurance and the reinsurance 

contracts 

Claim expenses 20,861 43 Actual incurred 

Commission paid to reinsurance 346,263 503,840  Ceded rates as specified based on the 

type of insurance and the reinsurance 

contracts 

Transactions with related 

companies 

   

Direct premium written 74,174,027 79,740,018 Rates as specified in insurance 

contracts 

Reinsurance premium written 2,776,240 13,301,913 Ceded rates as specified based on the 

type of insurance and the reinsurance 

contracts 

Premium ceded 16,081,632 23,849,473 Ceded rates as specified based on the 

type of insurance and the reinsurance 

contracts 

Claim expenses  10,711,994 19,539,182 Actual incurred 

Commission paid to reinsurance 1,039,780 4,518,548 Ceded rates as specified based on the 

type of insurance and the reinsurance 

contracts 

Commission received 7,453,125 9,516,809 Ceded rates as specified based on the 

type of insurance and the reinsurance 

contracts 

Dividend income 21,218,160 23,240,940 As declared 

Dividend paid 12,416,438 11,325,735 As declared 

Rental and service fee for branch office 

expenses 

240,020 240,135 Contract price 

Rental income 172,973 172,973 Contract price 
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33.3  Outstanding balances 

The balances of the accounts between the Company and those related companies as at                31 

December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: 

 (Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

Reinsurance receivables - Amounts due from reinsurers   

The Falcon Insurance Plc. - 14,604,716 

TKI General Insurance Co., Ltd. 95,408 2,260,630 

Total 95,408 16,865,346 

Investments in securities - Equity securities   

Thai Metal Drum Manufacturing Plc. 295,582,500 301,213,200 

BTS Group Holdings Plc. 28,800,000 33,819,000 

Thaire Life Assurance Plc. 1,235,086 31,286,718 

The Falcon Insurance Plc. - 57,576,000 

Sathorn Thani Co., Ltd. 19,975,000 23,755,000

Rangsit Plaza Co., Ltd. 17,896,000 18,592,000 

Starflex Plc. 3,132,800 3,814,800 

Total 366,621,386 470,056,718 

Due to reinsurers - Amounts due to reinsurance    

The Falcon Insurance Plc. - 21,037,185 

TKI General Insurance Co., Ltd. 76,025 596,743 

Total 76,025 21,633,928 

33.4 Directors and management’s benefits 

 During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company had employment benefits 

expenses payable to their directors and management as below. 

(Unit: Baht) 

 For the years ended 31 December 

 2023 2022 

Short-term benefits 51,319,360 55,532,230 

Post-employment benefits 893,619 718,570 

Total 52,212,979 56,250,800 

  

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
215



56 

34. Risk of insurance company 

34.1 Insurance risk 

 Insurance risk refers to the risk resulting from fluctuations in the frequency, the severity and the 

timing of damage deviations from assumptions that are used to determine premium rates, calculation 

of reserves and underwriting. The insurance risk causes or is a factor that contributes to the following 

risks: 

a. Increase in the amount and frequency of loss 

 The impact of external factors, including physical or geographical factors, natural perils, 

disasters, accidents, terrorism and burglary may increase damage to lives, physical and property 

insured by the Company, leading to higher than expected losses. Such risks may result in the 

premiums received from customers being lower than the actual losses or the claims reserve 

being inadequate, which may have an impact on the Company’s capital at risk. 

b. Suboptimal proportions of types of insurance products 

 The Company focuses on specific types of insurance products in order to expand its business 

and retain market share, which means that the Company’s revenue and expenses are highly 

dependent on these insurance products. Some types of insurance have high loss ratio, and this 

in turn increases the Company’s average cost of claims. As a result, the Company’s risk with 

respect to revenue or profit, or its capital funds may be affected.  

c. Ethical or moral risk 

 This is the risk of dishonest actions being taken by insured persons for their personal gains, 

causing the Company payment of a higher settlement than a fair amount. This may result in a 

higher of loss ratio than expected and effect to the Company’s liquidity risk. 

The measures adopted by the Company in response to those above risks are as follows:  

1. Analysis on the basis of loss ratio and combined ratio plus expenses incurred in accordance with 

the ratio specified by the Company.  

2. Selection based on client group, nature of business and insurable risk, in accordance with 

specified criteria that correlate with acceptable risk levels, and analysis of the appropriate 

retention and ceded ratios to improve potential profitability. 
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3. Reinsurance to spread risk exposure by placing treaty and facultative reinsurance with local and 

overseas financial secured companies which have a credit rating of at least A-, and by 

purchasing excess of loss reinsurance that helps control retention risk to prevent exposure from 

the crisis, and to reduce the volatility of the Company’s operations, financial position and capital 

level.  

4. Management of the composition of the portfolio by writing all classes of insurance products and 

adjusting the portfolio mix according to market situation and customer demands. Technical 

knowledge and up to date statistics are used to plan marketing strategies to penetrate target 

markets by introducing products that are profitable and have high potential to expand. 

5. Analysis of the concentration of insurance risk. 

Concentration of insurance contracts liabilities segregated by insurance type are shown below. 

 (Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

 Gross 

premium 

reserves 

Outward 

premium 

reserves Net 

Gross 

premium 

reserves 

Outward 

premium 

reserves Net 

Fire 558,580,251 (216,543,323)  342,036,928 525,542,941  (201,958,141) 323,584,800 

Marine and 

transportation 25,919,342 (14,056,384) 11,862,958 26,933,070   (15,181,510) 11,751,560 

Motor 1,269,830,350 (7,833,162) 1,261,997,188 1,189,738,991    (7,094,478) 1,182,644,513 

Miscellaneous 261,364,115 (174,989,978) 86,374,137 287,451,342 (203,545,082) 83,906,260 

Total 2,115,694,058 (413,422,847) 1,702,271,211 2,029,666,344 (427,779,211) 1,601,887,133 

 

      (Unit: Baht) 

 2023 2022 

 Gross loss 

reserves 

Outward loss 

reserves Net 

Gross loss 

reserves 

Outward loss 

reserves Net 

Fire 130,210,535 (73,648,093) 56,562,442 168,073,744 (102,393,570) 65,680,174 

Marine and 

transportation 10,527,507 (3,973,780) 6,553,727 14,391,712 (6,757,829) 7,633,883 

Motor 758,388,614 (1,189,424) 757,199,190 670,185,132 (839,886) 669,345,246 

Miscellaneous 123,936,350 (88,020,465) 35,915,885 176,241,334 (125,691,671) 50,549,663 

Total 1,023,063,006 (166,831,762) 856,231,244 1,028,891,922 (235,682,956) 793,208,966 
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6. Sensitivity analysis 

Sensitivity analysis is performed to analyse the risk that insurance liabilities will increase or 

decrease as a result of changes in the assumptions used in the calculation of claim liabilities, 

which will impact the claims liabilities both before and after reinsurance. The risk may occur 

because the frequency or severity of losses, or loss adjustment expenses are not in line with 

expectations. 

The Company performed analysis of the sensitivity of insurance liabilities to changes in key 

variables. The variables for which tests were performed were the ultimate loss ratio (“ULR”) in 

the latest accident year and the unallocated loss adjustment expense ratio (“ULAE”) for the best 

estimate of insurance liabilities, with selection of variables based on appropriateness and the 

possibility of occurrence. 

The impact on the best estimate of insurance liabilities of changes in key variables is shown in 

the following table. 

(Unit: Million Baht) 

 2023 

 

Assumption 

change 

Increase 

(decrease) in 

provision for gross 

claim liabilities  

Increase 

(decrease) in 

provision for net 

claim liabilities  

Increase 

(decrease) in 

profit before tax 

Increase 

(decrease) in 

owner’s equity 

Ultimate loss ratio in 

latest accident year 

+ 5% 109 93 (93) (74) 

Ultimate loss ratio in 

latest accident year 

- 5% (109) (93) 93 74 

ULAE ratio +50% 3.5 3.5 (3.5) (2.8) 

ULAE ratio -50% (3.5) (3.5) 3.5 2.8 

(Unit: Million Baht) 

 2022 

 

Assumption 

change 

Increase 

(decrease) in 

provision for gross 

claim liabilities  

Increase 

(decrease) in 

provision for net 

claim liabilities  

Increase 

(decrease) in 

profit before tax 

Increase 

(decrease) in 

owner’s equity 

Ultimate loss ratio in 

latest accident year 

+ 5% 105 82 (82) (66) 

Ultimate loss ratio in 

latest accident year 

- 5% (104) (81) 81 65 

ULAE ratio + 50% 3.2 3.2 (3.2) (2.5) 

ULAE ratio - 50% (3.2) (3.2) 3.2 2.5 
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34.2 Credit risk 

 Credit risk is the risk that the Company may suffer a financial loss as a result of a counterparty’s 

inability to comply with the specified terms. The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with 

respect to insurance and investments. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to 

the book value less allowance for impairment as presented in the statement of financial position. The 

management manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures, as 

follows:  

a. Credit risk from underwriting  

(1) Risk from reinsurers 

 The Company considers and selects only reinsurers with a credit rating of A- or higher 

and monthly monitors for any adjustments to the credit ratings of reinsurance 

companies. 

(2) Risk from premium receivables collection 

The Company possesses an efficient process of closely following up its outstanding 

premiums from the insured, agents and brokers, in addition to requiring agents and 

brokers to submit collateral for the specified credit limits allowed by the Company. 

 A credit impairment analysis of claims receivable from litigants is performed at each reporting 

date. The expected credit loss rates are based on actual claim statistics over the past 10 - 13 

years, by classifying debtors into 2 types, namely insurance company litigants and non-

insurance litigants. The calculation of expected credit loss reflects the probability-weighted 

outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available 

at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic 

conditions.  

b.  Credit risk from investments 

 The Company selects investments based on the credit ratings of the issuers of fixed income 

securities, assigned by reliable outside credit rating agencies such as TRIS and FITCH. It is 

the Company’s policy to invest in fixed income securities of at least “Investment Grade” quality. 

All invested fixed income securities are periodically monitored for any adjustment in the 

debtors’ credit rating and relevant information is gathered to review the business potential of 

the issuers. The Company also regularly monitors and reviews the limits set for investment to 

ensure adequate investment limits are maintained for individual lines at all times. 
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An impairment analysis of investments in debt instruments, cash deposits and accrued 

investment income is performed at each reporting date. The provision of expected credit loss is 

calculated by using the General Approach by classifying the investments into stages as 

follows: 

Stage 1 Investment grade debt instruments where there has no significant increase in 

credit risk. The Company recognises allowance for expected credit loss at an 

amount equal to the expected credit loss in the next 12 months. 

Stage 2 Debt instruments where there has significant increase in credit risk but that are not 

credit impaired such as a downgrade of credit rating. The Company recognises 

allowance for expected credit loss at an amount equal to the lifetime expected 

credit loss of the financial assets. 

Stage 3 When there is a significant indication of credit impairment, such as failure to fulfil a 

contract (overdue principal or interest), borrowers experiencing serious financial 

problems, the lender relaxing conditions for borrowers and the possibility of 

borrower bankruptcy, the Company recognises allowance for expected credit loss 

at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit loss of the financial assets. 

At every reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in 

credit risk of financial assets since initial recognition. In the event of a significant change in credit 

risk, the debt instruments are restaged according to the indications or evidence of the assets 

being credit-impaired. The calculation of expected credit loss reflects the probability-weighted 

outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available 

at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic 

conditions. 

The below table showed the maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets before 

collateral or any activities that could mitigate credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk 

has carrying amounts that was presented the credit quality of financial assets exposed to credit 

risk as follows. 

  

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
220



61 

(Unit: Baht) 

 2023 

 

Financial 

assets 

where there 

has no 

significant 

increase in   

credit risk          

(12-mth 

ECL) 

Financial 

assets 

where there 

has been a 

significant 

increase in 

credit risk 

(Lifetime 

ECL - not 

credit 

impaired) 

Financial 

assets that 

are credit-

impaired 

(Lifetime 

ECL - credit 

impaired) 

Financial 

assets 

where 

applied 

simplified 

approach to 

calculated 

ECL 

(Lifetime 

ECL - 

simplified 

approach) Total 

Cash and cash equivalents      

Investment grade 187,990,263 - - - 187,990,263 

Allowance for expected credit loss (25,492) - - - (25,492) 

Net book value 187,964,771 - - - 187,964,771 

      

Accrued investment income      

Investment grade 8,013,397 - - - 8,013,397 

Allowance for expected credit loss (7,262) - - - (7,262) 

Net book value 8,006,135 - - - 8,006,135 

      

Available-for-sale investments 

measured at FVOCI      

Investment grade 

2,013,077,33

2 - - - 

2,013,077,33

2 

Total fair value 

2,013,077,33

2 - - - 

2,013,077,33

2 

Allowance for expected credit loss (669,780) - - - (669,780) 

      

Held-to-maturity investments 

measured at amortised cost      

Investment grade 550,936,557 - - - 550,936,557 

Allowance for expected credit loss (78,926) - - - (78,926) 

Net book value 550,857,631 - - - 550,857,631 

      

Loans and interest receivables      

Not yet due 491,492 - - - 491,492 

Allowance for expected credit loss - - - - - 

Net book value 491,492 - - - 491,492 

      

Other assets - Claims receivable 

from litigants      

Overdue - - - 354,365,394 354,365,394 

Allowance for expected credit loss - - - 

(227,182,143

) 

(227,182,143

) 

Net book value - - - 127,183,251 127,183,251 

      

Other assets - Brokers receivables      

Overdue - - - 37,619,225 37,619,225 

Allowance for expected credit loss - - - - - 

Net book value - - - 37,619,225 37,619,225 
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(Unit: Baht) 

 2022 

 

Financial 

assets 

where there 

has no 

significant 

increase in   

credit risk          

(12-mth 

ECL) 

Financial 

assets 

where there 

has been a 

significant 

increase in 

credit risk 

(Lifetime 

ECL - not 

credit 

impaired) 

Financial 

assets that 

are credit-

impaired 

(Lifetime 

ECL - credit 

impaired) 

Financial 

assets 

where 

applied 

simplified 

approach to 

calculated 

ECL 

(Lifetime 

ECL - 

simplified 

approach) Total 

Cash and cash equivalents      

Investment grade 293,496,535 - - - 293,496,535 

Allowance for expected credit loss (29,842) - - - (29,842) 

Net book value 293,466,693 - - - 293,466,693 

      

Accrued investment income      

Investment grade 6,192,866 - - - 6,192,866 

Allowance for expected credit loss (5,502) - - - (5,502) 

Net book value 6,187,364 - - - 6,187,364 

      

Available-for-sale investments 

measured at FVOCI      

Investment grade 

1,520,186,64

4 - - - 

1,520,186,64

4 

Total fair value 

1,520,186,64

4 - - - 

1,520,186,64

4 

Allowance for expected credit loss (626,452) - - - (626,452) 

      

Held-to-maturity investments 

measured at amortised cost      

Investment grade 530,001,007 - - - 530,001,007 

Allowance for expected credit loss (42,847) - - - (42,847) 

Net book value 529,958,160 - - - 529,958,160 

      

Loans and interest receivables      

Not yet due 686,989 - - - 686,989 

Allowance for expected credit loss - - - - - 

Net book value 686,989 - - - 686,989 

      

Other assets - Claims receivable 

from litigants      

Overdue - - - 315,876,592 315,876,592 

Allowance for expected credit loss - - - 

(208,307,055

) 

(208,307,055

) 

Net book value - - - 107,569,537 107,569,537 

      

Other assets - Brokers receivables      

Overdue - - - 54,518,261 54,518,261 

Allowance for expected credit loss - - - - - 

Net book value - - - 54,518,261 54,518,261 
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(Unit: Baht) 

 2022 

 

Financial 

assets 

where there 

has no 

significant 

increase in   

credit risk          

(12-mth 

ECL) 

Financial 

assets 

where there 

has been a 

significant 

increase in 

credit risk 

(Lifetime 

ECL - not 

credit 

impaired) 

Financial 

assets that 

are credit-

impaired 

(Lifetime 

ECL - credit 

impaired) 

Financial 

assets 

where 

applied 

simplified 

approach to 

calculated 

ECL 

(Lifetime 

ECL - 

simplified 

approach) Total 

Cash and cash equivalents      

Investment grade 293,496,535 - - - 293,496,535 

Allowance for expected credit loss (29,842) - - - (29,842) 

Net book value 293,466,693 - - - 293,466,693 

      

Accrued investment income      

Investment grade 6,192,866 - - - 6,192,866 

Allowance for expected credit loss (5,502) - - - (5,502) 

Net book value 6,187,364 - - - 6,187,364 

      

Available-for-sale investments 

measured at FVOCI      

Investment grade 

1,520,186,64

4 - - - 

1,520,186,64

4 

Total fair value 

1,520,186,64

4 - - - 

1,520,186,64

4 

Allowance for expected credit loss (626,452) - - - (626,452) 

      

Held-to-maturity investments 

measured at amortised cost      

Investment grade 530,001,007 - - - 530,001,007 

Allowance for expected credit loss (42,847) - - - (42,847) 

Net book value 529,958,160 - - - 529,958,160 

      

Loans and interest receivables      

Not yet due 686,989 - - - 686,989 

Allowance for expected credit loss - - - - - 

Net book value 686,989 - - - 686,989 

      

Other assets - Claims receivable 

from litigants      

Overdue - - - 315,876,592 315,876,592 

Allowance for expected credit loss - - - 

(208,307,055

) 

(208,307,055

) 

Net book value - - - 107,569,537 107,569,537 

      

Other assets - Brokers receivables      

Overdue - - - 54,518,261 54,518,261 

Allowance for expected credit loss - - - - - 

Net book value - - - 54,518,261 54,518,261 
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The table below shows the significant movement in the allowance for expected credit loss for the 

year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follow. 

 (Unit: Baht) 

 2023 

 

Financial 

assets 

where there 

has no 

significant 

increase in   

credit risk          

(12-mth 

ECL) 

Financial 

assets 

where there 

has been a 

significant 

increase in 

credit risk 

(Lifetime 

ECL - not 

credit 

impaired) 

Financial 

assets that 

are credit-

impaired 

(Lifetime 

ECL - credit 

impaired) 

Financial 

assets 

where 

applied 

simplified 

approach to 

calculated 

ECL 

(Lifetime 

ECL - 

simplified 

approach) Total 

Other assets - Claims receivable from litigants     

Beginning balance - - - 208,307,555 208,307,555 

Change due to remeasurement of 

allowance for expected credit loss - - - 7,605,185 7,605,185 

Newly purchased or acquired 

financial assets - - - 83,170,464 83,170,464 

Amounts written off - - - (71,901,061) (71,901,061) 

Ending balance - - - 227,182,143 227,182,143 

 
(Unit: Baht) 

 2022 

 

Financial 

assets 

where there 

has no 

significant 

increase in   

credit risk          

(12-mth 

ECL) 

Financial 

assets 

where there 

has been a 

significant 

increase in 

credit risk 

(Lifetime 

ECL - not 

credit 

impaired) 

Financial 

assets that 

are credit-

impaired 

(Lifetime 

ECL - credit 

impaired) 

Financial 

assets 

where 

applied 

simplified 

approach to 

calculated 

ECL 

(Lifetime 

ECL - 

simplified 

approach) Total 

Other assets - Claims receivable from litigants     

Beginning balance - - - 202,254,448 202,254,448 

Change due to remeasurement of 

allowance for expected credit loss - - - 12,852,287 12,852,287 

Newly purchased or acquired 

financial assets - - - 64,561,465 64,561,465 

Amounts written off - - - (71,360,645) (71,360,645) 

Ending balance - - - 208,307,555 208,307,555 
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34.3 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that change in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and securities prices may 

have an effect on the Company’s financial position. The Company had no significant financial 

instruments denominated in foreign currencies; market risk is therefore confined only to interest rate 

risk and equity position risk. 

The Company manages market risk by diversifying its portfolio and spreading its investment funding 

to include various lines of investment as well as categories of business in order to minimise 

fluctuations in the aggregate value of its investments. It closely monitors and regularly assesses 

factors that may cause fluctuations in the value of investment instruments in order to make 

appropriate investment transactions in the circumstances. The Company has a policy not to invest in 

speculative securities that are highly exposed to price fluctuations but to focus on blue-chip securities 

and securities that generate steady yields. The Company has an investment committee who consider 

and set investment policies in addition to the Office of Insurance Commission’s rules, in order to 

reduce exposure to investment loss, and also review the structure of the portfolio mix on a regular 

basis. 

a. Interest rate risk 

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of assets or liabilities will fluctuate due to changes in 

market interest rates. 

  

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
224



64 

34.3 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that change in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and securities prices may 

have an effect on the Company’s financial position. The Company had no significant financial 

instruments denominated in foreign currencies; market risk is therefore confined only to interest rate 

risk and equity position risk. 

The Company manages market risk by diversifying its portfolio and spreading its investment funding 

to include various lines of investment as well as categories of business in order to minimise 

fluctuations in the aggregate value of its investments. It closely monitors and regularly assesses 

factors that may cause fluctuations in the value of investment instruments in order to make 

appropriate investment transactions in the circumstances. The Company has a policy not to invest in 

speculative securities that are highly exposed to price fluctuations but to focus on blue-chip securities 

and securities that generate steady yields. The Company has an investment committee who consider 

and set investment policies in addition to the Office of Insurance Commission’s rules, in order to 

reduce exposure to investment loss, and also review the structure of the portfolio mix on a regular 

basis. 

a. Interest rate risk 

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of assets or liabilities will fluctuate due to changes in 

market interest rates. 
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 As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, significant assets and liabilities classified by type of interest 

rates, with those assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on 

the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date as follows:  

 (Unit: Baht) 

 2023 

 Fixed interest rates     

 Maturity date or repricing date     

 

Within              

1 year 1 - 5 years 5 years 

Floating 

interest rate 

Non-interest 

bearing Total 

Effective 

interest rate 

       (% per annum) 

Financial assets        

Cash and cash 

equivalents - - - 187,709,771 255,000 187,964,771 0.15 - 0.55 

Accrued investment 

income - - - - 8,006,135 8,006,135 - 

Investments in securities         

   Government and state 

enterprise securities 

1,102,699,12

5 65,921,747 - - - 

1,168,620,87

2 1.58 - 2.47 

   Private debt securities 375,523,879 459,083,108 29,847,988 - - 864,454,975 0.76 - 3.94 

   Equity instruments - - - - 897,933,857 897,933,857  

   Unit trusts - - - - 188,257,383 188,257,383  

   Deposits and certificate 

deposits at financial 

institutions 530,859,116 - - - - 530,859,116 0.35 - 2.50 

Loans and interest 

receivables 237,060 254,432 - - - 491,492 6.50 - 7.00 

Other assets - Claims 

receivable from litigants - - - - 127,183,251 127,183,251 - 

Other assets - Brokers 

receivables - - - - 37,619,225 37,619,225 - 

Insurance assets        

Premium receivables - - - - 608,865,352 608,865,352 - 

Reinsurance assets - 

claim reserves  - - - - 166,831,762 166,831,762 - 

Reinsurance 

receivables - - - - 234,986,796 234,986,796 - 

Financial liabilities        

Lease liabilities 13,416,705 23,669,315 - - - 37,086,020 2.09 - 5.00 

Insurance liabilities        

Insurance contract 

liabilities - claim 

reserves and 

outstanding claims - - - - 

1,023,063,00

6 

1,023,063,00

6 - 

Due to reinsurers - - - - 488,953,718 488,953,718 - 
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 (Unit: Baht) 

 2022 

 Fixed interest rates     

 Maturity date or repricing date     

 

Within              

1 year 1 - 5 years 5 years 

Floating 

interest rate 

Non-interest 

bearing Total 

Effective 

interest rate 

       (% per annum) 

Financial assets        

Cash and cash 

equivalents 29,997,710 - - 263,211,983 257,000 293,466,693 0.10 - 1.80 

Accrued investment 

income - - - - 6,187,364 6,187,364 - 

Investments in securities         

   Government and state 

enterprise securities 703,447,219 79,825,831 - - - 783,273,050 0.42 - 1.62 

   Private debt securities 239,175,439 497,533,213 30,202,642 - - 766,911,294 0.97 - 5.10 

   Equity instruments - - - - 

1,078,935,59

1 

1,078,935,59

1 - 

   Unit trusts - - - - 290,919,300 290,919,300 - 

   Deposits and certificate 

deposits at financial 

institutions 499,960,460 - - - - 499,960,460 0.35 - 1.35 

Loans and interest 

receivables 74,805 612,184 - - - 686,989 6.50 - 7.00 

Other assets - Claims 

receivable from litigants - - - - 107,569,537 107,569,537 - 

Other assets - Brokers 

receivables - - - - 54,518,261 54,518,261 - 

Insurance assets   -     

Premium receivables - - - - 557,809,721 557,809,721 - 

Reinsurance assets - 

claim reserves  - - - - 235,682,956 235,682,956 - 

Reinsurance 

receivables - - - - 395,973,799 395,973,799 - 

Financial liabilities        

Lease liabilities 13,242,599 23,561,576 - - - 36,804,175 0.79 - 4.75 

Insurance liabilities        

Insurance contract 

liabilities - claim 

reserves and 

outstanding claims - - - - 

1,028,891,92

2 

1,028,891,92

2 - 

Due to reinsurers - - - - 665,223,974 665,223,974 - 
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 (Unit: Baht) 

 2022 

 Fixed interest rates     

 Maturity date or repricing date     

 

Within              

1 year 1 - 5 years 5 years 

Floating 

interest rate 

Non-interest 

bearing Total 

Effective 

interest rate 

       (% per annum) 

Financial assets        

Cash and cash 

equivalents 29,997,710 - - 263,211,983 257,000 293,466,693 0.10 - 1.80 

Accrued investment 

income - - - - 6,187,364 6,187,364 - 

Investments in securities         

   Government and state 

enterprise securities 703,447,219 79,825,831 - - - 783,273,050 0.42 - 1.62 

   Private debt securities 239,175,439 497,533,213 30,202,642 - - 766,911,294 0.97 - 5.10 

   Equity instruments - - - - 

1,078,935,59

1 

1,078,935,59

1 - 

   Unit trusts - - - - 290,919,300 290,919,300 - 

   Deposits and certificate 

deposits at financial 

institutions 499,960,460 - - - - 499,960,460 0.35 - 1.35 

Loans and interest 

receivables 74,805 612,184 - - - 686,989 6.50 - 7.00 

Other assets - Claims 

receivable from litigants - - - - 107,569,537 107,569,537 - 

Other assets - Brokers 

receivables - - - - 54,518,261 54,518,261 - 

Insurance assets   -     

Premium receivables - - - - 557,809,721 557,809,721 - 

Reinsurance assets - 

claim reserves  - - - - 235,682,956 235,682,956 - 

Reinsurance 

receivables - - - - 395,973,799 395,973,799 - 

Financial liabilities        

Lease liabilities 13,242,599 23,561,576 - - - 36,804,175 0.79 - 4.75 

Insurance liabilities        

Insurance contract 

liabilities - claim 

reserves and 

outstanding claims - - - - 

1,028,891,92

2 

1,028,891,92

2 - 

Due to reinsurers - - - - 665,223,974 665,223,974 - 
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Interest rate sensitivity 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’s equity to a reasonably 

possible change in interest rates which will effect to the fair value of debt instruments as at 31 

December 2023. 

 2023 2022 

 Increase 

(decrease) 

Effect on 

equity  

Increase 

(decrease) 

Effect on 

equity  

 (%) (Million Baht) (%) (Million Baht) 

Available-for-sale investments - 

Debt instruments 1.0 (17.9) 1.0 (15.1) 

Available-for-sale investments - 

Debt instruments (1.0) 18.9 (1.0) 16.0 

The above analysis has been prepared assuming that the amounts of debt instruments and all 

other variables remain constant. As a result, a change in interest rates affects fair value of 

investments in debt instruments.  

b. Equity position risk 

 Equity position risk is the risk that change in the market prices of equity securities will result in 

fluctuations in revenues and in the value of assets. 

 As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company has risk from its investments in securities of 

which the price will change with reference to market conditions. 

34.4 Liquidity risk 

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to liquidate its assets and/or procure 

sufficient funds to discharge its obligations in a timely manner, resulting in the occurrence of a 

financial loss. 

The Company policies of management of liquidity risk are as follows: 

a. The Company invests in securities that are liquid, such as government sector securities or 

private sector securities with a low credit risk. It also spreads its investment funding and 

balances the portfolio, taking into account time horizons and fund needs to pay and meet 

obligations, management of accounts receivable and accounts payable, the period to maturity 

of assets and changes in the value of assets, given that, the maturity structure of assets and 

liabilities is in the appropriate level both volume and period, and correspond to external and 

internal circumstances surrounding the Company. 
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b. Adequate shareholders’ equity is maintained to cover liabilities and to manage exposure to 

business and operation risks. Other funding sources with high liquidity should also be secured 

as contingency plan. 

c.   Responsibilities and lines of reporting to those who manage liquidity risk are clearly defined and 

a reporting system has been established to generate an early warning report for executives on 

transactions that do not conform to the Company’s policy and to promptly, timely and 

accurately report warning signs of key risk indicators. 

Counting from the financial position date, the periods to maturity of assets and liabilities held as at 31 

December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: 

 (Unit: Baht) 

 2023 

 At call Within 1 year 1 - 5 years Over 5 years Unspecified Total 

Financial assets       

Cash and cash equivalents 187,964,771 - - - - 187,964,771 

Accrued investment 

income - 8,006,135 - - - 8,006,135 

Investments in securities 

860,613,067 

2,009,082,12

0 525,004,855 29,847,988 225,578,173 

3,650,126,20

3 

Loans and interest 

receivables - 237,060 254,432 - - 491,492 

Other assets - Claims 

receivable from litigants - 127,183,251 - - - 127,183,251 

Other assets - Brokers 

receivables - 37,619,225 - - - 37,619,225 

Insurance assets       

Premium receivables - 608,865,352 - - - 608,865,352 

Reinsurance assets - 

claim reserves  - 142,708,446 22,773,565 1,349,751 - 166,831,762 

Reinsurance receivables - 234,986,796 - - - 234,986,796 

Financial liabilities       

Lease liabilities - 13,416,705 25,459,729 - - 38,876,434 

Insurance liabilities       

Insurance contract 

liabilities - claim 

reserves and 

outstanding claims - 860,804,942 157,072,657 5,185,407 - 

1,023,063,00

6 

Due to reinsurers - 488,953,718 - - - 488,953,718 
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 (Unit: Baht) 

 2022 

 At call Within 1 year 1 - 5 years Over 5 years Unspecified Total 

Financial assets       

Cash and cash equivalents 263,468,983 29,997,710 - - - 293,466,693 

Accrued investment income - 6,187,364 - - - 6,187,364 

Investments in securities 1,050,663,063 1,442,583,118 577,359,044 30,202,642 319,191,828 3,419,999,695 

Loans and interest 

receivables - 74,805 612,184 - - 686,989 

Other assets - Claims 

receivable from litigants - 107,569,537 - - - 107,569,537 

Other assets - Brokers 

receivables - 54,518,261 - - - 54,518,261 

Insurance assets       

Premium receivables - 557,809,721 - - - 557,809,721 

Reinsurance assets - claim 

reserves  - 205,046,310 28,663,573 1,973,073 - 235,682,956 

Reinsurance receivables - 395,973,799 - - - 395,973,799 

Financial liabilities       

Lease liabilities - 13,242,599 25,861,309 - - 39,103,908 

Insurance liabilities       

Insurance contract liabilities - 

claim reserves and 

outstanding claims - 871,146,343 152,530,569 5,215,011 - 1,028,891,923 

Due to reinsurers - 665,223,974 - - - 665,223,974 
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 (Unit: Baht) 

 2022 

 At call Within 1 year 1 - 5 years Over 5 years Unspecified Total 

Financial assets       

Cash and cash equivalents 263,468,983 29,997,710 - - - 293,466,693 

Accrued investment income - 6,187,364 - - - 6,187,364 

Investments in securities 1,050,663,063 1,442,583,118 577,359,044 30,202,642 319,191,828 3,419,999,695 

Loans and interest 

receivables - 74,805 612,184 - - 686,989 

Other assets - Claims 

receivable from litigants - 107,569,537 - - - 107,569,537 

Other assets - Brokers 

receivables - 54,518,261 - - - 54,518,261 

Insurance assets       

Premium receivables - 557,809,721 - - - 557,809,721 

Reinsurance assets - claim 

reserves  - 205,046,310 28,663,573 1,973,073 - 235,682,956 

Reinsurance receivables - 395,973,799 - - - 395,973,799 

Financial liabilities       

Lease liabilities - 13,242,599 25,861,309 - - 39,103,908 

Insurance liabilities       

Insurance contract liabilities - 

claim reserves and 

outstanding claims - 871,146,343 152,530,569 5,215,011 - 1,028,891,923 

Due to reinsurers - 665,223,974 - - - 665,223,974 
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35. Fair value measurement for financial assets 

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company had the following financial instruments that were 

measured at fair value or were measured at cost but has to disclose fair value, using different levels 

of inputs as follows:  

(Unit: Baht) 

 2023 

 Fair value  

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Carrying value 

Financial assets measured at fair value      

Trading investments which are 

measured at FVPL      

Equity instruments 337,440,697 - - 337,440,697 337,440,697 

Unit trusts 72,799,280 - - 72,799,280 72,799,280 

Available-for-sale investments 

measured at FVOCI      

Government and state enterprise 

securities - 1,148,622,357 - 1,148,622,357 1,148,622,357 

Private debt securities - 864,454,975 - 864,454,975 864,454,975 

Equity instruments 334,914,986 - 225,578,174 560,493,160 560,493,160 

Unit trusts 115,458,103 - - 115,458,103 115,458,103 

Financial asset for which fair value are 

disclosed      

Cash and cash equivalents 187,964,771 - - 187,964,771 187,964,771 

Accrued investment income 8,006,135 - - 8,006,135 8,006,135 

Held-to-maturity investments measured 

amortise cost      

Government and state enterprise 

securities  - 19,979,085 - 19,979,085 19,998,515 

Deposits and certificate of deposits at 

financial institutions which are 

matured over 3 months 530,859,116 - - 530,859,116 530,859,116 

Loans and interest receivables 491,492 - - 491,492 491,492 
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35. Fair value measurement for financial assets 
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(Unit: Baht) 

 2022 

 Fair value  

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Carrying value 

Financial assets measured at fair value      

Trading investments which are 

measured at FVPL      

Equity instruments 442,008,200 - - 442,008,200 442,008,200 

Unit trusts 92,881,840 - - 92,881,840 92,881,840 

Available-for-sale investments 

measured at FVOCI      

Government and state enterprise 

securities - 753,275,350 - 753,275,350 753,275,350 

Private debt securities - 766,911,294 - 766,911,294 766,911,294 

Equity instruments 317,735,563 - 319,191,828 636,927,391 636,927,391 

Unit trusts 151,746,371 46,291,089 - 198,037,460 198,037,460 

Financial asset for which fair value are 

disclosed      

Cash and cash equivalents 293,466,693 - - 293,466,693 293,466,693 

Accrued investment income 6,187,364 - - 6,187,364 6,187,364 

Held-to-maturity investments measured 

amortise cost      

Government and state enterprise 

securities  - 30,316,393 - 30,316,393 29,997,700 

Deposits and certificate of deposits at 

financial institutions which are 

matured over                  3 months 499,960,460 - - 499,960,460 499,960,460 

Loans and interest receivables 686,989 - - 686,989 686,989 

The fair value hierarchy of financial assets as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 presents according to 

Note 4.20 to financial statements. 
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The method used for fair value measurement depends upon the characteristics of the financial 

instruments. The Company establishes the fair value of its financial instruments by adopting the 

following methods and assumptions. 

(a)  Financial assets maturing in the short-term, which consist of cash and cash equivalents, 

deposit at financial institutions, accrued investment income and other assets, their fair value is 

estimated based on the carrying amount presented in the statements of financial position. 

(b) The fair value of investments in debt instruments is generally derived from quoted market 

prices or determined by using the yield curve as announced by the Thai Bond Market 

Association. 

(c) Investments in marketable equity instruments have been presented at fair value by using 

market price. Investments in non-listed equity instruments are determined using generally 

accepted pricing model or approximated to their net book values if the fair value cannot be 

reliably estimated. 

(d) Investments in marketable unit trusts have been presented at fair value by using market price. 

Investments in non-listed unit trusts are determined by using the net asset value as announced 

by asset management company.  

(e) The fair value of fixed rate loans is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 

by using the current market interest rate. 

During the current year, there were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy. 

Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements of financial assets, categorised within Level 3 of 

the fair value hierarchy, are as follows. 

(Unit: Baht) 

 Financial statements in which the equity 

method is applied and Separate 

financial statements 

Balance as of 1 January 2023  319,191,828 

Net gain recognised into other comprehensive income 32,386,345 

Less: Disposals during the year (126,000,000) 

Balance as of 31 December 2023  225,578,173 
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The method used for fair value measurement depends upon the characteristics of the financial 
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market price. Investments in non-listed equity instruments are determined using generally 

accepted pricing model or approximated to their net book values if the fair value cannot be 

reliably estimated. 

(d) Investments in marketable unit trusts have been presented at fair value by using market price. 
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(e) The fair value of fixed rate loans is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 

by using the current market interest rate. 

During the current year, there were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy. 

Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements of financial assets, categorised within Level 3 of 

the fair value hierarchy, are as follows. 

(Unit: Baht) 

 Financial statements in which the equity 

method is applied and Separate 

financial statements 

Balance as of 1 January 2023  319,191,828 

Net gain recognised into other comprehensive income 32,386,345 

Less: Disposals during the year (126,000,000) 

Balance as of 31 December 2023  225,578,173 
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Key assumptions used to measure the fair value of investments, categorised within Level 3 that there 

has been a significant change in fair value are summarised below. 

Financial 

instruments 

Valuation 

technique 

Significant 

unobservable 

inputs Rates 

Sensitivity of the input to fair 

value 

Investments in Insurance business 

Non listed equity 

investments 

Discounted future 

cashflow 

Discount rate 9.50% 1% decrease in the discount rate 

would result in an increase in 

fair value by Baht 0.60 million 

and 1% increase in the discount 

rate would result in a decrease 

in fair value by Baht 0.53 million. 

36. Capital management 

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it preserves ability to 

continue its business as a going concern and to maintain capital reserve in accordance with 

Notifications of the OIC. 

37. Event after reporting period 

On 19 February 2024, a meeting of the Board of Directors passed the following resolutions to 

propose to the Annual General Meeting of shareholders: 

1. Approve an increase of the Company’s registered capital from Baht 370 million to be Baht 380 

million to be divided into 38 million shares with the par value at 10 Baht per share, by newly issue 

the ordinary shares in amount of 1 million shares with the par value at 10 Baht to support the 

stock dividend payment. 

2. Approve the allocation of profits for cash dividend and stock dividend payment approximately 

Baht 65.5 million, as follows:  

2.1 Cash dividend will be paid at the rate of Baht 1.5 per share for the 37 million existing 

shares, totaling Baht 55.5 million.  

2.2 Stock dividend will be paid at the ratio of 37 existing shares per 1 stock dividend, totaling of 

the stock dividend payment at 1 million shares, at par value Baht 10, totaling Baht 10 

million or equivalent to Baht 0.27 per share. In case that any shareholders hold the 

indivisible share remaining after such allocated, cash will be paid instead of the stock 

dividend at the rate of Baht 0.27 per share. 

2.3 Approve to allocate indivisible share remaining after such allocated the stock dividend to 

the registered Navakij Insurance Provident Fund. 
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38. Approval of financial statements 

 These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 19 

February 2024. 
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38. Approval of financial statements 

 These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 19 

February 2024. 

ATTACHMENT
Attachments 1	 Details of Directors, Executives, Chief Financial Officer, Person Supervising 

Accounting and Company Secretary
236

Attachments 2	 Details of subsidiary’s director 249
Attachments 3	 Details of Heads of the Office of Internal Audit and the Office of Compliance 250
Attachments 4	 Details of assets for business operations 252
Attachments 5	 Corporate Governance Policy, Code of Conduct and Board of Directors  

and Subcommittee Charters
252

Attachments 6	 Report of the Audit Committee 252



AAtt
ttaa

cchh
mm

eenn
tt  11

DDee
ttaa

iillss
  oo

ff  tt
hhee

  DD
iirree

cctt
oorr

ss

Ag
e

Hig
he

st 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 D

eg
ree

 /
NK

I S
ha

reh
old

ing
(ye

ar)
Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
(p

erc
en

t)
Pe

ro
id

Po
sit

ion
Na

me
 of

 A
ge

nc
y/C

om
pa

ny

MM
rr..  

SSuu
cchh

iinn
  WW

aann
ggll

eeee
88

-
Ba

ch
elo

r o
f E

ng
ine

eri
ng

, E
lec

tro
nic

s
10

.06
Fa

th
er 

of
20

01
-Pr

es
en

t
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 Bo

ard
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 Bo

ard
No

rth
rop

 In
sti

tu
te 

of 
Te

ch
no

log
y, 

US
A

-
Dr

. S
ara

n W
an

gle
e

19
93

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Dir

ec
to

r
So

n o
f U

nc
le

Ot
he

r L
ist

ed
 C

om
pa

ny
 (4

)
-

Ad
vis

or 
to

 In
ve

stm
en

t C
om

mi
tte

e
Dir

ec
to

r a
nd

 Ex
ec

ut
ive

 Tr
ain

ing
 Pr

og
ram

-
Mr

. T
ha

mn
u W

an
gle

e
20

13
-Pr

es
en

t
Au

dit
 Co

mm
itt

ee
Se

rm
su

k P
lc.

-
Ad

vis
or 

to
 th

e E
xe

cu
tiv

e B
oa

rd
-

Dir
ec

to
rs 

Ac
cre

dit
ati

on
 Pr

og
ram

 (D
AP

 10
5/

20
13

)
-

Mr
. V

ut
tic

ha
i W

an
gle

e
20

12
-Pr

es
en

t
Ch

iar
ma

n o
f t

he
 Re

mu
ne

rat
ion

 Co
mm

itt
ee

Se
rm

su
k P

lc.

-
Ro

le 
of 

th
e C

ha
irm

an
 Pr

og
ram

 (R
CP

 4/
20

01
)

Yo
un

ge
r U

nc
le 

of
20

11
-Pr

es
en

t
Vic

e C
ha

irm
an

Se
rm

su
k P

lc.

Da
te 

of 
Ap

po
int

me
nt

: 2
9 A

pri
l 1

99
3

Th
ai 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f D
ire

cto
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n
-

Mr
. P

itip
ho

ng
 Bi

sal
pu

tra
20

10
-Pr

es
en

t
Ind

ep
en

de
nt

 D
ire

cto
r

Se
rm

su
k P

lc.

La
tes

t r
e-e

lec
tio

n: 
25

 Ju
ne

 20
20

-
Th

ail
an

d I
ns

ura
nc

e L
ea

de
rsh

ip 
Pro

gra
m,

 cl
ass

 2/
20

12
Ol

de
r u

nc
le 

of
20

21
-Pr

es
en

t
Ch

iar
ma

n o
f t

he
 N

om
ina

tio
n a

nd
 

BT
S G

rou
p H

old
ing

 Pl
c.

OI
C A

dv
ca

nc
ed

 In
su

ran
ce

 In
sti

tu
te

-
Ms

. J
itt

ina
n W

an
gle

e
Re

mu
ne

rat
ion

 Co
mm

itt
ee

-
To

p E
xe

cu
tiv

e P
rog

ram
 in

 U
rba

n G
ree

n B
an

gk
ok

Yo
un

ge
r U

nc
le 

of
20

10
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r/ 
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e A
ud

it  
Co

mm
itt

ee
BT

S G
rou

p H
old

ing
 Pl

c.

De
ve

lop
me

nt
-

Mr
. A

na
k W

an
gle

e
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e N
om

ina
tio

n a
nd

 

Ur
ba

n G
ree

n D
ev

elo
pm

en
t In

sti
tu

te
-

Mr
. A

nin
 W

an
gle

e
Re

mu
ne

rat
ion

 Co
mm

itt
ee

 

-
To

p E
xe

cu
tiv

e P
rog

ram
 in

 Co
mm

erc
e a

nd
 Tr

ad
e 

20
18

-Pr
es

en
t

Ch
air

ma
n

Th
ai 

Me
tal

 D
rum

s M
FG

. P
lc.

(TE
PC

OT
)

19
89

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
ai 

Me
tal

 D
rum

s M
FG

. P
lc.

Co
mm

erc
e A

ca
de

my
20

16
-Pr

es
en

t
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e I
nv

es
tm

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e

Th
air

e L
ife

 As
su

ran
ce

 Pl
c.

-
Ca

pit
al 

Ma
rke

t A
ca

de
my

 Pr
og

ram
 (C

las
s 9

/2
00

9)
19

99
-Pr

es
en

t
Ch

air
ma

n
Th

air
e L

ife
 As

su
ran

ce
 Pl

c.

Ca
pit

al 
Ma

rke
t A

ca
de

my
 

19
94

-20
19

Dir
ec

to
r

Va
rop

ak
orn

 Pl
c.

-
Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Co

urs
e

19
78

-20
16

Dir
ec

to
r/ 

Ch
air

ma
n

Th
ai 

Re
ins

ura
nc

e P
lc.

 H
arv

ard
 U

niv
ers

ity
, U

SA
Ot

he
r B

us
ine

ss 
(11

)
20

17
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Pip

ata
na

sin
 Co

., L
td

.

20
17

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r/ 

Ch
air

ma
n

C.E
.S.

 Co
., L

td
.

20
17

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Po
on

 Ph
ol 

Co
., L

td
.

20
07

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Aq
ua

 In
fin

ite
 Co

., L
td

.

20
06

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Wa
ng

lee
 Pa

tta
na

 Co
., L

td
.

20
05

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Ra
jda

mr
i H

ot
el 

Plc
.

19
91

-Pr
es

en
t

Ch
air

ma
n

Ra
ng

sit
 Pl

az
a C

o.,
 Lt

d.

Na
me

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
Wo

rki
ng

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e w
ith

in 
5 y

ea
rs

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

be
tw

ee
n d

ire
cto

rs 
an

d 
ex

ec
ut

ive
s

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
236



Ag
e

Hig
he

st 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 D

eg
ree

 /
NK

I S
ha

reh
old

ing
(ye

ar)
Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
(p

erc
en

t)
Pe

ro
id

Po
sit

ion
Na

me
 of

 A
ge

nc
y/C

om
pa

ny

Na
me

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
Wo

rki
ng

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e w
ith

in 
5 y

ea
rs

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

be
tw

ee
n d

ire
cto

rs 
an

d 
ex

ec
ut

ive
s

MM
rr..  

SSuu
cchh

iinn
  WW

aann
ggll

eeee
    ((CC

oonn
tt''dd

))
20

22
-Pr

es
en

t
Ch

air
ma

n
Th

e P
et 

Co
., L

td
.

19
88

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e P

et 
Co

., L
td

.

19
82

-Pr
es

en
t

Ch
air

ma
n

Sa
th

orn
 Th

an
i C

o.,
 Lt

d.

19
68

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Wa
ng

lee
 Co

., L
td

.

20
14

-20
21

Ad
vis

or 
to

 Ch
air

ma
n o

f t
he

 Bo
ard

Th
e F

alc
on

 In
su

ran
ce

 Pl
c.

20
08

-20
19

Dir
ec

to
r/ 

Ch
air

ma
n

T.I
.I. 

Co
., L

td
.

19
90

-20
17

Dir
ec

to
r

Nu
ch

ap
on

 Co
., L

td
.

MM
rr..  

PPii
ttiipp

hhoo
nngg

  BB
iissaa

llpp
uutt

rraa
60

-
Ma

ste
r o

f B
us

ine
ss 

Ad
mi

nis
tra

tio
n

0.4
7

So
n o

f O
lde

r S
ist

er
20

14
-Pr

es
en

t
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 In

ve
stm

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Dir

ec
to

r
Un

ive
rsi

ty 
of 

Ha
rtf

ord
, U

SA
-

Mr
. S

uc
hin

 W
an

gle
e

20
14

-Pr
es

en
t

Ch
air

ma
n o

f t
he

 Ex
ec

ut
ive

 Bo
ard

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Ch

air
ma

n o
f In

ve
stm

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e

So
n o

f A
un

t
20

14
-Pr

es
en

t
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
ut

ive
 O

ffic
er

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Bo

ard
Dir

ec
to

r a
nd

 Ex
ec

ut
ive

 Tr
ain

ing
 Pr

og
ram

-
Ms

. J
itt

ina
n W

an
gle

e
20

08
-Pr

es
en

t
Pre

sid
en

t
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Me

mb
er 

of 
Ris

k M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e

-
Su

cc
es

sfu
l F

orm
ula

tio
n a

nd
 Ex

ec
ut

ion
-

Dr
. S

ara
n W

an
gle

e
20

07
-Pr

es
en

t
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e R
isk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
ut

ive
 O

ffic
er 

an
d P

res
idd

nt
of 

Str
ate

gy
 (S

FE
 3/

20
09

)
-

Mr
. A

na
k W

an
gle

e
20

02
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

(Ex
ec

ut
ive

 D
ire

cto
r)

-
Dir

ec
to

r C
ert

ific
ati

on
 Pr

og
ram

 (D
AP

 5/
20

03
)

-
Mr

. A
nin

 W
an

gle
e

Ot
he

r L
ist

ed
 C

om
pa

ny
 (2

)
Th

ai 
Ins

tit
ut

e o
f D

ire
cto

rs 
As

so
cia

tio
n

20
19

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Va
rop

ak
orn

 Pl
c.

Da
te 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nt

: 2
5 A

pri
l 2

00
2

-
Ad

va
nc

ed
 D

ipl
om

a i
n S

ec
uri

ty 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt

20
18

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r/ 

Me
mb

er 
of 

th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e/

Th
ai 

Me
tal

 D
rum

 Pl
c.

La
tes

t r
e-e

lec
tio

n: 
25

 Ju
ne

 20
20

Pro
gra

m 
(3/

20
11

)
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e N
om

ina
tio

n C
om

mi
tte

e

-
Th

e N
ati

on
al 

De
fen

ce
 Co

urs
e C

las
s 5

7
Ot

he
r B

us
ine

ss 
(12

)
As

so
cia

tio
n o

f N
ati

on
al 

De
fen

ce
 Co

lle
ge

 of
20

17
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
TK

I G
en

era
l In

su
ran

ce
 Co

., L
td

. 

Th
ail

an
d U

nd
er 

Th
e R

oy
al 

Pa
tro

na
ge

 of
 H

is
(La

o P
DR

.)

Ma
jes

ty 
Th

e K
ing

20
17

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
ai 

Ins
ure

rs 
Da

tan
et 

Co
., L

td
.

-
Bs

ine
ss 

Re
vo

lut
ion

 an
d I

nn
ov

ati
on

 N
etw

ork
 (B

RA
IN)

20
10

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
ai 

Ge
ne

ral
 In

su
ran

ce
 As

so
cia

tio
n

(Cl
ass

 5)
20

07
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Th

an
ap

isa
l C

o.,
 Lt

d.

Th
e F

ed
era

tio
n o

f T
ha

i In
du

sti
res

19
97

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Pra
ph

ai 
an

d S
on

s C
o.,

 Lt
d. 

19
93

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Ra
ng

sit
 Ru

am
pa

tan
a C

o.,
 Lt

d.

19
90

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
an

asa
rn 

So
mb

at 
(Th

ai)
 Co

., L
td

.

19
87

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
am

ron
gsu

p C
o.,

 Lt
d.

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
an

a N
on

dz
ee

 Co
., L

td
.

Dir
ec

to
r

Dh
an

ara
t C

o.,
 Lt

d.

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
237



Ag
e

Hig
he

st 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 D

eg
ree

 /
NK

I S
ha

reh
old

ing
(ye

ar)
Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
(p

erc
en

t)
Pe

ro
id

Po
sit

ion
Na

me
 of

 A
ge

nc
y/C

om
pa

ny

Na
me

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
Wo

rki
ng

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e w
ith

in 
5 y

ea
rs

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

be
tw

ee
n d

ire
cto

rs 
an

d 
ex

ec
ut

ive
s

MM
rr..  

PPii
ttiipp

hhoo
nngg

  BB
iissaa

llpp
uutt

rraa
  ((CC

oonn
tt''dd

))
Dir

ec
to

r
Ba

n A
yo

th
ay

a C
o.,

 Lt
d.

Dir
ec

to
r

Aq
ua

 Fl
ow

 Co
., L

td

20
22

-20
23

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
ail

an
d I

ns
ura

nc
e I

ns
tit

ut
e 

19
87

-20
17

Dir
ec

to
r

Aq
ua

 M
ast

er 
So

lut
ion

 Co
., L

td
.

GGee
nn..

  MM
oonn

ttrree
ee  

SSuu
nngg

kkaa
ssaa

pp
75

-
Ma

ste
r o

f A
rts

 (M
ilit

ary
)

No
ne

No
ne

20
22

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Ind

ep
en

de
nt

 D
ire

cto
r

Co
mm

an
d a

nd
 G

en
era

l S
taf

f C
oll

eg
e

Ch
air

ma
n o

f t
he

 Re
mu

ne
rat

ion
, N

om
ina

tio
n

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 Re

mu
ne

rat
ion

, N
om

ina
tio

n
an

d S
us

tai
na

ble
 D

ev
elo

pm
en

t C
om

mi
tte

e

an
d S

us
tai

na
ble

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e

Dir
ec

to
r a

nd
 Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e
-

Bo
ard

 N
om

ina
tio

n a
nd

 Co
mp

en
sat

ion
 Pr

og
ram

Ot
he

r L
ist

ed
 C

om
pa

ny
 (1

)
(BN

CP
 20

21
) 

20
18

-Pr
es

en
t

Ind
ep

en
de

nt
 D

ire
cto

r/ 
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 Au

dit
 

Sta
rfle

x P
lc.

Da
te 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nt

: 2
6 A

pri
l 2

02
2

-
Dir

ec
to

r C
ert

ific
ati

on
 Pr

og
ram

 (D
CP

 20
18

) 
Co

mm
itt

ee
 an

d t
he

 Re
mu

ne
rat

ion
 an

d 

-
Ad

va
nc

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e P
rog

ram
 (A

AC
P 2

01
8)

No
mi

na
tio

n C
om

mi
tte

e

-
Th

e R
ole

 of
 Ch

air
ma

n P
rog

ram
 (R

CP
 20

07
)

20
18

-20
22

Ind
ep

en
de

nt
 D

ire
cto

r/ 
Ch

air
ma

n/
 

NF
C P

lc.

Th
ai 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f D
ire

cto
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 Ri

sk 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt

 Co
mm

itt
ee

20
11

-Pr
es

en
t

Ad
vis

or 
to

 th
e B

oa
rd/

 M
em

be
r o

f t
he

 
Of

fie
 of

 th
e N

ati
on

al 
Bro

ad
ca

sti
ng

Na
tio

na
l B

roa
dc

ast
ing

 an
d T

ele
co

mm
un

ica
tio

n
an

d T
ele

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 

Co
mm

iss
ion

Co
mm

iss
ion

 (N
BT

C)

20
10

-Pr
es

en
t

Ad
vis

or 
to

 th
e C

ha
irm

an
 of

 th
e B

oa
rd 

SC
 G

rou
p C

o.,
Ltd

.

MM
rr..  

KKii
eett

  SS
rriicc

hhoo
mm

kkww
aann

87
-

Ba
ch

elo
r o

f B
us

ine
ss 

Ad
mi

nis
tra

tio
n 

0.1
2

No
ne

20
22

-Pr
es

en
t

Ch
air

ma
n o

f t
he

 Au
dit

 Co
mm

itt
ee

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Ind

ep
en

de
nt

 D
ire

cto
r

We
ste

rn 
Ne

w 
Me

xic
o U

niv
ers

ity
, U

SA
19

99
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 Au

dit
 Co

mm
itt

ee
20

19
-20

22
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 Re

mu
ne

rat
ion

, N
om

ina
tio

n  
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

Dir
ec

to
r a

nd
 Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
 

an
d C

orp
ora

te 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e C

om
mi

tte
e

Da
te 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nt

: 2
3 N

ov
em

be
r 1

99
9

-
Dir

ec
to

r C
ert

ific
ati

on
 Pr

og
ram

 U
pd

ate
 (D

CP
U 

5/
20

15
)

20
12

-20
19

Me
mb

er 
of 

th
e R

em
un

era
tio

n N
om

ina
tio

n  
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

La
tes

t r
e-e

lec
tio

n: 
25

 Ju
ne

 20
20

-
Ro

le 
of 

th
e C

ha
irm

an
 Pr

og
ram

 (2
7/

20
11

)
an

d  
Co

rpo
rat

e G
ov

ern
an

ce
 Co

mm
itt

ee

-
Ro

le 
of 

No
mi

na
tio

n a
nd

 G
ov

ern
an

ce
 

19
99

-20
22

Me
mb

er 
of 

th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

Co
mm

itt
ee

 (R
NG

 3/
20

12
)

Ot
he

r L
ist

ed
 C

om
pa

ny
 (1

)
-

Mo
nit

ori
ng

 th
e S

yst
em

 of
 In

ter
na

l C
on

tro
l a

nd
 

20
16

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r/ 

Me
mb

er 
of 

th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e

VG
I G

lob
al 

Me
dia

 Pl
c.

Ris
k M

an
ag

em
en

t (
MI

R 9
/2

01
0)

Ot
he

r B
us

ine
ss 

(8)

Ot
he

r B
us

ine
ss 

(2)

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
238



Ag
e

Hig
he

st 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 D

eg
ree

 /
NK

I S
ha

reh
old

ing
(ye

ar)
Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
(p

erc
en

t)
Pe

ro
id

Po
sit

ion
Na

me
 of

 A
ge

nc
y/C

om
pa

ny

Na
me

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
Wo

rki
ng

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e w
ith

in 
5 y

ea
rs

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

be
tw

ee
n d

ire
cto

rs 
an

d 
ex

ec
ut

ive
s

MM
rr..  

KKii
eett

  SS
rriicc

hhoo
mm

kkww
aann

    ((CC
oonn

tt''dd
))

-
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 Fr

au
d R

isk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t (
MF

M 
2/

20
10

)
20

03
-Pr

es
en

t
Ch

air
ma

n
Ali

nk
ij S

iam
 Co

., L
td

.

-
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 th

e I
nt

ern
al 

Au
dit

 Fu
nc

tio
n (

MI
A 7

/2
01

0)
20

02
-Pr

es
en

t
Ch

air
ma

n
To

yo
ta 

Pe
tch

ab
oo

n T
oy

ot
a’s

 

-
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 th

e Q
ua

lity
 of

 Fi
na

nc
ial

 Re
po

rtin
g

De
ale

r C
o.,

 Lt
d.

(M
FR

 9/
20

09
)

19
95

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Pe
n S

oo
k C

o.,
 Lt

d.

-
Im

pro
vin

g t
he

 Q
ua

lity
 of

 Fi
na

nc
ial

 Re
po

rtin
g

19
90

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Su
an

 Pe
tch

ab
oo

n C
o.,

 Lt
d.

(Q
FR

 4/
20

06
)

19
88

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Din
 Pr

asi
t C

o,.
 Lt

d.

-
Au

dit
 Co

mm
itt

ee
 Pr

og
ram

 (A
CP

 2/
20

04
)

19
88

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
ai 

Pe
tch

ab
oo

n C
o.,

 Lt
d.

-
Fin

an
ce

 fo
r N

on
-Fi

na
nc

e D
ire

cto
r (F

ND
 7/

20
03

)
19

87
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Su

an
sil

ve
r B

ea
ch

 Co
., L

td
.

-
Dir

ec
to

r A
cc

red
ita

tio
n P

rog
ram

 (D
AP

 4/
20

03
)

19
77

-Pr
es

en
t

Ch
air

ma
n

Be
nja

 Ru
ng

rue
ng

 Co
., L

td
.

-
Dir

ec
to

r C
ert

ific
ati

on
 Pr

og
ram

 (D
CP

 18
/2

00
2)

Th
ai 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f D
ire

cto
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n

-
To

p E
xe

cu
tiv

e P
rog

ram
 in

 Co
mm

erc
e a

nd
 Tr

ad
e

Co
mm

erc
e A

ca
de

my
 (2

/2
00

9)

MM
rr..  

NNii
ppoo

ll  TT
..JJ

eeee
rraa

wwoo
nngg

73
-

Ba
ch

elo
r D

eg
ree

 in
 St

ati
sti

cs/
 M

ini
 M

BA
 

0.1
7

No
ne

20
19

-Pr
es

en
t

Me
mb

er 
of 

th
e R

em
un

era
tio

n, 
No

mi
na

tio
n

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Dir

ec
to

r
Th

am
ma

sat
 U

niv
ers

ity
an

d S
us

tai
na

ble
 D

ev
elo

pm
en

t C
om

mi
tte

e

-
Ad

vis
or 

to
 C

ha
irm

an
 of

 th
e B

oa
rd 

20
15

-Pr
es

en
t

Me
mb

er 
of 

th
e I

nv
es

tm
en

t C
om

mi
tte

e
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 Ri

sk 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt

 C
om

mi
tte

e
Dir

ec
to

r a
nd

 Ex
ec

ut
ive

 Tr
ain

ing
 Pr

og
ram

20
14

-Pr
es

en
t

Ad
vis

or 
to

 Ch
air

ma
n o

f t
he

 Bo
ard

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e R
em

un
era

tio
n, 

No
mi

na
tio

n
-

Dir
ec

to
r C

ert
ific

ati
on

 Pr
og

ram
 U

pd
ate

 (D
CP

U 
5/

20
15

)
20

09
-Pr

es
en

t
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 Ri

sk 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt

 Co
mm

itt
ee

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

an
d S

us
tai

na
ble

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e

-
Bo

ard
 M

att
ers

 an
d T

ren
d (

BM
T 2

01
7)

19
92

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e I
nv

es
tm

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e

-
Dir

ec
to

r C
ert

ific
ati

on
 Pr

og
ram

 Re
fre

sh
er 

Co
urs

e 
20

07
-20

14
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 In

ve
stm

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

(RE
 D

CP
 1/

20
08

)
20

07
-20

14
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Bo

ard
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

Da
te 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nt

: 2
9 A

pri
l 1

99
2

-
Dir

ec
to

r C
ert

ific
ati

on
 Pr

og
ram

 (D
CP

 18
/2

00
2)

19
97

-20
07

Pre
sid

en
t

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

La
tes

t R
e-e

lec
tio

n: 
25

 Ap
ril 

20
22

Th
ai 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f D
ire

cto
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n
Ot

he
r L

ist
ed

 C
om

pa
ny

 (N
on

e)
-

Th
e E

xe
cu

tiv
e P

rog
ram

 in
 En

erg
y L

ite
rac

y 
20

17
-20

18
Ad

vis
or 

to
 th

e B
oa

rd 
of 

Dir
ec

to
rs

Ea
ste

rn 
Wa

ter
 Re

so
urc

es
  

for
 a 

 Su
sta

ina
ble

 Fu
tu

re 
(Cl

ass
 14

)
Ad

vis
or 

to
 th

e I
nv

es
tm

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e

De
ve

lop
me

nt
 an

d M
an

ag
em

en
t P

lc.

Th
ail

an
d E

ne
rgy

 Ac
ad

em
y

Ad
vis

or 
to

 th
e R

em
un

era
tio

n C
om

mi
tte

e

-
Ca

pit
al 

Ma
rke

t A
ca

de
my

 Pr
og

ram
 (C

las
s 1

3)
20

16
-20

17
Dir

ec
to

r
Ea

ste
rn 

Wa
ter

 Re
so

urc
es

  

Ca
pit

al 
Ma

rke
t A

ca
de

my
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 Ri

sk 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt

 Co
mm

itt
ee

De
ve

lop
me

nt
 an

d M
an

ag
em

en
t P

lc.

-
Na

tio
na

l D
efe

nc
e C

oll
eg

e, 
Th

e S
tat

e, 
Pri

va
te 

Ch
air

ma
n o

f t
he

 In
ve

stm
en

t C
om

mi
tte

e

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
239



Ag
e

Hig
he

st 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 D

eg
ree

 /
NK

I S
ha

reh
old

ing
(ye

ar)
Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
(p

erc
en

t)
Pe

ro
id

Po
sit

ion
Na

me
 of

 A
ge

nc
y/C

om
pa

ny

Na
me

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
Wo

rki
ng

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e w
ith

in 
5 y

ea
rs

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

be
tw

ee
n d

ire
cto

rs 
an

d 
ex

ec
ut

ive
s

MM
rr..  

NNii
ppoo

ll  TT
..JJ

eeee
rraa

wwoo
nngg

    ((CC
oonn

tt''dd
))

Se
cto

r a
nd

 Po
liti

ca
l S

ec
to

r C
ou

rse
 (C

las
s 3

)
Ot

he
r B

us
ine

ss 
(2)

Th
e A

sso
cia

tio
n o

f N
ati

on
al 

De
fen

ce
 Co

lle
ge

 of
 Th

ail
an

d
20

18
-Pr

es
en

t
Ind

ep
en

de
nt

 D
ire

cto
r

Or
ns

irin
 Co

.,L
td

.

Un
de

r T
he

 Ro
ya

l P
atr

on
ag

e o
f  

His
 M

aje
sty

 Th
e K

ing
20

16
-20

18
Dir

ec
to

r
Fa

cu
lty

 of
 Li

be
ral

 of
 Ar

ts,
 

-
Se

nio
r E

xe
cu

tiv
e M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rog

ram
 (S

EP
-10

)
Th

am
ma

sat
 U

niv
ers

ity

Sa
sin

 G
rad

ua
te 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f B
us

ine
ss 

Ad
mi

nis
tra

tio
n,

Ch
ula

lon
gk

orn
 U

niv
ers

ity

-
Ins

ura
nc

e M
an

ag
em

en
t

Sc
an

dia
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rog

ram
, S

we
de

n

-
Ge

ne
ral

 an
d A

dv
an

ce
 In

su
ran

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t

Sw
iss

 In
su

ran
ce

 Tr
ain

ing
 Ce

nt
er,

 Sw
itz

erl
an

d

MM
rrss

..  WW
aann

iidd
aa  

CChh
aann

ssiikk
aarr

iinn
63

-
Ba

ch
elo

r D
eg

ree
 in

 Ac
co

un
tin

g
0.0

1
No

ne
20

19
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r/ 
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Ind

ep
en

de
nt

 D
ire

cto
r

Ra
jam

an
ga

la 
Un

ive
rsi

ty 
of 

Te
ch

no
log

y
Ot

he
r L

ist
ed

 C
om

pa
ny

 (1
)

-
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e
-

Ba
ch

elo
r D

eg
ree

 in
 Fi

na
nc

e
20

18
-Pr

es
en

t
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 Au

dit
 Co

mm
itt

ee
Th

ai 
Me

tal
 D

rum
s P

lc.

Su
kh

ot
ha

i T
ha

mm
ath

ira
t O

pe
n U

niv
ers

ity
19

99
-20

17
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e
Th

ai 
Me

tal
 D

rum
s P

lc.

Da
te 

of 
Ap

po
int

me
nt

: 1
8 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
9

-
Dip

lom
a i

n A
ud

itin
g

Ot
he

r B
us

ine
ss 

(7)
La

tes
t R

e-e
lec

tio
n: 

27
 Ap

ril 
20

21
Th

am
ma

sat
 U

niv
ers

ity
20

18
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
ST

MS
 Ag

en
cy

 Co
., L

td
.

20
18

-Pr
es

en
t

Ma
na

ge
r o

f F
ina

nc
e

ST
MS

 Co
., L

td
.

Dir
ec

to
r a

nd
 Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
 

20
07

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Aq
ua

 In
fin

ite
 Co

., L
td

.

-
Au

dit
 Co

mm
itt

ee
 Pr

og
ram

 (A
CP

)
20

07
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Aq

ua
 Fl

ow
 Co

., L
td

-
Dir

ec
to

r A
cc

red
ita

tio
n P

rog
ram

 (D
AP

)
20

04
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
ST

MS
 Co

., L
td

.

Th
ai 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f D
ire

cto
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n
19

98
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Sa

th
orn

 N
ak

orn
 To

we
r C

o.,
 Lt

d.

-
Du

tie
s a

nd
 Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

ies
 of

 D
ire

cto
r in

 th
e C

on
tex

t o
f  

19
95

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Sin
n S

ath
orn

 Co
., L

td
.

Ch
an

gin
g W

orl
d

19
91

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Sa
th

orn
 Th

an
i C

o.,
 Lt

d.

-
Co

rpo
rat

e G
ov

ern
an

ce
 Pr

og
ram

 fo
r In

su
ran

ce
 Co

mp
an

ies
19

87
-Pr

es
en

t
Ma

na
ge

r o
f A

cc
ou

nt
ing

Sa
th

orn
 Th

an
i C

o.,
 Lt

d.

Th
ai 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f D
ire

cto
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n a
nd

Of
fic

e o
f In

su
ran

ce
 Co

mm
iss

ion
 

-
Ea

sy 
lis

ten
ing

 : A
cc

ou
nt

ing
 fo

r A
C

Th
e S

ec
uri

tie
s a

nd
 Ex

ch
an

ge
 Co

mm
iss

ion
, T

ha
ila

nd

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
240



Ag
e

Hig
he

st 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 D

eg
ree

 /
NK

I S
ha

reh
old

ing
(ye

ar)
Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
(p

erc
en

t)
Pe

ro
id

Po
sit

ion
Na

me
 of

 A
ge

nc
y/C

om
pa

ny

Na
me

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
Wo

rki
ng

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e w
ith

in 
5 y

ea
rs

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

be
tw

ee
n d

ire
cto

rs 
an

d 
ex

ec
ut

ive
s

MM
rrss

..  WW
aann

iidd
aa  

CChh
aann

ssiikk
aarr

iinn
  ((CC

oonn
tt''dd

))
-

Th
e I

mp
ort

an
ce

 of
 th

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e t
o t

he

Co
nfi

de
nc

e i
n t

he
 Ca

pit
al 

Ma
rke

t

Th
e S

to
ck

 Ex
ch

an
ge

 of
 Th

ail
an

d

MM
rrss

..  PP
hhoo

rrnn
ppuu

nn  
PPhh

oorr
nnpp

rraa
pphh

aa
71

-
Dip

lom
a o

f F
ine

 Ar
t  

No
ne

No
ne

20
22

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r/M

em
be

r o
f t

he
 Re

mu
ne

rat
ion

, 
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Ind

ep
en

de
nt

 D
ire

cto
r

Ma
rym

ou
nt

 Co
lle

ge
, U

.S.
A. 

No
mi

na
tio

n a
nd

 Su
sta

ina
ble

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

-
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e R
em

un
era

tio
n, 

No
mi

na
tio

n
Co

mm
itt

ee

an
d S

us
tai

na
ble

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e

Dir
ec

to
r a

nd
 Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
 

Ot
he

r L
ist

ed
 C

om
pa

ny
 (N

on
e)

No
ne

Ot
he

r B
us

ine
ss 

(9)
Da

te 
of 

ap
po

int
me

nt
: 2

2 F
eb

rua
ry 

20
22

N/
A

As
sis

tan
t t

o M
an

ag
ing

 D
ire

cto
r

Sia
m 

Mo
to

r C
o.,

Ltd

La
tes

t r
e-e

lec
tio

n: 
26

 Ap
ril 

20
22

N/
A

Ma
na

gin
g D

ire
cto

r
Th

aw
orn

 H
old

ing
s C

o.,
Ltd

N/
A

Ma
na

gin
g D

ire
cto

r
Sia

mp
ile

 Co
.,L

td
.

N/
A

Dir
ec

to
r

Ba
ng

ko
k M

ot
or 

Wo
rks

 Co
.,L

td

N/
A

Dir
ec

to
r

Sia
m 

Int
ern

ati
on

al 
Co

rp.
Ltd

.

N/
A

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
on

gth
av

orn
 Pa

tth
an

a C
o.,

Ltd
.

N/
A

Dir
ec

to
r

Sia
m 

Au
to

 Pa
rts

 Co
.,L

td
.

N/
A

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
aw

orn
 Es

tat
e C

o.,
Ltd

N/
A

Dir
ec

to
r

Sia
m 

Co
un

try
 Cl

ub
 Co

.,L
td

.

MM
rr..  

CChh
aann

  SS
oooo

  LL
eeee

64
-

Ba
ch

elo
r o

f E
ng

ine
eri

ng
, E

lec
tro

nic
 &

 Co
mp

ut
er

0.9
9

No
ne

20
03

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Ind

ep
en

de
nt

 D
ire

cto
r

Na
tio

na
l U

niv
ers

ity
 of

 Si
ng

ap
ore

, S
ing

ap
ore

Da
te 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nt

: 2
9 A

pri
l 2

00
3

Dir
ec

to
r a

nd
 Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
 

20
17

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Sin
o P

ort
 Co

., L
td

.

La
tes

t r
e-e

lec
tio

n: 
27

 Ap
ril 

20
21

-
Dir

ec
to

r A
cc

red
ita

tio
n P

rog
ram

 (D
AP

 10
1/

20
13

)
20

12
-Pr

es
en

t
Ma

na
gin

g D
ire

cto
r

Alp
ha

ria
 Pt

e. 
Ltd

.

Th
ai 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f D
ire

cto
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n
20

04
-Pr

es
en

t
Ma

na
gin

g D
ire

cto
r

TG
LD

 H
old

ing
s P

te.
 Lt

d.

19
95

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Wa
ng

lee
 Co

., L
td

.

19
93

-Pr
es

en
t

Ma
na

gin
g D

ire
cto

r
Ta

n G
ua

n L
ee

 Co
., L

td
.

MM
rr..  

TThh
aamm

nnuu
  WW

aann
ggll

eeee
87

-
Dip

lom
a

1.2
8

So
n o

f Y
ou

ng
er 

Un
cle

19
92

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Dir

ec
to

r
E.M

.I. 
Ele

ctr
on

ic 
Co

lle
ge

, L
on

do
n, 

UK
-

Mr
. S

uc
hin

 W
an

gle
e

-
Mr

. V
ut

tic
ha

i W
an

gle
e

Da
te 

of 
ap

po
inm

en
t: 2

9 A
pri

l 1
99

2
N/

A
Ch

air
ma

n
Th

an
ati

p C
o.,

 Lt
d.

Ot
he

r L
ist

ed
 C

om
pa

ny
 (N

on
e)

Ot
he

r B
us

ine
ss 

(3)

Ot
he

r L
ist

ed
 C

om
pa

ny
 (N

on
e)

Ot
he

r B
us

ine
ss 

(5)

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
241



Ag
e

Hig
he

st 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 D

eg
ree

 /
NK

I S
ha

reh
old

ing
(ye

ar)
Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
(p

erc
en

t)
Pe

ro
id

Po
sit

ion
Na

me
 of

 A
ge

nc
y/C

om
pa

ny

Na
me

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
Wo

rki
ng

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e w
ith

in 
5 y

ea
rs

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

be
tw

ee
n d

ire
cto

rs 
an

d 
ex

ec
ut

ive
s

MM
rr..  

TThh
aamm

nnuu
  WW

aann
ggll

eeee
  ((CC

oonn
tt''dd

))
Dir

ec
to

r a
nd

 Ex
ec

ut
ive

 Tr
ain

ing
 Pr

og
ram

 
N/

A
Dir

ec
to

r
Pla

pa
t C

o.,
 Lt

d.

-
Dir

ec
to

r A
cc

red
ita

tio
n P

rog
ram

 (D
AP

 51
/2

00
6)

N/
A

Dir
ec

to
r

Wa
ng

lee
 Co

., L
td

.

La
tes

t r
e-e

lec
tio

n: 
26

 Ap
ril 

20
22

Th
ai 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f D
ire

cto
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n
Da

te 
of 

res
ign

ati
on

: 2
1 A

pri
l 2

02
3

MM
rr..  

VVuu
ttttii

cchh
aaii  

WW
aann

ggll
eeee

83
-

Ba
ch

elo
r o

f In
du

str
ial

 En
gin

ee
rin

g
1.7

4
So

n o
f Y

ou
ng

er 
Un

cle
19

92
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Th

a N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Dir

ec
to

r
Bo

sto
n U

niv
ers

ity
, U

SA
-

Mr
. S

uc
hin

 W
an

gle
e

Ot
he

r L
ist

ed
 C

om
pa

ny
 (N

on
e)

Dir
ec

to
r a

nd
 Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
 

So
n o

f O
lde

r U
nc

le
Ot

he
r B

us
ine

ss 
(5)

Da
te 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nt

: 2
9 A

pri
l 1

99
2

-
Dir

ec
to

r A
cc

red
ita

tio
n P

rog
ram

 (D
AP

 93
/2

01
1)

-
Mr

. T
ha

mn
u W

an
gle

e
20

08
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Ch

ao
 Ph

ay
a R

es
ort

 Lt
d.

La
tes

t r
e-e

lec
tio

n: 
27

 Ap
ril 

20
21

Th
ai 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f D
ire

cto
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n
19

88
-Pr

es
en

t
Ma

na
gin

g D
ire

cto
r/ 

Dir
ec

to
r

Ch
ait

ip 
Co

., L
td

.

19
69

-Pr
es

en
t

Ma
na

gin
g D

ire
cto

r/ 
Dir

ec
to

r
Wa

ng
lee

 Co
., L

td
.

Ma
na

gin
g D

ire
cto

r/ 
Dir

ec
to

r
Ba

rn 
Sa

th
orn

 N
ua

 Co
., L

td
.

Ma
na

gin
g D

ire
cto

r/ 
Dir

ec
to

r
Wa

ng
lee

 Pa
tta

na
 Co

.,L
td

.

MM
ss..

  JJii
ttttii

nnaa
nn  

WW
aann

ggll
eeee

52
-

Ma
ste

r o
f B

us
ine

ss 
Ad

mi
nis

tra
tio

n
0.6

8
So

n o
f Y

ou
ng

er 
Bro

th
er

20
03

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Dir

ec
to

r
Ba

bs
on

 Co
lle

ge
, U

SA
-

Mr
. S

uc
hin

 W
an

gle
e

So
n o

f Y
ou

ng
er 

Un
cle

Da
te 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nt

: 2
9 A

pri
l 2

00
3

Dir
ec

to
r a

nd
 Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
 

-
Mr

. P
itip

ho
ng

 Bi
sal

pu
tra

20
23

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Sa
th

orn
 Th

an
i C

o.,
 Lt

d.

La
tes

t r
e-e

lec
tio

n: 
27

 Ap
ril 

20
21

-
Dir

ec
to

r A
cc

red
ita

tio
n P

rog
ram

 (D
AP

 63
/2

00
7)

So
n o

f Y
ou

ng
er 

Un
cle

20
19

-Pr
es

en
t

Co
-M

D, 
Bu

sin
es

s G
rou

p
Ra

ng
sit

 Pl
az

a C
o.,

 Lt
d.

Th
ai 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f D
ire

cto
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n
-

Dr
. S

ara
n W

an
gle

e
20

17
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Sin

o P
ort

 Co
., L

td
.

-
Mr

. A
na

k W
an

gle
e

20
14

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Pip
ata

na
sin

 Co
., L

td
.

-
Mr

. A
nin

 W
an

gle
e

20
14

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Po
on

 ph
iph

at 
Co

., L
td

.

20
11

-Pr
es

en
t

Ex
ec

ut
ive

 Vi
ce

 Pr
es

ide
nt

Ra
ng

sit
 Pl

az
a C

o.,
 Lt

d.

Bu
sin

es
s D

ev
elo

pm
en

t &
 M

ark
eti

ng

20
10

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Sh
op

pin
g C

en
ter

 Se
rvi

ce
s C

o.,
 Lt

d.

20
10

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Jit
tip

at 
Co

., L
td

.

20
09

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
an

a N
on

dz
ee

 Co
., L

td
.

20
09

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

So
mr

ue
de

e C
o.,

 Lt
d

20
06

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Ra
ng

sit
 Pl

az
a C

o.,
 Lt

d.

20
05

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Ra
ng

sit
 IT

 Co
., L

td
.

Ot
he

r L
ist

ed
 C

om
pa

ny
 (N

on
e)

Ot
he

r B
us

ine
ss 

(10
)

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
242



Ag
e

Hig
he

st 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 D

eg
ree

 /
NK

I S
ha

reh
old

ing
(ye

ar)
Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
(p

erc
en

t)
Pe

ro
id

Po
sit

ion
Na

me
 of

 A
ge

nc
y/C

om
pa

ny

Na
me

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
Wo

rki
ng

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e w
ith

in 
5 y

ea
rs

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

be
tw

ee
n d

ire
cto

rs 
an

d 
ex

ec
ut

ive
s

DDrr
..  SS

aarr
aann

  WW
aann

ggll
eeee

43
-

Do
cto

r o
f P

hil
os

op
hy

 in
 Bu

sin
es

s A
dm

ini
str

ati
on

,
0.5

5
So

n o
f

20
19

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r/ 

Ex
ec

ut
ive

 Vi
ce

 Pr
es

ide
nt

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Dir

ec
to

r
Sa

sin
 G

rad
ua

te 
Ins

tit
ut

e o
f B

us
ins

es
s A

dm
ini

str
ati

on
, 

-
Mr

.Su
ch

in 
Wa

ng
lee

20
15

-Pr
es

en
t

Vic
e P

res
ide

nt
 of

 Bu
sn

es
s D

ev
elo

pm
en

t
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

(Ex
ec

ut
ive

 D
ire

cto
r)

Ch
ula

lon
gk

orn
 U

niv
ier

sit
y

So
n o

f Y
ou

ng
er 

Un
cle

20
16

-20
19

As
sis

tan
t P

res
ide

nt
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e E
xe

cu
tiv

e B
oa

rd
-

Mr
. P

itip
ho

ng
 Bi

sal
pu

tra
Ot

he
r L

ist
ed

 C
om

pa
ny

 (N
on

e)
-

Ex
ec

uiv
e V

ice
 Pr

es
ide

nt
Dir

ec
to

r a
nd

 Ex
ec

ut
ive

 Tr
ain

ing
 Pr

og
ram

 
So

n o
f O

lde
r U

nc
le

Ot
he

r B
us

ine
ss 

(13
)

- C
ha

nn
el 

Ma
na

ge
mn

et
-

Dir
ec

to
r A

cc
red

ita
tio

n P
rog

ram
 (D

AP
 16

8)
-

Ms
. J

itt
ina

n W
an

gle
e

20
23

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

S T
 M

 S 
Co

., L
td

.

- S
ale

sfo
rce

 M
an

ag
em

ne
t

-
Fin

an
cia

l S
tat

em
en

ts 
for

 D
ire

cto
rs 

(FS
D 

28
)

So
n o

f Y
ou

ng
er 

Un
cle

20
20

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Ra
ng

sit
 Pl

az
a C

o.,
 Lt

d.

- O
pe

rat
ion

al 
Su

pp
ort

-
Bo

ard
 N

om
ina

tio
n a

nd
 Co

mp
en

sat
ion

 Pr
og

ram
 (B

NC
P1

8)
-

Mr
. A

na
k W

an
gle

e
20

17
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
TK

I G
en

era
l In

su
ran

ce
 Co

., L
td

. 

- B
us

ine
ss 

De
ve

lop
me

nt
Th

ai 
Ins

tit
ut

e o
f D

ire
cto

rs 
As

so
cia

tio
n

-
Mr

. A
nin

 W
an

gle
e

(La
o P

DR
.)

- C
orp

ora
te 

Ide
nt

ity
 an

d C
om

mu
nic

ati
on

s
-

To
p E

xe
cu

tiv
e P

rog
ram

 in
 Co

mm
erc

e a
nd

 Tr
ad

e
20

17
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Sin

o P
ort

 Co
., L

td
.

 (T
EP

CO
T),

 Cl
ass

 13
, C

om
me

rce
 Ac

ad
em

y
20

17
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Sit

th
ina

n C
o.,

 Lt
d.

Da
te 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nt

: 1
8 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
9

-
Ul

tra
 W

ea
lth

 G
rou

p, 
Cla

ss 
3

20
15

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e N

av
asa

ko
l C

o.,
 Lt

d

La
tes

t r
e-e

lec
tio

n: 
25

 Ju
ne

 20
20

Ind
ep

en
de

nt
 O

rga
niz

ati
on

20
15

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
an

asa
rn 

So
mb

at 
(Th

ai)
 Co

., L
td

.

-
Th

ail
an

d I
ns

ura
nc

e L
ea

de
rsh

ip 
Pro

gra
m

20
14

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Nic
e N

eig
hb

ou
rho

od

OI
C A

dv
an

ce
d I

ns
ura

nc
e I

ns
tit

ut
e

Co
tp

ora
tio

n C
o.,

 Lt
d.

-
We

alt
h E

nh
an

ce
me

nt
 Pr

og
ram

 (W
EP

)
20

11
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
La

ke
 Ra

tch
ad

a C
o.,

 Lt
d. 

Tis
co

 Ba
nk

 Pl
c.

20
11

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Ag
ro 

Po
lip

ac
k C

o.,
 Lt

d.

-
Int

erm
ed

iat
e C

ert
ific

ate
 Co

urs
e o

f Y
ou

ng
 

20
08

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Ma
da

me
 Pi

a C
o.,

 Lt
d.

Le
ad

ers
hip

 in
 D

em
oc

rat
ic 

Go
ve

rna
nc

e
20

08
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Aq

ua
 Fl

ow
 Co

., L
td

Kin
g P

raj
ad

hip
ok

's I
ns

tit
ut

e
20

07
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Aq

ua
 In

fin
ite

 Co
., L

td
.

20
14

-20
19

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e F

alc
on

 In
su

ran
ce

 Pl
c.

MM
ss..

  CC
hhaa

rruu
wwaa

nn  
CChh

aabb
cchh

aamm
rruu

nn
54

-
Ba

ch
elo

r o
f A

rts
No

ne
No

ne
20

22
-Pr

es
en

t
Se

nio
r V

ice
 Pr

es
ide

nt
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Dir

ec
to

r
Ch

ula
lon

gk
orn

 U
niv

ers
ity

20
14

-Pr
es

en
t

Co
mp

an
y S

ec
ret

ary
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

(Ex
ec

ut
ive

 D
ire

cto
r)

20
15

-20
23

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Co

mp
an

y S
ec

ret
ary

Dir
ec

to
r a

nd
 Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
 

20
14

-20
22

Vic
e P

res
ide

nt
 of

 O
ffic

e o
f P

res
ide

nt
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Bo

ard
 M

att
ers

 &
 Tr

en
ds

 (B
MT

 6/
20

18
)

20
14

-20
22

Vic
e P

res
ide

nt
 of

 O
ffic

e o
f  

Co
mp

lia
nc

e
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

Da
te 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nt

: 2
6 F

eb
rua

ry 
20

15
-

Co
mp

an
y S

ec
ret

ary
 Pr

og
ram

 (C
SP

 56
/2

01
4)

La
tes

t r
e-e

lec
tio

n: 
26

 Ap
ril 

20
22

-
Dir

ec
to

r A
cc

red
ita

tio
n P

rog
ram

 (D
AP

 20
14

)
Da

te 
of 

res
ign

ati
on

: 2
1 A

pri
l 2

02
3

Th
ai 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f D
ire

cto
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n

Ot
he

r B
us

ine
ss 

(N
on

e)
Ot

he
r L

ist
ed

 C
om

pa
ny

 (N
on

e)

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
243



Ag
e

Hig
he

st 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 D

eg
ree

 /
NK

I S
ha

reh
old

ing
(ye

ar)
Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
(p

erc
en

t)
Pe

ro
id

Po
sit

ion
Na

me
 of

 A
ge

nc
y/C

om
pa

ny

Na
me

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
Wo

rki
ng

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e w
ith

in 
5 y

ea
rs

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

be
tw

ee
n d

ire
cto

rs 
an

d 
ex

ec
ut

ive
s

MM
ss..

  CC
hhaa

rruu
wwaa

nn  
CChh

aabb
cchh

aamm
rruu

nn  
((CC

oonn
tt''tt

))
-

Pre
lim

ina
ry 

to
 Co

rpo
rat

e S
us

tai
na

bil
ity

-
Su

sta
ina

bil
ity

 Co
mm

itm
en

t

-
Va

lue
 Ch

ain
 an

d S
tak

eh
old

er 
An

aly
sis

-
Str

ate
gie

s a
nd

 Pr
oc

es
s f

or 
Su

sta
ina

bil
ity

 O
pe

rat
ion

s

-
Ma

ter
ial

ity
 an

d S
us

tai
na

ble
 Ri

sk 
An

aly
sis

-
Su

sta
ina

bil
ity

 D
isc

los
ure

Sto
ck

 Ex
ch

an
ge

 of
 Th

ail
an

d

-
Gr

ab
bin

g O
pp

ort
un

ity
 to

 Su
sta

ina
ble

 G
row

th
 

Th
ail

an
d S

ec
uri

tie
s D

ep
os

ito
ry 

Co
.,L

td
.

MM
rr..  

AAnn
aakk

  WW
aann

ggll
eeee

47
-

Ma
ste

r o
f S

cie
nc

e i
n I

nfo
rm

ati
on

 Sy
ste

ms
0.2

So
n o

f O
lde

r B
rot

he
r

20
23

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Dir

ec
to

r
No

rth
ea

ste
rn 

Un
ive

rsi
ty,

 U
SA

-
Mr

. S
uc

hin
 W

an
gle

e
20

19
-Pr

es
en

t
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e E
xe

cu
tiv

e B
oa

rd
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

(Ex
ec

ut
ive

 D
ire

cto
r)

-
M.

A. 
in 

Ec
on

om
ics

So
n o

f Y
ou

ng
er 

Un
cle

20
15

-Pr
es

en
t

Me
mb

er 
of 

th
e R

isk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

mi
tte

e
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Ch

ief
 Fi

na
nc

ial
 O

ffic
er

Bo
sto

n U
niv

ers
ity

, U
SA

-
Mr

. P
itip

ho
ng

 Bi
sal

pu
tra

20
14

-Pr
es

en
t

Me
mb

er 
of 

th
e I

nv
es

tm
en

t C
om

mi
tte

e
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Vi

ce
 Pr

es
ide

nt
,

So
n o

f O
lde

r U
nc

le
20

14
-Pr

es
en

t
Vic

e P
res

ide
nt

 of
 As

se
ts 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt
 D

ep
t.

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

- A
sse

ts 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt

Dir
ec

to
r a

nd
 Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
 

-
Ms

. J
itt

ina
n W

an
gle

e
20

15
-20

19
As

ist
an

t P
res

ide
nt

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

- O
rga

niz
ati

on
 D

ev
elo

pm
en

t
-

Dir
ec

to
r A

cc
red

ita
tio

n P
rog

ram
 (D

AP
/2

09
)

-
Dr

. S
ara

n W
an

gle
e

Ot
he

r L
ist

ed
 C

om
pa

ny
 (N

on
e)

- A
dm

ini
str

ati
ve

Th
ai 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f D
ire

cto
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n
Ol

de
r B

rot
he

r
Ot

he
r B

us
ine

ss 
(7)

- In
for

ma
tio

n S
yst

em
-

e-L
ea

rn 
CF

O 
Re

fre
sh

er:
 ES

G 
Iss

ue
s R

ela
ted

 to
 

-
Mr

. A
nin

 W
an

gle
e

20
23

-Pr
es

en
t

Ind
ep

en
de

nt
 D

ire
cto

r
Ph

att
ara

 Pa
lm

 O
il C

o.,
Ltd

- F
ina

nc
e

Bu
sin

es
s S

tra
teg

ies
, In

for
ma

tio
n D

isc
los

ure
 an

d 
Ch

air
ma

n o
f t

he
 Au

dit
 Co

mm
itt

ee

-
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e R
isk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e

Fin
an

cil
 Re

po
rts

 of
 Li

ste
d C

om
pa

nie
s

Me
mb

er 
of 

th
e N

om
ina

tio
n a

nd
 

-
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e I
nv

es
tm

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e

Sto
ck

 Ex
ch

an
ge

 of
 Th

ail
an

d
Re

mu
ne

rat
ion

 Co
mm

itt
ee

 

-
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e E
xe

cu
tiv

e B
oa

rd
20

18
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Th

an
asa

rn 
So

mb
at 

(Th
ai)

 Co
., L

td
.

20
17

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Sin
o P

ort
 Co

., L
td

Da
te 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nt

: 1
0 M

ay
 20

23
20

17
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Po

on
 Pi

pa
t C

o.,
 Lt

d

20
15

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e N

av
asa

ko
l C

o.,
 Lt

d

20
07

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

So
mr

ud
ee

 Co
., L

td

20
04

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

S&
U 

Co
., L

td

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
244



Ag
e

Hig
he

st 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 D

eg
ree

 /
NK

I S
ha

reh
old

ing
(ye

ar)
Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
(p

erc
en

t)
Pe

ro
id

Po
sit

ion
Na

me
 of

 A
ge

nc
y/C

om
pa

ny

Na
me

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
Wo

rki
ng

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e w
ith

in 
5 y

ea
rs

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

be
tw

ee
n d

ire
cto

rs 
an

d 
ex

ec
ut

ive
s

MM
rr..  

AAnn
iinn

  WW
aann

ggll
eeee

45
-

Ma
ste

r o
f B

us
ine

ss 
Ad

mi
nis

tra
tio

n
0.3

So
n o

f O
lde

r B
rot

he
r

20
23

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Dir

ec
to

r
Be

nt
ly 

Co
lle

ge
, U

SA
-

Mr
. S

uc
hin

 W
an

gle
e

20
19

-Pr
es

en
t

Me
mb

er 
of 

th
e E

xe
cu

tiv
e B

oa
rd

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

(Ex
ec

ut
ive

 D
ire

cto
r)

So
n o

f Y
ou

ng
er 

Un
cle

20
17

-Pr
es

en
t

Ac
tin

g V
ice

 Pr
es

ide
nt

 of
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Ex

ec
uti

ve
 Vi

ce
 Pr

es
ide

nt
, C

lai
ms

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r a

nd
 Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
 

-
Mr

. P
itip

ho
ng

 Bi
sal

pu
tra

Cla
im

s M
an

ag
em

en
t D

ep
art

me
nt

-
Ac

tin
g V

ice
 Pr

es
ide

nt
 of

 C
lai

ms
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
-

Dir
ec

to
r A

cc
red

ita
tio

n P
rog

ram
 (D

AP
 11

9/
20

15
)

So
n o

f O
lde

r U
nc

le
20

15
-20

19
As

ist
an

t P
res

ide
nt

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e E
xe

cu
tiv

e B
oa

rd
Th

ai 
Ins

tit
ut

e o
f D

ire
cto

rs 
As

so
cia

tio
n

-
Ms

. J
itt

ina
n W

an
gle

e
20

13
-20

14
Vic

e P
res

ide
nt

 of
 Cl

aim
s M

an
ag

em
en

t D
ep

t.
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Dr

. S
ara

n W
an

gle
e

Ot
he

r L
ist

ed
 C

om
pa

ny
 (1

)
Da

te 
of 

ap
po

int
me

nt
: 1

0 M
ay

 20
23

Yo
un

ge
r B

rot
he

r
20

15
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r/ 
Me

mb
er 

of 
Au

dit
 Co

mm
itt

ee
Th

ai 
Me

tal
 D

rum
s M

FG
. P

lc.

-
Mr

. A
na

k W
an

gle
e

Ot
he

r B
us

ine
ss 

(5)
20

19
-Pr

es
en

t
Dir

ec
to

r
Sit

th
ina

n C
o.,

 Lt
d.

20
17

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

C.E
.S.

 Co
., L

td
.

20
14

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Po
on

va
nic

h C
o.,

 Lt
d.

20
14

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

S&
U 

Co
., L

td
.

20
13

-Pr
es

en
t

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e U

nit
ed

 In
de

mn
ity

 Co
., L

td
.

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
245



DDee
ttaa

iillss
  oo

ff  EE
xxee

ccuu
ttiivv

eess
  

Ag
e

Hig
he

st 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 D

eg
ree

/
NK

I S
ha

reh
old

ing
(Ye

ar)
Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
(p

erc
en

t)
Pe

ro
id

Po
sit

ion
Na

me
 of

 A
ge

nc
y/C

om
pa

ny
MM

rrss
..  NN

aallii
nnaa

  BB
oodd

hhaa
rraa

mm
iikk

54
-

Ma
ste

r o
f B

us
ine

ss 
Ad

mi
nis

tra
tio

n
No

ne
No

ne
20

18
-Pr

es
en

t
Ac

tin
g V

ice
 Pr

es
ide

nt
 of

 O
ffic

e o
f R

isk
 M

an
ag

em
en

tT
he

 N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.
-

Ex
ec

ut
ive

 Vi
ce

 Pr
es

ide
nt

,
Un

ive
rsi

ty 
of 

We
st 

Flo
rid

a, 
US

A
20

14
-Pr

es
en

t
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e R
isk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
mi

tte
e

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

Un
de

rw
riti

ng
 an

d R
isk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

 
20

13
-Pr

es
en

t
Ex

ec
ut

ive
 Vi

ce
 Pr

es
ide

nt
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.
-

Me
mb

er 
of 

th
e R

isk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

mi
tte

e
20

10
-Pr

es
en

t
Me

mb
er 

of 
th

e E
xe

cu
tiv

e B
oa

rd
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.
-

Me
mb

er 
of 

th
e E

xe
cu

tiv
e B

oa
rd

20
09

-20
13

As
sis

tan
t P

res
ide

nt
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.
Ot

he
r L

ist
ed

 C
om

pa
ny

 (N
on

e)
Co

mm
en

ce
 in

 Ye
ar 

20
09

Ot
he

r B
us

ine
ss 

(N
on

e)

DDee
ttaa

iillss
  oo

ff  tt
hhee

  PP
eerr

ssoo
nn  

SSuu
ppee

rrvv
iissii

nngg
  AA

cccc
oouu

nntt
iinngg

Ag
e

Hig
he

st 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 D

eg
ree

/
NK

I S
ha

reh
old

ing
(Ye

ar)
Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
(p

erc
en

t)
Pe

ro
id

Po
sit

ion
Na

me
 of

 A
ge

nc
y/C

om
pa

ny

MM
rrss

..  MM
aayy

ssaa
  SS

uunn
ttrraa

nnuu
ssoo

rrnn
53

-
Ba

ch
elo

r D
eg

ree
 in

 Ac
co

un
tin

g
No

ne
No

ne
20

18
-Pr

es
en

t
Se

nio
r M

an
ag

er 
of 

Fin
an

ce
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

-
Th

e p
ers

on
 su

pe
rvi

sin
g a

cc
ou

nt
ing

Ba
ng

ko
k U

niv
ers

ity
Ot

he
r L

ist
ed

 C
om

pa
ny

 (N
on

e)
*q

ua
lifi

ca
tio

ns
 an

d c
on

dit
ion

s 
Ot

he
r B

us
ine

ss 
(N

on
e)

in 
ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 th

e r
ule

s 
Tra

ini
ng

 Pr
og

ram
 

pre
scr

ibe
d i

n t
he

 no
tifi

ca
tio

n o
f

-
Su

mm
ary

 of
 Si

gn
ific

an
t C

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e T

ha
i F

ina
nc

ial

th
e D

ea
rtm

en
t o

f B
us

ine
ss

Re
po

rtin
g S

tan
da

rd 
(TF

RS
) e

ffe
cti

ve
 in

 20
23

De
ve

lop
me

nt
.*

-
IFR

S1
7 I

ns
ura

nc
e C

on
tra

ct 
10

1)”

-
Se

nio
r M

an
ag

er 
of 

Fin
an

ce
-

IFR
S1

7 G
uid

eli
ne

s

Co
mm

en
ce

 in
 Ye

ar 
19

93
-

Ac
co

un
tin

g T
oo

ls,
 AI

, R
PA

, O
CR

 Te
ch

no
log

y a
nd

Da
te 

of 
Ap

po
int

me
nt

: 1
 Ju

ly 
20

21
Ac

co
un

tin
g i

n D
eg

ita
l E

ra

-
Pro

vis
ion

 fo
r im

pa
irm

en
t o

f fi
na

nc
ial

 in
str

um
en

ts

 (T
FR

S9
)

Na
me

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

Wo
rki

ng
 ex

pe
rie

nc
e w

ith
 5 

ye
ars

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
be

tw
ee

n d
ire

cto
rs 

an
d 

ex
ec

ut
ive

s

Na
me

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

Wo
rki

ng
 ex

pe
rie

nc
e w

ith
 5 

ye
ars

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
be

tw
ee

n d
ire

cto
rs 

an
d 

ex
ec

ut
ive

s

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
246



Ag
e

Hig
he

st 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 D

eg
ree

/
NK

I S
ha

reh
old

ing
(Ye

ar)
Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
(p

erc
en

t)
Pe

ro
id

Po
sit

ion
Na

me
 of

 A
ge

nc
y/C

om
pa

ny

Na
me

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

Wo
rki

ng
 ex

pe
rie

nc
e w

ith
 5 

ye
ars

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
be

tw
ee

n d
ire

cto
rs 

an
d 

ex
ec

ut
ive

s

MM
rrss

..  MM
aayy

ssaa
  SS

uunn
ttrraa

nnuu
ssoo

rrnn
  ((CC

oonn
tt''dd

))
-

Ele
ctr

on
ic 

Sy
ste

m 
for

 Su
bm

itt
ing

 Co
nt

rib
ut

ion
s o

f

Ins
ura

nc
e C

om
pa

nie
s

-
Ta

x I
mp

ac
t S

tu
dy

 Re
lat

ed
 to

 In
ter

na
tio

na
l F

ina
nc

ial

Sta
nd

ard
 Re

po
rtin

g N
o. 

17
: In

su
ran

ce
 Co

nt
rac

t

-
Sta

mp
 D

ut
y f

or 
E-P

oli
cy

-
Ca

sh
 St

am
p D

ut
y f

or 
Ele

ctr
on

ic 
Ins

tru
me

nt
s

DDee
ttaa

iillss
  oo

ff  CC
oomm

ppaa
nnyy

  SS
eecc

eerr
ttaa

rryy
Ag

e
Hig

he
st 

Ed
uc

ati
on

 D
eg

ree
/

NK
I S

ha
reh

old
ing

(Ye
ar)

Tr
ain

ing
 Pr

og
ram

(p
erc

en
t)

Pe
ro

id
Po

sit
ion

Na
me

 of
 A

ge
nc

y/C
om

pa
ny

MM
ss..

  CC
hhaa

rruu
wwaa

nn  
CChh

aabb
cchh

aamm
rruu

nn
54

-
Ba

ch
elo

r o
f A

rts
No

ne
No

ne
20

22
-Pr

es
en

t
Se

nio
r V

ice
 Pr

es
ide

nt
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.
-

Co
mp

an
y S

ec
ret

ary
Ch

ula
lon

gk
orn

 U
niv

ers
ity

20
14

-Pr
es

en
t

Co
mp

an
y S

ec
ret

ary
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.

20
15

-20
23

Dir
ec

to
r

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

Da
te 

of 
ap

po
int

me
nt

: 1
5 M

ay
 20

14
Dir

ec
to

r a
nd

 Ex
ec

ut
ive

 Tr
ain

ing
 Pr

og
ram

 
20

14
-20

22
Vic

e P
res

ide
nt

 of
 O

ffic
e o

f P
res

ide
nt

Th
e N

av
ak

ij I
ns

ura
nc

e P
lc.

-
Bo

ard
 M

att
ers

 an
d T

ren
ds

 (B
MT

 6/
20

18
)

20
14

-20
22

Vic
e P

res
ide

nt
 of

 O
ffic

e o
f  

Co
mp

lia
nc

e
Th

e N
av

ak
ij I

ns
ura

nc
e P

lc.
-

Dir
ec

to
r A

cc
red

ita
tio

n P
rog

ram
 (D

AP
 20

14
)

Ot
he

r L
ist

ed
 C

om
pa

ny
 (N

on
e)

-
Co

mp
an

y S
ec

ret
ary

 Pr
og

ram
 (C

SP
 56

/2
01

4)
Ot

he
r B

us
ine

ss 
(N

on
e)

Th
ai 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f D
ire

cto
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n

-
Pre

lim
ina

ry 
to

 Co
rpo

rat
e S

us
tai

na
bil

ity

-
Su

sta
ina

bil
ity

 Co
mm

itm
en

t

-
Va

lue
 Ch

ain
 an

d S
tak

eh
old

er 
An

aly
sis

-
Str

ate
gie

s a
nd

 Pr
oc

es
s f

or 
Su

sta
ina

bil
ity

 O
pe

rat
ion

s

-
Ma

ter
ial

ity
 an

d S
us

tai
na

ble
 Ri

sk 
An

aly
sis

-
Su

sta
ina

bil
ity

 D
isc

los
ure

-
TH

IS 
1-o

n-1
 Ad

vis
ory

 20
23

-
TH

SI 
20

23
 As

se
ssm

en
t P

rep
ara

tio
n

Sto
ck

 Ex
ch

an
ge

 of
 Th

ail
an

d

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
be

tw
ee

n d
ire

cto
rs 

an
d 

ex
ec

ut
ive

s

Na
me

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

Wo
rki

ng
 ex

pe
rie

nc
e w

ith
 5 

ye
ars

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
247



Ag
e

Hig
he

st 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 D

eg
ree

/
NK

I S
ha

reh
old

ing
(Ye

ar)
Tr

ain
ing

 Pr
og

ram
(p

erc
en

t)
Pe

ro
id

Po
sit

ion
Na

me
 of

 A
ge

nc
y/C

om
pa

ny

Na
me

Fa
mi

ly 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ip

Wo
rki

ng
 ex

pe
rie

nc
e w

ith
 5 

ye
ars

Po
sit

ion
 / 

Da
te 

of
 A

pp
oin

tm
en

t
be

tw
ee

n d
ire

cto
rs 

an
d 

ex
ec

ut
ive

s

MM
ss..

  CC
hhaa

rruu
wwaa

nn  
CChh

aabb
cchh

aamm
rruu

nn  
((CC

oonn
tt''dd

))
-

Dis
clo

su
re 

of 
Su

sta
ina

bil
ity

 Re
po

rt 
Ac

co
rdi

ng
 to

 IS
SB

-
Th

e C
orp

ora
te 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y t

o R
es

pe
ct 

Hu
ma

n R
igh

ts

Th
e S

ec
uri

tie
s a

nd
 Ex

ch
an

ge
 Co

mm
iss

ion

-
CG

R W
ork

sh
op

 20
23

 

Th
ai 

Ins
tit

ut
e o

f D
ire

cto
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n 

an
d S

to
ck

 Ex
ch

an
ge

 of
 Th

ail
an

d

-
Gr

ab
bin

g O
pp

ort
un

ity
 to

 Su
sta

ina
ble

 G
row

th
 

-
Iss

ue
r P

ort
al 

an
d S

ET
Lin

k T
rai

nin
g

Th
ail

an
d S

ec
uri

tie
s D

ep
os

ito
ry 

Co
.,L

td
.

-
Or

ga
niz

ing
 Bo

ard
 of

 D
ire

cto
r M

ee
tin

g

Th
ai 

Co
mp

an
y S

ec
ret

ary
 Cl

ub

-
Bo

ard
 Re

tre
at 

an
d N

ED
 M

ee
tin

g

-
AG

M 
No

tic
e /

 Bo
ard

 Re
so

lut
ion

Th
ai 

Lis
ted

 Co
mp

an
ies

 As
so

cia
tio

n

-
AG

M 
Ch

ec
kli

st 
Tra

ini
ng

Th
ai 

Inv
es

to
rs 

As
so

cia
tio

n

-
Int

ere
st 

Re
po

rts
 an

d I
ns

ide
 In

for
ma

tio
n P

oli
cy

-
Inf

orm
ati

on
 D

isc
los

ure
 th

rou
gh

 SE
T L

ink
 Tr

ain
ing

Sto
ck

 Ex
ch

an
ge

 of
 Th

ail
an

d

-
Gu

ide
lin

es
 fo

r D
isc

los
ing

 ES
G 

Re
po

rt 
an

d C
orp

ora
te

Go
ve

rna
nc

e f
or 

th
e N

on
-Li

fe 
Ins

ura
nc

e C
om

pa
nie

s

Of
fic

e o
f In

su
ran

ce
 Co

mm
iss

ion

-
Fo

ste
r a

n I
nn

ov
ati

ve
 En

vir
on

me
nt

 ot
 D

riv
e P

os
itiv

e c
ha

ng
e

Th
ai 

Ge
ne

ral
 In

su
ran

ce
 As

so
cia

tio
n

The Navakij Insurance Public Company Limited 56-1 One Report 2023
248
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DDeettaaiill  ooff  ssuubbssiiddiiaarryy’’ss  ddiirreeccttoorr  

The Company does not have any subsidiary. 
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AAttttaacchhmmeenntt  44    

AAsssseettss  ffoorr  bbuussiinneessss  ooppeerraattiioonnss  
Details are presented in “1.1.2 (4) Assets for Business Operations”  

 
AAttttaacchhmmeenntt  55    

CCoorrppoorraattee  GGoovveerrnnaannccee  PPoolliiccyy,,  CCooddee  ooff  CCoonndduucctt  aanndd  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  aanndd    
SSuubbccoommmmiitttteeee  CChhaarrtteerrss  

CCoorrppoorraattee  GGoovveerrnnaannccee  PPoolliiccyy  
https://www.navakij.co.th/public/core/uploaded/documents/802207e1481e0d0c96648c8d21298ddc.pdf 

CCooddee  ooff  CCoonndduucctt  
https://www.navakij.co.th/public/core/uploaded/documents/9e0467540723843092e46b7e5704cf3a.pdf 

BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorr  aanndd  SSuubbccoommmmiitttteeee  CChhaarrtteerr    
https://www.navakij.co.th/en/sustainability/charters-and-definition-of-independent-director 

AAttttaacchhmmeenntt  66    

RReeppoorrtt  ooff  tthhee  AAuuddiitt  CCoommmmiitttteeee  
Details are presented in “Report of the Audit Committee”  
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